
The City’s financial statements are prepared on a full accrual accounting basis, the same basis of
accounting used by the federal and provincial governments. The City continues to account for tangible
capital assets, which was adopted in 2009, which provides information for accountability and stewardship
and provides critical information on the City’s significant investment in assets.

Consolidated Financial Statements

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the following individual statements:

Name Pur
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position Provides a summary of the City’s financial assets

and liabilities (the financial resources the City has
available for future services and the future
revenues required to pay for past transactions).

Consolidated Statement of Operations Outlines revenues, expenses, surplus for the year
and accumulated surplus at year end. This
statement reflects the combined operations of the

. operating, capital, reserve and reserve funds for the
City and its consolidated entities and provides the
calculation of the City’s accumulated surplus at
year end.

Consolidated Statement of Net Financial Assets Outlines the changes in net financial assets as a
(Debt) result of annual operations, tangible capital asset

transactions, as well as changes in other non
financial assets.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Summarizes the City’s cash position and changes
during the year by outlining the City’s sources and
uses of cash.

The Consolidated Financial Statements combine the financial results of the City’s departments with the
financial results of the boards and commissions and government business enterprises that the City
effectively controls. There are 18 entities that are directly included in the financial statements and these are
listed in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The notes to the statements provide further detail
about the City’s financial results and are an integral part of the statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

The Consolidated Statement of Financial Position is the municipal equivalent of the private sector’s balance
sheet. This statement includes the net book value of the City’s tangible capital assets. This statement
focuses on the City’s assets (financial and non-financial) and liabilities. The difference between the liabilities
and financial assets is the City’s net financial assets (debt), which represents the net amount that must be
financed from future budgets.

Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements details the breakdown of the accumulated surplus,
including all of its components: amount invested in tangible capital assets; equity in government business
enterprises, reserve and reserve fund balances; and unfunded liabilities that must be recovered from future
revenues.

The City has received funds for specific purposes under legislation, regulation or agreements. The
recognition of these funds as revenues has been deferred until related expenses occur in the future. For
example, development charges and Federal and Provincial Government transfers received (such as public
transit funding), are not recognized as revenues until such time as the projects are constructed. These
restricted funds ace included in liabilities as “Deferred Revenue” and not in the accumulated surplus. A
breakdown of the City’s deferred revenue obligatory reserve funds can be found in Note 7 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements. I
As a result of the significant investment in tangible capital assets, there is a large accumulated surplus.
While there is a large accumulated surplus, this occurs at the same time that the City has a net financial
asset position (discussed on Page C.5) which assists in financing future unfunded liabilities and expenses.
Although tangible capital asset balances are considerable for municipalities — much larger on a percentage
basis than any other level of government — they do not provide liquidity, and are not typically available for
sale, the proceeds of which could be used for other purposes. It is for this purpose that tangible capital
assets are not included in the calculation of net debt/net financial assets position, arguably the most
important financial statistic for governments.

Consolidated Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus

The Consolidated Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus are considered to be the municipal
equivalent to the private sector’s Statement of Income and Retained Earnings.

The Consolidated Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus provides a summary of the revenues,
expenses and surplus throughout the reporting period and outlines the change in accumulated surplus. The
201 5 budget values presented in this statement have been adjusted to reflect the differences between
amounts as budgeted at the City on a modified “cash requirements” basis and amounts now recorded in
these financial statements. Note 20 outlines the adjustments to the budget, particularly reduction of debt
proceeds and payments, reduction of tangible capital asset purchases and inclusion of estimated
amortization expense. These adjustments to budgeted values were required to provide comparative budget
values based on the full accrual basis of accounting. The accrual based budget results in a surplus, as the
City must fund reinvestment in assets at replacement costs which are much greater than their historical
cost.

Consolidated Statement of Net Financial Assets (Debt)

The Consolidated Statement of Net Financial Assets (Debt) is unique to governments. Other senior levels
of government have been preparing this statement for a number of years. This statement focuses on the
financial assets of the City, adjusting the annual surplus for the impact of tangible capital assets: mainly
deducting the costs to acquire assets, and adding back amortization charged during the year.
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Financial Results Summary

The City of London’s financial position remained stable during 2015, with the City’s cash and investments
increasing by $77 million. Municipal Council’s adherence to the strategic financial plan continues to
produce positive results that are reflected in maintaining the financial health of the City.
The following significant items occurred in 2015:

On the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, the City has improved its net financial asset
position to $197 million; this is an improvement from the net financial asset position in 2014 of $128
million. This means that City’s financial assets are larger than its financial liabilities. This indicates that
the City is in a stronger position to provide for future expenses and liability repayments despite the fact
that the increase in the accumulated surplus position is made up predominantly of the investment in
tangible capital assets.

.- Total revenues were $1,155 billion in 2015, an increase of $43 million from 2014. Total expenses were
$1,009 million, an increase of $15 million from 2014. This increases the annual surplus to $146 million
in 2015 from $117 million in 2014, an increase of $29 million. This is mainly as a result of:

o Increases of $8 million in Provincial and Federal Funding along with increases of $21 million in
tax revenues, user fees of $8 million and in other types of revenues by $6 million; and

o Increases in expenses of $15 million.

> In relation to the tax-supported unconsolidated budget, which is presented on a cash basis, we reported
a break-even position after a transfer of $2 million to the Operating Contingency Reserve and no
transfer to the Unfunded Liability Reserve.

- The City issued debt in 2015 of $40.5 million, an increase from 2014 when $30 million was issued.
During the year, debt substitution totaled $7.3 million (2014 - $5.8 million) as a result of an allocation of
a portion of the debt servicing cost budget.

‘- The Urban Works Reserve Fund (UWRF) liability as at December 31, 2015 totalled $7.3 million, a $3.4
million decrease over the 2014 balance.

Consolidated Reserves, Reserve Funds and Obligatory Reserve Funds had a combined yearend
balance of $754 million, an increase of $56 million over 2014.

- In 2015, tangible capital assets increased by $82 million which included $310 million in additions, $141
million in disposals, amortization expense of $148 million and disposal of accumulated amortization of
$53 million; this is all net of changes in assets under construction which had a net increase of $8
million. This brought the net book value of the City’s assets to $3,486 billion from $3,404 billion in 2014.

The City’s Accumulated Surplus increased by $146 million in 2015, due to the increase in tangible
capital assets and an increase in financial assets. The Accumulated Surplus for 2015 is $3.7 billion.
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This report highlights and supplements information contained in the annual financial statements. It also
provides a historical review of a few key financial elements. Comments are categorized as follows:

Operating Results

1. Net Debt, Revenues and Expenses
2. Financing Sources for Municipal Operations
3. Breakdown of Revenues and Expenses
4. Tax Rate and Assessment Growth

Capita! Assets, Financing and Taxes Receivable

5. Capital Additions, Disposals and Amortization
6. Urban Works Reserve Fund Liability
7. Analysis of Debenture Issuance and Net Long-term Debt
8. Future Balances on Existing Debt and Long-term Liabilities
9. Reserves and Reserve Funds

10. Taxes Receivable

Economic Conditions

11. Statistics and Indicators



Net Financial Assets, Total Revenues and Total Expenses

Results for the year are as follows:

The City’s financial position improved to a net financial asset position of $197 million in 2015. The
net financial assets are the difference between the financial assets and financial liabilities, which
indicates liquidity and provides the analysis of any amounts that are requited to either fund from
future revenues or provide the liquidity to fund future expenses or repayment of liabilities.

Total revenues are $1,155 billion, up $43 million (3.9%) compared to 2014:
• Tax and user charges revenues are $793 million, up $29 million (3.8%) compared to 2014;
• Transfer payments are $236 million, up $8 million (3.5%) compared to 2014, predominantly

due to provincial uploading in social services.

Total expenses are $1,009 million, up $15 million (1.5%) compared to 2014:
• This includes an increase of $14 million for transportation services, $9 million for social and

family services, $8 million for environmental services and $5 million for social housing.
• This is offset by a decrease of $21 million for planning and development.

2. Financing Sources for Municipal Operations

The graph below illustrates the relative amount of the different sources of financing for all City
operations, over the past 5 years.
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3. Breakdown of Revenues and Expenses
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4. Tax Rate and Assessment Growth

City Council approved a tax levy of $517.1 million, representing an increase over 2014 of 3.7%.
When assessment growth and 2015 tax policy are taken into consideration, the levy increase
translated into a 2.5% increase in the total tax bill for the typical residential property owner. The
following table reflects the taxes on a residential property in 2014 and an assessed value of
$221,000 in 2015 (based on phased-in January 1, 2013 market values) and an average value
increase from 2014 (based on phased-in January 1, 2013 values).

COMPARATIVE PROPERTY TAXES

2015 2014
$ $

Municipal 2,589 2,509

Education 431 437

Total 3,020 2,946

For 2015 assessment weighted with applicable tax ratios and using consistent valuation dates
increased by 1 .17%

5. Capital Additions and Disposals

During 2015, additions to our completed capital assets were $310 million versus $313 million in
2014. We also disposed of capital assets of $141 million compared to $137 million in 2014. There
was also an increase in assets still under construction of $8 million in 2015. The following were the
largest net additions in 2015 excluding assets still under construction:

NET CAPITAL ASSET INCREASES RANKED BY 2015 SPENDING ($000’S)

1 Roads and Bridges Infrastructure $35,198
2 Sanitary and Storm Wastewater Infrastructure 26,536
3 Waterworks Infrastructure 10,118
4 Land, Landfill and Land Improvements 7,499
5 Vehicles 1,898

In 2015 amortization expense recorded was $148 million and accumulated amortization of $53
million was removed upon disposal of the assets.
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6. Urban Works Reserve Fund Liability (UWRF)

The Urban Works reserve fund liability represents works completed as at December 31, as follows:

URBAN WORKS RESERVE FUND ($000’S)

2015

Authorized but unpaid

Received but not authorized

In excess of the upper limit
Completed, but no claim received

TOTAL

Roads

1,323

761

Sanitary

145

284

1,557

43

URBAN WORKS RESERVE FUND ($000’S)

Total

1,677

284

4,277

1,079

7,257

2014

Authorized but unpaid

Received but not authorized
In excess of the upper limit
Completed, but no claim received

TOTAL

Roads Sanitary

- 952

465 952

863 1,702

341 417

1,669 4,023

Storm

307

472

287

1,066

SWM Total

- 1,259

- 1,417

3,915 6,952

- 1,045

3,975 70,673

7. Analysis of Debenture Issuance and Net Long-term Debt ($000’s)

In 2015, the City issued $40,500 of debt through public debentures (2014 -$30,000).

The amounts issued financed the following major activities:

Debenture Issuance ($000’s)

General Municipal Activities
(Roads, Transit, Recreation, Police Facilities and Industrial Parks)

Wastewater Infrastructure
Water Infrastructure

(on behalf of Lake Huron Primary Water Supply System)

Public
Debentures

Storm

209

SWM

2,660

2,660

275

2,084 2,029 484

19,575

12260

8665

The City issued public debentures at an average net borrowing cost to the City of 1.869% for a 10
year term.

40,500
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A

TOTAL MUNICIPAL DEBT PER HOUSEHOLD

$2,5OO-
$2,126 $2,123 $2,131

$2,OOO4. ...

I.

____

As a result of the Strategic Financial Planning Process, the City has limited the amount of new debt
authorized each year. Based on cash flow requirements and the status of capital projects, a debt issuance
of $40.5 million was required in 2015.

GENERAL MUNICIPAL DEBT AND LONG-TERM LIABILITIES AND DISCRETIONARY RESERVE
FUNDS AND RESERVES PER HOUSEHOLD

DECEMBER 31 ($000’s) 2011

Total Tax Supported Debt 245,172

Total Rate Supported Debt 111,118

_______ _______ _______

Total Debt 356,290

________ ________ ________

167,570Number of Households

Total Debt per Household ($)
Discretionary Reserve Funds & Reserves

Discretionary Reserve Funds & Reserves
per Household ($)

2012

238,215

120,913

359,128

169,145

2,123

379,449

2013

243,560

119,857

363,417

170,543

2,131

421,808

2014

239,697

116,174

355,871

172,281

2,066

518,480

2,126

360,012

2015

225,909

122,250

348,159

173,415

2,008

574,311

2,148 2,243 2,473 3,010 3,312
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8. Future Balances on Existing Debt and Long-term Liabilities

The following table outlines principal balances remaining on outstanding debentures for general
water, sewer and reserve funds as at December 31, 2015. The current obligation will be met by
2032.

DEBT AND LONG-TERM LIABILITIES OUTSTANDING as at DECEMBER 31 ($000’s)

do I

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
General Municipal 200,114 168,423 137,733 109,087 82,205 56,955
Discretionary Reserve Funds 26,860 22,860 18,764 14,561 10,239 _5,786
Total Tax Supported Debt 226,974 191,283 156,497 123,648 92,444 62,741

Water 16,916 14,749 12,520 10,229 8,327 6,384
Sewer 70,416 61,922 53,350 45,249 37,050 28,887
Obligatory Reserve Funds 35,367 30,677 25,926 21,846 17,694 13,465
Total Rate Supported Debt 122,699 107,348 91,796 77,324 63,071 48,736

Total Long-term Debt and Liabilities 349,673 298,631 248,293 200,972 155,515 111,477
Less Unamortized Discount (1,514) (1,291) (1,069) (871) (678) (486)

Total Long-term Debt and Liabilities,
net of Unamortized Discount 348,159 297,340 247,224 200,101 154,837 110,991

Percentage Remaining 100% 85% 71% 57% 44% 32%
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9. Reserves and Reserve Funds

At December 31, 2015, the City of London had combined Reserves and Discretionary and
Obligatory Reserve Funds of $754 million ($120 million and $633 million respectively). These
balances reflect a net increase of $56 million from December 2014, created by increased
contributions to reserves and reserve funds to allow predominantly for future purchases of tangible
capital assets and coverage of unfunded liabilities. The chart does not include the effect of
budgeted commitments made, which would reduce balances significantly.

TRENDS IN RESERVES AND RESERVE FUNDS
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In 2015, Reserve Funds grew by $53 million, reaching $633 million by year end. The majority of
funds grew due to increased contributions; others were drawn down to fund operations as well as
the purchase of capital assets.

Reserves increased by $3 million over 2014 balances.

The City has continued its “conservative fiscal practices” (Moody’s credit rating opinion) by
providing increased contributions to the reserve funds in 2015 increasing over the 2014 levels
despite significant purchases on tangible capital assets. The following table shows the breakdown
of reserves and reserve funds by entity with comparative data for 2014.

Boards and Commissions
London Downtown Business Association

London Public Library

Old East Village Business Improvement Area

Middlesex London Health Unit

London Convention Centre

Museum London

London Transit Commission

Public Utilities Commission

Lake Huron Primary Water Supply System

Elgin Area Water Supply System

___________________________________________

RESERVES
($000’s)

2015 2014

City
City of London Reserves

Discretionary Reserve Funds (City Only)

Obligatory Reserve Funds (City Only)

RESERVE FUNDS
($000’S)

2015 2014

708,073 104,994 - -

-
- 419,162 368,725

-
- 151,071 152,050

108,073 104,994 570,173 520,775

543 265 - -

216 183 - -

70 79 - -

314 308 - -

653 1,062 - -

-
- 6,524 6,400

9,127 9,088 37,027 36,227

1,963 1,913 - -

-
- 14,881 12,501

-
- 4,237 4,218

12,886 12,898 62,669 59,376

120,959 117,892 632,842 580,121
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10. Taxes Receivable ($000’s)

At the end of 2015, taxes receivable befote adjustments for allowance for uncollectible items, were
% of the total taxes levied in the year.

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Total Taxes Levied 680,021 658,368 637,905 629,864 630,674
Total Taxes Receivable at Year End 34,898 35,007 36,677 35,287 36,095
Percentage of Total Taxes Levied 5.1% 5.3% 5.7% 5.6% 5.7%

11. Statistics and Indicators

While the following statistics are not specifically addressed within the Financial Statements and are
drawn from different sources, they do provide a frame of reference when considering the overall
financial and economic environment in the City of London.

2015 2014
GENERAL STATISTICS:

Population (a) 381,310 377,520

Area in Acres 104,632 104,632

Number of Households (b) 173,415 172,281

Number of Properties (b) 146,686 144,755

Building Permit Values to) ($000s) 711,633 818,500

Average Home Selling Price (d)

London $265,370 $255,453
Ontario $465,556 $430,984
Canada $442,999 $408,085

Unemployment Rates (Annual Averages) fe)

London 6.5% 7.5%
Ontario 6.8% 7.3%
Canada 6.9% 6.9%

CPI Canada(e) (percentage change) 1.1% 2.0%

Real GDP Canada t (percentage change) 1.8% 2.4%

Sources of Information

(a) From Citys Planning Service Area

(b) Municipal Property Assessment Corporation

(c) Provided by Citys Building Division

(d) London-St Thomas Real Estate Board and The Canadian Real Estate Association
(e) Statistics Canada June 2015 and June 2016

(1) Statistics Canada October2015 and June 2016

C13
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CONCLUS)ON

The City has continued the implementation of its Strategic Financial Plan, which has placed us in a solid
financial position. Overall debt and long-term liabilities have decreased while other liabilities have
increased slightly. However, reserve and reserve fund balances have also increased to offset the additional
liabilities. This allowed us to withstand the ongoing global economic downturn, despite the impacts on our
social service costs.

During 2015, we were able to see increased Federal and Provincial funding and increased user fees offset
by increases in spending. This led to an increase in our annual surplus from 2014 and resulting in an
improved net financial asset position, which strengthens our future financial position.

Martin Hayward
Managing Director, Corporate Services and
City Treasurer, Chief Financial Officer

Anna Lisa Barbon
Director, Financial Services

June 2016
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Five Year Financial Review
(all dollar amounts in thousands of dollars)

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

TAXATION (Including education)
ResidentialandFarm $ 477,128 $ 457,611 $ 439,150 $ 427,640 $ 421,319
Commercial and Industrial 202.893 200,757 198,755 202.223 209,355

$ 680,021 $ 658.368 $ 637,905 $ 629,863 $ 630,674

TAX RATES (Including all area rates and education)
Residential 1.366710 1.367795 1.367937 1.385267 1.442744
Multi-residential 2.479835 2.509294 2.578781 2.631033 2.760758
Commercial 3.714835 3.766294 3.778755 3.795249 4.129253
Industrial 3.814835 4.145845 4.630114 4.652022 5.116887

TAX ARREARS
Percentage of Current Levy 5.1% 5.3% 5.7% 5.6% 5.7%

NET LONG TERM DEBT
General Municipal Rates $ 184.389 $ 191.654 $ 203,410 $ 196,704 $ 188.676
WaterRates 16.916 11.118 12,516 11,342 4.568
Sewer Rates 70.416 74,463 79.035 85,709 86.055
Municipal Reserve Funds 62.227 61,748 58.921 55,044 56.602

$ 333,948 $ 338,983 $ 353.882 $ 348,759 $ 335.901

DEBT PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REPAYMENTS
Principal $ 44,202 $ 44,922 $ 44,797 $ 55.515 $ 73,709
Interest 10.985 11,514 10.719 11,680 11.633

DEBT ISSUED $ 40,500 $ 30,000 $ 50,000 $ 72,000 $ 132,078

ASSESSMENT GROWTH 1.17% 1.22% 1.43% 1.01% 1.40%

TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS ADDITIONS $ 317.708 $ 313.293 $ 273,186 $ 294.949 $ 384.095

TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS AMORTIZATION $ 147,713 $ 142,784 $ 141,559 $ 134.904 $ 127,239

NET BOOK VALUE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS $3,486,341 $3,403,974 $3,321,318 $3,241,053 $3,173,902

ANNUAL SURPLUS $ 144.808 $ 117.376 $ 158,002 $ 113.163 $ 117,614

CONSOLIDATED ACCUMULATED SURPLUS $3,711,056 $3,566,248 $3,448,872 $3.29 1,562 $3,178,399

RESERVES. DISCRETIONARY AND OBLIGATORY
RESERVE FUNDS $ 753,801 $ 698,013 $ 587,746 $ 528,975 $ 491,599

DRAFT
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INTRODUCTION

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements and all other financial information included
within this financial report are the responsibility of the management of the City of London. The
City’s Financial Statements contained in this report have been prepared in accordance with the
accounting principles and disclosure requirements of the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants guidelines contained in the Public Sector Accounting Handbook.

The City Treasurer is responsible for submitting annually to the Audit Committee and Council
audited financial statements. These financial statements include the consolidated results of the
City of London for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2015.

Finance staff are responsible for the coordination and completion of the annual financial
statements in a timely, accurate and efficient manner as well as providing support and related
financial information to external auditors during the year-end audit.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the City of London provide important information about
the overall financial condition of the City. The purpose of the consolidated financial statements is
to present the results of transactions of the City, taking into consideration the accounting for all
City Funds and associated city business enterprises.

The audited Consolidated Financial Statements for City operations include:

• Auditors’ Report
• Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
• Consolidated Statement of Operations
• Consolidated Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets (Debt)
• Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
• Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
• Consolidated Schedule of Segment Disclosure — Operating Revenues
• Consolidated Schedule of Segment Disclosure — Operating Expenses
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of the Corporation of the City of London

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Corporation of the City of London, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31 2015, the consolidated statements of
operations, change in net debt and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generaTly accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.’

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit eyidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of theconsolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, we consider internaI control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statàmènts in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as e’aluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position of the Corporation of the City of London as at December 31, 2015, and its consolidated results of operations,
its consolidated changes in net debt, and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants

June 23, 2016

London, Canada



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF LONDON
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

(all dollar amounts in thousands of dollars)

E.3

2015 2014

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) $ 357,264 $ 432,698
Accounts receivable

Taxes receivable (Note 3) 24,648 24,465
Other receivables 51,484 49,527

Land held for resale 30,825 29,969
Investments (Note 4) 438,066 285,141
Loan receivable (Note 5) 25,157 25,730
Investment in government business enterprises and partnerships (Note 6) 172,005 174,350

Total financial assets 1,099,449 1,021,880

Financial liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 149,097 139,133
Deferred revenue (Note 7) 207,593 207,881
Accrued interest on long-term debt 2,044 2,130
Long-term liabilities (Note 8) 15,725 18,355
Long-term debt (Note 9) 332,434 337,516
Capital lease obligations (Note 10) 2,158 2,706
Urban works payable (Note 11) 7,257 10,673
Employee benefits payable (Note 12) 152,835 146,512
Landfill closure and post-closure liability (Note 13) 33,562 29,125

Total financial liabilities 902,705 894,031

Net financial assets 196,744 127,849

Non-financial assets
Tangible capital assets (Note 14) 3,486,341 3,403,974
Inventories of supplies 3,953 3,319
Prepaid expenses 24,018 31,106

Total non-financial assets 3,514,312 3,438,399

Accumulated surplus (Note 15) $ 3,711,056 $ 3,566,248

Contingent liabilities, loan guarantees, commitments, subsequent events (Notes 16, 17, 18, 24)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF LONDON E.4
Consolidated Statement of Operations
For the year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014
(all dollar amounts in thousands of dollars)

Budget 2015 2014

Revenues
Net municipal taxation $ 531,485 $ 539,261 $ 518,195
User charges 263,479 254,088 246,280
Transfer payments

Provincial 192,041 202,267 194,493
Federal 33,882 28,667 28,210
Other municipalities 5,011 5,152 4,973

Investment income 5,448 11,331 12107
Penalties and interest 6,102 7,966 6,528
Development charges earned 10,341 33,601 29,315
Developer contributions of tangible capital assets (Note 15) 45,000 41,126 34,021
Other 33,048 23,662 23,072
Equity in earnings of government business enterprises and partnerships (Note 6) 4,923 7,654 12,348

Total revenues 1,130,760 1,154,775 1,111,542

Expenses
General government 88,522 87,777 86,810
Protection to persons and property 186,722 185,424 188,005
Transportation services 173,240 180,544 166,509
Environmental services 162,779 165,485 157,872
Health services 23,599 23,733 21,547
Social and family services 204,865 215,412 206,129
Social housing 53,490 47,918 43,254
Recreation and cultural services 76,974 77,004 76,775
Planning and development 25,646 26,670 47,265

Total expenses 995,837 1,009,967 994,166

Annual surplus 134,923 144,808 117,376

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 3,566,248 3,566,248 3,448,872

Accumulated surplus, end of year $ 3,701,171 $ 3,711,056 $ 3,566248

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF LONDON E.5
Consolidated Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets
For the year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014
tall dollar amounts in thousands of dollars)

Budget 2015 2014

Annual surplus $ 134,923 $ 144,808 $ 117,376

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (201,144) (199,613) (198,632)
Developer contributions of tangible capital assets (45,000) (41,126) (34,021)
Amortization of tangible capital assets 147,713 147,713 142,784
Proceeds from sale of tangible capital assets

- 6,103 6416
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets

- 4,556 796
(98,431) (82,367) (82,657)

Change in supplies inventory
- (634) (351)

Change in prepaid expenses
- 7,088 (18,218)
- 6,454 (18,569)

Change in net financial assets 36,492 68,895 16,150

Netfinancial assets, beginning of year 127,849 127,849 111,699

Net financial assets, end of year $ 164,341 $ 196,744 $ 127,849

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF LONDON
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014
(all dollar amounts in thousands of dollars)

Cash provided by (used in)

2015

E.6

2014

Operating Activities
Annual surplus $ 144,808 $ 117,376

147,713
(41,126)

4,556
6,323
4,437

(8,430)
(42)

(184)
(1,957)

(856)
9,964

(288)
(86)

(3,416)
(634)

7,088
267,870

142,784
(34,021)

796
16,083

995
(12,348)

(9)

436
(12,953)

(3,417)
18,442
10,824

(143)
(6,182)

(351)
(18,218)
220,094

Items not involving cash
Amortization of tangible capital assets
Developer contributions of tangible capital assets
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets
Change in employee benefits payable
Change in landfill closure and post-closure liability
Equity in earnings of government business enterprises and partnerships
Amortization of debenture discount

Change in non-cash assets and liabilities
Taxes receivable
Other receivables
Land held for resale
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Accrued interest on long-term debt
Urban works payable
Inventories of supplies
Prepaid expenses
Net change in cash from operating activities

Capital Activities
Proceeds from sale of tangible capital assets 6,103 6,416
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (198,707) (196,079)
Net change in cash from capital activities (192,604) (189,663)

Investing Activities
Net increase in investments (152,925) (107,523)
Repayment of loans receivable 573 973
Repayment of promissory note receivable from government business enterprises 708 70,665
Government business enterprises and partnerships 68 127
Dividends from London Hydro Inc. (Note 6 (a)(v)) 10,000 3,000
Net change in cash from investing activities (141,576) (32,758)

Financing Activities
Long-term debt issued 39,163 30,023
Long-term debt repayments (44,202) (44,922)
Increase in long-term liabilities 200 7,589
Repayments of long-term liabilities (2,830) (227)
Repayments of capital lease obligations (1,455) (1,486)
Net change in cash from financing activities (9,124) (9,023)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (75,434) (11,350)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 432,698 444,048
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 357,264 $ 432,698

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF LONDON E.7
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2015
(all dollar amounts in thousands of dollars)

The Corporation of the City of London (the “Corporation”) is a municipality in the Province of Ontario
incorporated in 1855 and operates under the provisions of the Municipal Act, 2001.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements of the Corporation are prepared by management, in
accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards. Significant accounting policies are
as follows:

a) Basis of Consolidation

These consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of the
Corporation and include all organizations that are accountable to the Corporation for the
administration of their financial affairs and resources and are owned or controlled by the
Corporation except for the Corporation’s government business enterprises or partnerships which
are accounted for on the modified equity basis of accounting.

(i) Consolidated Entities

The following local Boards or Commissions are consolidated:

London Police Services Board
London Transit Commission
London Public Library Board
London & Middlesex Housing Corporation
Old East Village Business Improvement Area
London Downtown Business Association
Argyle Business Improvement Area
London Convention Centre Corporation
Covent Garden Market Corporation
Public Utility Commission
Museum London
Eldon House

The transactions and balances between the Corporation and the related boards have been
eliminated.

(ii) Equity Accounting

Government business enterprises are accounted for by the modified equity method. Under the
modified equity method, the accounting principles of government business enterprises are not
adjusted to conform to the Corporation’s accounting principles and inter-organizational
transactions and balances are not eliminated. However, inter-organizational gains and losses
are eliminated on assets remaining with the government reporting entities at the reporting date.
The Corporation recognizes its equity interest of the government business enterprises’ income
or loss in its consolidated statement of operations with a corresponding increase or decrease in
its investment account. All dividends received will be reflected as reductions in the investment
account.

The government business enterprises and partnerships during the year were:

London Hydro Inc.
Fair-City Joint Venture
City-YMCA Joint Venture



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF LONDON E.8
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended December31, 2015
(all dollar amounts in thousands of dollars)

(iii) Proportionate Consolidation

The Lake Huron and Elgin Area Water Boards have been consolidated on a proportionate
basis, based upon the water flow used by the Corporation in proportion to the entire flows
provided by the joint water boards.

Middlesex-London Health Unit is consolidated on a proportionate basis based upon a
percentage of grant money provided by the Corporation in comparison to grant money
provided by the Province of Ontario and the County of Middlesex.

(iv) Accounting for School Board Transactions

Although the Corporation collects taxation on behalf of the School Boards, the assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses, relating to the operations of the school boards are not
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

During the year, $137,358 of taxation was collected on behalf of school boards (2014 -

$136,723) and remitted to the school boards during the year.

(v) Trust Funds

Trust funds and their related operations administered by the Corporation are not included in
these consolidated financial statements, as they are reported on separately in the Trust
Fund Statement of Continuity and Balance Sheet.

Total net assets of Trust Funds administered by the Corporation amounted to $4,453
(2014 - $4,442).

b) Basis of Accounting

(i) Accrual Accounting

Revenues and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recognized as they are earned and measurable. Expenses are recognized as they are
incurred and measurable as a result of receipt of goods or services and the creation of a
legal obligation to pay.

(ii) Deferred Revenue

The Corporation receives contributions pursuant to legislation, regulations or agreements
that may only be used for certain programs or in the completion of specific work. In addition,
certain user charges and fees are collected for which the related services have yet to be
performed. These amounts are recognized as revenue in the fiscal year the related
expenses are incurred or services performed.

(iii) Land Held For Resale

Land held for resale is recorded at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes
amounts for improvements to prepare the land for sale or servicing.



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF LONDON E.g
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended December31, 2015
(all dollar amounts in thousands of dollars)

(iv) Non-Financial Assets

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in
the provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are
not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations.

i) Tangible Capital Assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes amounts that are directly
attributable to acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. The
cost of the tangible capital assets, excluding land, is amortized on a straight line basis
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Useful Life —

Asset Years

Landfill and land improvements 5 - 60
Buildings and building improvements 15 - 40
Leasehold improvements Lease term
Machinery, equipment and furniture 5 - 15
Vehicles 5 - 7
Water and wastewater infrastructure 15 - 100
Roads infrastructure 10 - 60
Computers 3
Computers under capital lease 3

Amortization is charged using the half year rule in the year of acquisition and in the year
of disposal. Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is available for
productive use.

ii) Contributions of tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets received as contributions related to water, wastewater
infrastructure, roads infrastructure and land are recorded at their estimated fair value at
the date they are assumed by the Corporation and are also recorded as revenue.

iii) Works of art and cultural and historic assets

Works of art and cultural and historic assets are not recorded as assets in these
consolidated financial statements.

iv) Interest capitalization

The City does not capitalize interest costs associated with the acquisition or construction
of a tangible capital asset.

v) Leased tangible capital assets

Leases which transfer substantially all of the benefits and risks incidental to ownership of
property are accounted for as leased tangible capital assets. All other leases are
accounted for as operating leases and the related payments are charged to expenses as
incurred.

vi) Inventories of supplies

Inventories of supplies held for consumption are recorded at the lower of cost and
replacement cost.



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF LONDON E.1O
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended December31, 2015
(all dollar amounts in thousands of dollars)

(v) Budget Figures

London City Council completes separate budget reviews for tax supported operating and
capital, as well as, water and wastewater budgets each year. Budget figures have been
provided for comparison purposes. Given differences between the budgeting model and
generally accepted accounting principles established by the Public Sector Accounting Board
(‘PSAB”), certain budgeted amounts have been reclassified to reflect the presentation
adopted under PSAB.

(vi) Use of Estimates

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the reporting date and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the year. These estimates and assumptions, including employee
benefits payable, taxation assessment appeals, legal claims provisions, landfill closure and
post-closure liabilities, the valuation of tangible capital assets and their related useful lives
and amortization and liabilities for contaminated sites, are based on management’s best
information and judgment and may differ significantly from future actual results.

c) Government Transfers

(I) Revenues

Government transfer revenue is recorded once it is authorized by the transferring
government, the Corporation is eligible to receive the transfer and the amount can be
reasonably estimated. Any amount received but restricted is recorded as deferred revenue
in accordance with Section 3100 of the Public Sector Accounting Handbook and recognized
as revenue in the period in which the resources are used for the purpose specified.

Government transfers include amounts received for the social assistance program. Funding
ratio can vary from 80% to 100% of program costs depending on social service program and
on the Provincial Upload Schedule for the Ontario Works program. Social service
administration funding covers 50% of certain administration costs. The Social Housing
program funding is approximately 20% of costs of the program.

In addition, the Corporation periodically receives senior government capital funding in the
form of infrastructure grants and receives ongoing funding from both senior levels of
government as a result of an allocation of gas tax funds.

(ii) Expenses

External transfers from the Corporation are recorded as expenses when eligibility criteria
have been met by the recipient and the amount can be reasonably estimated. This includes
payments issued to individuals eligible under the Ontario Works Act and Day Nurseries Act
as well as funding to contracted local social services agencies, Child Care providers and
Housing Providers that deliver services in accordance with legislation and local program
policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended December31, 2015
(all dollar amounts in thousands of dollars)

d) Tax Revenues

In 2015 the Corporation received $539,261 (2014 - $518,195) in property tax revenues for
municipal purposes. The authority to levy and collect property taxes is established under the
Municipal Act, 2001, the Assessment Act, the Education Act, and other legislation.

The amount of the total annual property tax levy is determined each year through Council’s
approval of the annual operating budget. Municipal tax rates are set annually by Council for each
class or type of property, in accordance with legislation and Council-approved policies, in order to
raise the revenues required to meet operating budget requirements. Education tax rates are
established by the Province each year in order to fund the costs of education on a Province-wide
basis.

Taxation revenues are recorded at the time tax billings are issued. Additional property tax revenue
can be added throughout the year, related to new properties that become occupied, or that become
subject to property tax, after the return of the annual assessment roll used for billing purposes. The
Corporation may receive supplementary assessment rolls over the course of the year from the
Municipal Property Assessment Corporation that identify new or omitted assessments. Property
taxes for these supplementary/omitted amounts are then billed according to the approved tax rate
for the property class.

Taxation revenues in any year may also be reduced as a result of reductions in assessment values
arising from assessment andfor tax appeals. Each year, an amount is identified to covet the
estimated amount of revenue loss attributable to assessment appeals, tax appeals or other
deficiencies in tax revenues (e.g., uncollectible amounts, write-offs, etc.).

e) Financial Instruments

The Corporation’s financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts
receivables, investments, loans receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, long-term
debt, long-term liabilities and urban works payable. Unless otherwise noted, it is management’s
opinion that the Corporation is not exposed to significant interest, currency, or credit risks arising
from these financial instruments.

1) Investments

Investments are recorded at amortized cost less any amounts written off to reflect a permanent
decline in value. Investments consist of authorized investments pursuant to provisions of the
Municipal Act and comprise government and corporate bonds, debentures, pooled investment
funds and short-term instruments of various financial institutions. Investments with original maturity
dates greater than 90 days are classified as investments in the statement of financial position.

Investment income earned on available current funds, reserves and reserve funds (other than
obligatory funds) are reported as revenue in the period earned. Investment income earned on
obligatory reserve funds is added to the fund balance and forms part of the respective deferred
revenue balances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2015
all dollar amounts in thousands of dollars)

g) Contaminated sites:

Contaminated sites are defined as the result of contamination being introduced in air, soil,
water or sediment of a chemical, organic, or radioactive material or live organism that exceeds
an environmental standard.

A liability for remediation of contaminated sites is recognized, net of any expected recoveries,
when all of the following criteria are meant:

i) an environmental standard exists
ii) contamination exceeds the environmental standard
iii) the organization is directly responsible or accepts responsibility for the liability
iv) future economic benefits will be given up, and
v) a reasonable estimate of the liability can be made.

h) Employee Benefits Payable

The Corporation provides employee benefits including sick leave, benefits under the Workplace
Safety and Insurance Board (WSIB”) Act, life insurance and extended health and dental benefits
for early retirees which will require funding in future periods.

There are also contributions to a multi-employer, defined benefit pension plan, OMERS, which are
expensed when contributions are made.

The costs of termination benefits and compensated absences are reco9nized when the event that
obligates the Corporation occurs. Costs include projected future income payments, healthcare
continuation costs and fees paid to independent administrators of these plans, calculated on a
present value basis.

The costs of other employee benefits are actuarially determined using the projected benefits
method pro-rated on service and management’s best estimate of retirement ages of employees,
salary escalation and expected health costs.

Past service costs from plan amendments related to prior period employee services are accounted
for in the period of the plan amendment. The effects of a gain or loss from settlements or
curtailments are expensed in the period they occur. Net actuarial gains and losses related to the
employee benefits are amortized over the average remaining service life of the related employee
group. Employee future benefit liabilities are discounted at the Corporation’s cost of borrowing
using estimated rates for debt with maturities similar to expected benefit payments in the future.
The costs of workplace safety and insurance obligations are actuarially determined and are
expensed immediately in the period the events occur.

i) Loan Guarantees

Periodically the Corporation provides loan guarantees on specific debt held by related authorities
not consolidated in the Corporation’s financial statements. Loan guarantees are accounted for as
contingent liabilities and no amounts are accrued in the consolidated financial statements of the
Corporation until the Corporation considers it likely that the borrower will default on the specified
loan obligation. Should a default occur the Corporation’s resulting liability would be recorded in the
consolidated financial statements.

j) Environmental Provisions

The Corporation has a formal environmental assessment and reclamation program in place to
ensure that it complies with environmental legislation. The Corporation provides for the cost of
compliance with environmental legislation when costs are identified and can be reasonably
measured.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2015
(all dollar amounts in thousands of dollars)

k) Provision for Landfill Rehabilitation

The Ontario Environmental Protection Act sets out the regulatory requirements to properly close
and maintain all active and inactive landfill sites. Under environmental law, there is a requirement
for closure and post-closure care of landfill sites. This requirement is being provided for over the
estimated remaining life of the landfill sites based on usage, and is funded through tipping fees.
The annual provision is reported as an operating expense, and the accumulated provision is
reported as a liability on the consolidated statement of financial position.

I) Accumulated Surplus

Accumulated surplus represents the Corporation’s net economic resources. It is an amount by
which all assets (financial and non-financial) exceed liabilities. An accumulated surplus indicates
that the Corporation has net resources (financial and physical) that can be used to provide future
services. An accumulated deficit means that liabilities are greater than assets.

m) Adoption of New Accounting Policy

(i) Liability for Contaminated Sites

The Corporation adopted Public Sector Accounting Board Standard PS 3260 Liability for
Contaminated Sites effective as of January 1, 2015. Under PS 3260, contaminated sites are
defined as the result of contamination being introduced in air, soil, water or sediment of a
chemical, organic, or radioactive material or live organism that exceeds an environmental
standard. This Standard relates to sites that are not in productive use and sites in productive
use where an unexpected event resulted in contamination. The Corporation adopted this
standard on a prospective basis and there were no adjustments as a result of the adoption of
this standard, as further detailed in Note 24.

n) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

(i) Foreign Currency Translation

PSAB released a revised standard related to Foreign Currency Translation (PS 2601). The
standard has been deferred and applies to all local governments for fiscal years beginning on or
after April 1, 2019. The standard requires exchange rates to be adjusted to the rate in effect at
the financial statement date for monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency
and non-monetary items included in the fair value category. Gains and losses yet to be settled
are presented in the statement of re-measurement gains and losses. Gains and losses on long-
term monetary assets and liabilities are amortized over the remaining term of the item. The
Corporation has not yet determined what, if any, financial reporting implications may arise from
this standard.

(ii) Financial Instruments

PSAB released a standard related to Financial Instruments (PS 3450). The standard has been
deferred and applies to all local governments for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2019.
The standard applies to all types of financial instruments (primary and derivatives). In the year
that the standard is adopted, Foreign Currency Translation (PS 2601) must also be adopted.
The new standard requires equity and derivative instruments be measured at fair value, with
changes in value being recorded in a statement of re-measurement gains/losses. The standard
gives the option of cost/amortized cost vs. fair value for remaining instruments, which is elected
upon by the government organization. The Corporation has not yet determined what, if any,
financial reporting implications may arise from this standard.



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF LONDON
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2015
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2. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash on deposit
Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are comprised mainly of bankers’ acceptances, guaranteed investment
certificates and term deposits with original maturities of 90 days or less and are recorded at cost.

3. Taxes Receivable

Taxes receivable are reported net of allowance for doubtful accounts. As at December 31, 2015,
the balances are as follows:

2075 2014

Taxes receivable $ 33,204 $ 33,136
Penalties and interest 1,693 1,871
Allowance for doubtful accounts (70,249) (10,54)

$ 24,648 $ 24,465

Investments

Investments are comprised of the following:

2015 2014
Market Market

Cost Value Cost Value

Pooled investment funds $ 3,010 $ 3,485 $ 2,914 $ 3,375

Government fixed income 121,262 121,940 67,395 68,701

Corporate fixed income 222,371 226,531 134,128 137,138

Asset backed securities 91,270 93,095 80,627 81,279

Other investments 153 153 77 77

$438,066 $445,204 $285,141 $290,570

E.14

2015 2014

$ 253,856 $ 330,641
103,408 102,057

$ 357,264 $ 432,698

4.
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5. Loan Receivable

2015 2014

Subordinate Loan — City of London Arena Trust $ 25,157 $ 25,730

The Corporation previously transferred a capital asset to the City of London Arena Trust, in return
for a subordinate loan. This investment is secured by a mortgage charge and assignment of the
borrower’s interest in the Ground Lease of the Budweiser Gardens building, an assignment of the
borrower’s interest in the Participatory Occupancy Lease, a general assignment of all present and
future subleases, a security interest in the Capital Repair Fund, and a security interest in the trust
fund. Repayments vary and are based on an available cash flow calculation within the 50 year
agreement. During the year, $573 (2014 - $973) was received as a payment on the loan.

6. Investment in Government Business Enterprises and Partnerships

The Corporation holds a 100% interest in London Hydro Inc., a 47.143% interest in the Fair-City
Joint Venture Partnership and a 73.432% interest in the City-YMCA Joint Venture Partnership
based upon investments as follows:

2015 2014

London Hydto Inc. a) $148,608 $149,984
Fair-City Joint Venture Partnership b) 6,452 6,924
City-YMCA Joint Venture Partnership c) 16,945 17,442

$172,005 $174,350
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a) Investment in London Hydro Inc.

The following table provides condensed supplementary financial information reported separately
by London Hydro Inc.:

2015 2014
Financial Position
Current assets $ 79,915 $ 79,719
Capital assets 267,387 248,217
Deferred tax assets 740 879
Total assets 348,042 328,815
Regulatory balances 6,713 7,070
Total assets and regulatory balance 354,755 335,885

Current and other liabilities 66,914 66,962
Deferred revenue 20,399 10,552
Post-employment benefits 13,845 12,019
Long-term debt 98,434 95,738
Total liabilities 199,592 185,271
Regulatory balances 6,555 630
Total liabilities and regulatory balances 206,747 185,901

Net assets $148,608 $149,984

2015 2014
Results of Operations
Revenues $457,059 $435,645
Operating expenses (432,175) (413,288)
Other income (expenses) (5,618) (7,417)
Income tax expense 3,160 2,403
Net movement in regulatory balances (5,752) -

Net earnings 70,354 12,537
Dividends (10,000) (3,000)
Adjustment to opening net assets due to transition to IFRS (1,730) -

Net assets, beginning of year 149,984 140,447

Net assets, end of year -

Investment in London Hydro Inc. $148,608 $149,984

i) Regulated Business Operations and Distribution Rates

London Hydra Inc. (‘the Company’) is a wholly owned subsidiary company of the Corporation
and provides regulated electrical distribution services to the inhabitants of the City of London.

The Company is regulated by the Ontario Energy Board f”OEB”), under the authority granted by
the Ontario Energy Board Act (1998). The OEB has responsibility to set just and reasonable
distribution rates and thereby approves all of the Company’s distribution and ancillary rates.
The Company’s distribution revenue is determined by applying those regulated rates to
customers and their consumption of electricity in the Company’s distribution territory, as
established by its distribution license granted by the OEB.
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ii) Regulatory Balances

The Ontario Energy Board allows distribution companies to recover amounts incurred for certain
transitional costs as well as certain costs associated with the discretionary metering activities
under the Provincial Smart Meter Program which have been authorized to be recovered through
the rates. Net regulatory debit balances totalled $6,713 (2014 - $7,070). Net regulatory credit
balances for 2015 totalled $6,555 (2014 — $630).

iii) Commitments

The Company has provided $6,600 (2014 - $6,600) in bank standby letters of credit to the
independent Electricity System Operator, as required by regulation.

The Company has vendor commitments in connection with projects of $6,600 (2014 -$5,400).

The Company has committed to operating lease agreements with future minimum non-
cancellable annual lease payments of $1,523 (2014 -$991).

iv) Credit Facilities

The Company has a committed 364 day extendable operating revolving loan facility of $15.0
million. The amount drawn under this facility was $5,000 (2014 - nil). The Company also has
an uncommitted operating revolving line of credit facility of $20.0 million. As at December 31,
2015 the amount drawn under this facility was nil (2014 - nil).

The Company has an interest rate swap agreement for an unsecured loan in the amount of $85
million. Interest only payments are due quarterly and commenced December 2014. The
principal is due at maturity. The agreement is a fixed rate swap and matures June 2022. The
Company has an interest rate swap agreement for an unsecured loan to fund its Smart Meter
capital expenditure program. Principal repayments on this loan commenced in October 2010
and are being amortized over a 9 year period ending August 2019. The balance outstanding at
December 31,2015 is $8,434 (2014 -$10,736).

At December 31, 2015, the Company would be required to pay $5,900 (2014 - $2,800) if it
wished to cancel the swap agreements.

v) Related Party Transactions

The Corporation has contracted with London Hydro Inc. to provide billing and collection services
for water and wastewater charges on a cost recovery basis. Expenses for the year were $4,226
(2014 - $4,216) and are included on the consolidated statement of operations. At December
31, 2015, the Corporation has a receivable of $14,272 (2014 - $12,650) for water and
wastewater charges collected by London Hydro Inc. Miscellaneous receivables of $876 (2014 —

$25) are also outstanding at year end.

The Corporation, on behalf of the Public Utility Commission, charged London Hydro Inc. rent,
totalling $100 (2014 - $100). The Corporation received interest of nil (2014 - $3,900) on the
promissory note, which was repaid during 2014, as more fully described in note 18 e). The
Corporation also received $10,000 (2014 - $3,000) in dividend payments, which were recorded
as a reduction in the investment in government business enterprises.
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vi) Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)

The Canadian Accounting Standards Board (“AcSB”) provided deferrals which allow rate
regulated entities to defer the adoption of IFRS until January 1, 2015. This is the first year end
for which the Company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS.

The impact of the adoption of IFRS on the Company’s financial position and results of
operations is detailed in their financial statements and note disclosures.

As a result of the adoption of IFRS, the Corporation’s investment in London Hydro Inc. was
reduced by $1,730. This adjustment is non-recurring and has been treated on a prospective
basis.

b) Fair-City Joint Venture Partnership

The following table provides condensed supplementary financial information reported separately
by the Fair-City Joint Venture Partnership:

2015 2014
Financial Position
Current assets $ 1,997 $ 1,714
Capital assets 11,964 12,382

13,961 14,096

Accrued liabilities 1,703 1,560
Deferred capital contributions 3,417 3,550
Long-term debt 6,070 6,846
Total liabilities 11,190 11,956
Net Assets $ 2,771 $ 2,140

2015 2014
Results of Operations
Revenues $ 3,977 $ 3,790
Operating expenses 3,332 3,171
Net earnings 645 619
Net earnings available to the Venturers 645 619
Net earnings available to the Corporation 304 310
Distribution to Corporation (35) (127)
Adjustment to prior year’s distribution 52 -

Distribution for employee future benefit re-measurements (21) -

Corporation’s portion of earning retained in Joint Venture 300 183
Corporation’s investment in Fair-City Joint Venture’s net assets,
beginning of year 1,070 887
Adjustment due to change in Corporation’s share during year (64) -

Corporation’s investment in Fair-City Joint Venture’s net assets,
end of year 7,306 1,070
Promissory note due to the Corporation 5,146 5,854

Investment in Fair-City Joint Venture Partnership $ 6,452 $ 6,924_
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i) On September 1, 2000, the Corporation entered into a joint venture with the Western Fair
Association, to construct and operate a four-pad arena complex. The joint venture is in the
form of a partnership, referred to as the Fair-City Joint Venture and the investment is held in
the Civic Investment Reserve Fund.

In return for a contribution of $5,000 and a twenty-year loan of $12,000, the Corporation
received an initial equity interest of 50% of the partnership. However, once the partnership
prepaid $5,000 of the above-noted loan, and for every $1,000 repayment thereafter, the
Corporation’s equity interest will decrease by 2.857% until the loan is completely repaid and
the equity interest has decreased to 30%. During the first five years of operation, 100% of
profits from the joint venture were paid to the Western Fair Association.

During the year, the repayment threshold was met resulting in the Corporation’s equity
interest decreasing to 47.143% (2014 — 50%). The Venturers agreed to apply the charge
prospectively to the first day in the year that the threshold was met and to each year
thereafter that subsequent repayment thresholds are met. In the current year $35 (2014 -

$127) of profit was available and distributed to the Corporation.

ii) The Corporation also has an Ice Rental Agreement with the Fair-City Joint Venture
Partnership for 240 hours per year. $1,747 was paid for ice rental in 2015 (2014 -$1,713)
which was recorded as an expense in the consolidated statement of operations.

c) City-YMCA Joint Venture Partnership

The following table provides condensed supplementary financial information reported separately by
the City-YMCA Joint Venture Partnership:

2015 2014
Financial Position
Capital assets $ 27,135 $ 27,135
Accumulated amortization (4,063) (3,3J
Net Assets $ 23,072 $ 23,751

2015 2014
Results of Operations -

—

Amortizati9fcapiascts 679 - $679
Net loss (679) (679)
Net assets, beginning ofyr - 23,751 — -—__24,430
Net assets, end of year 23,072 - 23,751
Corpoopprtion of net assets - 16,945 - 17,442

Investment in City-YMCA Joint Venture Partnership $ 16,945 $ 17,442

The Corporation entered into a joint venture agreement with the YMCA of Western Ontario (YMCA)
in April 2009 to construct and operate the Stoney Creek Community Centre.

The Corporation was responsible for contributing the land, contributing costs related to construction
of the building and running the construction project. The YMCA was responsible for contributing
costs related to construction of the building. The Corporation’s contributed share of the project was
$19,929 or 73.432%.

Construction of this facility was completed in October 2010.
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The Joint Venture Partnership has entered into a 40 year lease with the YMCA. The basic annual
rent to be paid to the Joint Venture Partnership by the YMCA is nominal. The Joint Venture
Partnership does not earn any other type of revenue. In accordance with the lease agreement, the
Joint Venture Partnership is not responsible for any costs, expenses or outlays relating to the
premises. All capital and operating costs are the responsibility of the tenant, the YMCA.

At the end of the 40 year lease term, the Joint Venture Partnership will transfer the land and
building representing the facility to the YMCA for consideration of nil. The transfer of the land and
building will result in the dissolution of the Joint Venture Partnership in 2049.

7. Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue on the consolidated statement of financial position is comprised of the following:

2015 2014
Funds deferred to future periods for specific purposes by
legislation, regulation or agreement:

Development Charges Act
- Recreation and transit $ 16,074 $ 13,349
- Capital infrastructure 104,890 105,232

Federal and Provincial gas tax 53,217 56,042
Recreational land (The Planning Act) 1,622 1,288
Capital infrastructure for cultural services 3.693 3,622

179,490 179,533

Other deferred revenue:

Subsidy advances from Provincial Ministries for future periods 74,279 12513
Prepaid deposits 297 237
Prepayment of recreation programs, facility rentals, memberships 1,835 1,775
Vacancy rebate allowances 2,754 2,167
Boards and commissions 8,698 1 1,454
Other deferred revenues 240 202

$207,593 $207,881

8. Long-term Liabilities

The Corporation has committed to provide capital grants to Fanshawe College. Capital grants are
subject to annual budget approval and are generally not liabilities, however, the Corporation has
committed to these multi-year grants in advance and therefore these amounts are included in long
term liabilities.

Last year of obligation 2015 2014

Fanshawe College 2022 $ 14,600 $ 17,000
OMEX Insurance 2021 1,112 1,338
Elgin Area Landowner Compensation 2017 13 17

$ 15,725 $ 18,355
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9. Long-term Debt

Provincial legislation restricts the use of long-term debt to financing capital expenses only.
Provincial legislation allows the Corporation to issue debt on behalf of school boards, other local
boards, municipal enterprises and utilities. The responsibility of raising amounts to service these
liabilities lies with the respective organization. The debt is a joint and several obligation of the
Corporation and the respective organization.

a) Long-term debt is as follows:

Long-term debt issued by the Corporation at various rates of
interest ranging from 0.80% to 5.88% (2014— 1.20% to
5.75%) with maturity dates ranging from October, 2017 to
March, 2025,

Long-term debt issued by Infrastructure Ontario programs
at various rates of interest ranging from 2.45% to 4.44%
(2014— 2.40% to 4.44%) with maturity dates ranging from
July, 2016 to March, 2030,

Long-term debt issued through Canada Mortgage and Housing
Corporation at an interest rate of 3.23% with a maturity
date of March, 2021,

Long-term debt issued through the Federation of Canadian
Municipalities (FCM), as Trustee for the Green Municipal
Fund at an interest rate of 2.00% and maturing May, 2032,

Long-term debt, assumed by unconsolidated local Boards,
other municipalities, municipal enterprises and utilities

Total long-term debt
Less: Unamortized debenture discount

2015 2014

$ 234,640 $221,684

93,973 109,826

10,118 11,625

1,705 1,791

(6,488) (5,943)
333,948 338,983

(1,514) (1,7)

Net long-term debt $ 332,434 $337,516

Principal repayments are summarized as follows:

Recoverable
from 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Beyond Total

General
municipal
revenues 29,063 28,019 25,983 24,219 22,790 54,315 184,389
Wateruserrates 2,176 2,237 2,301 1,911 1,953 6,338 16,916
Sewer user
rates 8,495 8,572 8,101 8,199 8,163 28,886 70,416
Discretionary
reserve funds 3,999 4,097 4,203 4,322 4,453 5,786 26,860
Obligatory
reservefunds 4,689 4,751 4,080 4,152 4,229 13,466 35,367

48,422 47,676 44668 42,803 41,588 108,791 333,948
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b) Total charges which are included in the consolidated statement of operations are as follows:

2075 2014

Interest on long-term debt $ 10,690 $ 11238
Amortization of debenture discount 209 200
Interest on capital lease obligations 86 76

$ 10,985 $ 11,514

10. Capital Lease Obligations

___________________________

2015 2014

2015 $ - $ 1,386
2016 1,339 1,034
2017 743 413
2018 155 -

Minimum lease payments 2,237 2,833

Less amount representing interest at rates ranging between
3.25% - 3.75% (2014— 3.75%) 78 127

Present value of net minimum capital lease payments $ 2,158 $ 2,706

11. Urban Works Payable

The Corporation operates a system of funding developer claims for construction of infrastructure
works. The claimable works generally benefit areas beyond the boundaries of the subdivision or
development which triggers the requirement for the works, and the cost of these works are shared
through development charge collections administered by the Corporation through the Urban Works
Reserve Fund (the “Fund”).

Claims are subject to approval by the Corporation. Payment of approved claims are further subject
to annual limits, and are only payable when sufficient funds have been accumulated to liquidate
claims. Liquidation of approved claims may be delayed indefinitely, until sufficient funds have
accumulated to allow for their settlement.

As at December 315t of each year, the value of all completed work is recognized as a liability in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Repayment of this liability remains subject to all of the
rules of the Fund, including a reliance on development charges received as the source for
repayment. Payments for the infrastructure projects are made from both the Urban Works Reserve
Fund and the Urban Works Storm Management Reserve Fund. At December 31st there is $426
(2014 - $1 ,424) in the Urban Works Reserve Fund and $1,930 (2014 - $1,802) in the Urban Works
Storm Water Management Reserve Fund to fund this liability.
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12.

E.23

Reserve funds and reserves have been established to partially provide for these employee benefit
liabilities. The reserve fund balances at the end of the year are $18,863 (2014 - $18,149), and the
reserve balances at the end of the year are $53,533 (2014 -$52,957) to fund these obligations.

a) Post Employment and Post-Retirement Benefits

The Corporation provides benefits, such as health, dental and life insurance to qualified retirees
until they reach 65 years of age and provides certain benefits to employees on long-term disability.
The liabilities reported in these consolidated financial statements are based on the most recent
actuarial valuation prepared as of December 31, 2015.

Sanitary Storm Storm
Roads Sewers Sewer Water Total

Urban Works Dec31,
Payable 2013 $ 3,733 $ 5,044 $ 2,514 $ 5,564 $ 16,855

Expenses:
Value of construction
work completed 2014 743 (444) 549 223 1,071
Payments:
From Urban Works
Reserve Funds 2014 — (2,807) (577) (1,997) (1,872) (7,253)
Urban Works Dec31,
Payable 2014 1,669 4,023 1,066 3,915 10,673

Expenses:
Value of construction
workcompleted 2015 1,198 (85) (23) 147 1,237
Payments:
From Urban Works
Reserve Funds 2015 - - (1 ,9O9)() (1,402) (453)
Urban Works Dec 31,
Payable 2015 $ 2,084 $ 2,029 $ 484 $ 2,660 $ 7,257

The estimated future repayments of developer claims are as follows:

2016 $ 3,856
2017 2,907
2018 305
2019 189

Total $ 7,257

Employee Benefits Payable

Employee future benefits are liabilities of the Corporation to its employees and early retirees for
benefits earned but not taken as at December 31. Details are as follows:

2015 2014

Post-employment and post-retirement benefits a) $ 82,997 $ 79,314
Workplace Safety and Insurance Board Obligation b) 50,374 46,878
Vacation credits c) 15,607 15,056
Vested sick leave benefits U) 3,857 5,264

$ 152,835 $ 146,512_
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The significant assumptions used in the actuarial valuations are as follows:

2015 2014
% %

Discount rate 3.25 3.75
Rate of compensation increase 1.90 3.00
Healthcare cost increases 4.00 — 8.00 4.00 - 8.00

The benefit obligation continuity is as follows:

Liability for post-employment and post-retirement benefits: 2015 2014

Accrued benefit obligation, January 1 $ 88,190 $ 83,919
Current period benefit cost 4,670 4,482
Retirement interest expense 3,397 3,238
Plan amendment 2,954 -

Actuarial gain (19,744) -

Benefits paid (3,823) (3,449)
Accrued benefit obligation, December 31 75,644 88,190
Unamortized actuarial gain (loss) 7,353 (8,876)

Liability for post-employment and post-retirement benefits $ 82,997 $ 79,314

Post-employment and post-retirement benefits expense:
Current period benefit cost $ 4,670 $ 4,482
Retirement interest expense 3,397 3,238
Plan amendment 2,954 -

Amortization of actuarial (gain) loss (3,515) 1,053

Total post-employment and post-retirement benefit expense $ 7,506 $ 8,773

The actuarial loss is amortized over the expected average remaining service life of the related
employee group of 13 years (2014— 14 years).

b) Workplace Safety and Insurance Board Obligation

The Corporation is a Schedule 2 employer under the Workplace Safety and Insurance Act, and as
such assumes responsibility for financing its workplace safety insurance costs. The accrued
obligation is determined using the estimated value of future benefit costs provided by WSIB and
any additional information known to the Corporation about future obligations. All expected future
payouts are discounted to December 31, 2015, using an appropriate discount rate.

c) Liability for Vacation Credits

Under the provisions of certain employee vacation plans, some vacation credits are earned as at
December 31 but are generally unavailable for use until a later date. In addition, the provisions of
certain plans allow the accumulation of vacation credits for use in future periods. The approximate
value of these credits as at December 31, 2015 is $15,607 (2014 -$15,056).

d) Liability for Vested Sick Leave Benefits

Under the sick leave benefit plan, certain unused sick leave can accumulate and employees may
become entitled to a cash payment when they leave the Corporation’s employment. The liability for
these accumulated days, to the extent that they have vested and could be taken in cash by an
employee on termination, amounted to $3,857 (2014 - $5,264) at December 31, 2015. During the
year $1,546 (2014- $1 053) was paid to employees who left the Corporation’s employment.
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Reserve funds and reserves have been established to provide for this past service liability. The
reserve funds balance at December 31, 2015 is $3,945 (2014 - $4,929), and the reserves balance
is $24 (2014 - $53). An amount of $533 (2014 - $821) has been contributed in the current year.
Only employees of the Corporation which commenced their employment prior to February 1, 1985,
Police employees starting before January 1, 1982 and Fire Employees starting before January 1,
1991 are entitled to be paid out their balance of accumulated sick time at retirement, which is the
balance that makes up this liability.

Anticipated future payments for vested sick leave to employees who are eligible to retire are as
follows:

2016 $ 2,343
2017 870
2018 344
2019 183
2020 117

Total $ 3,857

e) Pension Agreements

The Corporation makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees’ Retirement System
Pension Fund (OMERS), which is a multi-employer plan, on behalf of its employees. The plan is a
contributory defined benefit plan which specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be received
by employees based on length of service and rates of pay. Employers and employees contribute
jointly to the plan.

Since any surpluses or deficits are a joint responsibility of all Ontario municipalities and their
employees, the Corporation does not recognize any share of the OMERS pension surplus or deficit
in these consolidated financial statements.

The amount contributed to OMERS for 2015 was $28,802 (2014 - $29,284) for current service.
Employer’s contributions for current service are included as an expense in the consolidated
statement of operations.
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13. Landfill Closure and Post-Closure Liability

PSAB Handbook Section 3270: Solid Waste Landfill Closure and Post-Closure Liability, sets out
the standard for anticipated closure and post-closure costs for existing and closed landfill sites.
This liability is the estimated cost to date, based on a volumetric basis, of the expenses relating to
those activities required when the site or phase stops accepting waste.

The Sanitary Closure costs include final cover and vegetation, completing facilities for drainage
control features, leachate monitoring, water quality monitoring, and monitoring and recovery of gas.
Post-closure care activities include all activities related to monitoring the site once it can no longer
accept waste, including acquisition of any additional land for buffet zones, treatment and
monitoring of leachate, monitoring ground water and surface water, gas monitoring and recovery,
and ongoing maintenance of various control systems, drainage systems, and final cover.

The estimated liability for the care of landfill sites is the present value of future cash flows
associated with closure and post-closure costs.

Key assumptions in determining the liability at December 31, 2015 for landfills are as follows:

Active (W12A) landfill is expected to reach capacity in 2025
Remaining capacity of active (Wi 2A) as at December 31, 2015 2.4 million tonnes
Expected closing cost in 2015 dollars $2,000
Inflation rate 1 .8%
Discount rate 3.25%
Estimated time required for post-closure care - active landfill 75 years
Estimated remaining time required for post-closure care — closed landfills 30 - 40 years

2015 2014
Active landfill (W12A) closure, site rehabilitation and monitoring
obligation $ 24,181 $ 20,334

Closed landfills site rehabilitation and monitoring obligation 9,381 8,791

$ 33,562 $ 29,125

A reserve fund has been established to partially provide for this sanitary landfill site closure and
post-closure liability. The reserve fund balance at December 31, 2015 is $12,082 (2014 -$9,909).
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14. Tangible Capital Assets

Balance at Balance at
December 31, December 31,

Cost 2014 Additions Disposals 2075

Land $ 394,250 13,942 3,020 $ 405,172
Landfill and land improvements 140,186 3,803 3,220 140,769
Buildings and building improvements 898,015 26,332 6,171 918,176
Leasehold improvements 3,656 39 1,006 2,689
Machinery, equipment and furniture 360,961 19,941 15,398 365,504
Vehicles 109,272 11,088 5,791 114,569
Water infrastructure 679,638 26,227 4,349 701,516
Wastewater infrastructure 1,232,746 52,253 5,872 1,279,127
Roads infrastructure 1,121,497 75,889 16,070 1,181,316
Computers 8,283 2,160 1,489 8,954
Computers under capital lease 5,463 1,219 1,671 5,071
Assets under construction 163,990 84,815 76,970 171,835

Total $ 5,117957 317,708 141,027 $ 5,294,638

Balance at Balance at
December 31, Amortization Amortization December 31,

Accumulated Amortization 2014 Expense Disposal 2015

Land $ - - - $ -

Landfill and improvements 64,703 7,225 3,219 68,709
Buildings and building improvements 383,076 27,555 6,171 404,460
Leasehold improvements 2,416 405 1,006 1,815
Machinery, equipment and furniture 195,837 24,396 15,362 204,871
Vehicles 62,836 9,059 5,660 66,235
Water infrastructure 204,978 14,420 2,660 216,738
Wastewater infrastructure 380,773 22,550 2,705 400,618
Roads infrastructure 412,162 38,389 13,768 436,783
Computers 4,559 2,248 1,489 5,318
Computers under capital lease 2,643 1,466 1,359 2,750
Assets under construction - - - -

Total $ 1,713,983 147,713 53,399 $ 1,808,297

Net book value Net book value
December 31, December 31,

2014 2015

Land $ 394,250 $ 405,172
Landfill and land improvements 75,483 72,060
Buildings and building improvements 514,939 513,716
Leasehold improvements 1,240 874
Machinery, equipment and furniture 165,124 760,633
Vehicles 46,436 48,334
Water infrastructure 474,660 484,778
Wastewater infrastructure 851 973 878,509
Roads infrastructure 709,335 744,533
Computers 3,724 3,636
Computers under capital lease 2,820 2,261
Assets under construction 163,990 171,835

Total $ 3,403,974 $ 3,486,341
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a) Assets under construction

Assets under construction having a value of $771,835 (2014 -$163,990) have not been amortized.
Amortization of these assets will commence when the asset is available for productive use.

In the year that an asset is placed into service, the total cost of the developed asset is transferred
to each respective asset category as an addition and removed from assets under construction as a
disposal.

b) Contributed Tangible Capital Assets

Contributed capital assets have been recognized at fair market value at the date of contribution.
The value of contributed assets received during the year is $47,726 (2014 - $34,021) comprised
predominantly of roads infrastructure in the amount of $8,994 (2014 - $6,511) and water and
wastewater infrastructure in the amount of $25,963 (2014 - $26,297).

c) Tangible Capital Assets Disclosed at Nominal Values

Where an estimate of fair value could not be made, the tangible capital asset was recognized at a
nominal value. Land is the only category where nominal values were assigned.

d) Works of Art and Historical Treasures

The Corporation manages and controls various works of art and non-operational historical cultural
assets including buildings, artifacts, paintings and sculptures located at Corporation sites and
public display areas. These assets are not recorded as tangible capital assets and are not
amortized in the consolidated financial statements.

e) Write-down of Tangible Capital Assets

There were no write-downs of tangible capital assets during the year (2014- nil).
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75. Accumulated Surplus

Accumulated surplus consists of individual fund surplus and reserves and reserve funds as follows:

__________

2015 2014

Surplus (deficit):

Invested in tangible capital assets $3,514,309 $3,431,237
Other (58,667) (77,725)
Local boards (224) 1,083
Equity in government business enterprise 172,005 174,350
Unfunded

Landfill closure and post-closure liability (33,562) (29,125)
Employee benefits payable (152,801) (148,119)
Net long-term debt (304,315) (303,933)

Total surplus 3,136,745 3,047,768

Reserves set aside by Council
Working capital 13,219 13,219
Contingencies 76,630 76,246
General operations 31,110 28,427
Total reserves 120,959 1 17,892

Reserve funds set aside for specific purpose by Council
Infrastructure renewal 747,980 114,447
Acquisition of vehicles 27,702 26,037
Acquisition of facilities 14,490 1 1,489
Recreational programs & facilities 403 363
Self-insurance 12,602 14,300
Sick leave 3,945 4,929
Industrial over sizing 23,035 25,291
Other purposes 152,510 133,651
Special purpose (Note 18) 70,685 70,081
Total reserve funds 453,352 400,588

Accumulated surplus $3,717,056 $3,566,248

The Corporation has chosen to reflect items on a gross rather than a net basis. As such the
Corporation has reserve funds and reserves to satisfy certain obligations listed as unfunded in the
preceding table, as more fully described in notes 12 and 13.

16. Contingent Liabilities

a) Legal Actions

As at December 31, 2015, certain legal actions and other contingent liabilities are pending against
the Corporation. The final outcome of the outstanding claims cannot be determined at this time.
However management believes that ultimate disposition of these matters will not materially exceed
the amounts recorded in these consolidated financial statements.

Estimated costs to settle claims are based on available information and projections of estimated
future expenses developed based on the Corporation’s historical experience. Claims ate reported
as an operating expense in the year of the loss, where the costs are deemed to be likely and can
be reasonably determined. Claims provisions are reported as a liability in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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b) Public Liability and Property Loss Self Insurance

The Corporation and its various Boards and Commissions are jointly self-insured for liability,
property and casualty claims for varying amounts ranging up to $500 for any individual claim.

Insurance is also purchased for claims in excess of these limits to a maximum of $50,000 for
liability claims. The insured and self-insured Boards and Commissions are: Museum London,
London Convention Centre Corporation, Covent Garden Market Corporation, London Police
Services Board, Middlesex-London Health Unit, London Transit Commission and London &
Middlesex Housing Corporation.

The Corporation has made a provision for a reserve fund for self-insurance which as at December
31, 2015 amounted to $12,602 (2014 - $14,300) and is reported in Note 15 of the consolidated
financial statements. The contribution for the year of $4,128 (2014 - $3,775) has been reported in
the individual revenues on the consolidated statement of operations.

Claims expensed during the year amounting to $5,826 (2014 - $3,221) have been reported with
individual expenses on the consolidated statement of operations. The payment of these expenses
was funded through the self-insurance reserve fund.

There were unsettled liability claims against the Corporation as at December 31, 2015 to be paid
from the self-insurance reserve fund. The probable outcome of these claims cannot be determined
at this time.

17. Loan Guarantees

The Corporation has entered into an agreement which guarantees the borrowings of the Grand
Theatre up to a maximum of $750 (2014 - $750) in exchange for a mortgage on the land and
building of the Grand Theatre.

The Corporation entered into agreements which, under certain conditions, guarantee a $7,000 loan
from the Pacific & Western Bank of Canada to the trustee of the City of London Arena Trust. The
outstanding principal of this loan at December 31, 2015 is $3,502 (2014 -$3,906).

The Corporation has entered into an agreement, which under certain conditions guarantees a
$6,000 leasehold mortgage from the Bank of Montreal to the YMCA of Western Ontario, related to
the Stoney Creek Community Centre. The outstanding principal of this loan at December 31, 201 5
is $2,983 (2014 - $4,333).

The Corporation has entered into an agreement which, under certain conditions, guarantees to
assume the purchase and payment of block power on behalf of the Joint Water Boards. The
Corporation has posted performance letters of credit as a condition of its contract in the amount of
$5,000. There is no amount outstanding and no anticipated loss from this guarantee.

No amounts have been accrued in the consolidated financial statements of the Corporation with
respect to these guarantees, as it is not anticipated at December 31, 2015 that the Corporation will
need to make any payments as a result of providing the guarantees.
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78. Commitments

a) Section 474.18 of the Municipal Act, 2001, requires that the Corporation make annual
payments to the County of Middlesex for an indefinite period as compensation for the reduction
of income due to the dissolution of the London-Middlesex Suburban Roads Commission. The
amount paid in 2015 was $1,123 (2014 - $1,123). Payments are based on the base year of
1997 at $1,000 and are calculated contingent on annual assessment and tax rate increases.

b) The Corporation has future commitments on the various Rehabilitation Programs, which are
programs that allow for future reductions in property taxes. The future commitments are as
follows:

2016 $ 1,626
2017 1,342
2018 968
2019 686
2020 402
Beyond 1,018

Total $ 6,042

c) Contractual Obligations

i) The Corporation is committed to the following fleet and equipment purchases and
minimum annual operating lease payments for premises and equipment as follows:

2016 $ 16,607
2017 6,520
2018 5,176
2019 4,555
2020 1,636
Beyond 3.42 1

Total $ 37,975
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ii) The Corporation has the following outstanding commitments remaining on facilities and
infrastructure contracts as at December 31, 2015:

2015 2014

Sanitary Sewer $ 50,249 $ 11,419
Roads 26,751 23,331
Water 15,050 10,801
Commercial and Industrial 70,572 1,425
Storm Sewer 10,532 11,923
General Government 6,188 6,393
Library Facilities 4,787 -

Recreation Facilities 3,508 471
Fire and Emergency Measures 2,996 230
Cultural Facilities 360 4,882
Parks 233 600
Waste Disposal and Recycling 727 290
Police - 457
Transit - 2,500

$ 731,353 $ 74,722

These amounts represent uncompleted portions of contracts, as at December 31, 201 5,
on major projects. The majority of payments on these outstanding commitments will be
made in 2016.

d) Derivatives

The Corporation has the following derivative contracts as at December 31, 2015:

• Contract, expiring October 31, 2017, for average daily natural gas purchases of 88
gigajoules, with a remaining contract value of $241

• Contract, expiring October 31, 2019, for average daily natural gas purchases of 210
gigajoules, with a remaining contract value of $1,252

These derivative contracts were purchased to provide price certainty for the majority of the
Corporation’s natural gas needs over the terms of the contracts. The value of the contracts are not
reflected as an asset or liability in these financial statements.

• Contract with one block, negotiated October 22, 2015 with a daily electricity purchase of
24 megawatt hours, covering the period of November 1, 2015 until October 31, 2018 with
a remaining contract cost of $749.

This derivative contract was purchased to provide price certainty for 40% of the Lake Huron Area
Primary Water Supply System’s electricity needs over the term of the contract. The value of the
contract is not reflected as an asset or liability in these financial statements.
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e) A promissory note from London Hydro Inc. to the Corporation was assigned to the Public Utility
Commission (Commission) subject to several conditions. On November 28, 2014, the
promissory note was extinguished through payment by London Hydro to the Corporation.

As part of the transaction, the Corporation and the Commission entered into a Funding
Agreement. The agreement ensures that the $70 million principal will be held by the
Corporation on terms consistent with the earlier pledge of undertaking/assignment of the
promissory note from the Corporation to the Commission.

The agreement acknowledges that the Commission has retained ownership of and
responsibility for lands contaminated by prior owners with coal tar and that the full $70 million
payment received by the Corporation from London Hydro under the promissory note will be held
by the Corporation for the Commission for the following purposes:

(i) The investigation, remediation and restoration of the affected lands;
(ii) Any related legal proceedings, including proceedings before any court or administrative

tribunal; and
(iii) The Commission’s actual and reasonable administrative and incidental costs related

thereto.

The Funding Agreement provides that the Corporation will maintain the principal amount of the
$70 million in a properly managed portfolio in compliance with the Corporation’s Investment
Policy and the Municipal Act 2001. The Corporation will be entitled to use the interest on the
funds for its own purposes. The Fund Agreement provides the mechanism where the
Commission may request and the Corporation will provide to it funds for the remediation works.

f) During the year, the Corporation entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the
YMCA of Western Ontario (YMCA) and the London Public Library Board (Library). The MOU is
an agreement in principle to the development of a Joint Venture agreement to occupy and
operate the Southwest Mulitpurpose Recreation Centre. The project, with a total value of
$55,366, will include a community centre, recreation centre and public library branch and will
feature an indoor pool, double pad arena, gymnasium and community centre space in the
southwest area of the City.

Each partner will invest in the project as follows:
• The City proposes to provide $40,089 (77%) including land, plus $300 for furniture and

equipment,
• The YMCA proposes to provide $9,200 (15%), pIus $1,200 for furniture and equipment,

and
• The Library proposes to provide $4577 (8%).

The YMCA will assume all operational and lifecycle maintenance capital costs for the facility
with the exception of the dedicated arena and library components through a lease agreement
with a term of 40 years. At the end of the term or any mutually agreed upon extension, the
Corporation will agree to pay the YMCA an amount equal to the YMCA’s partnership interest
multiplied by the then fair market value of the partnership.

The Library will have a portion of the facility built and designed as a public library. The Library
will have exclusive use of its space. The City and Library will pay the YMCA a portion of the
common area maintenance costs subject to the terms of the Joint Venture agreement.

Preliminary project costs of $3,206 incurred to date, have been capitalized under Land and
Assets under construction and are included in totals in Note 14.

Subsequent to year-end, it is expected that an agreement will be finalized in fiscal
2016. Construction of the facility is anticipated to commence in July 2016.
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19. Provincial Offences Court Administration and Prosecution

On March 26, 2001, pursuant to Bill 108, the Corporation assumed responsibility for Provincial
Offences Court Administration and Prosecution. The Province of Ontario transferred the
responsibility for the administration and prosecution of provincial offences in London-Middlesex to
the Corporation. This transfer was part of the Province’s strategy to realign provincial and
municipal roles in the delivery of public services. As a result, the Corporation was required to
establish its own administration, prosecution office and courtrooms to deal with charges laid under
the Provincial Offences Act.

2015 2014

Revenues
Fines $ 5,442 $ 5,939

Expenses
Salary, wages and benefits 1,381 1,488
County share of net revenues 291 341
Occupancy costs 330 324
Provincial government cost recovery 379 419
Administration costs 1,098 1,162
Equipment and maintenance 189 209

Total expenses 3,668 3,943

Excess of revenues over expenses $ 1,774 $ 1,996

These results comprise part of the other revenue and protection to persons and property expenses
that are included in the consolidated statement of operations.
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20. Budget Data

Budget data presented in these consolidated financial statements is based upon the 2015
operating budget approved by Council. Adjustments were required to convert the budget from a
cash basis to a full accrual basis. These adjustments include revenues and expenses which were
budgeted in the capital budget, contributed assets recognized as revenues and amortization
expense as well as Board and Commissions budget figures. The adjustments have been reduced
for capital assets budgeted in operations. Given that certain budget information is not available in
full accrual format, the assumption of using budget adjustments that equal the actual full accrual
adjustments was used. These full accrual budget estimates are for financial statement presentation
only.

The chart below reconciles the approved budget with the budget figures as presented in these
consolidated financial statements.

Total Tax Water Wastewater

Net Budget PSAB Surplus $134,923 $ 67,305 $ 27,914 $ 39,704

Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) Reporting Requirements:

Addback (deduct) from Net Budget PSAB Surplus:

Transfers:
Transfers from Capital 1,051 775 64 212
Transfers to Capital (66,909) (35,984) (17,202) (13,723)
Transfers from Reserves and Reserve Funds 5,028 5,028 - -

Transfers to Reserves and Reserve Funds (80,968) (40,970) (13,659) (26,339)
(141,798) (71,751) (30,797) (39,850)

Budget Adjustments:
Transfers from Capital (59) (59) - -

Transfers to Capital (1,799) (1,799) - -

Transfers from Reserves and Reserve Funds 2,200 2,200 - -

Transfers to Reserves and Reserve Funds (1,950) (1,950) - -

(1,608) (1,608) - -

Debt Principal Repayments: (38,106) (26,779) (281) (11,046)

PSAB Adjustments:

Capital program funding earned in year (32,885) (20,740) (1,144) (11,001)
Capital projects not resulting in capital assets 30,673 16,788 3,865 10,020
Amortization 130,015 71,798 13,732 44,485
Developer contributions - assumed capital assets (45,000) (10,488) (4,191) (30,321)
Loss on disposal of capital assets 1,000 11 198 791
Obligatory reserve fund deferred revenue earned (16,048) (12,621) (339) (3,088)
Government Business Enterprises adjustments (4,923) (4,923) - -

Landfill liability 928 928 - -

Employee future benefits liability 6,320 5,857 157 306
70,080 46,610 12,278 71,192

Boards and Commissions Budget PSAB Surplus (23,491) (14,377) (9,114) -

Net Surplus per 2015 Approved Budget $ - $ - $ - $ -
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Total Tax Water Wastewater

Net Surplus per 2075 Approved Budget — Comprised of:

Revenues:
PropertyTax $517,157 $517,151 $ - $ -

Government Grants and Subsidies 171,220 171,180 - 40
User Fees 205,617 43,639 73,358 88,620
Municipal Revenues — Other 66,834 66,376 146 312
Municipal Revenues — Transfers from Capital 1,049 773 64 212
Municipal Revenues — Transfers from Reserves and

Reserve Funds 5,028 5,028 - -

Total Revenues 966,899 804,147 73,568 89,184

Expenses:
Personnel Costs 333,891 309,489 9,254 15,148
Administrative Expenses 11,497 5,832 2,829 2,836
Financial Expenses—Other 71,154 11,084 70 -

Financial Expenses — Interest and Discount on long-
term debt 8,324 6,189 69 2,066

Financial Expenses — Debt Principal Repayments 38,106 26,779 281 11,046
Financial Expenses — Transfers to Reserves and

Reserve Funds 80,968 40,971 13,659 26,338
Financial Expenses—Transfers to Capital 66,909 35,984 17,202 13,723
Purchased Services 160,255 154,302 2,883 3,070
Materials and Supplies 66,966 32,975 23,893 10,098
Furniture and Equipment 27,425 22,506 1,678 3,241
Transfers 173,549 173,549 - -

Other Expenses 22,683 2,526 7,348 12,809
Recovered Expenses (34,828) (18,039) (5,598) (11,jjJ

Total Expenses 966,899 804,147 73,568 89,184

NetSurplusper2ol5ApprovedBudget $ - $ - $ - $ -
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21. Revenues

In the Consolidated Statement of Operations, revenues are grouped by classification for financial
presentation purposes. The following is a mote detailed breakdown of some of the Corporation’s
revenue classifications:

2015 2014
Net municipal taxation and user charges

Net municipal taxation $ 530,381 $509,267
Payments-in-lieu-of-taxes 8,881 8,928

539,261 518,195
User charges 254,088 246,280

$ 793,349 $764,475

Transfer payments

Operating $ 1,257 $ 1,668
Capital infrastructure 27,410 26,542
Government of Canada - total 28,667 28,210
Unconditional - -

Conditional — operating 197,149 185,024
Capital infrastructure 5,118 9,469
Province of Ontario - total 202,267 194,493
Other municipalities 5,152 4,973

$ 236,086 $227,676

Investment income

Investment income - operating $ 3,270 $ 5,288
Investment income - reserves and reserve funds 8,061 6,819

$ 11,331 $ 12,107

Other revenues

Provincial Offences Fines $ 5,442 $ 5,939
Government Business Enterprises 167 1,379
Ontario Lottery & Gaming Corporation 4,498 4,446
Other contributions - operating 3,291 2,096
Other contributions - capital 9,057 7,150
Donations 663 975
Miscellaneous sales 544 1087

23,662 $ 23,072
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22. Expenses by Object

The consolidated statement of operations represents the Corporation’s expenses by function. The
following classifies those same expenses by object.

2015 2014

Salaries, wages and fringe benefits $ 396,529 $405,141
Long-term debt interest charges 10,985 11,514
Materials and supplies 123,335 116,161
Contracted Services 124,723 104,013
Rents and financial expenses 27,516 28,886
External transfers 179,166 185,667
Amortization 147,713 142,784

Total expenses by object $ 1,009,967 $994,166

23. Segmented Information

The Corporation is a diversified municipal government institution that provides a wide range of
services to its citizens, including police, fire, roadways, public transit, water, wastewater, solid
waste and recycling, social and community services. For management reporting purposes the
Corporation’s operations and activities are organized and reported by Fund. Funds were created
for the purpose of recording specific activities to attain certain objectives in accordance with special
regulations, restrictions or limitations.

The Corporation’s services are provided by departments and their activities are reported in these
funds. Certain departments that have been separately disclosed in the segmented information,
along with the services they provide, are as follows:

a) Protection

Protection is comprised predominantly of the Police Services and Fire departments. The mandate
of the Police Services department is to ensure the safety and security of the lives and property of
citizens through law enforcement, victims’ assistance, public order maintenance, crime prevention
and emergency response. The Fire department is responsible for providing proactive fire and
injury prevention education programs, comprehensive inspection programs and fire code
enforcement. In addition, the department responds to emergency calls for assistance related to
fires, rescues, motor vehicle accidents and cardiac medical events as well as calls related to
hazardous material incidents, swift water and ice rescue and limited types of technical rescue calls.

b) Transportation Services

Transportation Services are comprised of year-round road maintenance, parking, traffic signals and
street lighting. Activities include the maintenance of roadsides defined as sidewalks, walkways,
boulevards and the urban forest. This service is responsible for the operational integrity of the
roadway system through year-round surface maintenance and winter maintenance, including snow
and ice control. Parking supports the controlled movement of vehicles to benefit London
businesses and residents through policy and operational efforts. Traffic signal services provide
the planning, design, operation and maintenance of the Corporation’s streetlights and traffic signal
network including a computerized traffic signal control system.

The London Transit Commission serves as an agent for the Corporation responsible for the
delivery of public transit services for the residents of the City of London as provided under the City
of London Act.

Public transit services include conventional and specialized transit services. Service design,
development and delivery for the respective services take their direction from the Corporation’s
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Official Plan, Transportation Plan and London Transit’s Long Term Growth Strategy, Ridership
Growth Plan, Business Plan and Accessibility Plan.

c) Environmental Services

i) Water and Wastewater Utilities

The Water Utility provides the planning, engineering, operation and maintenance for the
Corporation’s water infrastructure. Wholesale potable water is purchased from both the
Lake Huron and the Elgin Area Primary Water Supply Systems. Services include the
planning and engineering to support the delivery of safe, clean, high quality drinking water of
sufficient flow and pressure to enhance the quality of life and support economic development
for the residents and businesses of London. Operation and maintenance services ensure
the reliable delivery of water to all customers and sustainability of a high quality water
infrastructure.

The Wastewater Utility provides the planning, engineering, operation and maintenance for
the Corporation’s wastewater and drainage infrastructure. Services include the operation of
pollution control plants and sewage pumping stations for the treatment of sanitary sewage,
year-round maintenance of sanitary and storm sewer systems and planning and
implementation of capital works to provide new services and improve existing systems. All
services are delivered in an environmentally and fiscally responsible manner while
maintaining sustainability of the infrastructure.

ii) Solid Waste and Recycling

Solid Waste and Recycling provides solid waste collection services managing the safe and
permanent disposal of non-hazardous wastes collected in an environmentally safe process
including the management and operation of a landfill site. It also provides a variety of
services and projects relating to the Management of Solid Waste for its customers and the
citizens and businesses of London. Such services include daily recyclable and waste drop-
off, on-site corn posting, residential/industrial/commercial and city facilities recycling.

U) Health Services

The Middlesex-London Health Unit provides a wide range of public health services in London
and Middlesex County. The programs and services are designed to help citizens live a healthy
life, free from disease and injury through health promotion and prevention activities. The Health
Unit also monitors the air, food and water supply in the community to make sure it is safe and
provides services to individuals and communities and advocates for public policies that make
the City of London healthier.

Ambulance Services provide medical emergency medical services to the City of London and
Middlesex County.

e) Social and Family Services

As the Consolidated Municipal Service Manager, the Community Services Department is
legislated to deliver the Province’s Ontario Works program to qualified residents within the City
of London; homelessness funding to local emergency shelters and administers the distribution
of child care fee subsidies to families in need and wage subsidies to local child care agencies.

The Department also delivers Council-directed social services, including the London CARES
initiative and the Child and Youth Agenda in partnership with community agencies and groups.
The Department operates the Dearness Home long term care facility; an Adult Day Program
and Home Help Services.
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f) Social Housing

The Housing Division is responsible for establishing and maintaining a system for administering
mortgage and rent subsidies for social housing providers; receiving and evaluating financial
reports of housing providers; assessing extraordinary financial requests from housing providers;
responding to requests for technical support from housing providers and reviewing housing
providers operations to ensure compliance with the Housing Services Act and any rules
allocated by the Service Manager. The Division also fulfills the application intake function for
social housing providers (the Housing Access Centre) and delivers federal, provincial and
municipal affordable housing programs.

g) Parks and Recreation

The Department works collaboratively with their colleagues and partners to improve the quality
of life for all Londoners by creating opportunities for individuals to lead healthy, socially-active
lives through the direct delivery of recreation programs; strengthening neighbourhoods; leading
the integration of community wide initiatives; managing and operating parks and recreation
facilities such as Storybook Gardens, municipal golf courses; providing aquatic opportunities;
and supporting local sport and special event initiatives.

h) Cultural Services

The Culture Office provides the infrastructure necessary to place a greater focus on culture by
acting as the central access point for the cultural functions and responsibilities of the City of
London. The Culture Office promotes collaboration, communication and the sharing of
knowledge and resources for the purpose of generating economic prosperity through cultural
vitality.

i) Planning, Development and Compliance

i) Planning Services

Planning Services provides a wide range of planning and associated services to guide
long-term land use and development activity in the City. The Division is organized under
four sections Policy Planning and Programs, Environmental and Parks Planning,
Community Planning and Design and Urban Forestry. The Division employs professional
resources consisting of Planners, Parks Planning Co-ordinators, Landscape Architects, a
Community Projects Co-ordinator, Urban Designers, Ecologists, a Research Analyst and
a Heritage Planner as well as support technical and support staff. A wide range of
services are provided by the Division including Official Plan and Zoning By-law approvals,
policy development, secondary plans, Community Improvement Plans, economic
revitalization programs, brownfield revitalization incentives, heritage preservation
incentives, urban design, environmental and ecological evaluations, parks planning,
urban forestry, commemorative programs and heritage planning.

ii) Development Services

Development Services is a multi-disciplinary team providing a single point of
administration for development approvals under the Planning Act. The Division includes
Planners, Engineers, Landscape Planners, Site Plan Officers, Inspectors, a Subdivision
Co-ordinator, Integrated Land Planning Technologists and technical support staff that
function as geographic teams (east and west) to provide an integrated processing
framework to provide quality development approvals in a timely manner. Planning Act
applications processed by Development Services include Plans of subdivision including
associated Official Plan and Zoning By-law amendments, site plan approvals,
condominium approvals and consents. The Division also administers subdivision and
development agreement servicing standards and compliance through inspection,
assumption and security management.
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iii) Building Services

Building Services, by administering the provisions of the Ontario Building Act and the
Building Code, ensures high quality building construction in addition to keeping
paramount the health and safety of the citizens of London. These directives are
established through the enforcement of various municipal By-laws such as the Property
Standards By-law, the Sign and Canopy By-law and the Pool Fence By-law to name a
few.

iv) Licensing and Municipal Law Enforcement Services

The Licensing and Municipal Law Enforcement Services area is divided into three
interrelated areas. The Community By-laws section is responsible for seeking
compliance with community based City by-laws which focus on health and safety,
consumer protection, nuisance control and quality of life issues. The Licensing and
Parking Enforcement areas are responsible for addressing compliance issues with
business licensing by-laws and parking infractions. This section also manages a number
of parking lots providing parking services to citizens and visitors alike. The Animal Care
and Control service area is responsible for administration, planning, co-ordination and
direction of animal care and control in an effort to ensure that policies, practices,
directives, by-laws and regulations are in place and adhered to for the protection of the
public and the welfare of domestic animals in the community.

For each reported segment, revenues and expenses represent both amounts that are directly
attributable to the segment and amounts that are allocated on a reasonable basis. Therefore,
certain allocation methodologies are employed in the preparation of segmented financial
information. The Operating Fund reports on municipal services that are funded primarily by
property taxation. Taxation and payments-in-lieu of taxes are apportioned to General Revenue
Fund Services based on the Fund’s net surplus. User charges, Government transfers, transfer from
other funds and other revenues have been taken from the allocations on schedule 12 of the
Financial Information Return.

The accounting policies used in these segments are consistent with those followed in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements as disclosed in Note 1. The segmented
information reports total revenues and expenses by segment.

24. Subsequent Event

The Corporation adopted Public Sector Accounting Board Standard PS 3260 Liability for
Contaminated Sites effective as of January 1, 2015. The Corporation identified two sites that had
contamination and were not in productive use, as follows:

One site was owned by the Corporation at the end of December 31, 2015 and December 31,
2014. Subsequent to year end, this site was sold to a developer for a nominal fee. As a result of
the subsequent sale, management felt that the recording of a liability and subsequent sale and
reversal of liability would not add any value to the financial statements as the fair value of the
obligation and sale were immaterial to these financial statements.

With respect to the other site, draft reports indicate that remediation will be required but as of the
date of the financial statements, estimated costs to remediate cannot be determined. It is
anticipated that measurement will be established during 2016 as more information becomes
available. Any remediation costs undertaken in 2016 will be recognized as incurred as an
operating expense. Any remaining obligation, at the end of 2016, will be reported as a liability, as
required under this standard.

As a result, no adjustments have been made in these financial statements as a result of the
adoption of this standard.
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Auditors' Responsibility

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of the Corporation of the City of London

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Corporation of the City of London Trust Funds,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2015, the consolidated statement of
continuity for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

June XX, 2016

London, Canada

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we
consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the
consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of The
Corporation of the City of London Trust Funds as at December 31, 2015, and the consoldiated continuity of Trust Funds for
the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants

Basis for Qualified Opinion

In common with many charitable organizations, The Corporation of the City of London Trust Funds derives revenue from
donations, the completeness of which is not susceptible to satisfactory audit verification. Accordingly, our verification of
these revenues was limited to the amounts recorded in the records of the entity and we were not able to determine whether
any adjustments might be necessary to capital receipts, assets and fund equity.Draf
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THE TRUST FUNDS OF THE CITY OF LONDON
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
December 31, 2015, with comparative figures for 2014

2015 2014
Total Total

Assets:
Cash and short-term deposits 4,456,581$   4,490,608$   
Accounts receivable, OHRP 170  236  
Accounts receivable, other 1,214  88,416  
Prepaids -  733  

4,457,965$   4,579,993$   

Liability:
Accounts payable 5,035$   138,308$   

Fund balance 4,452,930  4,441,685  

4,457,965$   4,579,993$   

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

DRAFT



THE TRUST FUNDS OF THE CITY OF LONDON
Consolidated Statement of Continuity
December 31, 2015, with comparative figures for 2014

2015 2014
Total Total

Balance, beginning of year 4,441,685$   4,366,983$   

Revenue:
Capital receipts 526,691  612,651  
Interest earned 31,970  45,279  

558,661  657,930  

Expenditures:
Maintenance payments, Dearness Home 119,187  143,686  
Miscellaneous 428,229  439,542  

547,416  583,228  

Balance, end of year 4,452,930$   4,441,685$   

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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THE TRUST FUNDS OF THE CITY OF LONDON
Schedule 1 -- Detailed Consolidated Statement of Continuity
December 31, 2015

Sundry 
Trusts

E.P. 
Williams 

Estate

Ontario 
Home 

Renewal 
Program

Bostwick 
Cemetery

London 
Public Library

Park
Farms

Dearness 
Residents' 

Trust

Woodhull 
Perpetual 

Maintenance

Woodhull 
Stone 

Monument
2015
Total

Balance, beginning of year 141,881$  155,298$   208,879$   12,561$    3,470,568$   132,746$  91,195$       211,704$      16,853$      4,441,685$   

Receipts:
Capital receipts - - - - 296,351        - 224,502 5,250 589             526,691        
Interest earned 1,489        1,630         2,187         132           22,718          1,393        - 2,242 179             31,970          

1,489        1,630         2,187         132           319,069        1,393        224,502       7,492 767             558,661        

Expenditures:
Maintenance payments,
    Dearness Home - - -                -                -                   -                119,187       - - 119,187        
Miscellaneous - - -                -                320,505        -                107,723 - - 428,229        

- - -                -                320,505        -                226,910 - - 547,416        

Balance, end of year 143,370$  156,928$   211,066$   12,693$    3,469,132$   134,139$  88,786$       219,195$      17,621$      4,452,930$   

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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THE TRUST FUNDS OF THE CITY OF LONDON
Schedule 2 -- Detailed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
December 31, 2015

Sundry
Trusts

E.P. 
Williams 

Estate

Ontario 
Home 

Renewal 
Program

Bostwick 
Cemetery

London
Public

Library
Park

Farms

Dearness 
Residents' 

Trust

Woodhull 
Perpetual 

Maintenance

Woodhull 
Stone 

Monument
2015
Total

Assets:
Cash and short-term deposits 142,192$   156,928$   210,896$   12,693$   3,472,461$   134,139$  90,456$   219,195$   17,621$   4,456,581$   
Accounts receviable, OHRP -  -  170  -  -  -  -  - -  170  
Accounts receviable, other 1,178  -  -  -  36  -  -  - -  1,214  
Prepaids -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - -  -  

143,370$   156,928$   211,066$   12,693$   3,472,497$   134,139$  90,456$   219,195$   17,621$   4,457,965$   

Liability:
Accounts payable -$  -$  -$            -$           3,365$           -$          1,670$   -$ -$  5,035$   

Fund balance 143,370  156,928  211,066      12,693       3,469,132      134,139    88,786  219,195  17,621  4,452,930  

143,370$   156,928$   211,066$    12,693$     3,472,497$    134,139$  90,456$   219,195$   17,621$   4,457,965$   

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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THE TRUST FUNDS OF THE CITY OF LONDON   
Consolidated Notes to Financial Statements   
December 31, 2015 with comparative figures for 2014 

 
 
1.  Significant accounting policies: 
 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian 
generally accepted accounting principles for local governments as recommended by the 
Public Sector Accounting Board of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants.  The 
significant accounting policies are summarized below: 

 
a) Basis of consolidation: 

 
The assets, liabilities, revenues and expenditures of the trust funds of the London Public 
Library Board are consolidated in these financial statements. 

 
 

b) Basis of accounting: 
 

Revenues and expenditures are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. 
 
The accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues as they become available and 
measurable; expenditures are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a 
result of receipt of goods or services and the creation of legal obligation to pay. 
 
 

c) Investments: 
 
 Investments are recorded at cost less any amounts written off to reflect a permanent 

decline in value. 
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KPMG LLP 
140 Fullarton Street Suite 1400 
London, ON  N6A 5P2 
Canada 

Telephone         (519) 672-4880 
Fax                    (519) 672-5684 
Internet              www.kpmg.ca  

 

KPMG LLP is a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG  
network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative  
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.   
KPMG Canada provides services to KPMG LLP. 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of the Argyle Business Improvement Area Board of Management 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Argyle Business Improvement Area Board of 

Management, which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2015, the statements 

of operations, net financial assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a 

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 

accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management 

determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 

our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that 

we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the 

risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 

risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of 

the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 

not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit 

also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 

statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Argyle 

Business Improvement Area Board of Management as at December 31, 2015, and its results of operations, 

its net financial assets, and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public 

sector accounting standards. 

 
Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

May 12, 2016 

London, Canada 



ARGYLE BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT AREA BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
Statement of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

2015 2014

Financial assets
   Cash and cash equivalents (note 3) 67,299$           47,158$          
   Trade and other receivables 787                 869                
Total financial assets 68,086             48,027           

Financial liabilities
   Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 9,601              22,359           
Total financial liabilities 9,601              22,359           

Net financial assets 58,485             25,668           

Non-financial assets
   Tangible capital assets (note 4) 1,065              1,365             
   Inventory 1,440              1,440             
Total non-financial assets 2,505              2,805             

Accumulated surplus (note 5) 60,990$           28,473$          

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



ARGYLE BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT AREA BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
Statement of Operations
For the year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

Budget
2015 2015 2014

Revenues
   Municipal levy - The City of London 116,480$         116,480$         100,582$         
   Rental income 2,621               2,921               2,921               
   Internet sharing 300                  -                      -                      
   Transfer payments - Federal -                      4,990               10,276             
   Prior year surplus 14,565             16,696             -                      
   SCP sponsorship -                      3,575               -                      
   Other 4,000               -                      4,176               
Total revenues 137,966           144,662           117,955           

Expenses
    Advertising, marketing and promotion 30,486             11,015             11,122             
    Amortization -                      300                  1,196               
    Community initiatives 10,000             6,340               7,326               
    Insurance 2,000               1,453               1,512               
    Membership fees and dues 500                  850                  315                  
    Office administration 1,200               411                  340                  
    Office rent 10,000             9,855               9,425               
    Office supplies 2,820               3,645               2,479               
    Professional fees 6,000               6,903               6,697               
    Program initiatives 10,000             13,167             25,590             
    Special events 15,000             -                      -                      
    Repairs and maintenance 2,500               1,195               735                  
    Salaries, wages and benefits 42,000             52,616             45,498             
    Telephone and internet service 1,800               1,736               1,751               
    Training, travel and professional development 1,660               1,393               2,998               
    Utilities 2,000               1,266               1,285               
Total expenses 137,966           112,145           118,269           

Surplus/(deficit) -                      32,517             (314)                

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year (note 5) 28,473             28,473             28,787             

Accumulated surplus, end of year (note 5) 28,473$           60,990$           28,473$           

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



ARGYLE BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT AREA BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
Statement of Net Financial Assets
For the year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

2015 2014

Surplus/(deficit) 32,517$           (314)$              

Amortization of tangible capital assets 300                  1,196               

Change in inventory -                      120                  

Change in net financial assets 32,817             1,002               

Net financial assets, beginning of year 25,668             24,666             

Net financial assets, end of year 58,485$           25,668$           

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



ARGYLE BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT AREA BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

2015 2014

Cash provided by:

Operating activities:
 Surplus (deficit) 32,517$           (314)$              
Item not involving cash:
  Amortization of tangible capital assets 300                  1,196               
Changes in non-cash assets and liabilities:
  Inventory -                      120                  
  Trade and other receivables 82                    348                  
  Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (12,758)           6,882               
Net change in cash from operating activities 20,141             8,232               

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 20,141 8,232

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 47,158 38,926

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 67,299$           47,158$           

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



ARGYLE BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT AREA BOARD OF MANAGEMENT 
Notes to Financial Statements  
Year ended December 31, 2015  
 

 

 
1. Nature of reporting entity 
 

Subsection 204(1) of the Municipal Act, 2001 provides that a local municipality may designate an 
area as an improvement area and may establish a board of management.  The Argyle Business 
Improvement Area Board of Management was incorporated on October 9, 2012, in the Province of 
Ontario.  The Board was established as a local board of the City of London to manage the Argyle 
Business Improvement Area.  This Area is comprised of those lands in the City of London abutting 
on the north and south sides of Dundas Street, east of Highbury Avenue and west of Wavell Street. 
 
The Board was established to oversee the improvement, beautification and maintenance of 
municipally-owned land, buildings and structures in the area beyond that provided at the expense 
of the municipality generally and to promote the area as a business or shopping area. 
 
Prior to incorporation, the association operated as the Argyle Business Improvement Area and 
incurred revenue and expenses in the normal course of business 

 
 
2. Significant accounting policies 
 

The financial statements of the Argyle Business Improvement Area Board of Management are the 
representation of management, prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted 
accounting principles as defined in the Chartered Professional Accountants (CPA) of Canada - 
Public Sector Accounting Handbook.   
 
Significant accounting policies are as follows. 
 
 
(a) Basis of accounting 

 
Revenues and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.  The accrual 
basis of accounting recognizes revenues as they become available and measurable; 
expenses are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a result of receipt of 
goods or services and the creation of a legal obligation to pay. 
 
 

(b) Tangible capital assets 
 

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes amounts that are directly 
attributable to acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset.  The cost, 
less residual value, of the tangible capital assets, are amortized on a straight line basis 
over their estimated useful lives as follows: 

 
Asset  Useful Life - Years
  
Furniture and fixtures  5 
Computer equipment  4 
 

Annual amortization is charged in the year of acquisition and in the year of disposal using 
the half year rule.  Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is available 
for productive use. 

   
   
  



ARGYLE BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT AREA BOARD OF MANAGEMENT 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
Year ended December 31, 2015  
 

 

 

 
2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

 
(c) Government transfers 

 
Government transfer payments from the City of London are recognized in the financial 
statements in the year in which the payment is authorized and the events giving rise to the 
transfer occur, performance criteria are met, and a reasonable estimate of the amount can 
be made.  Funding that is stipulated to be used for specific purposes is only recognized as 
revenue in the fiscal year that the related expenses are incurred or services performed.  If 
funding is received for which the related expenses have not yet been incurred or services 
performed, these amounts are recorded as a liability at year end. 

 
 
(d) Use of estimates 

 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the year.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

 
 

(e) Budget figures 
  

Budget figures have been provided for comparison purposes.  Given differences between 
the budgeting model and generally accepted accounting principles established by the 
Public Sector Accounting Board (“PSAB”), certain budgeted amounts have been 
reclassified to reflect the presentation adopted under PSAB. 

 
 
3. Cash and cash equivalents 
 
 Cash and cash equivalents are comprised of the following: 
 
  

 2015  2014
   
Cash on deposit $         67,036  $         46,943
Credit union membership shares                 263                  215
 $         67,299  $         47,158

 
  



ARGYLE BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT AREA BOARD OF MANAGEMENT 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
Year ended December 31, 2015  
 

 

 

 
4. Tangible capital assets 
 

 
 

Cost 

Balance at 
December 31,  
2014 

 
 

Additions 

 
 

Disposals 

 Balance at 
December 31, 
2015 

 
Furniture and fixtures 

 
$          1,796

 
$                -

 
$              - 

  
$          1,796

Computer equipment 3,347 - -  3,347
Total $          5,143 $                - $              -  $          5,143

 

 
Accumulated 
Amortization 

Balance at 
December 31,  
2014 

 
 

Amortization 
Expense 

 
 

Disposals 

 
Balance at 
December 31, 
2015 

 
Furniture and fixtures 

 
$             977

 
$         164

 
$              - 

  
$          1,144

Computer equipment 2,801 137 -  2,937
Total $          3,778 $         300 $              -  $          4,078

 

 
 

Net book value 
December 31, 
2014 

  
 Net book value  

December 31, 
2015 

 
Furniture and fixtures 

 
$             819

   
$             655

Computer equipment 546   410
Total $          1,365   $          1,065

 
 
5. Accumulated surplus 
 

The balance of accumulated surplus is comprised of the following: 
 
     2015  2014
                          
Invested in tangible capital assets $          1,065  $          1,365
   
Operating fund 59,925  27,108
 $        60,990  $        28,473

 
 
6. Related party transactions 

 
During the year, the Board paid rent to the landlord in the amount of $9,855 (2014 - $9,425).  These 
amounts are recorded at the exchange amount, with the related party.  The exchange amount 
approximates fair market value.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

 

To the Chair and Members of Covent Garden Market Corporation 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Covent Garden Market Corporation, 
which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2015 and the statements of 
operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising  a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform an audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of  
Covent Garden Market Corporation as at December 31, 2015 and its results of operations and its 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

 
Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

March 4, 2016 

London, Canada 



COVENT GARDEN MARKET CORPORATION
Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

2015 2014 

Assets

Current assets:
     Cash $ 209,821 $ 192,679
     Investments (note 2) 1,364,574 1,012,994
     Accounts receivable (note 3) 170,925 157,914
     Prepaid expenses 20,319 19,745

1,765,639 1,383,332

Capital assets (note 4) 4,501,822 4,554,369

$ 6,267,461 $ 5,937,701

Liabilities, Deferred Contributions and Net Assets

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 451,112 $ 349,254
Current portion of long-term debt (note 6) 87,984 82,578

539,096 431,832

Deferred capital contributions (note 5) 2,265,260 2,325,584

Long-term debt (note 6) 1,016,153 1,104,137

Net assets: 
Invested in capital assets (note 7) 1,132,425 1,042,070
Unrestricted 1,314,527 1,034,078

2,446,952 2,076,148

$ 6,267,461 $ 5,937,701

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

On behalf of the Board:

     Director

     Director



COVENT GARDEN MARKET CORPORATION
Statement of Operations 

Year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

2015 2014

Revenue:
      Parking fees $ 1,571,013 $ 1,498,986
      Market rentals 788,177 766,477
      Common area maintenance 590,830 572,386
      Amortization of deferred capital contributions - operating 100,508 98,180
      Amortization of deferred capital contributions - management 1,286 1,573
      Promotion fund 52,664 52,559
      Central chilling lease 22,312 22,204
      Management fees 14,760 14,040
      Miscellaneous 4,607 4,461
      Sponsorships - 744

3,146,157 3,031,610

Expenses:
      Operating (Schedule) 2,273,597 2,252,120
      Management (Schedule) 483,953 473,799

2,757,550 2,725,919

Earnings before the undernoted 388,607 305,691

Other income (expenses):
      Interest income 10,484 11,940
      Tenant leaseholds (28,287) (30,850)

(17,803) (18,910)

Excess of revenues over expenses $ 370,804 $ 286,781

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



COVENT GARDEN MARKET CORPORATION
Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

Invested in 2015 2014
capital assets Unrestricted  Total Total

Balance, beginning of year $ 1,042,070 $ 1,034,078 $ 2,076,148 $ 1,789,367

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenses (212,483) 583,287 370,804 286,781

Net change in investment in
capital assets (note 7) 302,838 (302,838) - -

Balance, end of year $ 1,132,425 $ 1,314,527 $ 2,446,952 $ 2,076,148

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



COVENT GARDEN MARKET CORPORATION
Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

2015 2014 

Cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities:
Excess of revenues over expenses $ 370,804 $ 286,781
Adjustments for: 

Amortization of capital assets 314,277 334,856
Amortization of deferred capital contributions - operating (100,508) (98,180)
Amortization of deferred capital contributions - management (1,286) (1,573)

Net change in non-cash operating working
capital (note 8) 88,273 (5,040)

671,560 516,844

Capital activities:
Purchase of capital assets (261,730) (307,755)
Receipt of deferred capital contributions 41,470 86,715

(220,260) (221,040)

Financing activities:
Repayment of long-term debt (82,578) (77,503)

Investing activities:
Purchase of investments (351,580) (255,590)

 Increase (decrease) in cash 17,142 (37,289)

Cash, beginning of year 192,679 229,968

Cash, end of year $ 209,821 $ 192,679

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



COVENT GARDEN MARKET CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements

Year ended December 31, 2015

Covent Garden Market Corporation (the "Corporation") was incorporated without share capital under
The Corporations Act, 1953 and pursuant to private legislation remains a local board of The City of
London (the "City").  The Corporation has erected and operates a public market and parking facilities
on land leased from the City.

1. Significant accounting policies:

The financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian
Public Sector Accounting Standards, including the 4200 standards for government not-for-profit
organizations.

(a) Basis of presentation:

The Corporation follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions.

Contributions received by the Corporation without restriction are used for operational
expenditures.

Contributions that are restricted in nature are used for capital expenditures or expenses
determined by the Board of Directors and approved by the City.

(b) Revenue recognition:

Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable if the
amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

Externally restricted contributions other than endowment contributions are recognized as
revenue in the year in which the related expenses are recognized. 

Contributions restricted for the purchase of capital assets are deferred and amortized into
revenue on a straight line basis, at a rate corresponding with the amortization rate for the
related capital assets.

Government transfer payments from the City are recognized in the financial statements in
the year in which the payment is authorized and the events giving rise to the transfer occur,
performance criteria are met, and a reasonable estimate of the amount can be made.
Funding that is stipulated to be used for specific purposes is only recognized as revenue in
the fiscal year that the related expenses are incurred or services performed. If funding is
received for which the related expense have not yet been incurred or services performed,
these amounts are recorded as a liability at year end.



COVENT GARDEN MARKET CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(c) Capital assets:

Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost.  Contributed capital assets are recorded at
fair value at the date of contribution.  Assets acquired under capital leases are amortized
over the estimated life of the assets or over the lease term, as appropriate.  Repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to expense.  Betterments which extend the estimated life of
an asset are capitalized.  When a capital asset no longer contributes to the Corporation's
ability to provide services, its carrying amount is written down to its residual value. 

Capital assets are amortized on the following basis at the following annual rates:

Asset Basis Rate

Buildings Straight-line 40 years
Equipment and fixtures Declining balance 20%
Computer equipment Declining balance 33.3%
Renovations, parking upgrade Straight-line 10 years
Central chilling program Straight-line 15 years

(d) Deferred capital contributions:

Capital contributions are deferred and amortized over the same term and on the same basis
as the related capital assets.

(e) Financial instruments:

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value on initial recognition.  Derivative instruments
and equity instruments that are quoted in an active market are reported at fair value.  All
other financial instruments are subsequently recorded at cost or amortized cost unless
management has elected to carry the instruments at fair value. 

(f) Use of estimates:

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the year.  Significant items subject to such
estimates and assumptions include the carrying amount of capital assets and valuation
allowances for accounts receivable.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.



COVENT GARDEN MARKET CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015 

2. Investments:

Investments consist of guaranteed investment certificates with terms varying from one year to
three years, some of which are cashable instruments.  Investments are held for the purpose of
meeting short-term commitments.

3. Accounts receivable:

2015 2014

Trade $ 175,925 $ 162,914

Provision for doubtful accounts 5,000 5,000

$ 170,925 $ 157,914

4. Capital assets:

2015 2014
Accumulated Net book Net book 

Cost amortization value  value 

Buildings $ 7,296,158 $ 3,536,491 $ 3,759,667 $ 3,790,405
Equipment and fixtures 1,970,357 1,327,046 643,311 650,871
Computer equipment 55,098 44,024 11,074 16,610
Renovations, parking upgrade 93,880 91,363 2,517 4,107
Central chilling program 612,077 595,711 16,366 25,620
Work in progress 68,887 - 68,887 66,756

$10,096,457 $ 5,594,635 $ 4,501,822 $ 4,554,369

Ownership of capital assets is vested with the City.  The Corporation operates the facilities on
behalf of the City.  These fixed assets and the related amortization have been included in the
financial statements of the Corporation in order to reflect the assets over which it has stewardship
and the amortization costs related to those assets.

In accordance with the Corporation's policy, amortization is not taken until assets are available for
use. As such, no amortization is taken on work in progress, as these assets are not available for
use at the end of the reporting period.



COVENT GARDEN MARKET CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015 

5. Deferred capital contributions:

Deferred capital contributions represent contributions received from the City to fund construction
for which the Corporation is responsible.  These unamortized contributions will be recognized as
revenue over the life of the assets for which they were received.

2015 2014

Balance, beginning of year $ 2,325,584 $ 2,338,622
Additional contributions received 41,470 86,715
Amortization of contributions (101,794) (99,753)

Balance, end of year $ 2,265,260 $ 2,325,584

6. Long-term debt:

2015 2014 

Note payable to the City for construction of
the mezzanine, fixed interest rate of 6.5%,
unsecured, due in blended monthly
payments of $6,028, due 2026 $ 532,974 $ 569,839

Note payable to the City for purchase of
Tenant A Space, interest rate of 6.34%,
unsecured, due in blended yearly
payments of $90,000, due 2024 571,163 616,876

1,104,137 1,186,715

Less current portion 87,984 82,578

$ 1,016,153 $ 1,104,137

Future principal payments required on all long-term debt for the next five years are as follows:

2016 $ 87,984
2017 93,745
2018 99,883
2019 106,422
2020 113,390
Thereafter 602,713

$ 1,104,137



COVENT GARDEN MARKET CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015 

6. Long-term debt (continued):

Interest paid on the notes payable to the City, a related party, amounted to $79,763 (2014 -
$84,837). 

Lease costs associated with the central refrigeration system are charged by the Corporation to
the tenants who use the system.  These revenues and related costs are included in the statement
of operations.

7. Invested in capital assets:

(a) Invested in capital assets is calculated as follows:

2015 2014

Capital assets $ 4,501,822 $ 4,554,369

Amounts financed by:
Deferred capital contributions 2,265,260 2,325,584
Long-term debt 1,104,137 1,186,715

3,369,397 3,512,299

$ 1,132,425 $ 1,042,070



COVENT GARDEN MARKET CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015 

7. Invested in capital assets (continued):

(b) Change in net assets invested in capital assets is calculated as follows:

2015 2014

Deficiency of revenues over expenses:
Amortization of capital assets $ (314,277) $ (334,856)
Amortization of deferred capital
contributions 101,794 99,753

$ (212,483) $ (235,103)

Net change in investment in capital assets:
Purchase of capital assets $ 261,730 $ 307,755
Increase in deferred capital contributions (41,470) (86,715)
Decrease (increase) in accounts payable

related to capital assets - 4,530
Repayment of long-term debt 82,578 77,503

$ 302,838 $ 303,073

8. Net change in non-cash balances related to continuing operations:

2015 2014

Accounts receivable $ (13,011) $ 2,848
Prepaid expenses (574) (11,797)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 101,858 3,909

$ 88,273 $ (5,040)



COVENT GARDEN MARKET CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015 

9. Financial risks:

(a) Credit risk:

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty may default on its contractual obligations
resulting in a financial loss. The Corporation is exposed to credit risk with respect to the
accounts receivable and cash. 

The Corporation assesses, on a continuous basis, accounts receivable and provides for any
amounts that are not collectible in the allowance for doubtful accounts.  The maximum
exposure to credit risk of the Corporation at December 31, 2015 is the carrying value of
these assets.

The carrying amount of accounts receivable is valued with consideration for an allowance for
doubtful accounts.  The amount of any related impairment loss is recognized in the income
statement.  Subsequent recoveries of impairment losses related to accounts receivable are
credited to the income statement.  The balance of the allowance for doubtful accounts at
December 31, 2015 is $5,000 (2014 - $5,000).  

There have been no significant changes to the credit risk exposure from 2014.  

(b) Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Corporation will be unable to fulfill its obligations on a timely
basis or at a reasonable cost.  The Corporation manages its liquidity risk by monitoring its
operating requirements.  The Corporation prepares budget and cash forecasts to ensure it
has sufficient funds to fulfill its obligations.  

There have been no significant changes to the liquidity risk exposure from 2014.  

(c) Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates will affect the
Corporation’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of
market risk management is to control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters
while optimizing return on investment.



COVENT GARDEN MARKET CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015 

9. Financial risks (continued):

(d) Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows or a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in the market interest rates.

Financial assets and financial liabilities with variable interest rates expose the Corporation to
cash flow interest rate risk.

There has been no change to the interest rate risk exposure from 2014.



COVENT GARDEN MARKET CORPORATION
Schedule - Operating and Management Expenses

Year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for and 2014

2015 2014 

Operating expenses:
Advertising $ 320,069 $ 281,715
Contracted services and professional fees 639,157 626,092
Amortization 305,341 324,593
Insurance 112,281 79,971
Interest expense, debenture 79,763 84,837
Light and heat 283,316 281,645
Maintenance, repairs and supplies 260,572 290,921
Miscellaneous 7,324 12,143
Professional fees 1,844 1,140
Salaries and benefits 55,767 50,691
Security 204,712 214,799
Telephone 3,141 3,176
Travel and entertainment 310 397

$ 2,273,597 $ 2,252,120

Management expenses:
Benefits $ 72,836 $ 73,171
Amortization 8,936 10,263
Insurance 7,800 5,532
Maintenance repairs and supplies 14,000 17,060
Miscellaneous 19,643 20,066
Professional fees 48,240 39,754
Salaries 298,119 294,437
Telephone 8,227 8,085
Travel and entertainment 6,152 5,431

$ 483,953 $ 473,799
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Chair and Members, Eldon House Corporation

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Eldon House Corporation, which comprise the

statement of financial position as at December 31, 2015, and the statement of operations, change in net financial

assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies

and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance

with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is

necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our

audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether

the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the

financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of

material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk

assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial

statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the

appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by

management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

qualified audit opinion.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

In common with many charitable organizations, Eldon House Corporation derives revenue from donations, the

completeness of which is not susceptible to satisfactory audit verification.  Accordingly, verification of this revenue

was limited to the amounts recorded in the records of Eldon House Corporation. Therefore, we were not able to

determine whether, as at and for the year ended December 31, 2015 any adjustments might be necessary to

donations and annual surplus reported in the statement of operations and statement of cash flows and current

assets reported in the balance sheet.  This caused us to qualify our audit opinion on the financial statements as at

and for the year ended December 31, 2014.
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Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion paragraph,

the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Eldon House Corporation

as at December 31, 2015, and its results of operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance

with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants

June xx, 2016

London, Canada

DRAFT - May 17, 2016, 10:48 AM
Version 1.64 last saved May 17, 2016 at 10:47:47 AM



ELDON HOUSE CORPORATION
Statement of Financial Position 

DRAFT 
December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014 

2015 2014

Financial assets
 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 70,972 $ 59,751
Accounts receivable 410 692
Prepaid expenses and deposits 183 243

71,565 60,686

Financial liabilities 
 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 16,377 13,329
Deferred revenue 2,160 100
Deposits payable 1,000 1,000

19,537 14,429

Net financial assets 52,028 46,257

Non-financial assets

Tangible capital assets (note 2) 13,470 7,769
Inventories 2,820 785

16,290 8,554

Accumulated surplus (note 3) $ 68,318 $ 54,811

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

DRAFT - May 17, 2016, 10:48 AM 



ELDON HOUSE CORPORATION
Statement of Operations

DRAFT 
Year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014
 

Budget 
2015 2015 2014

Revenue:
The City of London  $ 263,000 $ 262,757 $ 231,929
Grants 57,500 28,312 39,361
Donations 15,500 10,926 8,271
Other income 33,150 46,551 42,709

369,150 348,546 322,270

Expenditures:
      Salaries and benefits 221,000 233,994 198,340
      Utilities 21,300 24,815 25,741
      Programs and exhibitions 13,300 17,275 22,442
      Office and general 17,670 12,995 12,074
      Repairs and maintenance 60,268  22,527 26,371
      Insurance 4,500 4,904 4,755
      Telephone 6,500 4,369 4,430
      Advertising 17,000 3,683 3,285
      Cost of sales 3,800 1,142 1,224
      Amortization - 3,727 1,771
      Professional fees 4,280 4,579 3,090
      Meals and entertainment - 1,029 621

369,618 335,039 304,144

Annual surplus (468) 13,507 18,126

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 54,811 54,811 36,685

Accumulated surplus, end of year $ 54,343 $ 68,318 $ 54,811

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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ELDON HOUSE CORPORATION
Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets

DRAFT 
Year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

2015 2014

Annual surplus $ 13,507 $ 18,126
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (9,428) (7,725)
Amortization of tangible capital assets 3,727 1,771

7,806 12,172

Acquisition of inventories (2,820) (785)
Consumption of inventories 785 1,203

(2,035) 418
5,771 12,590

Net financial assets, beginning of year 46,257 33,667

Net financial assets, end of year $ 52,028 $ 46,257

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

DRAFT - May 17, 2016, 10:48 AM 



ELDON HOUSE CORPORATION
Statement of Cash Flows

DRAFT 
Year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

2015 2014

Cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities:
Annual surplus $ 13,507 $ 18,126
Item not involving cash:

Amortization of tangible capital assets 3,727 1,771
Changes in non-cash operating working capital:

Accounts receivable 282 (299)
Inventories (2,035) 418
Prepaid expenses and deposits 60 (243)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 3,048 712
Deferred revenue 2,060 (22,394)

20,649 (1,909)

Investing activities:
Additions to tangible capital assets (9,428) (7,725)

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 11,221 (9,634)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 59,751 69,385

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 70,972 $ 59,751

Represented by:
Cash $ 65,934 $ 54,749
Cash equivalents 5,038 5,002

$ 70,972 $ 59,751

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

DRAFT - May 17, 2016, 10:48 AM 



ELDON HOUSE CORPORATION
DRAFT Notes to Financial Statements

Year ended December 31, 2015

1. Significant accounting policies:

Eldon House Corporation (the "Corporation") was incorporated by Municipal Bylaw on January 1,
2013. The Corporation's primary activity is the management of the operations of Eldon House, a
historic home and museum in London, Ontario. 

The financial statements of the Eldon House Corporation are the representation of management
and are prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles as
defined in the Chartered Professional Accountants ("CPA") of Canada's Public Sector Accounting
Handbook ("PSAB").

(a) Basis of accounting:

Sources of financing and expenditures are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.  The
accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues as they become available and measurable;
expenditures are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a result of receipt of
goods or services and the creation of a legal obligation to pay. 

(b) Tangible capital assets:

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes amounts that are directly
attributable to acquisition, development or betterment of the asset.  The cost, less residual
value, of the tangible capital assets are amortized on a declining balance basis over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Asset Rate

Furniture and fixtures 20%
Computer equipment 55%

Works of art and material cultural and historical assets are not recorded as assets in these
financial statements.
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ELDON HOUSE CORPORATION
DRAFT Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015

1. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(c)   Government transfers:

Government transfer payments from the City of London are recognized in the financial
statements in the year in which the payment is authorized and the events giving rise to the
transfer occur, performance criteria are met, and a reasonable estimate of the amount can
be made. Funding that is stipulated to be used for specific purposes is only recognized as
revenue in the fiscal year that the related expenses are incurred or services performed. If
funding is received for which the related expenses have not yet been incurred or services
performed, these amounts are recorded as a liability at year end.

(d) Deferred revenue:

Contributions received for expenses of future periods are recorded as deferred revenue and
recognized as revenue in the fiscal period the expenses are incurred.

(e) Contributed services:

Volunteers contribute a significant amount of time each year to assist the Corporation in
carrying out its operations. Because of the difficulty in determining the fair value, contributed
services are not recognized in the financial statements.

(f) Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the year.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.  

(g) Budget figures:

Budget figures have been provided for comparison purposes. Given differences between the
budgeting model and generally accepted accounting principles established by PSAB, certain
budgeted amounts have been reclassified to reflect the presentation adopted under PSAB.
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ELDON HOUSE CORPORATION
DRAFT Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015

2. Tangible capital assets:

Balance at   Balance at 
December 31,   December 31, 

Cost 2014 Additions Disposals 2015 

Furniture and fixtures $ 7,725 $ 4,029 $ - $ 11,754
Computer hardware 2,503 5,399 - 7,902

Total $ 10,228 $ 9,428 $ - $ 19,656

Balance at   Balance at 
December 31,  Amortization December 31, 

Accumulated amortization 2014  Disposals  expense 2015 

Furniture and fixtures $ 773 $ - $ 1,793 $ 2,566
Computer hardware 1,686 - 1,934 3,620

Total $ 2,459 $ - $ 3,727 $ 6,186

 Net book value Net book value 
  December 31,     December 31,  

2014     2015 

Furniture and fixtures $ 6,952 $ 9,188
Computer hardware 817 4,282

Total $ 7,769 $ 13,470
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ELDON HOUSE CORPORATION
DRAFT Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015

3. Accumulated surplus:

The balance of  accumulated surplus is comprised of the following:

2015 2014

Invested in tangible capital assets $ 13,470 $ 7,769
Operating fund 54,848 47,042

$ 68,318 $ 54,811

4. Trust fund:

The Amelia Lucy Ronalds Little Fund represents restricted funds to be used for the improvement,
redecoration, refurbishing, restoration, and enhancement of Eldon House and the artifacts
contained therein. The balance in this fund at December 31, 2015 was $158,304 (2014 -
$155,806). At December 31, 2015, this fund was administered by Museum London and will be
transferred to the Corporation once legal approvals are received. This fund has not been included
in the statement of financial position of the Corporation.

DRAFT - May 17, 2016, 10:48 AM 



Financial Statements of

FAIR-CITY JOINT VENTURE

Year ended June 30, 2015





FAIR-CITY JOINT VENTURE
Statement of Financial Position

June 30, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

2015 2014  

Assets
Current assets:
     Cash $ 687,522 $ 1,448,994
     Investment (note 3) 970,386 -
     Accounts receivable (note 4) 194,811 150,873
     Prepaid expenses 87,724 73,019

1,940,443 1,672,886

Capital assets (note 5) 11,963,760 12,382,144

$ 13,904,203 $ 14,055,030

Liabilities and Net Assets
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 6) $ 267,271 $ 148,665
Payable to The City of London (note 15) 34,413 75,000
Payable to Western Fair Association (note 15) 180,673 154,990
Deferred revenue 342,575 278,082
Current portion of related party debt, secured (note 7) 730,565 686,114
Current portion of obligations

under capital leases (note 8) 46,529 66,844
1,602,026 1,409,695

Related party debt, secured (note 7) 4,774,681 5,505,247

Obligations under capital leases (note 8) 1,294,998 1,341,232

Employee future benefits (note 9) 101,213 45,763

Deferred capital contributions (note 10) 3,417,139 3,549,765

Net assets:
Investment in capital assets (note 11) 1,699,848 1,232,942
Internally restricted (note 13) 1,014,298 970,386

2,714,146 2,203,328
Contingencies (note 17)

$ 13,904,203 $ 14,055,030

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

On behalf of the Joint Venture:

 Director     Director



FAIR-CITY JOINT VENTURE
Statement of Operations 

Year ended June 30, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

2015 2014 

Revenues:
      Ice rentals (note 15) $ 3,220,243 $ 3,158,882
      Sponsorship and other 506,335 491,356
      Amortization of deferred capital contributions 132,626 132,626

3,859,204 3,782,864

Expenditures:
      Salaries and benefits 985,828 921,217
      Utilities 589,537 518,223
      Supplies and services 370,443 330,113
      Management fees from venturer (note 15) 231,021 226,972

2,176,829 1,996,525

Excess of revenue over expenditures before the undernoted 1,682,375 1,786,339

Amortization of capital assets 572,472 612,283
Interest expense (note 15) 481,133 487,952

1,053,605 1,100,235
 

Excess of revenues over expenditures (note 14) $ 628,770 $ 686,104

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



FAIR-CITY JOINT VENTURE
Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Year ended June 30, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

Western Fair The City Internally Investment in Total Total 
Association of London restricted capital assets 2015 2014 

(note 13) (note 11)

Balance, beginning of year $ - $ - $ 970,386 $ 1,232,942 $ 2,203,328 $ 2,564,819

Excess of revenues over expenditures 332,349 296,421 - - 628,770 686,104

Employee future benefit remeasurements (note 2) (23,762) (21,193) - - (44,955) -

Venturer distributions (38,584) (34,413) - - (72,997) (1,047,595)

Allocation to internally restricted net assets (104,657) (93,343) 198,000 - - -

Change in investment in capital assets (165,346) (147,472) (154,088) 466,906 - -

Balance, end of year $ - $ - $ 1,014,298 $ 1,699,848 $ 2,714,146 $ 2,203,328

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



FAIR-CITY JOINT VENTURE
Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended June 30, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

2015 2014 

Cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities:
Excess of revenues over expenditures $ 628,770 $ 686,104
Adjustment for:

Amortization of capital assets 572,472 612,283
Items not involving cash:

Change in employee future benefits liability 10,495 8,003
Amortization of deferred capital contributions (132,626) (132,626)

Changes in non-cash operating working capital:
Accounts receivable (43,938) 123,384
Prepaid expenses (14,705) 1,500
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 118,606 (9,845)
Payable to The City of London (40,587) (33,522)
Payable to Western Fair Association 25,683 30,470
Deferred revenue 64,493 (41,802)

1,188,663 1,243,949

Financing activities:
Repayments of related party debt (686,115) (644,368)
Payment of obligations under capital leases (66,549) (69,317)
Venturer distributions (72,997) (1,047,595)

(825,661) (1,761,280)

Investing activities:
Purchase of capital assets (154,088) (82,514)
Net change in investment (970,386) -

(1,124,474) (82,514)

Decrease in cash (761,472) (599,845)

Cash, beginning of year 1,448,994 2,048,839

Cash, end of year $ 687,522 $ 1,448,994

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



FAIR-CITY JOINT VENTURE
Notes to Financial Statements

Year ended June 30, 2015

The Fair-City Joint Venture ("Joint Venture") is a venture between the Western Fair Association
("Association") and The City of London ("City") entered into on September 1, 2000.  Each venturer
controls 50% of the Joint Venture.  The purpose of the Joint Venture is to construct and operate a four
pad arena to provide facilities for the betterment of the community, and is to be used by the
community as a whole.  The Joint Venture is registered under the Ontario Partnerships Act.

1. Significant accounting policies:

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards
for not-for-profit organizations.

The Joint Venture's significant accounting policies are as follows:

(a) Revenue recognition:

The Joint Venture recognizes revenue when the service has been rendered and persuasive
evidence of an arrangement exists, the price to the buyer is fixed or determinable and
collection is reasonably assured. Deposits received for future rentals are included in
deferred revenue until the sale is recognized.  

Contributions restricted for the purpose of capital assets are deferred, and when expended,
are amortized into revenue at a rate corresponding with the amortization for the related
capital asset.

(b) Capital assets:

Capital assets are stated at cost, less accumulated amortization. Capital assets are
amortized on a straight-line basis as follows:

Asset Basis Rate

Building Straight-line 40 years
Machinery and equipment Straight-line 5 years
Special alterations Straight-line 10-25 years
Solar array under capital lease Straight-line 20 years

When assets become fully amortized, the cost of the asset and the related accumulated
amortization are removed from the respective amounts. Construction in progress is primarily
machinery and equipment. No amortization is recorded until construction is substantially
complete and the assets are ready for use.



FAIR-CITY JOINT VENTURE
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2015

1. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(c) Employee future benefits:

(i)   Pension plan:

The Joint Venture participates in the defined contribution pension plan sponsored by
the  Association.  

(ii) Post-employment benefits other than pension:

The Joint Venture also participates in the post-employment benefits plan provided by
the Association that provides its current and retired employees with extended health
and dental benefits, post retirement insurance coverage and sick leave benefits. The
cost of these benefits is actuarially determined using the projected benefit method pro-
rated on service using management’s best estimates of salary escalation, retirement
ages of employees and expected health care costs. Remeasurement differences
arising from plan amendments, changes in assumptions and actuarial gains and losses
are immediately recognized in net assets. 

The Joint Venture accrues its obligations under employee post-employment benefits
other than pension as the employees render the services necessary to earn them
based on the latest valuation for accounting purposes. The actuarial valuation is
performed at least every three years. In the years between valuations, plan results are
prepared based on extrapolations of the latest available valuation results.



FAIR-CITY JOINT VENTURE
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2015

1. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(d) Financial instruments:

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value on initial recognition.  Freestanding
derivative instruments that are not in a qualifying hedging relationship and equity
instruments that are quoted in an active market are subsequently measured at fair value.  All
other financial instruments are subsequently recorded at cost or amortized cost, unless
management has elected to carry the instruments at fair value.

Transaction costs incurred on he acquisition of financial instruments measured subsequently
at fair value are expensed as incurred.  All other financial instruments are adjusted by
transaction costs incurred on acquisition and financing costs, which are amortized using the
straight-line method.

Financial assets are assessed for impairment on an annual basis at the end of the fiscal
year if there are indicators of impairment.  If there is an indicator of impairment, the Joint
Venture determines if there is a significant adverse change in the expected amount or timing
of future cash flows from the financial asset,  If there is a significant adverse change in the
cash flows, the amount that could be realized from selling the financial asset or the amount
the Joint Venture expects to realize by exercising its right to any collateral.  If events and
circumstances reverse in a future period, an impairment loss will be reversed to the extent of
the improvement, not exceeding the initial carrying value.

(e) Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian accounting standards
for not-for-profit organizations requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue
and expenses during the year.  Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions
include the carrying amount of capital assets and employee future benefits. Actual amounts
could differ from those estimates.



FAIR-CITY JOINT VENTURE
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2015

2. Change in accounting policy:

Effective July 1, 2014, the Joint Venture adopted new CPA Canada Handbook Accounting Part III
Section 3463, Reporting Employee Future Benefits by Not-for-Profit Organizations, which
incorporates Section 3462, Employee Future Benefits, issued. This change in accounting policy
is made in accordance with its transitional provisions and requires retrospective application. The
standard requires the use of the immediate recognition method to account for employee future
benefits resulting in the recognition of the full amount of the obligation on the statement of
financial position. Remeasurements and other items, such as plan amendments and actuarial
gains and losses, are immediately recognized as a direct charge to net assets. For funded plans,
the standard allows the entity to make an accounting policy choice between a valuation prepared
using funding assumptions or accounting assumptions. For unfunded plans, a valuation prepared
using accounting assumptions must be used. 

The Joint Venture has accounted for its unfunded post-employment benefits other than pension
using accounting assumptions. All remeasurements are now recognized as a direct charge to net
assets while previously these amounts were charged to excess of revenues over expenditures.

The Joint Venture has applied this change in accounting policy retrospectively and there was no
impact of this change on amounts previously reported. 

3. Investment:

The investment is comprised of a term deposit that matures on July 6, 2015 with an effective
interest rate of 0.95%.

4. Accounts receivable:

2015 2014

Trade $ 200,949 $ 159,303
HST receivable 2,591 -

203,540 159,303

Allowance for doubtful accounts (8,729) (8,430)

$ 194,811 $ 150,873



FAIR-CITY JOINT VENTURE
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2015

5. Capital assets:

2015 2014

 Accumulated Net book Net book
Cost amortization value value

Building $ 15,446,432 $ 5,119,216 $ 10,327,216 $ 10,724,749
Machinery and equipment 244,266 139,281 104,985 94,304
Special alterations 425,673 206,801 218,872 223,017
Solar array under capital lease 1,474,114 221,117 1,252,997 1,326,703
Capital projects in progress 59,690 - 59,690 13,371

$ 17,650,175 $ 5,686,415 $ 11,963,760 $ 12,382,144

Included in machinery and equipment are assets under capital lease with a cost of $104,440 and
accumulated amortization of $94,945.  

6. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities:

Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities are government remittances payable of
$1,028 (2014 - $8,837), which includes amounts payable for HST and payroll related taxes.



FAIR-CITY JOINT VENTURE
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2015

7. Related party debt:

2015 2014  

Obligation to The City of London:

Term loan, bearing interest at 6.377%, payable in
monthly blended payments of $88,019, due
October 1, 2021, secured by a general security
agreement over all assets $ 5,505,246 $ 6,191,361

Current portion of related party debt 730,565 686,114

$ 4,774,681 $ 5,505,247

Principal repayments over the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

2016 $ 730,565
2017 777,896
2018 828,294
2019 881,956
2020 939,095
Thereafter 1,347,440

$ 5,505,246



FAIR-CITY JOINT VENTURE
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2015

8. Obligations under capital leases:

The Joint Venture has entered into two capital leases which expire prior to December 31, 2015
for certain ice surfacing equipment and one capital lease for a solar array expiring June 28, 2033.

2016 $ 156,827
2017 146,037
2018 146,037
2019 146,037
2020 146,037
Thereafter 1,825,465

Total minimum lease payments 2,566,440

Less amount representing interest at between 4.59% and 8.21% 1,224,913

Present value of net minimum capital lease payments 1,341,527

Current portion of obligations under capital leases 46,529

$ 1,294,998

9. Employee future benefits:

(a) Pension plan:

The Joint Venture contributed $21,131 (2014 - $22,062) to the defined contribution pension
plan during the year.  The total expense for the year was $21,131 (2014 - $22,062).



FAIR-CITY JOINT VENTURE
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2015

9. Employee future benefits (continued):

(b) Post-employment benefits other than pension:

The Joint Venture provides its current and retired employees with extended health and
dental benefits and post retirement insurance coverage.  The Joint Venture's post
employment benefits also include sick leave benefits comprised of a  non-vested and vested
portion. The non-vested program allows for employees to accumulate at most 85 unused
sick days and the vested program provides for 50% of sick days accumulated prior to March
2012 to be paid to the employee on retirement. All benefits are provided upon retirement and
provide coverage equal to one year for every five years of employment. These benefits are
not payable on death or termination.   

The most recent actuarial valuation was prepared as at June 30, 2015 for the health plan.
The most recent actuarial valuation of the sick leave plans was performed as of June 30,
2014 and the results have been extrapolated to June 30, 2015.  

The employee future benefit liability relating to post-employment benefits other than pension
is $101,213 (2014 - $45,763).  This liability has been recorded in the statement of financial
position.

Benefit expenses included in salaries and benefits expenditures consist of the following:

2015 2014

Current service cost $ 7,715 $ 41,520
Interest cost 2,780 925

$ 10,495 $ 42,445

Details of annual contributions and benefits paid are as follows:

2015 2014

Employer contributions $ 1,000 $ 36,041
Benefit payments (1,000) (36,041)



FAIR-CITY JOINT VENTURE
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2015

10. Deferred capital contributions:

Deferred capital contributions represent both the unamortized amounts of grants already spent,
and the unspent amount of grants received for the future purchase of capital assets.

The change in deferred capital contributions consist of the following:

2015 2014

Balance, beginning of year $ 3,549,765 $ 3,682,391
Amortization of deferred capital contributions (132,626) (132,626)

Balance, end of year $ 3,417,139 $ 3,549,765

11. Investments in capital assets:

Investments in capital assets consists of the following:

2015 2014

Capital assets $ 11,963,760 $ 12,382,144

Less amounts financed by:
     Related party debt (5,505,246) (6,191,361)

Obligation under capital leases (1,341,527) (1,408,076)
Deferred capital contributions (3,417,139) (3,549,765)

(10,263,912) (11,149,202)

$ 1,699,848 $ 1,232,942

The change in investment in capital assets is calculated as follows:

2015 2014

Amortization of deferred capital contributions $ 132,626 $ 132,626
Amortization of capital assets (572,472) (612,283)

(439,846) (479,657)

Purchase of capital assets 154,088 82,514
Repayment of related party debt 686,115 644,368
Obligations under capital leases 66,549 69,317

$ 466,906 $ 316,542



FAIR-CITY JOINT VENTURE
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2015

12. Contributions to Joint Venture:

In return for their interests in the Joint Venture, both the City and the Association made
contributions to the Joint Venture.  The City contributed a $5,000,000 non-refundable capital
grant which is recorded as a deferred capital contribution.  The Association contributed the lease
of the land for the arena at below market values and ongoing project management.  Under the
terms of the joint venture agreement, the venturers agree to a contribution to internally restricted
net assets for future capital purchases annually.  For the year ended June 30, 2015, both
venturers agreed to a total contribution of $198,000 (2014 - $302,076).

13. Internally restricted net assets:

2015 2014

Balance, beginning of year $ 970,386 $ 750,824
Current year allocation 198,000 302,076
Capital expenditures (154,088) (82,514)

Balance, end of year $ 1,014,298 $ 970,386

 



FAIR-CITY JOINT VENTURE
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2015

14. Allocation of excess of revenues over expenditures to venturers:

The excess of revenues over expenditures of the Joint Venture have been allocated to the
venturers in accordance with the Joint Venture agreement.  The agreement states that the
excess of revenues over expenditures will be allocated to the Association for the first five years
and will be allocated equally to the venturers after this time until certain related party debt
repayment thresholds are met.  Once the Joint Venture has repaid $5 million of principal on the
related party debt, and for every $1 million repayment thereafter, the Association's equity interest
will increase by 2.857%, to a maximum of 70%, and the City's equity interest will decrease by
2.857%, to a minimum of 30%. Any deficiency of revenue over expenditures incurred by the Joint
Venture accrue to the Association.  

During the year, the related party debt repayment threshold was met resulting in the Association's
equity interest increasing to 52.857% (2014 - 50%) and the City's equity interest decreasing to
47.143% (2014 - 50%). The venturers agreed to apply the change prospectively to the first day in
the year that the threshold was met and to each year thereafter that subsequent repayment
thresholds are met.

The terms of the Joint Venture Agreement stipulate that the excess of revenues over
expenditures available for distribution to the venturers annually is determined as follows:

2015 2014 

Excess of revenues over expenditures $ 628,770 $ 686,104
Amortization of capital assets 572,472 612,283
Amortization of deferred capital contributions (132,626) (132,626)
Repayment of related party debt (686,115) (644,368)
Repayment of obligations under capital leases (66,549) (69,317)

315,952 452,076

Allocation to internally restricted net assets (198,000) (302,076)

Employee future benefit remeasurements (44,955) -

Amounts available for distribution to the venturers $ 72,997 $ 150,000

The amounts available for distribution to the venturers is allocated to the venturers as follows:

2015 2014

Western Fair Association $ 38,584 $ 75,000
The City of London 34,413 75,000

$ 72,997 $ 150,000



FAIR-CITY JOINT VENTURE
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2015

15. Related party transactions:

During the year, the Joint Venture entered into the following transactions, which are recorded at
the exchange amount, with related parties:

(a) During the year, the City, a related party, rented ice time from the Joint Venture in the
amount of $1,732,476 (2014 - $1,698,504).

(b) The Joint Venture also paid interest of $367,888 (2014 - $372,130) to the City on account of
the related party debt (note 6).   

(c) Venturer distributions of $38,584 and $34,413 (2014 - $972,595 and $75,000) was declared
during the year and paid or payable to Western Fair Association and The City of London
respectively.  

(d) During the year, the Joint Venture paid management fees to the Association in the amount
of $231,021 (2014 - $226,972).

Payable to Western Fair Association of $180,673 (2014 - $154,990) and Payable to The City of
London of $34,413 (2014 - $75,000) are unsecured and non-interest bearing with no specific
repayment terms.

16. Financial risks and concentration of credit risk:

(a)  Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Joint Venture will be unable to fulfill its obligations in a timely
basis or at a reasonable cost.  The Joint Venture manages its liquidity risk by monitoring its
operating requirements.  There have been no changes to the risk exposures from 2014.

(b) Credit risk:

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Joint Venture if a counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its obligation.  The Joint Venture is exposed to credit risks with
respect to accounts receivable.  The Joint Venture has established policies for extending
credit to various businesses, groups and individuals who purchase goods and services from
the Joint Venture in order to reduce incidents of non-payment.  Management believes that
the credit risk is minimized by dealing with creditworthy counterparties.



FAIR-CITY JOINT VENTURE
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2015

17. Contingencies:

From time-to-time the Joint Venture may have litigation pending or in progress.  With respect to
claims at June 30, 2015, management believes that the Joint Venture has valid defences and
appropriate insurance coverage in place.  In the opinion of management, the aggregate amount
of any potential liability is not expected to have a material effect on the Joint Venture's financial
position.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Chair and Members of The London Convention Centre Corporation 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The London Convention Centre 
Corporation which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2015 and the 
statements of operations, change in net financial assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and 
notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform an audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
The London Convention Centre Corporation as at December 31, 2015, and its results of operations 
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting 
standards. 

 
Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

March 24, 2016 

London, Canada 



THE LONDON CONVENTION CENTRE CORPORATION
Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

2015 2014 
 

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,392,786 $ 1,630,139

Accounts receivable 280,901 275,932

Other receivables 10,312 82,147
1,683,999 1,988,218

Financial Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 547,024 384,517

Payable to The City of London 741,034 37,153

Accrued sick and vacation 35,539 48,590

Advance deposits 492,360 538,565
1,815,957 1,008,825

Net financial assets (131,958) 979,393

Non-Financial Assets
Tangible capital assets (note 4) 15,430,898 15,450,986

Prepaid expenses 32,603 26,200

Inventory (note 2) 53,891 56,800
15,517,392 15,533,986

Accumulated surplus (note 6) $ 15,385,434 $ 16,513,379

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

On behalf of the Board:

 Director  Director



THE LONDON CONVENTION CENTRE CORPORATION
Statement of Operations 

Year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

Budget 
2015 2015 2014

Revenue:
      Food and beverage $ 3,513,000 $ 3,290,924 $ 3,812,591
      Space rental 543,000 569,248 550,688
      Parking 527,785 544,488 520,662
      Technical 343,646 342,071 342,128
      City capital funding 600,366 747,034 800,052
      Other 151,601 123,878 138,719

5,679,398 5,617,643 6,164,840

Cost of goods sold:
      Food and beverage 908,105 891,275 965,505
      Technical 18,168 18,273 18,655
      Other 27,733 28,937 31,181

954,006 938,485 1,015,341
4,725,392 4,679,158 5,149,499

Expenditures:
      Amortization of tangible capital assets 1,206,720 1,188,905 1,206,720
      Event services and culinary 1,315,355 1,321,406 1,348,618
      City appropriation 569,000 735,496 569,000
      Corporate services 834,128 839,041 856,074
      Facility services 433,859 404,898 428,853
      Energy 472,309 426,826 447,670
      Sales and catering 803,015 683,634 694,284
      Cleaning 119,304 107,797 105,964
      Technical 33,651 23,837 29,655
      Parking 49,166 45,968 44,904
      Other 32,872 29,295 35,430

5,869,379 5,807,103 5,767,172

Annual deficit (1,143,987) (1,127,945) (617,673)

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 16,513,379 16,513,379 17,131,052

Accumulated surplus, end of year $ 15,369,392 $ 15,385,434 $ 16,513,379

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



THE LONDON CONVENTION CENTRE CORPORATION
Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets

Year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

2015 2014

Annual deficit $ (1,127,945) $ (617,673)
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (1,168,817) (256,055)
Amortization of tangible capital assets 1,188,905 1,206,720

(1,107,857) 332,992

Acquisition of inventories of supplies (53,891) (56,800)
Acquisition of prepaid expenses (32,603) (26,200)
Consumption of inventories of supplies 56,800 49,170
Use of prepaid expenses 26,200 14,945

(3,494) (18,885)

Increase (decrease) in net financial assets (1,111,351) 314,107

Net financial assets, beginning of year 979,393 665,286

Net financial assets, end of year $ (131,958) $ 979,393

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



THE LONDON CONVENTION CENTRE CORPORATION
Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

2015 2014 

Cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities:
Annual deficit $ (1,127,945) $ (617,673)
Item not involving cash:

Amortization of tangible capital assets 1,188,905 1,206,720
Changes in non-cash operating working capital:

Accounts receivable (4,969) 67,782
Other receivables 71,835 (10,602)
Inventory 2,909 (7,630)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 162,507 (92,711)
Accrued sick and vacation (13,051) (5,180)
Payable to The City of London 703,881 27,751
Advance deposits (46,205) (140,170)
Prepaid expenses (6,403) (11,255)

931,464 417,032

Capital activities:
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (1,168,817) (256,055)

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (237,353) 160,977

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,630,139 1,469,162

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 1,392,786 $ 1,630,139

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash $ 879,098 $ 1,125,161
Investments held by the City of London with yields

ranging from 1.25% to 3.46% 513,688 504,978

$ 1,392,786 $ 1,630,139

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



THE LONDON CONVENTION CENTRE CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements

Year ended December 31, 2015

1. Significant accounting policies:

The financial statements of The London Convention Centre Corporation are prepared in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles as defined in the Chartered
Professional Accountants Canada Public Sector Accounting Handbook.

(a) Basis of accounting:

Sources of financing and expenditures are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.

The accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues as they become available and
measurable; expenditures are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a result
of receipt of goods or services and the creation of a legal obligation to pay.

(b) Tangible capital assets:

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes amounts that are directly
attributable to acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset.  The cost,
less residual value, of the tangible capital assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Asset Rate

Buildings and building improvements 5 - 40 years
Furniture and equipment 5 - 20 years
Infrastructure 3 - 10 years
Vehicles 10 - 20 years

(c) Revenue recognition:

Revenue from events is recorded in the statement of operations in the year in which the
event is held, and the related receivable is considered collectible.

Government transfer payments from the City of London are recognized in the financial
statements in the year in which the payment is authorized and the events giving rise to the
transfer occur, performance criteria are met, and a reasonable estimate of the amount can
be made. Funding that is stipulated to be used for specific purposes is only recognized as
revenue in the fiscal year that the related expenses are incurred or services performed. If
funding is received for which the related expenses have not yet been incurred or services
performed, these amounts are recorded as a liability at year end.



THE LONDON CONVENTION CENTRE CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015

1. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(d) Inventory:

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost, being laid down cost, and net realizable value, using
the specific item costing method.

(e) Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions about future events.
These estimates and the underlying assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
periods.  Such estimates include valuation of accounts receivable, inventory, and tangible
capital assets. Management evaluates its estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis
using historical experience and other factors, including the current economic environment,
and makes adjustments in the financial statements on a prospective basis.  As future events
and their effects cannot be determined with precision, actual results could differ significantly
from these estimates.

(f) Budget figures:

Budget figures have been provided for comparison purposes. Given differences between the
budgeting model and generally accepted accounting principles established by PSAB, certain
budgeted amounts have been reclassified to reflect the presentation adopted under PSAB. 



THE LONDON CONVENTION CENTRE CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015

2. Inventory:

At December 31, inventory consists of:

2015 2014 

Food $ 24,541 $ 22,523
Beverages 29,350 34,277

$ 53,891 $ 56,800

3. Capital reserve:

A capital reserve is managed by The City of London to finance future capital expenditures.  The
reserve has not been recognized in these financial statements and will be accounted for as the
funds are received and expended.

2015 2014

Opening balance $ 3,312,463 $ 2,972,989
Contributions during the year 735,500 569,000
Interest 62,589 60,258
Capital expenditures (178,034) (289,784)

Closing balance $ 3,932,518 $ 3,312,463

4. Tangible capital assets:

 Balance at Balance at 
December 31, December 31, 

Cost 2014 Additions Disposals   2015 

Building $ 27,309,469 $ - - $ 27,309,469
Building improvements 3,529,614 1,016,980 - 4,546,594
Equipment 1,391,060 58,114 - 1,449,174
Furniture 810,473 93,723 - 904,196
Infrastructure 643,365 - - 643,365
Vehicles 41,217 - - 41,217

$33,725,198 $ 1,168,817 $ - $34,894,015



THE LONDON CONVENTION CENTRE CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015

4. Tangible capital assets (continued):

Balance at Balance at 
December 31, Amortization December 31, 

Accumulated amortization 2014 Disposals expense 2015 

Building $ 14,354,654 $ - $ 711,529 $ 15,066,183
Building improvements 1,849,460 - 276,851 2,126,311
Equipment 1,122,352 - 82,771 1,205,123
Furniture 361,100 - 54,096 415,196
Infrastructure 555,439 - 62,439 617,878
Vehicles 31,207 - 1,219 32,426

$ 18,274,212 $ - $ 1,188,905 $ 19,463,117

Net book value Net book value 
December 31, December 31, 

2014 2015 

Building $ 12,954,815 $ 12,243,286
Building improvements 1,680,154 2,420,283
Equipment 268,708 244,051
Furniture 449,373 489,000
Infrastructure 87,926 25,487
Vehicles 10,010 8,791

$ 15,450,986 $ 15,430,898

Ownership of capital assets is vested with the City of London. The London Convention Centre
Corporation operates the facilities on behalf of the City of London. The fixed assets and the
related amortization have been included in the financial statements of The London Convention
Centre Corporation in order to reflect the assets over which it has stewardship and the
amortization costs related to those assets.



THE LONDON CONVENTION CENTRE CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015

5. Pension agreement:

The London Convention Centre Corporation contributes to the Ontario Municipal Employees
Retirement Fund (OMERS) which is a multi-employer plan, on behalf of its staff.  The plan is a
defined benefit plan which specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be received by the
employees based on the length of service and rates of pay.

The amount contributed to OMERS for 2015 was $200,335 (2014 - $190,805) for current service.

6. Accumulated surplus:

Accumulated surplus consists of individual fund surplus and reserves funds as follows:

2015 2014

Surplus:
Invested in tangible capital assets $ 15,430,898 $ 15,450,986

Unfunded:
Payable to The City of London used
to finance tangible capital assets (698,418) -

Reserves:
Special projects 395,897 562,393
Operating reserve 257,057 500,000

652,954 1,062,393

$ 15,385,434 $ 16,513,379
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of London Downtown Business Association 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of London Downtown Business Association, 
which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2015, the statements of 
operations, change in net financial assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, 
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
London Downtown Business Association as at December 31, 2015, and its results of operations and 
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting 
principles. 

 
Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

May 19, 2016 

London, Canada 



LONDON DOWNTOWN BUSINESS ASSOCIATION
Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

LDBA Main Street Total Total 
2015 2015 2015 2014

 

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 222,232 $ 394,834 $ 617,066 $ 296,961
Investments - 2,746 2,746 2,719
Accounts receivable 57,278 24,563 81,841 48,823
Tenant improvement loans (note 2) - 52,672 52,672 77,465

279,510 474,815 754,325 425,968

Financial liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities 115,145 3,656 118,801 83,117

Funds on deposit - 92,223 92,223 77,863
115,145 95,879 211,024 160,980

Net financial assets 164,365 378,936 543,301 264,988

Non-financial assets

Tangible capital assets (note 3) 170,162 1,339 171,501 185,725

Commitments (note 5)

Accumulated surplus (note 4) $ 334,527 $ 380,275 $ 714,802 $ 450,713

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

On behalf of the Board:

 Director    Director



LONDON DOWNTOWN BUSINESS ASSOCIATION
Statement of Operations 

Year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

LDBA Main Street Total Total 
2015 2015 2015 2014

Revenue:
Municipal levy from the City of

London $ 1,714,047 $ - $ 1,714,047 $ 891,132
Main Street London funding (494,500) 494,500 - -
Interest income 2,045 395 2,440 1,659
Miscellaneous income 5,080 1,015 6,095 726

Total revenue 1,226,672 495,910 1,722,582 893,517

Expenses:
Salaries and wages 387,051 86,978 474,029 330,386
Administration 113,209 5,083 118,292 111,515
Rent 64,397 - 64,397 62,091
Programs - 191,813 191,813 72,362
Main Street Business Development 177,797 - 177,797 96,814
Member services 342,139 34,432 376,571 281,779

     Bad debts  - - - 2,393
 Business retention - 2,524 2,524   -
Amortization 45,714 7,356 53,070 46,443

Total expenses 1,130,307 328,186 1,458,493 1,003,783

Annual surplus (deficit) 96,365 167,724 264,089 (110,266)

Accumulated surplus,
beginning of year 238,162 212,551 450,713   560,979

Accumulated surplus, end of year $ 334,527 $ 380,275 $ 714,802 $ 450,713

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



LONDON DOWNTOWN BUSINESS ASSOCIATION
Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets

Year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

LDBA Main Street Total Total 
2015 2015 2015 2014

Annual surplus (deficit) $ 96,365 $ 167,724 $ 264,089 $ (110,266)
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (38,846) - (38,846) -
Amortization of tangible capital assets 45,714 7,356 53,070 46,443

Change in net financial assets 103,233 175,080 278,313 (63,823)

Net financial assets, beginning of year 61,132 203,856 264,988 328,811

Net financial assets, end of year  $ 164,365 $ 378,936 $ 543,301 $ 264,988

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



LONDON DOWNTOWN BUSINESS ASSOCIATION
Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

2015 2014 

Cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities:
Annual surplus (deficit) $ 264,089 $ (110,266)
Item not involving cash:

Amortization 53,070 46,443
Changes in non-cash operating working capital:

Investments (27) 16,877
Accounts receivable (33,018) 7,893
Tenant improvement loans 24,793 (2,440)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 35,684 64,351

344,591 22,858

Financing activities:
Funds on deposit 14,360 12,288

Investing activities:
Additions to tangible capital assets (38,846) -

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 320,105 35,146

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 296,961 261,815

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 617,066 $ 296,961

Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash $ 279,844 $ 122,987
Cash equivalents 337,222 173,974

$ 617,066 $ 296,961

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



LONDON DOWNTOWN BUSINESS ASSOCIATION
Notes to Financial Statements

Year ended December 31, 2015

1. Significant accounting policies:

The financial statements of the London Downtown Business Association (the "Association") are
prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles as defined in the
Chartered Professional Accountants Canada Public Sector Accounting Handbook.

(a) Basis of accounting:

Sources of financing and expenditures are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.

The accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues as they become available and
measurable; expenditures are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a result
of receipt of goods or services and the creation of a legal obligation to pay.

(b) Cash equivalents:

Cash equivalents consist of guaranteed investment certificates due on demand.

(c) Investments:

Investments consist of guaranteed investment certificates. Interest income is recognized as
it is earned.

(d) Government transfers:

Government transfer payments from the City of London are recognized in the financial
statements in the year in which the payment is authorized and the events giving rise to the
transfer occur, performance criteria are met, and a reasonable estimate of the amount can
be made. Funding that is stipulated to be used for specific purposes is only recognized as
revenue in the fiscal year that the related expenses are incurred or services performed. If
funding is received for which the related expenses have not yet been incurred or services
performed, these amounts are recorded as a liability at year end.

(e) Deferred revenue:

Funds received for expenses of future periods are deferred and recognized as income when
the costs for which the revenue is received are incurred.



LONDON DOWNTOWN BUSINESS ASSOCIATION
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015

1. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(f) Capital assets:

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes amounts that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. The
cost, less residual value, of the tangible capital assets are amortized on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Asset Rate

Furniture 5 years
Metal trees 10 years
Computer equipment 4 years
Leasehold improvements 10 years
Solar chargers 3 years

(g) Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the year.  Such estimates include valuation of
accounts receivable and other long-lived assets.  Actual results could differ from those
estimates.



LONDON DOWNTOWN BUSINESS ASSOCIATION
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015

2. Tenant improvement loans:

As part of its mandate, the Association provides interest free tenant improvement loans to eligible
downtown businesses.  During the year, the Association recorded an allowance for doubtful
accounts in the amount of nil (2014 - $19,800).

3. Tangible capital assets:

Balance at    Balance at  
December 31,   December 31, 

Cost 2014 Additions Disposals 2015 

Furniture $ 31,231 $ 11,819 $ - $ 43,050
Metal trees 227,198 - - 227,198
Computer equipment 29,426 - - 29,426
Solar chargers - 27,027 - 27,027
Leasehold improvements 124,272 - - 124,272

Total $ 412,127 $ 38,846 $ - $ 450,973

Balance at    Balance at  
December 31,  Amortization December 31, 

Accumulated amortization 2014  Disposals  expense 2015 

Furniture $ 19,412 $ - $ 4,561 $ 23,973
Metal trees 165,547 - 22,720 188,267
Computer equipment 20,731 - 7,356 28,087
Solar chargers - - 6,006 6,006
Leasehold improvements 20,712 - 12,427 33,139

Total $ 226,402 $ - $ 53,070 $ 279,472

 Net book value    Net book value 
  December 31,   December 31, 

2014     2015 

Furniture $ 11,819 $ 19,077
Metal trees 61,651 38,931
Computer equipment 8,695 1,339
Solar chargers - 21,021
Leasehold improvements 103,560 91,133

$ 185,725 $ 171,501



LONDON DOWNTOWN BUSINESS ASSOCIATION
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015

4. Accumulated surplus:

Accumulated surplus consists of individual fund surplus and reserve funds as follows:

2015 2014

Surplus:
Invested in tangible capital assets $ 171,501 $ 185,725
Operating surplus 378,361 207,293

549,862 393,018

Contingency reserve 164,940 57,695

$ 714,802 $ 450,713

5. Commitments:

The Association is committed to payments under operating leases for furniture and equipment as
follows:

2016 $ 19,320
2017 19,320
2018 15,159
2019 2,319

$ 56,118
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Shareholder of London Hydro Inc. 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of London Hydro Inc. (the “Entity”), which comprise 

the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2015, December 31, 2014 and January 1, 2014, the 

statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 

2015, and December 31, 2014, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and 

other explanatory information. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management 

determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted 

our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require 

that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the 

risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 

risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of 

the  financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 

not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit 

also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 

statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 

London Hydro Inc. as at December 31, 2015, December 31, 2014 and January 1, 2014, and its financial 

performance and its cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2015, and December 31, 2014 in 

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. 

 
Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

April 19, 2016 

London, Canada 



December 31, December 31, January 1,
Note 2015 2014 2014

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash 5 6,429$                6,208$             -$                
Accounts receivable 6 70,495               72,432            72,294           
Income tax receivable 416                    -                      80                  
Materials and supplies 7 749                    655                 731                
Prepaid expenses 1,826                 1,569              1,456             

Total current assets 79,915                 80,864             74,561             

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 8 250,739             235,287          224,482         
Intangible assets 9 16,648               15,101            16,237           
Deferred tax assets 10 740                    1,299              2,157             

Total non-current assets 268,127               251,687           242,876           

Total assets 348,042               332,551           317,437           

Regulatory balances 11 2,896                   6,584               2,311               

Total assets and regulatory balances 350,938$             339,135$         319,748$         

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities 
Bank indebtedness 5 -$                    -$                 3,012$            
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 12 53,551 53,229             52,636             
Due to shareholder 21 7,428                 6,943              6,276             
Income tax payable -                         1,398              -                     
Current portion of long-term debt 14 7,304                 2,304              2,304             
Customer and other deposits 594                    691                 714                
Deferred revenue 13 1,192                 1,482              1,277             

Total current liabilities 70,069                 66,047             66,219             

Non-current liabilities
Long-term debt 14,23 91,130                 93,434             10,738             
Post-employment benefits 15 13,845               13,749            12,989           
Customer and other deposits 5,663                   5,218               5,166               

Deferred revenue 13 12,950                 8,934               6,229               
Unrealized loss on interest rate swap 14,23 5,935                 2,778              199                
Due to related party 21 -                         -                      70,000           

Total non-current liabilities 129,523               124,113           105,321           

Total liabilities 199,592             190,160          171,540         

Equity
Share capital 16 96,116               96,116            96,116           
Retained earnings 52,784               52,609            43,075           
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (292)                   (471)                -                     

Total equity 148,608               148,254           139,191           

Total liabilities and equity 348,200               338,414           310,731           

Regulatory balances 11 2,738                   721                  9,017               

Total liabilities, equity and regulatory balances 350,938$             339,135$         319,748$         

Commitments and contingencies (Note 20), Subsequent event (Note 24)

On behalf of the Board:

____________________________                                                         ____________________________

Director Director

(in thousands of dollars)

London Hydro Inc.
Statements of Financial Position
December 31, 2015, with comparative amounts at December 31, 2014 and January 1, 2014

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Note 2015 2014

Revenues
Sale of energy 387,820$           352,208$          
Distribution revenue 64,042              63,662              
Other 17 9,920                13,373              

461,782             429,243             

Operating expenses 
Cost of power purchased 379,937            363,384            
Operating expenses 18 39,206              37,146              
Depreciation and amortization 17,755              17,569              

436,898             418,099             

Income from operating activities 24,884               11,144               

Finance (income) / expense
Finance income 19 (101)                  (69)                    
Finance expenses 19 5,898                7,303                

5,797                7,234                

Income before income taxes 19,087              3,910                

Income tax expense 10 3,160                4,070                

Net income / (loss) for the year 15,927               (160)                   

Net movement in regulatory balances, net of tax 11 (5,752)                12,694               

Net income for year and net movement in regulatory balances 10,175               12,534               

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Remeasurements of post-employment benefits 179                   (471)                  
Tax on remeasurements 10 (47)                    125                   
Net movement in regulatory balances, net of tax 11 47                     (125)                  

Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 179                    (471)                   

Total comprehensive income for the year 10,354$             12,063$             

London Hydro Inc.
Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative amounts for 2014
(in thousands of dollars)
(unaudited)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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London Hydro Inc.
Statements of Changes in Equity
Year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative amounts for 2014
(in thousands of dollars)
(unaudited)

Note
Share

Capital
Retained
Earnings

Accumulated 
other

comprehensive
income / (loss) Total

Balance at January 1, 2014 96,116$            43,075$            -$                    139,191$          

Net income and net movement in regulatory balances -                     12,534               -                      12,534               

Other comprehensive income (loss) -                     -                     (471)                    (471)                   

Dividends 16   -                     (3,000)                -                      (3,000)                

Balance at December 31, 2014 96,116$             52,609$             (471)$                  148,254$           

Balance at January 1, 2015 96,116$            52,609$            (471)$                  148,254$          

Net income and net movement in regulatory balances -                     10,175               -                      10,175               

Other comprehensive income -                     -                     179                      179                    

Dividends 16   -                     (10,000)              -                      (10,000)              

Balance at December 31, 2015 96,116$             52,784$             (292)$                  148,608$           

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Note 2015 2014

Operating activities
Net income and net movement in regulatory balances 10,175$             12,534$            
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization 8,9 17,755               17,569               
Amortization of deferred revenue 17       (79)                    (21)                    
Post-employment benefits 15       275                    289                    
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 17       (162)                  (172)                  
Net finance expenses 19       5,797                 7,234                 
Income tax expense 10       3,160                 4,070                 

36,921               41,503               

Change in non-cash working capital:
Accounts receivable 1,937                 (138)                  
Materials and supplies (94)                    76                      
Prepaid expenses (257)                  (113)                  
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 322                    593                    
Due to / from shareholder 485                    667                    
Customer deposits 348                    29                      

2,741                 1,114                 

Other:
Regulatory balances 11       5,752                 (12,694)              
Income tax paid (4,639)               (1,900)               
Income tax received 177                    291                    
Interest paid (2,741)               (4,724)               
Interest received 101                    69                      

(1,350)               (18,958)              

Net cash from operating activities 38,312               23,659               

Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 8       (28,099)             (23,108)            
Purchase of intangible assets 9       (6,655)              (4,153)             
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant, equipment and intangible assets 162                   195                  
Contributions received from customers 3,805                2,931               

Net cash from investing activities (30,787)              (24,135)              

Financing activities
Dividends paid 16     (10,000)             (3,000)             
Proceeds from long-term debt 14     5,000                85,000             
Repayment of long-term debt 14     (2,304)              (2,304)             
Repayment of promissory note due to related party 21     -                   (70,000)            

Net cash from financing activities (7,304)               9,696                 

Change in cash 221                   9,220               

Cash (bank indebtedness), beginning of year 6,208                (3,012)             

Cash, end of year 6,429$               6,208$               

London Hydro Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative amounts for 2014
(in thousands of dollars)
(unaudited)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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London Hydro Inc. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
(in thousands of dollars) 

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 
 

6 

 

 

1. Reporting entity 

London Hydro Inc. (“the Company”) is a rate regulated, municipally-owned hydro distribution company 

located in the City of London.  The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary company of the Corporation of 

the City of London and was incorporated on April 26, 2000 under the laws of the Province of Ontario, 

Canada. 

The Company delivers electricity and related energy services to inhabitants of the City of London.  The 

address of the Company’s registered office is 111 Horton Street, London, Ontario, Canada. 

 

2. Basis of presentation 

a) Statement of compliance 

The Company's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 

Reporting Standards ("IFRS"). 

b) Adoption of IFRS 

These are the Company’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS and IFRS 1 First-time 

Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards has been applied. An explanation of how the 

transition to IFRS has affected the reported financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the 

Company is provided in note 25. 

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on April 19, 2016. 

c) Basis of measurement 

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, unless otherwise stated. 

d) Functional and presentation currency 

These financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, which is the Company's functional currency.   

e) Use of estimates and judgments 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgments, 

estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of 

assets, liabilities, income and expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Actual results 

may differ from those estimates. 
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London Hydro Inc. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
(in thousands of dollars) 

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 
 

7 

 

 

2. Basis of presentation (continued) 

e) Use of estimates and judgments (continued) 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 

estimates are recognized in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any future years affected. 

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in 

material adjustment is included in the following notes: 

(i) 3(b) – measurement of unbilled revenue 

(ii) 3(d), 3(e), 8, 9 – estimation of useful lives of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 

(iii) 11 – recognition and measurement of regulatory balances 

(iv) 15 – measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions 

(v) 20 – recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies 

f) Rate regulation 

The Company is regulated by the Ontario Energy Board (“OEB”), under the authority granted by the Ontario 

Energy Board Act, 1998. Among other things, the OEB has the power and responsibility to approve or set 

rates for the transmission and distribution of electricity, providing continued rate protection for electricity 

consumers in Ontario, and ensuring that transmission and distribution companies fulfill obligations to 

connect and service customers. The OEB may also prescribe license requirements and conditions of service 

to local distribution companies (“LDCs”), such as the Company, which may include, among other things, 

record keeping, regulatory accounting principles, separation of accounts for distinct businesses, and filing 

and process requirements for rate setting purposes. 

The Company is required to bill customers for the debt retirement charge set by the province. The Company 

may file to recover uncollected debt retirement charges from Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation 

(“OEFC”). 

Rate setting 

Distribution revenue 

For the distribution revenue, the Company files a “Cost of Service” (“COS”) rate application with the OEB 

every four years where rates are determined through a review of the forecasted annual amount of operating 

and capital expenditures, debt and shareholder’s equity required to support the Company’s business. The 

Company estimates electricity usage and the costs to service each customer class to determine the 

appropriate rates to be charged to each customer class. The COS application is reviewed by the OEB and 

interveners and rates are approved based upon this review, including any revisions resulting from that 

review. 
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London Hydro Inc. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
(in thousands of dollars) 

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 
 

8 

 

 

 

2. Basis of presentation (continued) 
 

f) Rate Regulation (continued) 

Rate setting - Distribution revenue (continued) 

In the intervening years an Incentive Rate Mechanism (“IRM”) application is filed. An IRM application results 

in a formulaic adjustment to distribution rates that were set under the last COS application. The previous 

year’s rates are adjusted for the annual change in the Gross Domestic Product Implicit Price Inflator for Final 

Domestic Demand (“GDP IPI-FDD”) net of a productivity factor and a “stretch factor” determined by the 

relative efficiency of an electricity distributor. 

The Company last filed a COS application in September 2012 for rates effective May 1, 2013 to April 30, 

2017. The GDP IPI-FDD for 2015 is 1.6%, the OEB applied productivity factor is 0.0% and the OEB 

determined stretch factor is (0.15)%, resulting in a net adjustment of 1.45% to the previous year’s rates. 

As a licensed distributor, the Company is responsible for billing customers for electricity generated by third 

parties and the related costs of providing electricity service, such as transmission services and other 

services provided by third parties. The Company is required, pursuant to regulation, to remit such amounts 

to these third parties, irrespective of whether the Company ultimately collects these amounts from 

customers. 

 

Electricity rates 

The OEB sets electricity prices for residential and small commercial consumers twice each year based on 

an estimate of how much it will cost to supply the province with electricity for the next year. All remaining 

consumers, other than consumers with retail contracts who pay a contracted rate plus a global adjustment 

rate adder, pay the market price for electricity. The Company is billed for the cost of the electricity that its 

customers use and passes this cost on to the customer at cost without a mark-up. 
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London Hydro Inc. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
(in thousands of dollars) 

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 
 

9 

 

 

3. Significant accounting policies 

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently in all years presented in these 

financial statements and in preparing the opening IFRS statement of financial position at January 1, 2014, 

for the purpose of the transition to IFRS. 

a) Financial instruments 

Non-derivative 

All financial assets are classified as loans and receivables and all financial liabilities are classified as other 

liabilities. These financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly attributable 

transaction costs.  Subsequently, they are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method 

less any impairment for the financial assets as described in note 3(f). 

Derivative 

The Company holds derivative financial instruments to manage its interest rate risk exposures. Derivatives 

are initially recognized at fair value; any directly attributable transaction costs are recognized in profit and 

loss as incurred as finance expenses. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair 

value, and changes therein are recognized in profit or loss. 

Hedge accounting has not been used in the preparation of these financial statements. 

b) Revenue recognition 

Sale and distribution of electricity 

Revenue from the sale and distribution of electricity is recognized as the electricity is delivered to customers 

on the basis of cyclical meter readings and estimated customer usage since the last meter reading date to 

the end of the period. Revenue includes the cost of electricity supplied, distribution, and any other regulatory 

charges. The related cost of power is recorded on the basis of power used. 

For customer billings related to electricity generated by third parties and the related costs of providing 

electricity service, such as transmission services and other services provided by third parties, the Company 

has determined that it is acting as a principal for these electricity charges and, therefore, has presented 

electricity revenue on a gross basis. 

Customer billings for debt retirement charges are recorded on a net basis as the Company is acting as an 

agent for this billing stream. 
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London Hydro Inc. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
(in thousands of dollars) 

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 
 

10 

 

 

3. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

b) Revenue recognition (continued) 

Other revenue 

Revenue earned from the provision of services is recognized as the service is rendered. 

Certain customers and developers are required to contribute towards the capital cost of construction of 

distribution assets in order to provide ongoing service. Cash contributions are recorded as deferred revenue. 

Where an asset other than cash is received as a capital contribution, the asset is initially recognized at its 

fair value, with a corresponding amount recognized as deferred revenue. The deferred revenue, which 

represents the Company's obligation to continue to provide the customers access to the supply of electricity, 

is amortized to income on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the related asset. 

Government grants and the related performance incentive payments under Conservation Demand 

Management (“CDM”) programs are recognized as revenue in the year when there is reasonable assurance 

that the program conditions have been satisfied and the payment will be received. 

c) Materials and supplies 

Materials and supplies, the majority of which are consumed by the Company in the provision of its services, 

are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value, with cost being determined on a weighted average 

basis, and includes expenditures incurred in acquiring the materials and supplies and other costs incurred in 

bringing them to their existing location and condition. 

d) Property, plant and equipment 

Items of property, plant and equipment (“PP&E”) used in rate-regulated activities and acquired prior to 

January 1, 2014 are measured at deemed cost established on the transition date (see note 25 b) ii), less 

accumulated depreciation. All other items of PP&E are measured at cost, or, where the item is contributed 

by customers, its fair value, less accumulated depreciation. 

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-

constructed assets includes contracted services, materials and transportation costs, direct labour, overhead 

costs, borrowing costs and any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition 

for its intended use. 

Borrowing costs on qualifying assets are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset based upon the lower of 

OEB prescribed rates and the weighted average cost of debt incurred on the Company’s borrowings. 

Qualifying assets are considered to be those that take in excess of 12 months to construct.  
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London Hydro Inc. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
(in thousands of dollars) 

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 
 

11 

 

 

3. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

d) Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

When parts of an item of PP&E have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major 

components) of PP&E. 

When items of PP&E are retired or otherwise disposed of, a gain or loss on disposal is determined by 

comparing the proceeds from disposal, if any, with the carrying amount of the item and is included in profit or 

loss. 

Major spare parts and standby equipment are recognized as items of PP&E. 

The cost of replacing a part of an item of PP&E is recognized in the net book value of the item if it is 

probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company and its cost 

can be measured reliably. In this event, the replaced part of PP&E is written off, and the related gain or loss 

is included in profit or loss. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of PP&E are recognized in profit or loss as 

incurred. 

The need to estimate the decommissioning costs at the end of the useful lives of certain assets is reviewed 

periodically. The Company has concluded it does not have any legal or constructive obligation to remove 

PP&E. 

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of PP&E using the straight-line method over their 

estimated useful lives, and is generally recognized in profit or loss. Depreciation methods, useful lives, and 

residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively if appropriate. Land is not 

depreciated. Construction-in-progress assets are not depreciated until the project is complete and the asset 

is available for use. 

The estimated useful lives are as follows: 

 
 Years 

 
Distribution system and equipment 25 - 60 

Building structures and components 12 - 75 

Substation equipment 15 - 45 

Metering devices 15 - 30 

System supervisory equipment 8 - 35 

Automotive equipment 8 - 12 

Equipment, tools and furniture 5 - 8 

Computer hardware 3 

Renewable generation assets 20 
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London Hydro Inc. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
(in thousands of dollars) 

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 
 

12 

 

3. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

e) Intangible assets 

Intangible assets used in rate-regulated activities and acquired prior to January 1, 2014 are measured at 

deemed cost established on the transition date (see note 25 b) ii), less accumulated amortization. All other 

intangible assets are measured at cost. 

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of intangible 

assets includes contracted services, materials and transportation costs, direct labour, overhead costs, 

borrowing costs and any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its 

intended use. 

Borrowing costs on qualifying assets are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset based upon the lower of 

OEB prescribed rates and the weighted average cost of debt incurred on the Company’s borrowings. 

Qualifying assets are considered to be those that take in excess of 12 months to complete. 

Computer software that is acquired or developed by the Company after January 1, 2014, including software 

that is not integral to the functionality of equipment purchased which has finite useful lives, is measured at 

cost less accumulated amortization. 

Payments to obtain rights to access land ("land rights") are classified as intangible assets. These include 

payments made for easements, right of access and right of use over land for which the Company does not 

hold title. Land rights are measured at cost less accumulated amortization. 

With the market opening in 2002, wholesale market participants, including the Company, were charged with 

the responsibility of upgrading all their wholesale meter points to “IESO” compliant standards. Since the 

Company does not hold title to these assets, these expenditures have been classified as intangible assets. 

Wholesale metering upgrades are measured at cost less accumulated amortization. 

Intangible assets in progress consist of application software under development and capital contributions 

paid towards refurbishment of a transformer station that is not owned by the Company, which is scheduled 

to be energized during the year ending December 31, 2018. 

Amortization is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of 

intangible assets, from the date that they are available for use.  Amortization methods and useful lives 

of all intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively if appropriate.  The 

estimated useful lives are: 

 Years 

 
Computer software 3 - 5 

Land rights 25 

Wholesale metering 30 
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London Hydro Inc. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
(in thousands of dollars) 

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 
 

13 

 

 

3. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

f) Impairment 

Financial assets measured at amortized cost 

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence 

that it is impaired. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or 

more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows from that asset. 

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and the present 

value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. Interest on the 

impaired assets continues to be recognized through the unwinding of the discount. Losses are recognized in 

profit or loss. An impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss if the reversal can be related objectively 

to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized. 

Non-financial assets 

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets, other than materials and supplies and 

deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of 

impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. 

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that 

generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets 

or groups of assets (the "cash-generating unit" or “CGU”). The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is 

the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated 

future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 

market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated 

recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. 

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the 

carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss 

had been recognized. 

g) Customer and other deposits 

Customer and other deposits include cash deposits from electricity distribution customers and retailers to 

guarantee the payment of energy bills. Interest is paid on customer deposits at the rate of prime less 2% per 

annum. 

Deposits from electricity distribution customers are refundable to customers who demonstrate an acceptable 

level of credit risk as determined by the Company in accordance with policies set out by the OEB, or upon 

termination of their electricity distribution service.  
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London Hydro Inc. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
(in thousands of dollars) 

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 
 

14 

 

 

3. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

h) Provisions 

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive 

obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be 

required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at 

a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to 

the liability. 

 

i) Regulatory balances 

Regulatory deferral account debit balances represent costs incurred in excess of amounts billed to the 

customer at OEB approved rates. Regulatory deferral account credit balances represent amounts billed to 

the customer at OEB approved rates in excess of costs incurred by the Company. 

Regulatory deferral account debit balances are recognized if it is probable that future billings in an amount at 

least equal to the deferred cost will result from inclusion of that cost in allowable costs for rate-making 

purposes. The offsetting amount is recognized in net movement in regulatory balances in profit or loss or 

Other Comprehensive Income (“OCI”). When the customer is billed at rates approved by the OEB for the 

recovery of the deferred costs, the customer billings are recognized in revenue. The regulatory debit balance 

is reduced by the amount of these customer billings with the offset to net movement in regulatory balances 

in profit or loss or OCI. 

The probability of recovery of the regulatory deferral account debit balances is assessed annually based 

upon the likelihood that the OEB will approve the change in rates to recover the balance. The assessment of 

likelihood of recovery is based upon previous decisions made by the OEB for similar circumstances, policies 

or guidelines issued by the OEB, etc. Any resulting impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss in the year 

incurred. 

When the Company is required to refund amounts to ratepayers in the future, the Company recognizes a 

regulatory deferral account credit balance. The offsetting amount is recognized in net movement in 

regulatory balances in profit or loss or OCI. The amounts returned to the customers are recognized as a 

reduction of revenue. The credit balance is reduced by the amount of these customer repayments with the 

offset to net movement in regulatory balances in profit or loss or OCI. 
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London Hydro Inc. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
(in thousands of dollars) 

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 
 

15 

 

 

3. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

j) Post-employment benefits 

Pension plan 

The Company provides a pension plan for all its full-time employees through Ontario Municipal Employees 

Retirement System (“OMERS”). OMERS is a multi-employer pension plan which operates as the Ontario 

Municipal Employees Retirement Fund (“the Fund”), and provides pensions for employees of Ontario 

municipalities, local boards and public utilities. The Fund is a contributory defined benefit pension plan, 

which is financed by equal contributions from participating employers and employees, and by the investment 

earnings of the Fund. To the extent that the Fund finds itself in an under-funded position, additional 

contribution rates may be assessed to participating employers and members. 

OMERS is a defined benefit plan. However, as OMERS does not segregate its pension asset and liability 

information by individual employers, there is insufficient information available to enable the Company to 

directly account for the plan. Consequently, the plan has been accounted for as a defined contribution plan. 

The Company is not responsible for any other contractual obligations other than the contributions. 

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognized as an employee benefit 

expense in profit or loss when they are due. 

Post-employment benefits, other than pension 

The Company provides some of its retired employees with life insurance and medical benefits beyond those 

provided by government sponsored plans. 

The obligations for these post-employment benefit plans are actuarially determined by applying the 

projected unit credit method and reflect management’s best estimate of certain underlying assumptions. 

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit obligations, including actuarial gains and losses and the return 

on plan assets (excluding interest), are recognized immediately in OCI. When the benefits of a plan are 

improved, the portion of the increased benefit relating to past service by employees is recognized 

immediately in profit or loss. 
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London Hydro Inc. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
(in thousands of dollars) 

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

k) Finance income and finance expenses 

Finance income is recognized as it accrues in profit or loss. Finance income comprises interest earned on 

cash and cash equivalents. 

Finance expenses comprise interest expense on borrowings and customer deposits. Finance expenses are 

recognized in profit or loss unless they are capitalized as part of the cost of qualifying assets. 

 

l) Income taxes 

The income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in profit or 

loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case, it is recognized 

in equity. 

The Company is currently exempt from taxes under the Income Tax Act (Canada) and the Ontario 

Corporations Tax Act (collectively the “Tax Acts”). Under the Electricity Act, 1998, the Company makes 

payments in lieu of corporate taxes to the Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation (“OEFC”). These 

payments are calculated in accordance with the rules for computing taxable income and taxable capital and 

other relevant amounts contained in the Tax Acts as modified by the Electricity Act, 1998, and related 

regulations. Prior to October 1, 2001, the Company was not subject to income or capital taxes. Payments in 

lieu of taxes (“PILs”) are referred to as income taxes. 

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, 

using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in 

respect of previous years. 

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities 

and their carrying amounts for accounting purposes. Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax 

losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future 

taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates 

that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or 

substantively enacted, at the reporting date. 
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London Hydro Inc. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
(in thousands of dollars) 

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 
 

17 

 

4. Standards issued but not yet adopted 

There are new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations which have not been applied in 

preparing these financial statements. These standards or amendments relate to the measurement and 

disclosure of financial assets and liabilities. 

Annual Improvements to IFRS (2012-2014) cycle 

On September 25, 2014 the IASB issued narrow-scope amendments to a total of four standards as part of 

its annual improvements process. The amendments will apply for annual periods beginning on or after 

January 1, 2016. Earlier application is permitted, in which case, the related consequential amendments to 

other IFRSs would also apply. Each of the amendments has its own specific transition requirements. 

Amendments were made to clarify the following in their respective standards: 

 Changes in method for disposal under IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued 
Operations; 

 ‘Continuing involvement’ for servicing contracts and offsetting disclosures in condensed interim 
financial statements under IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures; 

 Discount rate in a regional market sharing the same currency under IAS 19 Employee Benefits; 

 Disclosure of information ‘elsewhere in the interim financial report’ under IAS 34 Interim Financial 
Reporting; 

The Company intends to adopt these amendments in its financial statements for the annual period beginning 

on January 1, 2016. The extent of the impact of adoption of the standard has not yet been determined. 

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 

On July 24, 2014 the IASB issued the complete IFRS 9 (IFRS 9 (2014)). The mandatory effective date of 

IFRS 9 is for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018 and must be applied retrospectively with 

some exemptions. Early adoption is permitted. The restatement of prior periods is not required and is only 

permitted if information is available without the use of hindsight. 

IFRS 9 (2014) introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets. 

Under IFRS 9 (2014), financial assets are classified and measured based on the business model in which 

they are held and the characteristics of their contractual cash flows. 

The standard introduces additional changes relating to financial liabilities. It also amends the impairment 

model by introducing a new ‘expected credit loss’ model for calculating impairment. 

IFRS 9 (2014) also includes a new general hedge accounting standard which aligns hedge accounting more 

closely with risk management. This new standard does not fundamentally change the types of hedging 

relationships or the requirement to measure and recognize ineffectiveness, however it will provide more 

hedging strategies that are used for risk management to qualify for hedge accounting and introduce more 

judgment to assess the effectiveness of a hedging relationship. 

Special transitional requirements have been set for the application of the new general hedging model. 

The Company intends to adopt IFRS 9 (2014) in its financial statements for the annual period beginning on 

January 1, 2018. The extent of the impact of adoption of the standard has not yet been determined. 
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4. Standards issued not yet adopted (continued) 

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

On May 28, 2014 the IASB issued IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The new standard is 

effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. Earlier application is permitted. IFRS 15 

will replace IAS 11 Construction Contracts, IAS 18 Revenue, IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes, 

IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate, IFRIC 18 Transfer of Assets from Customers, and 

SIC 31 Revenue – Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services. 

The standard contains a single model that applies to contracts with customers and two approaches to 

recognizing revenue: at a point in time or over time. The model features a contract-based five-step analysis 

of transactions to determine whether, how much and when revenue is recognized. New estimates and 

judgmental thresholds have been introduced, which may affect the amount and/or timing of revenue 

recognized. 

The new standard applies to contracts with customers. It does not apply to insurance contracts, financial 

instruments or lease contracts, which fall in the scope of other IFRSs. 

The Company intends to adopt IFRS 15 in its financial statements for the annual period beginning on 

January 1, 2018. The extent of the impact of adoption of the standard has not yet been determined. 

 

IFRS 16 Leases 

On January 13, 2016 the IASB issued IFRS 16 Leases. 

The new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019. Earlier application is 

permitted for entities that apply IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers at or before the date of 

initial adoption of IFRS 16. IFRS 16 will replace IAS 17 Leases. 

This standard introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognize assets and 

liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. A 

lessee is required to recognize a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a 

lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. 

This standard substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements of IAS 17, while requiring 

enhanced disclosures to be provided by lessors. 

Other areas of the lease accounting model have been impacted, including the definition of a lease. 

Transitional provisions have been provided. 

The Company intends to adopt IFRS 16 in its financial statements for the annual period beginning on 

January 1, 2019. The extent of the impact of adoption of the standard has not yet been determined. 
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5. Cash and bank indebtedness 

 

 

6. Accounts receivable 

 

Included in accounts receivable is approximately $7.9 million (2014 - $7.7 million) of customer receivables 

for water consumption that the Company bills and collects on behalf of the Corporation of the City of 

London. As the Company does not assume liability for collection of these amounts, any amount relating to 

water consumption that is determined to be uncollectible is charged to the Corporation of the City of London. 

Also, included in the accounts receivable is $1.8 million (2014 - $1.7 million) of energy, water, and sundry 

receivables due from the Corporation of the City of London. 

 

7. Materials and supplies 

Amounts written down due to obsolescence during the year ended December 31, 2015 was $0.1 million 

(2014 - nil). 

  

December 31, December 31, January 1,

2015 2014 2014

Cash 6,429$                     6,208$                     -$                         

Bank indebtedness -$                         -$                         3,012$                     

December 31, December 31, January 1,

2015 2014 2014

Trade receivables 25,344$                   33,188$                   30,628$                   

Unbilled revenue 42,085                     35,980                     39,731                     

Other 3,066                       3,264                       1,935                       

70,495$                   72,432$                   72,294$                   
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8. Property, plant and equipment 

a) Cost or deemed cost: 

 
 

b) Accumulated depreciation: 

 
 

c) Carrying amounts: 

  
  

Land and 
buildings

Distribution 
substation 
equipment

Other 
distribution 
equipment

Other      
fixed assets

Construction 
in progress Total

Balance at January 1, 2014 12,532$          9,285$              177,376$        15,005$          10,284$           224,482          
Additions 1,123              273                   19,698            2,112              (98)                   23,108            
Disposals / retirements -                  -                    -                  (25)                  -                   (25)                  

Balance at December 31, 2014 13,655$          9,558$              197,074$        17,092$          10,186$           247,565$        

Balance at January 1, 2015 13,655$          9,558$              197,074$        17,092$          10,186$           247,565$        
Additions 673                 167                   23,709            3,436              114                  28,099            
Disposals / retirements (17)                  -                    (793)                (801)                -                   (1,611)             

Balance at December 31, 2015 14,311$          9,725$              219,990$        19,727$          10,300$           274,053$        

Land and 
buildings

Distribution 
substation 
equipment

Other 
distribution 
equipment

Other      
fixed assets

Construction 
in progress Total

Balance at January 1, 2014 -$                -$                  -$                -$                -$                     -$                
Depreciation 904                 273                   8,551              2,552              -                       12,280            
Disposals / retirements -                      -                        -                      (2)                    -                       (2)                    

Balance at December 31, 2014 904$               273$                 8,551$            2,550$            -$                     12,278$          

Balance at January 1, 2015 904$               273$                 8,551$            2,550$            -$                     12,278$          
Depreciation 930                 280                   8,803              2,634              -                       12,647            
Disposals / retirements (17)                  -                        (793)                (801)                -                       (1,611)             

Balance at December 31, 2015 1,817$            553$                 16,561$          4,383$            -$                     23,314$          

Balance at
Land and 
buildings

Distribution 
substation 
equipment

Other 
distribution 
equipment

Other      
fixed assets

Construction 
in progress Total

January 1, 2014 12,532$          9,285$              177,376$        15,005$          10,284$           224,482$        

December 31, 2014 12,751$          9,285$              188,523$        14,542$          10,186$           235,287$        

December 31, 2015 12,494$          9,172$              203,429$        15,344$          10,300$           250,739$        
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9. Intangible assets 

a) Cost or deemed cost: 

 
 

b) Accumulated amortization: 

 
 

c) Carrying amounts: 

 
 

 

During the year, borrowing costs of nil (2014 - nil) were capitalized as part of the cost of intangible assets. A 

capitalization rate of 2.55% (2014 - 0%) was used to determine the amount of borrowing costs to be capitalized. 

  

Land rights  
Wholesale 
metering

Computer 
software

Intangible work in 
progress Total

Balance at January 1, 2014 185$                      1,085$                   14,217$                 750$                      16,237$               
Additions 17                          -                             4,428                     (292)                       4,153                   

Balance at December 31, 2014 202$                      1,085$                   18,645$                 458$                      20,390$               

Balance at January 1, 2015 202$                      1,085$                   18,645$                 458$                      20,390$               
Additions 31                          -                             5,071                     1,553                     6,655                   
Disposals / retirements -                             -                             (2,004)                    -                             (2,004)                  

Balance at December 31, 2015 233$                      1,085$                   21,712$                 2,011$                   25,041$               

Land rights  
Wholesale 
metering

Computer 
software

Intangible work in 
progress Total

Balance at January 1, 2014 -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                           -$                     
Amortization 17                          43                          5,229                     -                             5,289                   
Disposals / retirements -                             -                             -                             -                           

Balance at December 31, 2014 17$                        43$                        5,229$                   -$                           5,289$                 

Balance at January 1, 2015 17$                        43$                        5,229$                   -$                           5,289$                 
Amortization 18                          43                          5,047                     -                             5,108                   
Disposals / retirements -                             -                             (2,004)                    -                             (2,004)                  

Balance at December 31, 2015 35$                        86$                        8,272$                   -$                           8,393$                 

Balance at Land rights  
Wholesale 
metering

Computer 
software

Intangible Work in 
Progress Total

January 1, 2014 185$                      1,085$                   14,217$                 750$                      16,237$               

December 31, 2014 185$                      1,042$                   13,416$                 458$                      15,101$               

December 31, 2015 198$                      999$                      13,440$                 2,011$                   16,648$               
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10. Income tax expense 

 
Income tax expense is comprised of: 

 
 
 
Reconciliation of effective tax rate: 

 
 
 
Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax balances: 

 
  

2015 2014

Current income tax
Current year 2,789$                   3,262$                   
Adjustment for prior years (140)                       (175)                       

2,649                     3,087                     
Deferred tax

Change in recognized deductible temporary differences:
  Loss on interest rate swap (837)                       (683)                       
  Property, plant, equipment and intangible assets 1,479                     1,756                     
  Post-employment benefits (73)                         (76)                         
  Deferred revenue (58)                         (14)                         

511                        983                        

Total current and deferred income tax in profit or loss, before
     before movement of regulatory balance 3,160                     4,070                     

Other comprehensive income
Post-employment benefits 47                          (125)                       

Total current and deferred income tax, before movement of regulatory balances 3,207                     3,945                     

Net movement in regulatory balances (1,396)                    (1,541)                    

Income tax expense recognized in Statement of Comprehensive Income 1,811$                   2,404$                   

2015 2014

Income before taxes 12,165$                 14,469                   
Canada and Ontario statutory income tax rates 26.5% 26.5%

Expected tax provision on income at statutory rates 3,224                     3,834                     

Increase (decrease) in income taxes resulting from:
Net movement in regulatory balances (1,396)                    (1,541)                    

Other items (17)                         111                        

1,811$                   2,404$                   

December 31, December 31, January 1,
2015 2014 2014

Property, plant, equipment and intangible assets (4,573)$           (3,094)$                  (1,338)$                  
Post-employment benefits 3,668               3,643                     3,442                     
Deferred revenue 72                    14                          -                             

Future income taxes to be realized by customers (833)                563                        2,104                     

Loss on interest rate swap 1,573               736                        53                          

740$                1,299$                   2,157$                   
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11. Regulatory balances 

Reconciliation of the carrying amount for each class of regulatory balances: 

 

 
 

 
 

 
  

Remaining 
recovery/

January 1, Recovery/ December 31, reversal 

Regulatory deferral account debit balances 2015 Additions reversal 2015 years

Group 1 deferred accounts 5,295$             (5,295)$            -$                 -$                 
IFRS-CGAAP transitional PP&E recoveries 275       -        (118)      157       1.3                   
Regulatory settlement account 47         -        (47)        -        -                   
Other regulatory accounts 967       939       -        1,906    
Income tax -        833       -        833       

6,584$             (3,523)$            (165)$               2,896$             

January 1, Recovery/ December 31, Remaining 
Regulatory deferral account debit balances 2014 Additions reversal 2014 years

        
Group 1 deferred accounts -$                 5,295$             -$                 5,295$             
IFRS-CGAAP transitional PP&E recoveries 393       -        (118)      275       2.3                   
Regulatory settlement account -        105       (58)        47         0.3                   
Other regulatory accounts 1,918    (951)      -        967       

2,311$             4,449$             (176)$               6,584$             

January 1, Recovery/ December 31, Reversal
Regulatory deferral account credit balances 2015 Additions reversal 2015 years

Group 1 deferred accounts -$                 (2,577)$            -$                 (2,577)$            
Regulatory settlement account -        -        -        -        -                   
Other regulatory accounts (158)      (3)          -        (161)      
Income tax (563)      563       -        -        

(721)$               (2,017)$            -$                 (2,738)$            

January 1, Recovery/ December 31, Remaining 
Regulatory deferral account credit balances 2014 Additions reversal 2014 years

Group 1 deferred accounts (2,929)$            2,929$             -$                 -$                 
Regulatory settlement account (3,830)   (17)        3,847    -        -                   
Other regulatory accounts (154)      (4)          -        (158)      
Income tax (2,104)   1,541    -        (563)      

(9,017)$            4,449$             3,847$             (721)$               
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11. Regulatory balances (continued) 

The regulatory balances are recovered or settled through fixed and/or volumetric rate riders approved by the 

OEB. The volumetric rate riders are determined using estimates of future consumption of electricity by its 

customers. Future consumption is impacted by various factors including the economy and weather. The 

Company has received approval from the OEB to establish its regulatory balances. Regulatory balances 

attract interest at OEB prescribed rates, which are based on Bankers' Acceptances three-month rate plus a 

spread of 25 basis points. In the first quarter of 2015 the rate was 1.47% and for the balance of the year the 

rate was set at 1.10%. 

a) Group 1 deferred accounts 

The Group 1 deferred accounts consist of purchased power cost variances. As a regulated distributor of 

electricity, the Company is obligated to provide energy supply to all consumers at regulated or spot rates 

unless they elect to purchase their energy from an energy retailer. The regulatory framework requires that all 

energy commodity and non-commodity costs be billed at regulated rates to consumers who are on the 

Regulated Price Plan. 

Variances between purchase costs and amounts billed for electricity are required to be captured in the Retail 

Settlement Variance Accounts (“RSVA”) for disposition through future rate riders. The variance accounts 

have been further defined by the regulator into commodity and non-commodity accounts. Those accounts 

defined as commodity accounts are eligible for regulatory review on a quarterly basis. All other accounts are 

defined as non-commodity and are currently eligible for review on an annual basis. 

These variances were credit balances on January 1, 2014. Due to price fluctuations the accumulated 

variances became debit balances during 2014, then changed back to credit balances in 2015. The 2016 IRM 

rate application was submitted to the OEB on October 19, 2015, which includes a claim to recover the debit 

balances at December 31, 2014 via rate riders. The OEB issued its decision with respect to this Application 

which authorizes the recovery of these balances over a one-year period commencing May 1, 2016. 

 

b) IFRS-CGAAP transitional PP&E recoveries 

Compliant with OEB directives of the Accounting Procedures Handbook, the Company must use this 

account to record differences arising as a result of accounting policy changes caused by the transition from 

previous Canadian GAAP to Modified International Financial Reporting Standards (“MIFRS”). 

During 2012, the Company filed its 2013 Cost of Service Rate Application (“Application”) which included a 

request for OEB approval for the recovery of certain authorized regulatory deferral accounts including these 

IFRS-CGAAP transitional PP&E differences. The OEB issued its decision with respect to this Application 

which authorizes amortization of the balance into rate base and revenue requirement amounts. Therefore, 

the approved distribution rates during the four year period commencing May 1, 2013, include the recovery of 

these IFRS-CGAAP Transitional PP&E account differences. 
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11. Regulatory balances (continued) 

c) Regulatory settlement account 

The regulatory settlement account with debit balance consists of the Lost Revenue Adjustment Mechanism 

Variance (“LRAMVA”) approved for recovery by the OEB. During 2013, the Company filed its Incentive 

Regulation Mechanism (“IRM”) rate application for the 2014 rate year. The OEB issued its decision with 

respect to this application which included a request for OEB approval for the recovery of LRAMVA for 

amounts as at December 31, 2012. The regulatory decision approved the recovery of these balances over a 

one-year period commencing May 1, 2014. 

The regulatory settlement account with credit balance consists of purchased power cost variances captured 

in RSVAs approved for disposition by the OEB. Variances accumulated prior to January 1, 2011 are the 

amounts that were approved in 2012 for disposition effective May 1, 2012 through to April 30, 2014. During 

2012, the Company filed its 2013 Cost of Service Rate Application which included a request for OEB 

approval for the disposition of the RSVA Power account and the RSVA Power-Global Adjustment sub 

accounts. These amounts accumulated between January 1, 2011 and December 31, 2012. The non-

commodity RSVA amounts accumulated between January 1, 2011 and December 31, 2011. The OEB 

issued its decision with respect to this Application which authorizes the disposition of these balances over a 

one-year period commencing May 1, 2013. 

d) Other regulatory accounts 

Other regulatory debit balances include various deferred costs in connection with Green Energy programs, 

Lost Revenue Adjustment Mechanism Variances, Smart Metering Entity Charge Variances, IFRS transition 

expenditures, Retail Cost Variances and the residual balance of Stranded Meter costs previously approved 

for recovery by the OEB. Green Energy programs authorized by the OEB include renewable enabling 

improvements and investments towards smart grid. Costs incurred with respect to these various activities 

have been captured under deferral accounts for future rate recovery. 

Other regulatory credit balances consist of amounts resulting from the implementation of the Harmonized 

Sales Tax. 

e) Income tax 

As a result, the Company has recognized a regulatory deferral account for the amount of deferred taxes that 

will ultimately be recovered from/paid back to its customers. This balance will fluctuate as the Company’s 

deferred tax balance fluctuates. 
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12. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 

 
 
 
 

13. Deferred revenue 

 
 

Included in deposits held is $3.8 million (2014 - $3.9 million) received from the Corporation of the City of 

London as contributions for the construction of capital assets. 

 
  

December 31, December 31, January 1,

2015 2014 2014

Due to Independent Electricity System Operator 39,888$                   41,193$                   37,447$                   

Debt retirement charge payable to OEFC 1,603                       1,845                       1,771                       

Harmonized sales tax 372                          1,095                       670                          

Payroll and benefits payable 2,264                       2,006                       1,747                       

Other 9,424                       7,090                       11,001                     

53,551$                   53,229$                   52,636$                   

December 31, December 31, January 1,

2015 2014 2014

Capital contributions for completed projects 5,560$                     1,849$                     -$                         

Deposits held 8,582                       8,567                       7,506                       

14,142                     10,416                     7,506                       
Less:  Current portion 1,192                       1,482                       1,277                       

12,950$                   8,934$                     6,229$                     
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14. Long-term debt 

 

 
 

The Company has an interest rate swap agreement with the Royal Bank of Canada for an unsecured loan in 

the amount of $85 million. Interest only payments are due quarterly and commenced December 2014. The 

principal is due at maturity. The agreement is a fixed rate swap and matures June 2022, which effectively 

converts variable interest rates on unsecured Bankers’ Acceptances to an effective interest rate of 2.46%, 

plus a stamping fee of 0.19%, for an all-in rate of 2.65%. 

The Company has an interest rate swap agreement with the Royal Bank of Canada for an unsecured loan in 

the original amount of $20.5 million to fund its Smart Meter capital expenditure program. Principal 

repayments on this loan commenced October 2010 and are being amortized over a 9 year period ending 

August 2019. The agreement is a fixed rate swap and matures August 2019 which effectively converts 

variable interest rates on unsecured Bankers’ Acceptances to an effective interest rate of 2.43%, plus a 

stamping fee of 0.9%, for an all-in rate of 3.33%. 

The swap agreements entered into with Royal Bank of Canada do not meet the standard to apply hedge 

accounting. Accordingly, the interest rate swap contracts are recorded at their fair value at the end of the 

period with the unrealized gain or loss recorded in the Statements of Comprehensive Income as finance 

expenses. The unrealized loss for the year ended December 31, 2015 was $3.2 million (2014 - $2.6 million). 

At December 31, 2015, the Company would be required to pay $5.9 million (2014 - $2.8 million) if it wished 

to cancel the swap agreements. 

  

December 31, December 31, January 1,

2015 2014 2014

Unsecured, committed extendible revolving loan bearing interest at prime,

minus 0.5%, interest only payments due March 2016 5,000$                -$                        -$                        

Unsecured, non-revolving term instalment loan bearing interest at the
7.58 year Bankers' Acceptance rate of 2.46% plus a stamping
fee of 0.19%, interest only payments due June 2022 85,000                85,000                -                          

Unsecured, non-revolving term instalment loan bearing interest at the

7.75 year Bankers' Acceptance rate of 2.43% plus a stamping

fee of 0.9%, payable in monthly instalments of $192

principal plus interest due August 2019 8,434                  10,738                13,042                

98,434                95,738                13,042                

Less:  Current portion 7,304                  2,304                  2,304                  

91,130$              93,434$              10,738$              
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15. Post-employment benefits 

a) OMERS pension plan 

The Company provides a pension plan for its employees through OMERS. The plan is a multi-employer, 

contributory defined pension plan with equal contributions by the employer and its employees. During the 

year ended December 31, 2015, the Company made employer contributions of $2.7 million to OMERS 

(2014 - $2.6 million), of which $0.7 million (2014 - $0.7 million) has been capitalized as part of PP&E and the 

remaining amount of $2.0 million (2014 - $1.9 million) has been recognized in operating expenses in the 

Statement of Comprehensive Income. The Corporation estimates that a contribution of $2.8 million to 

OMERS will be made during the next fiscal year. 

As at December 31, 2015, OMERS had approximately 461,000 members, of whom 320 are employees of 

the Company. The most recently available OMERS annual report is for the year ended December 31, 2015, 

which reported that the plan was 91.5% funded, with an unfunded liability of $7.0 billion. This unfunded 

liability is likely to result in future payments by participating employers and members. 

b) Post-employment benefits other than pension 

The Company pays certain medical and life insurance benefits on behalf of some of its retired employees. 

The Company recognizes these post-employment benefits in the year in which employees’ services were 

rendered. The Company is recovering its post-employment benefits in rates based on the expense and 

remeasurements recognized for post-employment benefit plans. Based on the most recent actuarial 

valuation as at December 31, 2015, the following information has been determined: 

 
Reconciliation of the obligation: 

 

 

December 31, December 31,

2015 2014

Defined benefit obligation, beginning of year 13,749$                   12,989$                   

  Included in profit or loss:

Current service costs 386                          355                          

Interest cost 514                          580                          

Other benefits 42                            (75)                           

942                          860                          

  Actuarial (gains) / losses included in OCI:

Changes in demographic assumptions -                           (749)                         

Change in financial assumptions (192)                         1,233                       

Effect of experience adjustments 13                            (13)                           

(179)                         471                          

Benefits paid (667)                         (571)                         

Defined benefit obligation, end of year 13,845$                   13,749$                   
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15. Post-employment benefits (continued) 
 

b)  Post-employment benefits other than pension (continued) 

 

Actuarial assumptions: 

 

 

A 1% increase in the assumed discount rate would result in the defined benefit obligation decreasing by $2.0 

million. A 1% decrease in the assumed discount rate would result in the defined benefits obligation 

increasing by $1.9 million. 

 

16. Share capital 

 

  
 

Dividends 

The holders of the common shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time. 

On March 31, 2015 the Board of Directors declared a $5.0 million annual dividend and a $5.0 million special 

dividend both payable to the sole shareholder, the Corporation of the City of London, in quarterly 

installments in 2015. 

On March 26, 2014 the Board of Directors approved the payment of a dividend in the amount of $3.0 million 

paid in quarterly instalments in 2014. 

  

December 31, December 31,
2015 2014

Discount (interest) rate 4.0% 3.9%

Salary levels 4.0% 4.0%

Immediate medical costs 6.1% 6.2%

Ultimate medical costs 4.5% 4.5%

Dental cost rate 4.5% 4.5%

Year ultimate rate reached 2028 2028

December 31, December 31, January 1,

2015 2014 2014

Authorized:

An unlimited number of common shares

An unlimited number of non-voting, non-cumulative preference

   shares, redeemable at the paid-up amount

Issued:

1,001 common shares 96,116$               96,116$               96,116$               
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17. Other revenue 

 

 

 

18. Operating expenses 

 

 

 
  

2015 2014

City of London water services 3,996$                     3,904$                     

Late payment charges 1,816                       1,739                       

Collection charges 694                          692                          

Occupancy charges 619                          594                          

Customer billing service fees 586                          592                          

Pole and other rental income 410                          414                          

Other services, recoveries and sundry revenues 580                          805                          

Income tax incentive credits 319                          390                          

Renewable generation revenue 314                          308                          

Sale of scrap 298                          508                          

Gain on disposal of capital assets 162                          172                          

Amortization of deferred revenue 79                            21                            

Ontario Power Authority incentives 47                            3,234                       

9,920$                     13,373$                   

2015 2014

Labour and benefits 24,213$                   23,428$                   
Professional services 5,478                       5,067                       
Office equipment services and maintenance 2,011                       1,071                       
Rental, regulatory and other expenses 1,649                       1,615                       
Facilities maintenance and repair 1,521                       1,677                       
Postage 1,250                       1,208                       
Corporate training and employee expenses 1,124                       1,123                       
Property tax and insurance 1,095                       1,137                       
Materials and supplies 983                          951                          
Fleet operations and maintenance 952                          917                          
Bad debts 650                          700                          
Allocations to capital and billable activities (1,720)                      (1,748)                      

39,206$                   37,146$                   
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19. Finance (income) and expenses 

 

 

20. Commitments and contingencies 

General 

From time to time, the Company is involved in various litigation matters arising in the ordinary course of its 

business. The Company has no reason to believe that the outcome of any of these matters could reasonably 

be expected to have a materially adverse impact on the Company’s financial position, results of operations 

or its ability to carry on any of its business activities. 

 

General Liability Insurance 

The Company is a member of the Municipal Electric Association Reciprocal Insurance Exchange 

(“MEARIE”). MEARIE is a pooling of public liability insurance risks of many of the LDCs in Ontario. All 

members of the pool are subjected to assessment for losses experienced by the pool for the years in which 

they were members, on a pro-rata basis based on the total of their respective service revenues. As at 

December 31, 2015, no assessments have been made. 

  

2015 2014

Finance income

Interest income on bank deposits (101)$                       (69)$                         

Finance expenses

Unrealized loss on interest rate swap 3,158                       2,579                       

Related party promissory note -                           3,850                       

Interest on long-term debt 2,643                       709                          

Interest on short-term debt 27                            60                            

Other    70                            105                          

5,898                       7,303                       

Net finance expense 5,797$                     7,234$                     
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20. Commitments and contingencies (continued) 

 

Letters of credit 

At December 31, 2015, the Company had provided $6.6 million (2014 – $6.6 million) in bank standby letters 

of credit to the IESO. 

 

Vendor commitments 

The Company has commitments in connection with Information Systems projects of approximately $0.8 

million (2014 - $0.7 million), Infrastructure projects of $5.3 million (2014 – $3.9 million) and new vehicle 

acquisitions of $0.5 million (2014 - $0.8 million). 

 

Operating leases 

The Company is committed to lease agreements for various vehicles, equipment and property rights. The 

future minimum non-cancellable annual lease payments are as follows: 

 

Operating lease expense incurred during the year ended December 31, 2015 was of $0.3 million (2014 - 

$0.2 million). 

  

December 31 December 31 January 1, 
2015 2014 2014

Less than one year 303$                        171$                        155$                        
Between one and five years 1,027                       588                          561                          
More than five years 193                          232                          271                          

1,523$                     991$                        987$                        
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21. Related party transactions 

a) Trade balances due to shareholder 

   

The Company delivers electricity to the City of London throughout the year for the electricity needs of the 

City of London and its related organizations. Electricity delivery charges are at prices and under terms 

approved by the OEB. The Company also provides additional services to the City of London, including water 

and waste water billing and customer care services. 

During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company billed customers for water service on behalf of the 

shareholder and remitted funds to the shareholder in the amount of $151.1 million (2014 – $143.0 million). 

The shareholder paid $3.9 million (2014 - $3.9 million) for this service. 

 

b) Promissory note due to related party 

 

The Company repaid the promissory note to the Corporation of the City of London on November 28, 2014. 

The Company obtained funding in the amount of $85.0 million from the Royal Bank of Canada which was in 

place on the transfer date (note 14). 

The Company paid interest on the promissory note during the year ended December 31, 2014 in the amount 

of $3.9 million. 

  

December 31, December 31, January 1,

2015 2014 2014

Water consumption 6,746$                   6,208$                   6,315$                   

Non-interest bearing trade balance due to (from) 

shareholder, without stated repayment terms 682                        735                        (39)                         

7,428$                   6,943$                   6,276$                   

December 31, December 31, January 1,
2015 2014 2014

Unsecured promissory note, due to related party, bearing
interest at 6% per annum, payable on demand with 
367 days notice, maturing October 31, 2015 -$                       -$                       70,000$                 

-                         -                         70,000                   
Less:  Current portion -                         -                         -                         

-$                       -$                       70,000$                 
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22. Joint venture agreement 

On January 1, 2013, The Company entered into an agreement with London District Renewable Energy Co-

Operative Inc. (“LDREC”) to create a joint venture with the legal name “London Renewable Energy Initiative” 

for the intention of identifying, applying for and constructing solar projects that have been approved under 

the Feed-in Tariff (“FIT”) government program. The Company has a 49% equity interest in LDREC while 

appointing 60% of the members of the Executive Committee resulting in controlling interest.  To date no 

significant work has been completed and no amounts have been recorded in these financial statements in 

connection with this venture. 

 

23. Financial instruments and risk management 

Fair value disclosure 

The carrying values of cash, accounts receivable, unbilled revenue, due from/to shareholder and accounts 

payable and accrued liabilities approximate fair value because of the short maturity of these instruments. 

The carrying value of the customer deposits approximates fair value because the amounts are payable on 

demand. 

The fair value of the long-term debt at December 31, 2015 is $95 million (2014 - $96 million). The fair value 

is calculated based on the present value of future principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the current 

rate of interest at the reporting date. The interest rate used to calculate fair value at December 31, 2015 was 

2.16% (2014 – 2.46%).  The fair value of interest rate swaps is recorded based on valuation amounts as 

provided by RBC Capital Markets on a quarterly basis. 

Financial risks 

The Company understands the risks inherent in its business and defines them broadly as anything that 

could impact its ability to achieve its strategic objectives. The Company’s exposure to a variety of risks such 

as credit risk, interest rate risk, and liquidity risk, as well as related mitigation strategies are discussed 

below. 

a) Credit risk 

Financial assets carry credit risk that a counter-party will fail to discharge an obligation which would result in 

a financial loss. Financial assets held by the Company, such as accounts receivable, expose it to credit risk. 

The Company primarily assesses credit risk exposure by customer segment. Concentrations of consumption 

by segment or individual customer, may impact risk due to varying energy consumption patterns and 

allowable security deposit requirements associated with each segment. The Company is not exposed to a 

significant concentration of credit risk within any customer segment or individual customer. No single 

customer accounts for revenue in excess of 10% of total revenue. 
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23. Financial instruments and risk management (continued) 
 

a) Credit risk (continued) 

The carrying amount of accounts receivable is reduced through the use of an allowance for impairment and 

the amount of the related impairment loss is recognized in profit and loss as bad debt expense. Subsequent 

recoveries of receivables previously provisioned are credited to profit and loss. The balance of the allowance 

for impairment loss at December 31, 2015 is $2.5 million (2014 - $2.3 million). Bad debt expense was $0.7 

million (2014 - $0.7 million) during the year ended December 31, 2015. 

At December 31, 2015, approximately $0.7 million (2014 - $0.6 million) is included in the allowance for 

doubtful accounts for uncollectible amounts relating to water consumption. No bad debt expense has been 

realized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in connection with water consumption as these 

amounts are fully recovered from the City of London. 

The Company’s credit risk associated with accounts receivable is primarily related to payments from 

distribution customers. At December 31, 2015, approximately $2.0 million (2014 - $1.9 million) is considered 

60 days past due. The Company has 154 thousand customers, the majority of whom are residential. 

By regulation, the Company is responsible for collecting both the distribution and energy portions of the 

electricity bill. On average, the Company earns 18% of amounts billed to customers with the remaining 82% 

being collected for other parties. The Company is therefore exposed to a credit risk substantially greater 

than the income that it regularly earns. 

Credit risk is managed through collection of security deposits from customers in accordance with directions 

provided by the OEB. At December 31, 2015, the Company held deposits in the amount of $6.3 million 

(2014 - $5.9 million). Additionally, if presented with substantial credit losses, the Company would make an 

application to the regulator for recovery of those losses through distribution rate adjustments in future years. 

 

b) Market risk 

Market risks primarily refer to the risk of loss that result from changes in commodity prices, foreign exchange 

rates, and interest rates. The Company currently does not have significant commodity or foreign exchange 

risk. The Company is exposed to fluctuations in interest rates as the regulated rate of return for the 

Company’s distribution business is derived using a complex formulaic approach which is in part based on 

the forecast for long-term Government of Canada bond yields. This rate of return is approved by the OEB as 

part of the approval of distribution rates. 

A 1% increase in the interest rate at December 31, 2015 would have increased interest expense on the 

long-term debt by $ 0.1 million (2014 - nil), assuming all other variables remain constant. A 1% decrease in 

the interest rate would have an equal but opposite effect. 
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23. Financial instruments and risk management (continued) 
 

 

c) Liquidity risk 

The Company monitors its liquidity risk to ensure access to sufficient funds to meet operational and 

investing requirements. The Company’s objective is to ensure that sufficient liquidity is on hand to meet 

obligations as they fall due while minimizing interest exposure.  The Company monitors cash balances to 

ensure that sufficient levels of liquidity are on hand to meet financial commitments as they come due. The 

majority of accounts payable, as reported on the Statement of Financial Position, are due within 30 days. 

The Company has an uncommitted operating revolving line of credit facility of $20 million with the Toronto 

Dominion Bank. At December 31, 2015, the amount drawn by the Company under this line of credit was nil 

(2014 - nil). The line of credit is unsecured and interest is at bank prime rate on prime based borrowings 

minus 0.5%, or at Bankers’ Acceptances (“B/A”) rates plus a 0.75% stamping fee on B/A based borrowings. 

At December 31, 2015, the Company had a committed 364 day extendable operating revolving loan facility 

of $15 million with the Toronto Dominion Bank and the amount drawn by the Company under this loan 

facility was $5 million (2014 - nil). Under the terms of this agreement, the loan has a maturity date of March 

31, 2016. The Company has a one year period from the loan maturity date to repay any outstanding 

balances in the event the lender elects not to extend the loan for an additional 364 day period.  Interest is at 

bank prime rate on prime based borrowings minus 0.5%, or at B/A rates plus a 0.75% stamping fee on B/A 

based borrowings. 

The Company also has a bilateral facility for $6.6 million for the purpose of issuing letters of credit mainly to 

support the prudential requirements of the IESO, of which nil has been drawn and posted with the IESO 

(2014 - nil). 
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23. Financial instruments and risk management (continued) 
 

d) Capital disclosures 

The main objectives of the Company, when managing capital, are to ensure ongoing access to funding to 

maintain and improve the electricity distribution system, compliance with covenants related to its credit 

facilities, prudent management of its capital structure with regard for recoveries of financing charges 

permitted by the OEB on its regulated electricity distribution business, and to deliver the appropriate financial 

returns. 

The Corporation’s definition of capital includes shareholder’s equity and long-term debt. 

 

 

24. Subsequent event 

On April 19, 2016, the Board of Directors declared a $5.0 million annual dividend and a $5.0 million special 

dividend both payable to the sole shareholder, the Corporation of the City of London, in quarterly 

installments in 2016. 

 
  

December 31, December 31, January 1,

2015 2014 2014

Long-term debt 98,434$                 95,738$                 13,042$                 

Due to related party -                             -                             70,000                   

Shareholder's equity 148,608                 148,254                 139,191                 

247,042$               243,992$               222,233$               
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25. Explanation of transition to IFRS 

As stated in note 2(b), these are the Company’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS. 

The accounting policies set out in note 3 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year 

ended December 31, 2015, the comparative information presented in these financial statements for the year 

ended December 31, 2014, and in the preparation of the opening IFRS Statement of Financial Position as at 

January 1, 2014 (the Company’s date of transition). 

In preparing its opening IFRS Statement of Financial Position, the Company has adjusted the amounts 

reported previously in the financial statements prepared in accordance with Canadian general accepted 

accounting principles (“CGAAP”). An explanation of how the transition from CGAAP to IFRS has affected the 

Company’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows is set out in the following tables and the 

notes accompanying the tables. 

 

a) Regulatory accounts 

IFRS14:  Regulatory Deferral Accounts, permits an entity to continue to account for regulatory deferral 

account balances in its financial statements in accordance with its previous CGAAP when it adopts IFRS. An 

entity is permitted to apply the requirements of this standard in its first IFRS financial statements if and only 

if it conducts rate-regulated activities and recognized amounts that qualify as regulatory deferral account 

balances in its financial statements in accordance with its previous CGAAP. This standard exempts an entity 

from applying paragraph 11 of IAS8: Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors, to its 

accounting policies for the recognition, measurement, impairment and derecognition of regulatory deferral 

account balances. 

IFRS 14 is effective from periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, however, early application is 

permitted. The Company has elected to apply this Standard in its first IFRS financial statements. 
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25. Explanation of transition to IFRS (continued) 
 

b) IFRS 1 Exemptions 

IFRS 1 First-time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards sets out the procedures that the 

Company must follow when it adopts IFRS for the first time as the basis for preparing its financial 

statements. The Company is required to establish its IFRS accounting policies as at December 31, 2015 

and, in general, apply these retrospectively to determine the IFRS opening Statement of Financial osition as 

its date of transition, January 1, 2014. This standard provides a number of mandatory and optional 

exemptions to this general principle. These are set out below, together with a description in each case of the 

exemption adopted by the Company. 

i. Transfer of assets from customers 

IFRIC 18 - “Transfers of assets from customers” allows for the application of IFRIC 18 with 

respect to the recognition of capital contributions on the date of transition or earlier adoption is 

permitted. The Company has elected to apply IFRIC 18 effective January 1, 2014. 

 

ii. Deemed cost 

IFRS 1 provides an optional exemption for a first-time adopter with rate-regulated activities to 

use the carrying amount of PP&E and intangible assets as deemed cost on transition date 

when the carrying amount includes costs that do not quality for capitalization in accordance 

with IFRS. The Company elected this exemption and used the carrying amount of the PP&E 

and intangible assets under CGAAP as deemed cost on transition date. The carrying amount 

used as deemed cost is $224.5 million for PP&E and $16.2 million for intangible assets. 

If an entity applies this exemption, at the date of transition to IFRS, it shall test for impairment 

each item for which this exemption is used. The assets were tested for impairment at the date 

of transition and it was determined that the assets were not impaired. 

 

c) Reconciliations between Canadian GAAP and IFRS 

In preparing its opening IFRS balance sheet as at January 1, 2014, the Company has adjusted amounts 

reported previously in financial statements prepared in accordance with CGAAP. An explanation of how the 

transition from CGAAP to IFRS has affected the Company’s financial position and financial performance is 

set out in the following tables and the notes that accompany the tables. 
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25. Explanation of transition to IFRS (continued) 

Reconciliation of Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Changes in Equity 

Measurement

As at January 1, 2014 Presentation & recognition

Note CGAAP differences differences IFRS

ASSETS

Current assets

Accounts receivable 71,046$               1,248$                 -$                    72,294$               

Income tax receivable 80                        80                        

Materials and supplies 731                      731                      

Prepaid expenses 1,456                   1,456                   

Total current assets 73,313                 1,248                   -                      74,561                 

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment a,b,c 240,693               (16,211)               224,482               

Intangible assets a,b,c -                          16,237                 16,237                 

Deferred tax assets g 2,463                   (640)                    334                      2,157                   

Total non-current assets 243,156               (614)                    334                      242,876               

Total assets 316,469               634                      334                      317,437               

Regulatory balances c 2,337                   (26)                      2,311                   

Total assets and regulatory balances 318,806$             608$                    334$                    319,748$             

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Bank indebtedness 3,012$                 -$                    -$                    3,012$                 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities d 51,450                 1,186                   52,636                 

Due to shareholder d 6,577                   (301)                    6,276                   

Current portion of long-term debt 2,304                   2,304                   

Customer and other deposits d 1,626                   (912)                    714                      

Deferred revenue d -                          1,277                   1,277                   

Total current liabilities 64,969                 1,250                   -                      66,219                 

Non-current liabilities

Customer and other deposits d 7,419                   (2,253)                 5,166                   

Long-term debt 10,738                 10,738                 

Post-employment benefits f 11,733                 1,256                   12,989                 

Deferred revenue d -                          6,229                   6,229                   

Unrealized loss on interest rate swap 199                      199                      

Due to shareholder d 3,976                   (3,976)                 -                          

Due to related party 70,000                 70,000                 

Total non-current liabilities 104,065               -                      1,256                   105,321               

Total liabilities 169,034               1,250                   1,256                   171,540               

Equity

Share capital 96,116                 96,116                 

Retained earnings f 44,331                 (1,256)                 43,075                 

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) -                          -                          

Total equity 140,447               -                      (1,256)                 139,191               

Total liabilities and equity 309,481               1,250                   -                          310,731               

Regulatory balances g 9,325                   (642)                    334                      9,017                   

Total liabilities, equity and regulatory balances 318,806$             608$                    334$                    319,748$             
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25. Explanation of transition to IFRS (continued): 

Reconciliation of Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Changes in Equity 

 
  

Measurement

As at December 31, 2014 Presentation & recognition

Note CGAAP differences differences IFRS

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 6,208$                 -$                    -$                    6,208$                 

Accounts receivable 71,122                 1,310                   72,432                 

Income tax receivable -                          -                          

Materials and supplies 655                      655                      

Prepaid expenses 1,569                   1,569                   

Total current assets 79,554                 1,310                   -                      80,864                 

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment a,b,c,d 248,217               (12,930)               235,287               

Intangible assets a,b,c -                          15,101                 15,101                 

Deferred tax assets g 879                      (39)                      459                      1,299                   

Total non-current assets 249,096               2,132                   459                      251,687               

Total assets 328,650               3,442                   459                      332,551               

Regulatory balances c 7,235                   (651)                    6,584                   

Total assets and regulatory balances 335,885$             2,791$                 459$                    339,135$             

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities d 51,997$               1,232$                 -$                    53,229$               

Due to shareholder d 7,285                   (342)                    6,943                   

Income tax payable 1,352                   46                        1,398                   

Current portion of long-term debt 2,304                   2,304                   

Customer and other deposits d 1,728                   (1,037)                 691                      

Deferred revenue d -                          1,482                   1,482                   

Total current liabilities 64,666                 1,381                   -                      66,047                 

Non-current liabilities

Customer and other deposits d 8,824                   (3,606)                 5,218                   

Long-term debt 93,434                 93,434                 

Post-employment benefits f 12,019                 1,730                   13,749                 

Deferred revenue d -                          8,934                   8,934                   

Unrealized loss on interest rate swap 2,778                   2,778                   

Due to shareholder d 3,549                   (3,549)                 -                          

Total non-current liabilities 120,604               1,779                   1,730                   124,113               

Total liabilities 185,270               3,160                   1,730                   190,160               

Equity

Share capital 96,116                 96,116                 

Retained earnings f 53,868                 (1,259)                 52,609                 

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) f -                          (471)                    (471)                    

Total equity 149,984               -                          (1,730)                 148,254               

Total liabilities and equity 335,254               3,160                   -                          338,414               

Regulatory balances g 631                      (369)                    459                      721                      

Total liabilities, equity and regulatory balances 335,885$             2,791$                 459$                    339,135$             
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25. Explanation of transition to IFRS (continued) 

Reconciliation of net income for 2014 
 

 
  

Measurement

For the year ended December 31, 2014 Presentation & recognition

Note CGAAP differences differences IFRS

Revenue

Sales of energy i 363,384$       (11,176)$        -$                 352,208$       

Distribution revenue j 63,367           295                63,662           

Other j 8,894             4,479             13,373           

435,645         (6,402)            -                   429,243         

Operating Expenses

Cost of power purchased 363,384         363,384         

Operating expenses j 32,249           4,895             2                       37,146           

Depreciation and amortization j 17,655           (86)                 17,569           

413,288         4,809             2                       418,099         

Finance (income) / costs

Finance income j -                 (69)                 (69)                 

Finance costs j 7,417             (114)               7,303             

7,417             (183)               -                   7,234             

Income before income taxes 14,940           (11,028)          (2)                     3,910             

Income tax expense j 2,403             1,666             1                       4,070             

Net income for the year 12,537           (12,694)          (3)                     (160)               

Net movement in regulatory balances, net of tax i,j -                 12,694           12,694           

Net income and net movement in regulatory balance 12,537           -                 (3)                     12,534           

Other comprehensive income

Remeasurement of post-employment benefits f -                 (471)                 (471)               

Tax on remeasurements g -                 125                   125                

Net movement in regulatory balances, net of tax -                 (125)                 (125)               

-                 -                 (471)                 (471)               

Total comprehensive income for the year 12,537$         -$               (474)$               12,063$         
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25. Explanation of transition to IFRS (continued) 

 

Notes to the reconciliations 

The impact on deferred tax of the adjustments described below is set out in note (g). 

a) The Company has elected under IFRS 1 to use the carrying value of items of property, plant and 

equipment and intangible assets as the deemed cost at the date of transition. Therefore, there has been 

no change to the net PP&E and intangible assets at January 1, 2014.  The effect of this transitional 

adjustment is a decrease to the original cost and accumulated depreciation of the affected property, 

plant and equipment and intangible assets by $187.1 million and $187.1 million respectively, 

representing the CGAAP accumulated depreciation amount on January 1, 2014. 

b) The Company has identified certain intangible assets that under CGAAP were recorded with other 

classes of property, plant and equipment. The Company has reclassified the identified intangible assets 

to be in accordance with IAS 38 - Intangible Assets. 

The effect is to increase intangible assets by $16.2 million on January 1, 2014 and $14.8 million on 

December 31, 2014, and to decrease property, plant and equipment by $16.2 million at January 1, 2014 

and $14.8 million at December 31, 2014. 

c) The Company has identified certain intangible assets that under CGAAP were recorded under 

Regulatory balances. The Company has reclassified the identified intangible assets to be in accordance 

with IAS 38 - Intangible Assets. 

The effect is to increase intangible assets by nil on January 1, 2014 and $0.3 million on December 31, 

2014, and to decrease Regulatory balances by nil at January 1, 2014 and $0.3 million at December 31, 

2014. 

d) Under CGAAP, customer contributions were netted against the cost of property, plant and equipment 

and amortized to profit or loss as an offset to depreciation expense, on the same basis as the related 

assets. Under IFRS, customer contributions are recognized as deferred revenue, not netted against 

property, plant and equipment, and amortized into profit or loss over the life of the related asset. 

There is no impact to property, plant and equipment as at January 1, 2014 as the deemed cost 

exemption has been used (See Notes to the reconciliations (a)). 
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25. Explanation of transition to IFRS (continued) 

 

Notes to the reconciliations (continued)  
 

In accordance with this change, deposits held for capital construction have also been reclassified to 

deferred revenue. 

The reclassification of deposits held for construction at January 1, 2014 had the effect of increasing 

deferred revenue (current portion) by $1.3 million and decreasing accounts payable and accrued 

liabilities by $0.1 million, decreasing customer and other deposits by $0.9 million and decreasing due to 

shareholder by $0.3 million. Deferred revenue (long-term) increased by $6.2 million as a result of this 

change and decreased customer and other deposits by $2.2 million and due to shareholder by $4.0 

million at January 1, 2014. 

The reclassification of deposits held for construction at December 31, 2014 had the effect of increasing 

deferred revenue (current portion) by $1.5 million and increasing property, plant and equipment by $0.1 

million, decreasing accounts payable and accrued liabilities by nil, decreasing customer and other 

deposits by $1.1 million and decreasing due to shareholder by $0.3 million. Deferred revenue (long-

term) increased by $8.9 million as a result of this change and increased property, plant and equipment 

by $1.8 million, decreased customer and other deposits by $3.6 million and due to shareholder by $3.5 

million at December 31, 2014. 

e) IFRS requires that borrowing costs related to the construction of the qualifying assets be capitalized. 

The Company has applied IAS 23 to all qualifying assets that were in progress or commenced since 

January 1, 2014. No qualifying assets were identified and therefore no borrowing costs were capitalized 

for the year ended December 31, 2014. 

 

f) The Company adopted the revised Employee Benefits standard effective January 1, 2014. This revised 

standard requires recognition of actuarial gains and losses through other comprehensive income. The 

effect is to increase the Company’s Post-employment benefits liability by $1.3 million at January 1, 2014 

and $1.7 million at December 31, 2014 and decrease retained earnings by $1.3 million at January 1, 

2014 and December 31, 2014 and decrease accumulated other comprehensive income by $0.4 million 

at December 31, 2014. This also provided for an increase in employee future benefits expense of nil 

and an other comprehensive loss of $0.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2014. 
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25. Explanation of transition to IFRS (continued) 

 

Notes to the reconciliations (continued) 
 

g) The above changes increased the deferred tax asset as follows: 

 

h) Explanation of material adjustments to the statement of cash flows for 2014: 

There are no material differences between the statement of cash flows presented under IFRS and the 

statement of cash flows presented under CGAAP. 

i) As discussed under Basis of Preparation in connection with rate setting for electricity, rates are set 

based on either market prices or the OEB regulated amounts. The Company is billed for the cost of the 

electricity that its customers use and passes this cost directly on to the customer at cost without a mark-

up. Under CGAAP, variances between the cost of purchased power and rates set and charged to 

customers flowed directly to the Statement of Financial Position as regulatory assets or liabilities. IFRS 

requires that these variances first be reported through profit and loss under net income for the period, 

and then be reclassified to the Statement of Financial Position as a movement in regulatory balances, 

net of tax. 

j) As discussed under Basis of Preparation regarding distribution revenues, current rates are set based on 

forecasted annual operating expenditures included in the last Cost of Service Rate Application. 

Distribution revenues and expenditures not included in the last Cost of Service Rate Application as a 

result of timing or newly implemented programs are captured under regulatory balances. Under 

CGAAP, these deferral amounts flowed directly to the Statement of Financial Position. IFRS requires 

that these items first be reported through profit and loss under net income for the period, and then be 

reclassified to the Statement of Financial Position as a movement in regulatory balances, net of tax. 

 

December 31, January 1,
Total 2014 2014

$ $ $

Post-employment benefits 1,730 474 1,256

Tax impact at the enacted rate of 26.5% 459 125 334

Increase in deferred tax asset 459 125 334

Increase in regulatory liability balances (459) (125) (334)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of London & Middlesex Housing Corporation 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of London & Middlesex Housing Corporation, which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2015, the statements of operations, change in 
net financial debt and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Those standards require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.   

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of London 
& Middlesex Housing Corporation as at December 31, 2015, and its results of operations and its cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

 

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

April 28, 2016 

London, Canada 

 



LONDON & MIDDLESEX HOUSING CORPORATION
Statement of Financial Position

As at December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

2015 2014

Financial Assets:
Cash 1,738,444$            1,563,093$          
Accounts receivable (note 3) 674,369                 700,191                
Due from The City of London 598,810                 1,075,186             

3,011,623              3,338,470             

Financial Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,923,445              2,899,977             
Tenants advances 475,239                 428,517                
Unearned miscellaneous revenue 70,300                   71,171                  

3,468,984              3,399,665             

Net debt (457,361)                (61,195)                

Non-financial Assets:
Tangible capital assets (note 7) 50,666,053            49,889,897          
Prepaid expenses 457,361                 61,195                  

51,123,414            49,951,092          

Commitments (note 5)

Accumulated surplus (note 8) 50,666,053$          49,889,897$        

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

On behalf of the Board:

Director Director



LONDON & MIDDLESEX HOUSING CORPORATION
Statement of Operations

Year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

Budget 2015 2014

Revenue:
Rental revenue 10,176,000$            10,637,628$            10,365,263$            
Rental subsidy 8,569,172                8,569,008                7,947,248                
The City of London funding adjustment -                               369,450                   124,507                   
Rent supplement subsidy surplus -                               -                               2,012                       
Capital funding -                               2,316,095                3,275,191                
Energy savings project rebates -                               135,727                   499,557                   
Other 272,837                   272,752                   264,218                   

Total revenue 19,018,009              22,300,660              22,477,996              

Expenses:
Salaries, wages and employee benefits 4,430,900                4,624,950                4,247,328                

Maintenance, materials and services:
Building, general 2,676,086                3,032,310                2,892,618                
Grounds 802,100                   857,364                   847,265                   
Painting 301,400                   329,878                   263,311                   
Other 167,100                   125,034                   112,424                   

3,946,686                4,344,586                4,115,618                

Utilities:
Electricity 1,866,234                2,140,498                2,012,761                
Water 938,646                   1,009,960                932,902                   
Natural gas 1,064,129                921,512                   1,021,161                

3,869,009                4,071,970                3,966,824                

Amortization -                               1,595,144                1,457,231                

Property:
Insurance 521,761                   561,309                   494,018                   
Municipal taxes 5,134,938                5,023,794                4,695,884                
Mortgage payments 48,400                     47,127                     48,405                     

5,705,099                5,632,230                5,238,307                

Administration 1,066,315 1,255,624 1,188,590

Total expenses 19,018,009              21,524,504              20,213,898              

Annual surplus -                               776,156                   2,264,098                

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 49,889,897              49,889,897              47,625,799              

Accumulated surplus, end of year 49,889,897$            50,666,053$            49,889,897$            

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



LONDON & MIDDLESEX HOUSING CORPORATION
Statement of Change in Net Financial Debt

Year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

2015 2014

Annual surplus 776,156$            2,264,098$         

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (2,371,300)          (3,721,745)          
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets -                      416                     
Amortization of tangible capital assets 1,595,144           1,457,231           

(776,156)             (2,264,098)          

Acquisition of prepaid expenses (6,504,046)          (6,691,505)          
Use of prepaid expenses 6,107,880           6,987,016           

Change in net financial debt (396,166)             295,511              

Net debt, beginning of year (61,195)               (356,706)             

Net debt, end of year (457,361)$           (61,195)$             

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



LONDON & MIDDLESEX HOUSING CORPORATION
Statement of Cash Flows

December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

2015 2014

Cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities:
Annual surplus 776,156$           2,264,098$        

Items not involving cash:

Amortization 1,595,144          1,457,231          

Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets -                     416                    

Changes in non-cash items:

Accounts receivable 25,822               35,249               

Prepaid expenses (396,166)            295,511             

Due from The City of London 476,376             (1,075,186)         

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 23,468               119,770             

Tenant advances 46,722               62,102               

Unearned miscellaneous revenue (871)                   625                    

Deferred revenue -                     (403,970)            

2,546,651          2,755,846          

Capital activities:
Cash used to acquire tangible capital assets (2,371,300)         (3,721,745)         

Increase (decrease) in cash 175,351             (965,899)            

Cash, beginning of year 1,563,093          2,528,992          

Cash, end of year 1,738,444$       1,563,093$        

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



LONDON & MIDDLESEX HOUSING CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements

1.

2.

(a)

(i)

Asset

(ii)

Tangible capital assets:

December 31, 2015

Incorporation:

The London & Middlesex Housing Corporation (the “Corporation”) operates housing accommodation
primarily for persons of low and moderate income. The Corporation operates 3,282 units throughout The
City of London and the County of Middlesex and is 100% owned by The City of London.

Significant accounting policies:

The financial statements of the Corporation are prepared by management in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles for local governments as recommended by the Public Sector
Accounting Board (“PSAB”) of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada. Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Corporation are as follows:

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes amounts that are directly
attributable to acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. The cost,
less residual value, of the tangible capital assets, excluding land, are amortized on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Useful life-years

Site improvements 20-35
Buildings and improvements 15-40
Technology and communications 3
Vehicles 10
Furniture and fixtures 10
Machinery and equipment 25
Appliances 10

One half-year's amortization is charged in the year of acquisition.

Contributions of capital assets:

Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at their fair value at the date 
of receipt.



LONDON & MIDDLESEX HOUSING CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e) Change in Accounting Policy:

Use of estimates:

December 31, 2015

Significant accounting policies (continued):

Revenue recognition:

Rental revenue is recognized at the time the service is provided. Other revenues are recognized
when the services are earned. 

Government transfer payments are recognized in the financial statements in the year in which the
payment is authorized and the events giving rise to the transfer occur, performance criteria are
met, and a reasonable estimate of the amount can be made. Funding that is stipulated to be used
for specific purposes is only recognized as revenue in the fiscal year that the related expenses are
incurred or services performed. If funding is received for which the related expenses have not yet
been incurred or services performed, these amounts are recorded as a liability at year end.

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the year. Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions
include the carrying value of tangible capital assets and valuation allowances for receivables.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. These estimates are reviewed periodically, and,
as adjustments become necessary, they are reported in earnings in the year in which they become
known.

Budget data:

Budget figures have been provided for comparison purposes. Given differences between the
budgeting model and generally accepted accounting principles established by PSAB, certain
budgeted amounts have been reclassified to reflect the presentation adopted under PSAB.

The Corporation adopted Public Sector Accounting Board Standard PS 3260, Liability for 
Contaminated Sites  effective as of January 1, 2015.  Under PS 3260, contaminated sites are 
defined as the result of contamination being introduced in air, soil, water or sediment of a 
chemical, organic, or radioactive material or live organism that exceeds an environmental 
standard.  This Standard relates to sites that are not in productive use and sites in productive use 
where an unexpected event resulted in contamination.  The Corporation adopted this standard on 
a retroactive basis and there were no adjustments as a result of the adoption of this standard.



LONDON & MIDDLESEX HOUSING CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3.

2015 2014

266,329$          195,355$          
247,928            313,354            
160,112            191,482            

674,369$          700,191$          

4.

5.

(a) Debt service payment:

(b) Contractual obligations:

261,134$          
271,541            
271,541            
269,618            
259,466            

Thereafter 104,707            

6.

2019
2020

The income producing properties held by London & Middlesex Housing Authority and passed through to
the Corporation were originally financed by the Province of Ontario through general obligation provincial
debentures. At the time of the transfer of ownership, the Province did not transfer the responsibility for
repayment of these debentures. Accordingly, the value of the provincial debentures associated with them
have not been recorded on the Corporation’s financial statements.

December 31, 2015

Accounts receivable:

Rent
Harmonized sales tax
Sundry

Income producing properties:

Commitments:

The Corporation is responsible for the debt service payments on one of its properties located on
Bella Street in Strathroy, Ontario. These payments of both principal and interest are made directly
to the mortgagee and are expensed when incurred. A total of $47,127 was expensed and paid in
2015 (2014 - $48,405). The Ontario government is considered to be the holder of this debt, thus
no provision has been made in the Corporation’s financial statements for the mortgage.

The Corporation is committed to the following minimum annual operating lease payments for
premises and equipment as follows:

2016
2017
2018

Pension agreement:

The Corporation makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Fund (OMERS), a
multi-employer plan, on behalf of its employees. The plan is a defined benefit plan which specifies the
amount of the retirement benefit to be received by the employees based on the length of service and rates
of pay. The 2015 contribution rates are 9.0% for employee earnings below the year’s maximum
pensionable earnings and 14.6% thereafter.  Employee contributions match these rates.

Contributions to OMERS by the Corporation are recognized as an expense in the period they are incurred.
A total of $310,625 was incurred as pension expense in 2015 (2014 - $301,148).



LONDON & MIDDLESEX HOUSING CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

7.

Balance at Balance at 
December 2015 2015 December 

Cost 31, 2014 Additions Disposals 31, 2015

Land 24,605,751$     -$                  -$                  24,605,751$     
Site improvements 3,277,316         19,001              -                    3,296,317         
Buildings and improvements 79,116,222       1,941,856         -                    81,058,078       
Technology and communications 694,331            93,050              (11,141)             776,240            
Vehicles 48,297              -                    -                    48,297              
Furniture and fixtures 263,979            -                    (367)                  263,612            
Machinery and equipment 2,750,964         251,382            -                    3,002,346         
Appliances 1,625,148         66,011              -                    1,691,159         

Total 112,382,008$   2,371,300$       (11,508)$           114,741,800$   

Balance at Balance at 
Accumulated December 2015 2015 December 
amortization 31, 2014 Disposals Amortization 31, 2015

Land -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  
Site improvements 1,518,935         -                    69,431              1,588,366         
Buildings and improvements 57,793,412       -                    1,144,841         58,938,253       
Technology and communications 561,811            (11,141)             108,604            659,274            
Vehicles 12,075              -                    4,830                16,905              
Furniture and fixtures 143,278            (367)                  19,840              162,751            
Machinery and equipment 1,189,435         -                    84,035              1,273,470         
Appliances 1,273,165         -                    163,563            1,436,728         

Total 62,492,111$     (11,508)$           1,595,144$       64,075,747$     

December 31, 2015

Tangible capital assets:



LONDON & MIDDLESEX HOUSING CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

7.

Net book Net book 
value at value at 

December 31, December 31, 
2014 2015

Land 24,605,751$     24,605,751$     
Site improvements 1,758,381         1,707,951
Buildings and improvements 21,322,810       22,119,825
Technology and communications 132,520 116,966
Vehicles 36,222 31,392
Furniture and fixtures 120,701 100,861
Machinery and equipment 1,561,529 1,728,876
Appliances 351,983 254,431

49,889,897$     50,666,053$     

8.

2015 2014

Invested in tangible capital assets 50,666,053$     49,899,897$     

December 31, 2015

Tangible capital assets (continued):

Accumulated surplus:

Accumulated surplus consists of surplus funds as follows:

Surplus:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
To the London Public Library Board 
 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The London Public Library Board, which comprise the 

statement of financial position as at December 31, 2015, the statements of operations,  change in net debt  and 

cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other 

explanatory information.      

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 

with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal controls as management determines is 

necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 

due to fraud or error.          

    
Auditors' Responsibility  

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our 

audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Those standards require that we 

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment 

of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 

risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 

financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 

purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes 

evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 

made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.   

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion. 

Opinion  

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of The London 

Public Library Board as at December 31, 2015, and its results of operations and its cash flows for the year then 

ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.     

      

 
Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

April 14, 2016 

London, Canada 



2015 2014

Financial assets:
Cash 1,244,665$      1,113,212$      
Accounts receivable:

    The City of London 746,200           412,839           
    Other 177,330           213,787           

2,168,195        1,739,838        

Financial liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,844,655        1,352,859        
Deferred revenue 86,824             50,693             
Payable to The City of London 18,908             24,538             
Employee future benefits and other liabilities (note 2) 3,381,784        3,377,748        

5,332,171        4,805,838        

Net debt (3,163,976)      (3,066,000)      

Non-financial assets:
Tangible capital assets (note 6) 26,967,011      28,078,703      
Prepaid expenses 277,414           160,304           

27,244,425      28,239,007      

Commitments (note 4)

Accumulated surplus (note 7) 24,080,449$   25,173,007$    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

THE LONDON PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD
Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014



Budget 
2015 2015 2014

(note 8) 

Revenue:
User charges:

   Fines 455,000$         369,141$         423,731$         
   Fee, rental, sundry 424,268           474,654           395,739           

Grants:
Federal -                      6,637               115,909           
Ontario 598,829           698,571           598,829           

The City of London:
Current 19,195,376      19,195,376      18,780,000      
Capital 922,607           922,607           222,727           
Other -                      1,500               20,019             

Investment income 20,000             17,465             22,761             
-                      -                      130,047           

Total revenues 21,616,080      21,685,951      20,709,762      

Expenses:
Personnel costs 14,624,569      14,410,018      14,361,023      
Administrative expenses 76,000             95,594             105,173           
Purchased services 603,484           628,586           567,296           
Technology 500,000           523,049           480,341           
Utilities 1,048,485        931,228           915,537           
Facility services 1,619,870        1,654,075        1,655,907        
Collections and lending services 2,000,000        753,829           639,381           
Program services 51,950             88,592             72,859             
General 6,000               70,154             24,516             
Amortization of tangible capital assets -                      3,377,845        3,455,181        
New major facilities 922,607           175,912           -                      
Equipment 44,055             2,060               10,112             
Contribution to vehicle reserve 2,500               2,500               2,500               
Contribution to self-insurance reserve 66,560             65,067             48,248             

21,566,080      22,778,509      22,338,074      

Annual deficit 50,000             (1,092,558)      (1,628,312)      

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 25,173,007      25,173,007      26,801,319      

Accumulated surplus, end of year 25,223,007$   24,080,449$   25,173,007$    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

THE LONDON PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD
Statement of Operations

Year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

Total expenses

Other income



2015 2014 

Annual deficit (1,092,558)$    (1,628,312)$    

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (2,266,153)      (1,673,850)      
Amortization of tangible capital assets 3,377,845        3,455,181        

19,134             153,019           
Change in prepaid expenses (117,110)         (23,891)           

Change in net debt (97,976)           129,128           

Net debt, beginning of year (3,066,000)      (3,195,128)      

Net debt, end of year (3,163,976)$   (3,066,000)$    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

THE LONDON PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD
Statement of Change in Net Debt

Year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014



THE LONDON PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD
Statements of Cash Flows

2015 2014

Cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities:
Annual deficit (1,092,558)$    (1,628,312)$    
Items not involving cash:

Amortization of tangible capital assets 3,377,845        3,455,181        
Change in employee future benefits and other liabilities 4,036               16,648             

Changes in non-cash assets and liabilities:
Receivable from The City of London (333,361)         116,148           
Accounts receivable 36,457             (47,497)           
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 491,796           (69,324)           
Payable to The City of London (5,630)             (18,933)           
Deferred revenue 36,131             (3,929)             
Prepaid expenses (117,110)         (23,891)           

2,397,606        1,796,091        
Capital activities:

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (2,266,153)      (1,673,850)      

Increase in cash 131,453           122,241           

Cash, beginning of year 1,113,212        990,971           

Cash, end of year 1,244,665$     1,113,212$      

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014



THE LONDON PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements

Year ended December 31, 2015

1. Significant accounting policies:

(a) Basis of accounting:

(b) Municipal funding:

(c) Deferred revenue:

(d) Investment income:

(e) Employee future benefits:

The financial statements of The London Public Library Board (the "Board"), a registered charity and a 
local board of the Corporation of the City of London (the "City"), are prepared in accordance with 
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles for governments as recommended by the Public 
Sector Accounting Board ("PSAB") of the Chartered Professional Accountants Canada.  Significant 
accounting policies adopted by the Board are as follows:

Deferred revenues represent grants and other designated funding which has been received but
for which the service has yet to be performed. These amounts will be recognized as revenues
in the fiscal year in which the services are performed.

Investment income is reported as revenue in the period earned. 

The costs of life insurance, extended health and dental benefits are actuarially determined using
management's best estimate of salary escalation, insurance and health care cost trends, long
term inflation rates and discount rates.

The Board follows the accrual method of accounting for revenues and expenses. Revenues are
normally recognized in the year in which they are earned and measurable. Expenses are
recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a result of receipt of goods or services
and/or the creation of a legal obligation to pay.

The City provides funding to the Board for both operating and capital expenditures such as
refurbishment, replacement and major repairs and maintenance to the Library buildings.
Government transfer payments from the City of London are recognized in the financial
statements in the year in which the payment is authorized and the events giving rise to the
transfer occur, performance criteria are met, and a reasonable estimate of the amount can be
made. Funding that is stipulated to be used for specific purposes is only recognized as revenue
in the fiscal year that the related expenses are incurred or services performed. If funding is
received for which the related expenses have not yet been incurred or services performed,
these amounts are recorded as a liability at year end.

The Board provides certain employee benefits which will require funding in future periods.
These benefits include life insurance, extended health and dental benefits for early retirees.



THE LONDON PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015

1. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(f) Pension contributions:

(g) Non-financial assets:

(i) Tangible capital assets:

Asset Useful Life - Years

Buildings 15 - 60 years
Computers 3 years
Collections 7 years
Library shelving 40 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Furniture and equipment 7 years

(ii) 

(iii) Leased tangible capital assets:

Works of art and cultural and historic assets are not recorded as assets in these financial
statements.

Works of art and cultural and historic assets:

Leases which transfer substantially all the benefits and risks incidental to ownership of
property are accounted for as leased tangible capital assets. All other leases are
accounted for as operating leases and the related payments are charged to expenses as
incurred.

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in the
provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are not
intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations.

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes amounts that are directly
attributable to acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the assets. The
cost, less residual value, of the tangible capital assets, excluding land, are amortized on a
straight line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Annual amortization is charged in the year of acquisition and in the year of disposal.
Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is available for productive use.

The Board has a pension agreement with the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Fund
(OMERS), which is a multi-employer defined contribution benefit plan. The Board's costs are
the contributions due to the plan in the period.



THE LONDON PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015

1. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(h) Budget data:

(i) Use of estimates:

(j) Change in Accounting Policy:

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the period. Significant estimates include assumptions
used in estimating provisions for accrued liabilities and in preparing actuarial valuations for
employee future benefits.

The Board adopted Public Sector Accounting Board Standard PS 3260 Liability for
Contaminated Sites effective as of January 1, 2015. Under PS 3260, contaminated sites are
defined as the result of contamination being introduced in air, soil, water or sediment of a
chemical, organic, or radioactive material or live organism that exceeds an environmental
standard. This Standard relates to sites that are not in productive use and sites in productive
use where an unexpected event resulted in contamination. The Board adopted this standard on
a retroactive basis and there were no adjustments as a result of the adoption of this standard.

In addition, the Board's implementation of the Public Sector Accounting Handbook PS3150 has
required management to make estimates of historical cost and useful lives of tangible capital
assets.

Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Budget figures have been provided for comparison purposes. Given differences between the
budgeting model and generally accepted accounting principles established by PSAB, certain
budgeted amounts have been reclassified to reflect the presentation adopted under PSAB.



THE LONDON PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015

2. Employee future benefits and other liabilities:

Employee future benefits and other liabilities are comprised of the following:

2015 2014 

Liability for vested sick leave benefits 318,124$          386,468$          
Vacation pay liability 1,010,660         993,280            
Employee future benefits obligation 2,053,000         1,998,000         

3,381,784$       3,377,748$        

(a) Liability for vested sick leave benefits:

(b) Retiree benefits:

Under the sick leave benefit plan, employees hired prior to May 1, 1985 can accumulate unused
sick leave and may become entitled to a cash payment when they leave the employment of the
Board.

The liability of these accumulated days, to the extent that they have vested and could be taken
in cash by an employee upon ceasing employment with the Board as at December 31, 2015,
amounts to $318,124 (2014 - $386,469). This amount is fully funded by a reserve held by The
City of London in the amount of $321,387 (2014 - $331,249).

The Board pays certain life insurance benefits on behalf of the retired employees as well as
extended health and dental benefits for early retirees to age sixty-five. The Board recognizes
these post-retirement costs in the period in which the employees rendered the services. The
most recent actuarial valuation was performed as at December 31, 2015.

The Board provides certain post-employment and post-retirement employee benefits which will
require funding in future periods.



THE LONDON PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015

2. Employee future benefits and other liabilities (continued):

(b) Retiree benefits (continued):

Detailed information about retiree benefits is as follows:

2015 2014 

Accrued employee future benefit obligation:
Balance, beginning of year 2,126,000$        2,078,000$        
Current period benefit cost 93,000              89,000              
Interest 80,000              79,000              
Benefits paid (136,000)           (120,000)           
Actuarial (gain) loss (824,000)           -                    

Balance, end of year 1,339,000         2,126,000         

Unamortized actuarial gain (loss) 714,000            (128,000)           

Employee future benefits obligation 2,053,000$       1,998,000$        

2015 2014 

Current year benefit cost 93,000$            89,000$            
Interest on accrued benefit obligation 80,000              77,000              
Amortization of net actuarial loss 18,000              21,000              

Total payments made during the year 191,000$         187,000$          

Significant assumptions used in the actuarial valuation are as follows:

Discount rate 3.25%
Rate of compensation increase 1.90%
Healthcare cost increases 4.50%

Post-employment and post-retirement benefit expenses included in total expenditures consist of 
the following:

The actuarial loss is amortized over the expected average remaining service life of the related 
employee group of thirteen years.



THE LONDON PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015

3. Trust funds:

4. Commitments:

589,666$          
405,271            
408,513            
369,510            

Thereafter 26,832              

1,799,792$        

5. Pension agreement:

6. Tangible capital assets:

Balance at Balance at 
December 31, December 31,

Cost 2014 Additions Disposals 2015

Land 4,611,030$          -$                        -$                        4,611,030$          
39,339,238          606,605             -                         39,945,843          

349,083              -                         -                         349,083               
10,706,437          1,243,569          1,585,524          10,364,482          

Shelving 1,330,964            -                         -                         1,330,964            
695,645              168,258             409,024             454,879               
615,244              -                         -                         615,244               
453,731              247,721             102,957             598,495               

Total 58,101,372$        2,266,153$         2,097,505$         58,270,020$        

2018

The Board is committed under operating leases for the rental of premises and equipment. The
minimum annual payments under these leases are as follows:

2017

Computers

2019

Leasehold improvements

2016

Computers under capital lease

Collections

The Board has a pension agreement with OMERS, which is a multi-employer plan, on behalf of its full
and part-time staff. The plan is a contributory defined benefit plan which specifies the amount of
retirement benefit to be received by the employees based on the length of service and rates of pay.
The amount contributed to OMERS for 2015 is $1,010,628 (2014 - $1,008,214) for current service and
is included as an expenditure in the statement of operations.

Furniture and equipment

Buildings

Trust funds administered by the Board amounting to $3,469,132 (2014 - $3,470,568) have not been
included in the statement of financial position nor have their operations been included in the statement
of operations.  They are reported separately on the trust fund statement of continuity.



THE LONDON PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015

6. Tangible capital assets (continued):

Balance at Balance at 
December 31, December 31,

Accumulated amortization 2014 Additions Disposals 2015

Land -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
Buildings 22,236,605          1,511,095          -                         23,747,700          
Leasehold improvements 266,979              16,987               -                         283,966               
Collections 5,558,493            1,505,066          1,585,524          5,478,035            
Shelving 625,910              33,274               -                         659,184               
Computers 403,156              221,320             409,024             215,452               
Computers under capital lease 615,244              -                         -                         615,244               
Furniture and equipment 316,282              90,103               102,957             303,428               

Total 30,022,669$        3,377,845$         2,097,505$         31,303,009$        

Net book value Net book value 
December 31, December 31,

2014 2015

Land 4,611,030$          4,611,030$          
Buildings 17,102,633          16,198,143          
Leasehold improvements 82,104                65,117                 
Collections 5,147,944            4,886,447            
Shelving 705,054              671,780               
Computers 292,489              239,427               
Computers under capital lease -                          -                          
Furniture and equipment 137,449              295,067               

Total 28,078,703$        26,967,011$        



THE LONDON PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015

7. Accumulated surplus:

2015 2014 

Surplus:
Invested in tangible capital assets 26,967,011$      28,078,703$      
Unfunded:

Employee benefits, accrued sick and vacation (1,328,784)        (1,379,748)        
Employee benefits, future benefit liability (2,053,000)        (1,998,000)        
Other (42,460)             (42,460)             

Total surplus 23,542,767        24,658,495        

Reserves set aside by the Board:
Stabilization fund 149,737            114,103            
Collections encumbrance fund 66,558              69,160              

Total reserves 216,295            183,263            

Reserve held by the City on behalf of the Board:
Sick leave reserve 321,387            331,249            

24,080,449$     25,173,007$      

8. Budget data:

Budget amount

Revenues:
Operating budget 20,693,473$      

Expenses:
Operating budget 20,693,473        

Annual surplus , as budgeted -$                     

Contribution to reserve fund 50,000              
Capital funding from The City of London 922,607            
New major facilities expense (922,607)           

Annual surplus, revised 50,000$            

Budget figures have been provided for comparison purposes. Given differences between the budgeting
model and generally accepted accounting principles established by PSAB, certain budgeted amounts
have been reclassified to reflect the presentation adopted under PSAB.

Accumulated surplus consists of surplus and reserve funds as follows:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Commissioners, Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of the Corporation of the City of 

London 

 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the London Transit Commission ("the Entity"), 

which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2015 and the statements of 

operations, change in net financial assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a 

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 
 
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 

accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management 

determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor's Responsibility 
 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 

our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Those standards require that 

we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment 

of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 

those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Entity's preparation and fair 

presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 

control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 

reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 

presentation of the financial statements. 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 

London Transit Commission as at December 31, 2015, and the results of its operations and its cash flows 

for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

 
Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

March 30, 2016 

London, Canada 



2015 2014

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 32,883,164$       33,226,676$       

Investments 19,002,214        18,643,651         

Accounts receivable 884,179             617,620              

Due from The City of London 352,156             56,743                
53,121,713        52,544,690         

Financial Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 8,596,631          8,324,380           

Due to The City of London 15,951               61,282                

Accrued liability insurance claims (note 8) 1,670,544          1,654,597           

Employee future benefits (note 7) 4,077,000          4,138,000           

Deferred fare media 3,994,995          4,133,077           

Deferred revenue (note 4 and note 11) 28,478,802        27,482,766         
46,833,923        45,794,102         

Net financial assets 6,287,790          6,750,588           

Non - Financial Assets

Inventories (note 2) 2,098,388          1,797,812           

Tangible capital assets (note 10) 87,388,491        86,900,229         

Prepaids 734,536             764,745              
90,221,415        89,462,786         

Commitments (note 9)

Accumulated surplus (note 3) 96,509,205$        96,213,374$        

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

LONDON TRANSIT COMMISSION
Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014



Budget 2015 2014

Revenue:
Grants:

The City of London (note 5) 34,237,900$   33,980,734$   31,442,401$     
Province of Ontario (note 5) 12,722,300    8,426,404      10,295,969       

46,960,200    42,407,138    41,738,370       

User charges, conventional transit:
Cash fares 4,194,900      4,212,009      4,268,479         
Ticket fares (note 5) 9,724,500      9,896,544      9,617,672         
Pass fares (note 5) 17,350,700    16,488,680    18,396,062       
Contract service 30,000           28,243            70,143              
Other transportation revenue -                     52,069            93,409              

31,300,100    30,677,545    32,445,765       

Other revenue, conventional transit:
Advertising 578,200         578,200         608,440            
Interest and discounts 760,000         735,239         805,988            
Rent 2,500             2,534              2,676                
Gain on disposal of capital assets 48,000           59,223            170,039            
Miscellaneous 55,000           45,019            79,800              

1,443,700      1,420,215      1,666,943         

User charges, specialized transit:
Cash fares 15,500           14,960            16,509              
Ticket fares (note 5) 338,500         316,297         300,401            
Pass fares (note 5) 158,000         162,145         153,359            

512,000         493,402         470,269            

Total revenue 80,216,000     74,998,300     76,321,347       

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

LONDON TRANSIT COMMISSION
Statement of Operations

Year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014



Budget 2015 2014

LONDON TRANSIT COMMISSION
Statement of Operations

Year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

Expenses:
Salaries, wages and benefits:

Transportation 30,559,123$   30,322,546$   28,667,926$     
Vehicle maintenance 8,104,483      7,827,530      7,489,597         
Facility 449,093         465,214         442,664            
Planning, marketing and general administration 2,948,301      2,853,855      2,829,300         

42,061,000    41,469,145    39,429,487       

Materials, supplies, utilities and services:
Transportation 2,114,800      2,205,811      2,535,589         
Vehicle maintenance 4,344,500      4,488,242      4,527,636         
Facility 2,813,400      2,729,955      2,825,089         
Planning, marketing and general administration 1,521,600      1,638,705      1,508,163         
Fuel 7,524,500      5,944,733      7,535,027         
Amortization -                     10,453,942    10,724,879       

18,318,800    27,461,388    29,656,383       

Current operations, specialized transit:
Administration:

Salaries and benefits 807,300         825,140         786,551            
Materials and supplies 123,000         121,341         123,807            

930,300         946,481         910,358            
Contracted service delivery 4,892,500      4,825,455      4,427,090         

5,822,800      5,771,936      5,337,448         

Total expenses 66,202,600    74,702,469    74,423,318       

Annual surplus (note 12) 14,013,400$   295,831         1,898,029         

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 96,213,374    94,315,345       

Accumulated surplus, end of year 96,509,205$   96,213,374$     

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



2015 2014

Annual surplus 295,831$          1,898,029$      

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (10,942,204)      (11,065,698)     
Amortization of tangible capital assets 10,453,942       10,724,879      
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets (59,223)             (170,039)          
Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets 59,223              170,039           

(192,431)           1,557,210        

Inventories (300,576)           (113,631)          
Prepaid expenses 30,209              83,599             

(270,367)           (30,032)            

Change in net financial assets (462,798)           1,527,178        

Net financial assets, beginning of year 6,750,588         5,223,410        

Net financial assets, end of year 6,287,790$      6,750,588$      

LONDON TRANSIT COMMISSION
Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets

Year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



2015 2014

Cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities:
Annual surplus 295,831$        1,898,029$        
Items not involving cash:

Amortization 10,453,942     10,724,879        
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets (59,223)           (170,039)           
Change in employee future benefit liability (61,000)         11,000               

Changes in non-cash assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (266,559)         33,539               
Due from The City of London (295,413)         469,070             
Inventories (300,576)         (113,631)           
Prepaids 30,209            83,599               
Investments (358,563)         (54,656)             
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 272,251          13,475               
Due to The City of London (45,331)           (13,818)             
Accrued liability insurance claims 15,947            308,817             
Deferred fare media (138,082)         1,645,541          
Deferred revenue 996,036          (5,467,908)        

Net change in cash from operating activities 10,539,469     9,367,897          

Capital activities:
Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets 59,223          170,039             
Cash used to acquire tangible capital assets (10,942,204)  (11,065,698)      

Net change in in cash from capital activities (10,882,981)  (10,895,659)      

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (343,512)       (1,527,762)        

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 33,226,676   34,754,438        

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 32,883,164$  33,226,676$      

LONDON TRANSIT COMMISSION
Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



LONDON TRANSIT COMMISSION
Notes to Financial Statements

Year ended December 31, 2015

1. Significant accounting policies:

(a) Basis of accounting:

(b) Cash and cash equivalents:

(c) Deferred fare media and revenue:

(d) Post-employment benefits liability:

(i)

(ii)

The cost of employee future benefit plans are actuariallydetermined using management's best estimate of
salary escalation, insurance and health care cost trends, long-term inflation rates and discount rates.

The cost of multi-employer defined benefit pension plan, such as the Ontario Municipal Employees
Retirement System ("OMERS") pensions, are the employer's contributions to the plan in the period.
OMERS provides benefits for employees of Ontario municipalities, local boards, public utilities and school
boards.  As this is a multi employer plan, no liability is recorded on the Commission's books.

The financial statements of the London Transit Commission (the "Commission") are the representation of
management prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles as defined in the CPA
Canada Public Sector Accounting Handbook.

The Commission follows the accrual method of accounting for revenues and expenses. Revenues are
normally recognized in the year in which they are earned and measureable. Expenses are recognized as they
are incurred and measurable as a result of receipt of goods or services and/or the creation of a legal obligatio
to pay.

The balances reported for cash and cash equivalents in these financial statements include both funds for
current purposes and balances held for reserve funds.

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts held in banks and highly liquid investments with maturities at time
of  purchase of three months or less.

The Commission receives contributions pursuant to legislation, regulations or agreement that may be only
used for certain programs or in the completion of specific work. In addition, certain user charges and fees are
collected for which the related services have yet to be performed. These amounts are recognized as revenue
in the fiscal year the related expenditures are incurred or the services performed.

The Commission provides defined retirement and other future benefits to specified employee groups. These
benefits include pension, health, dental, life insurance, compensated absences, and workers' compensation
benefits.  The Commission has adopted the following policies with respect to accounting for these benefits:

Government transfer payments from the City of London are recognized in the financial statements in the year
in which the payment is authorized and the events giving rise to the transfer occur, performance criteria are
met, and a reasonable estimate of the amount can be made. Funding that is stipulated to be used for specific
purposes is only recognized as revenue in the fiscal year that the related expenses are incurred or services
performed. If the funding is received for which the related expenses have not yet been incurred or services
performed, these amounts are recorded as deferred revenue at year end.



LONDON TRANSIT COMMISSION
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015

1. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(e) Tangible capital assets:

Asset Useful life - years

Site work 25
Buildings 10 - 60
Shelters, pads, and terminals 10
Rolling stock 12
Fare and data collection equipment 15
Radio/communication equipment 15
Bike racks on buses 5
Service fleet 3
Shop equipment 5
Small tools 3
Computer hardware 3
Computer software 3

(f) Use of estimates:

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes amounts that are directly attributable to acquisition,
construction, development or betterment of the asset. The cost, less residual value, of the tangible capital
assets, excluding land, are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Tangible capital assets which are under construction are not amortized until the tangible capital assets are 
ready for productive use.



LONDON TRANSIT COMMISSION
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015

2. Inventories:

2015 2014

Spare parts 2,097,427$          1,797,132$      
Returnable containers 961                      680                   

2,098,388$          1,797,812$     

3. Accumulated surplus:

2015 2014

Surplus:
Invested in tangible capital assets 87,388,491$        86,900,229$    
To be recovered from public liability insurance reserve fund (1,670,544)           (1,654,597)       
Unfunded:

Employee future benefits liability (4,077,000)           (4,138,000)       
Vacation pay earned and accrued payroll (2,805,969)           (2,725,809)       

Total surplus 78,834,978          78,381,823      

Reserve set aside for specific purposes of the Commission (note 11):
3,203,250            3,203,250        
3,275,765            3,443,865        
2,647,488            2,440,337        

Total reserves 9,126,503            9,087,452        

Reserve funds set aside for specific purposes by the Commission (note 11):
4,658,384            4,752,935        
3,889,340            3,991,164        

Total reserve funds 8,547,724            8,744,099        

96,509,205$        96,213,374$   

4. Deferred revenue:

2015 2014

28,471,566$        27,482,766$    
7,236                   -                        

28,478,802$        27,482,766$   

The City of London capital funding
Provincial gas tax

General operating reserve
Health care management reserve

Accumulated surplus consists of individual fund surpluses and reserve and reserve funds as follows:

Capital program reserve fund
Public liability insurance reserve fund

Energy management reserve



LONDON TRANSIT COMMISSION
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015

5. Grants:

(a)  The City of London:

2015 2014

Operating grants:
Specialized transit 4,160,800$          3,862,000$      
Conventional transit 22,881,400          22,234,000      

27,042,200          26,096,000      

Capital grants:
Capital levy and debentures 6,480,164            5,346,401        
Development 458,370               -                        

6,938,534            5,346,401        

Total grants received from The City of London 33,980,734$        31,442,401$    

2015 2014

Equalization grant, seniors (reduced fares) 355,786$             339,406$         
Free transportation, blind 164,289               177,954           

520,075$             517,360$        

(b)  Province of Ontario:

2015 2014

$          3,109,895 $      4,912,577 

Operating grants:
            5,316,509         5,383,392 

8,426,404$          10,295,969$   

Gas tax program
Capital grants:

Grants from The City of London for current and capital operations for conventional transit and specialized transit
are as follows:

Provincial grants recognized as revenue during the year ended December 31, for capital and operating programs
are as follows:

In addition The City of London sponsors certain groups using both conventional and specialized public transit.
These groups receive reduced fares or free fares. The Commission receives grants, on behalf of the respective
groups, as fare offsets and are shown as such on the Statement of Operations as part of the ticket and pass fares.
Particulars of the grants are as follows:

Gas tax program



LONDON TRANSIT COMMISSION
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015

6.

7.

2015 2014

 $          4,077,000 $      4,138,000 

2015 2014

225,000$             217,000$         
               136,000            135,000 
               (39,000)            (39,000)
             (383,000)          (302,000)

(61,000)$              11,000$          

3.75%
3.00%
6.50%
4.50%Healthcare cost ultimate

Healthcare cost current

Pension agreement:

Effective February 1, 1989, the London Transit Commission commenced participation in the Ontario Municipal
Employees Retirement System (OMERS) which is a multi employer plan, for all active employees at that date as well
as for all new employees. As of December 31, 2015 there were 509 (495 for 2014) active employees. The plan is a
contributory defined benefit plan which specifies the amount of retirement benefit to be received by the employees
based on their length of service and rates of pay. Changes by OMERS to the plan, since February 1, 1989, apply to
service after February 1, 1989. For pre-February 1, 1989 service, the Commission provides pension benefits, as
determined by the pension plan document.

Discount rate

Benefits paid

Significant assumptions are as follows:

Employee future benefits:

The Commission provides benefits to retirees until they reach sixty-five years of age and provides certain benefits to
employees on long term disability. The employee future benefit liability has been estimated based on an actuarial
valuation which was completed at December 31, 2012.

Employee future benefits liability as of December 31

Interest on accrued benefit obligation
Current year benefit cost

Employer contributions to OMERS for 2015 were $2,703,475 (2014 - $2,610,908).

Rate of compensation increase

Amortized gain

Retirement and other future benefit expenses included in total expenditures consist of the following:

The London Transit Commission continues to sponsor a pre-February 1, 1989, contributory defined benefit pension
plan for employees on long term disability at February 1, 1989 that are not likely to return to active employment.



LONDON TRANSIT COMMISSION
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015

8. Public liability insurance:

9. Commitments:

(a)  Lease obligation:

(b) Bus procurement:

The Commission has approved the awarding of contracts with New Flyer Industries for the purchase of fiftteen
replacement and expansion buses ($8.3 million). All buses are anticipated to be on site by the end of October
2016.

The Commission rents a portion of a property located at 150 Dundas Street for an information office and sales
outlet. The lease expires August 31, 2016. The annual base lease amount is $19,189 plus an approximate
additional amount of $8,400 for taxes and common area maintenance. Lease payments until the expiry of the
lease total $18,361.

At December 31, 2015, there were 98 liability claims and 14 accident benefits claims outstanding that may result in
payment under the insurance deductible provisions. The estimated cost to the Commission is $1,476,375 and
$194,169 (2014 - $1,471,013 and $183,584) respectively for a total of $1,670,544 (2014 - $1,654,597) to be funded
from the public liability reserve fund.



Year ended December 31, 2015

10. Tangible capital assets:

Balance Balance 

December 31, December 31,
Cost 2014 Additions Disposals 2015

Land 2,804,632$           -$                           -$                            2,804,632$              
Site work 2,625,769             26,217                  -                            2,651,986              
Buildings 43,111,347           266,547                -                            43,377,894            
Shelters, pads, and terminals 1,039,886             38,970                  -                            1,078,856              
Rolling stock 96,937,533           9,355,943               (4,223,114)              102,070,362            
Fare and data collection equipment 4,719,659             722,067                -                            5,441,726              
Radio/communication equipment 7,922,317             173,802                -                            8,096,119              
Bike racks on buses 158,878                -                            -                            158,878                 
Service fleet 341,577                31,434                  (30,277)                 342,734                 
Shop equipment 2,762,688             148,595                (25,986)                 2,885,297              
Small tools 169,491                51,843                  (55,808)                 165,526                 
Computer hardware 531,999                36,019                  -                            568,018                 
Computer software 755,261                90,767                  -                            846,028                 

163,881,037$       10,942,204$         (4,335,185)$           170,488,056$         

Balance Balance 
December 31, December 31,

Accumulated amortization 2014 Disposals Amortization 2015

Land -$                          -$                          -$                           -$                             
Site work 892,355                -                           106,079                998,434                 
Buildings 11,091,086           -                           1,414,210             12,505,296            
Shelters, pads, and terminals 716,098                -                           66,417                  782,515                 
Rolling stock 55,016,703           (4,223,114)           7,589,040             58,382,629            
Fare and data collection equipment 1,571,626             -                           362,034                1,933,660              
Radio/communication equipment 3,435,061             -                           539,741                3,974,802              
Bike racks on buses 133,920                -                           24,958                  158,878                 
Service fleet 302,537                (30,277)                39,430                  311,690                 
Shop equipment 2,504,467             (25,986)                151,881                2,630,362              
Small tools 112,114                (55,808)                55,176                  111,482                 
Computer hardware 496,145                -                           38,827                  534,972                 
Computer software 708,696                -                           66,149                  774,845                 

76,980,808$         (4,335,185)$          10,453,942$          83,099,565$           

Balance Balance 
December 31, December 31,

Net book value 2014 2015

Land 2,804,632$           2,804,632$             
Site work 1,733,414             1,653,552              
Buildings 32,020,261           30,872,598            
Shelters, pads, and terminals 323,788                296,341                 
Rolling stock 41,920,830           43,687,733            
Fare and data collection equipment 3,148,033             3,508,066              
Radio/communication equipment 4,487,256             4,121,317              
Bike racks on buses 24,958                  -                         
Service fleet 39,040                  31,044                   
Shop equipment 258,221                254,935                 
Small tools 57,377                  54,044                   
Computer hardware 35,854                  33,046                   
Computer software 46,565                  71,183                   

86,900,229$         87,388,491$           

The historical cost, accumulated amortization and net book value of tangible capital assets employed by the Commission at December
31 is as follows:

LONDON TRANSIT COMMISSION
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)



11. Analysis of reserves, reserve funds, and deferred revenues:

For Energy General For Health Care 
Management Operating Management 2015 2014

Reserve Reserve Reserve Total Total 

Reserves:
Balance, beginning of year 3,203,250$           3,443,865$          2,440,337$              9,087,452$         8,631,254$    
Contributions from current operations -                            (168,100)             454,766                  286,666              637,177        
Appropriations to current operations -                            -                          (247,615)                (247,615)             (180,979)      

3,203,250$           3,275,765$          2,647,488$              9,126,503$         9,087,452$    

Public 
Capital liability 2015 2014

program insurance Total Total 

Reserve funds:
Balance, beginning of year 4,752,935$          3,991,164$              8,744,099$         7,277,012$    
Interest earned 43,844                39,881                    83,725                87,805          
Contributions from current operations 259,233              380,000                  639,233              2,372,088     

5,056,012           4,411,045               9,467,057           9,736,905     

Expenditures:
Appropriations (to) current
Appropriations to current operations -                          (521,705)                (521,705)             (731,517)      
Appropriations to capital LTC (397,628)             -                             (397,628)             (261,289)      

(397,628)             (521,705)                (919,333)             (992,806)      

Balance, end of year 4,658,384$          3,889,340$              8,547,724$         8,744,099$    

Provincial 
City of gas tax 2015 2014

London program Total Total 

Deferred revenues:
Balance, beginning of year -$                         27,482,766$            27,482,766$       32,950,674$  
Interest earned -                          496,146                  496,146              545,430        
Contributions 7,236                  9,415,204               9,422,440           4,828,061     

7,236                  37,394,116             37,401,352         38,324,165   

Expenditures:
Appropriations to current operations (5,316,509)             (5,316,509)          (5,383,392)   
Appropriations to capital LTC (3,606,041)             (3,606,041)          (5,458,007)   

(8,922,550)             (8,922,550)          (10,841,399) 

Balance, end of year 28,471,566$            28,478,802$       27,482,766$  

LONDON TRANSIT COMMISSION
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015



LONDON TRANSIT COMMISSION
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015

12. Reconciliation of annual surplus to Commission approved operating surplus:

Budget 2015 2014

Annual surplus $   14,013,400 $            295,831  $     1,898,029 

Capital expenditures (14,888,000)     (10,942,203)         (11,065,698)     
Transfers from reserves and reserve funds 2,350,000        1,166,947            1,173,786        
Contributions to reserves and reserve funds (1,475,400)       (1,177,724)           (2,841,371)       
Amortization of fixed assets -                   10,453,942          10,724,879      
Other -                   203,207               110,375           

Commission approved surplus -$                 -$                     -$                 

13. Adoption of new accounting policy:

The Commission's annual operating and capital budget programs are fully funded with actual to budget
performance expected to be in a balanced position, that is the Commission does not budget for a surplus or deficit.

PSAB requirements impact how and where revenue and expenditure items are reported and on what financial
statement. This results in the reporting of a 2015 paper budget surplus, a 2015 actual surplus and a 2014 actual
surplus.

These reported surplus and deficits, budgeted and actual, are reconciled to the balanced position in the following
table:

The Commission adopted Pubic Sector Accounting Board Standard PS 3260 Liability for Contaminated Sites
effective January 1, 2015. Under PS 3260, contaminated sites are defined as the result of contamination being
introduced in air, soil, water or sediment of a chemical, organic or radioactive material or live organism that exceeds
an environmental standard. This Standard relates to sites that are not in productive use where an unexpected event
resulted in contamination. The commission adopted this standard on a retroactive basis and there were no
adjustments as a result of the adoption of this standard.
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MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT 
DRAFT Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2015 
 

 
 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
 
The accompanying financial statements of the Middlesex-London Health Unit (“Health Unit”) are the 
responsibility of the Health Unit's management and have been prepared in compliance with legislation, and in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards for local governments established by the Public 
Sector Accounting Board of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada.  A summary of the significant 
accounting policies are described in Note 1 to the financial statements.  The preparation of financial statements 
necessarily involves the use of estimates based on management's judgment, particularly when transactions 
affecting the current accounting period cannot be finalized with certainty until future periods. 
 
 
The Health Unit's management maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable 
assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and recorded in compliance with 
legislative and regulatory requirements, and reliable financial information is available on a timely basis for 
preparation of the financial statements.  These systems are monitored and evaluated by management. 
 
 
The Finance & Facilities Committee meets with management and the external auditors to review the financial 
statements and discuss any significant financial reporting or internal control matters prior to their approval of 
the financial statements. 
 
 
The financial statements have been audited by KPMG LLP, independent external auditors appointed by the 
City of London.  The accompanying Auditor's Report outlines their responsibilities, the scope of their 
examination and their opinion on the Health Unit’s financial statements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dr. Christopher Mackie, MD 
Medical Officer of Health & 
Chief Executive Officer 

 John Millson, BA, CPA, CGA 
Associate Director, Finance 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Jesse Helmer, Chair 
Board of Health 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT  

To the Chair and Members, Middlesex-London Board of Health 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Middlesex-London Health Unit, which comprise the statement 

of financial position as at December 31, 2015, the statements of operations, change in net debt, and cash flows for the year 

then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 

Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to 

enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 

accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical 

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 

free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 

statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider 

internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the statements in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 

of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 

reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 

financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Middlesex-London 

Health Unit as at December 31, 2015, and its results of operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance 

with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

 

“DRAFT” 

 

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

June 2016 

London, Canada 
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MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT 
DRAFT Statement of Financial Position 
December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014 
 

 2015 2014 

Financial Assets 
  

Cash $ 3,466,669 $         $3,421,643 
Accounts receivable  328,393 370,630 
Grants receivable  345,299 344,553 
  4,140,361  4,136,826 

Financial Liabilities  
 

Province of Ontario  374,343  447,389 
Government of Canada 65,107 98,681 
The Corporation of the City of London 44,039 - 
The Corporation of the County of Middlesex 8,386 - 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,690,772 1,206,008 
Accrued wages and benefits 445,010 905,124 
Vested sick leave liability (note 2(a)) 106,859 156,401 
Post-employment benefits liability (note 2(b)) 1,997,000 1,840,000 
  4,731,516    4,653,603 

Net Debt (591,155) (516,777) 

Non-Financial Assets 
  

Tangible capital assets (note 4)  1,794,019  1,961,025 
Prepaid expenses 253,981 182,991 
 2,048,000 2,144,016 
Commitments and subsequent events (note 5)   
Contingencies (note 6)  
 

  

Accumulated Surplus (note 7) $ 1,456,845 $ 1,627,239 

   
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT 
DRAFT Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus 
Year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014 

 2015 Budget 2015 2014 
 
Revenue: 

   

Grants:    
Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care $  21,330,274 $  21,706,723 $  20,924,053 
Ministry of Children and Youth Services 5,256,596 5,482,649 5,156,343 
Government of Canada 308,604 329,355 212,833 
The Corporation of the City of London 6,095,059 6,051,020 6,095,059 
The Corporation of the County of Middlesex 1,160,961 1,152,575 1,160,961 

 34,151,494 34,722,322 33,549,249 
Other:    

Property search fees 3,750 3,942 2,050 
Family planning 285,000 244,934 260,502 
Dental service fees 234,470 179,543 199,881 
Investment income 21,200 9,814 20,531 
Prenatal class income 8,140 4,595 5,210 
Other income (note 8) 642,436 1,040,235 1,147,758 

 1,194,996 1,483,063 1,635,932 
Total Revenue 35,346,490 36,205,385 35,185,181 
    
Expenditures:    

Salaries:    
Medical Officers of Health 450,554 484,297 423,345 
Public Health Nurses 9,549,921 9,459,278 9,266,539 
Public Health Inspectors 2,540,685 2,484,829 2,460,376 
Administrative staff 3,610,364 3,579,006 3,642,632 
Dental staff 1,002,914 935,894 977,259 
Other salaries 3,095,498 3,563,337 3,558,592 

 20,249,936 20,506,641 20,328,743 
Other Operating:    

Benefits 5,592,277 5,935,086 5,413,598 
Travel 466,563 380,106 401,543 
Materials and supplies 1,229,232 1,384,167 1,288,360 
Professional services 4,224,058 4,473,636 3,662,763 
Rent and maintenance 1,555,712 1,624,139 1,600,988 
Amortization expense 531,339 700,706 904,924 
Other expenses (note 9) 1,247,373 1,371,298 1,723,878 

 14,846,554 15,869,138 14,996,054 
Total Expenditures 35,096,490 36,375,779 35,324,797 
    
Annual surplus / (deficit) 250,000 (170,394) (139,616) 
    
Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 1,627,239 1,627,239 1,766,855 
Accumulated surplus, end of year   $  1,877,239 $  1,456,845 $  1,627,239 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT 
DRAFT Statement of Changes in Net Debt 
Year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014 
 

 2015 2014 
   
Annual deficit $  (170,394) $  (139,616) 
   
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (533,700) (405,631) 
Amortization of tangible capital assets 700,706 904,924 
 (3,388) 359,677 
   
Acquisition of prepaid expenses (253,981) (182,991) 
Use of prepaid expenses 182,991 174,659 
 (70,990) (8,332) 
   
Change in net debt (74,378) 351,345 
   
Net debt, beginning of year (516,777) (868,122) 
Net debt, end of year $  (591,155) $  (516,777) 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT 
DRAFT Statement of Cash Flows 
December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014 
 

 2015 2014 
 
Cash provided by (used in): 

  

   
Operating activities:   

Annual deficit $  (170,394)  $  (139,616)  
Items not involving cash:   

Amortization 700,706 904,924 
Change in employee benefits and other liabilities 107,458 17,226 

Changes in non-cash assets and liabilities:   
Accounts receivable 42,237 (68,832) 
Grants receivable (746) (204,319) 
Prepaid expenses  (70,990) (8,332) 
Due to Province of Ontario (73,046) (468,821) 
Due to Government of Canada (33,574) 30,484 
Due to The Corporation of the City of London 44,039 (883,602) 
Due to The Corporation of the County of Middlesex 8,386 (168,300) 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 484,764 (325,836) 
Accrued wages and benefits (460,114) (231,132) 

Net change in cash from operating activities 578,726 (1,546,156) 
   
Capital activities:   

Cash used to acquire tangible capital assets (533,700) (405,631) 
Net change in cash from capital activities (533,700) (405,631) 
   
Net change in cash 45,026 (1,951,787) 
   
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 3,421,643 5,373,430 
   
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $  3,466,669 $  3,421,643 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT 
DRAFT Notes to Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2015 
 

The Middlesex-London Health Unit is a joint local board of the municipalities of The Corporation of the City of 
London and The Corporation of the County of Middlesex that was created on January 1, 1972.  The 
Middlesex-London Health Unit provides programs which promote healthy and active living throughout the 
participating municipalities.  

1. Significant accounting policies: 

The financial statements of the Middlesex-London Health Unit are prepared by management in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards as recommended by the Public Sector 
Accounting Board (“PSAB”) of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada.  Significant 
accounting policies adopted by the Middlesex-London Health Unit are as follows: 

 
(a) Basis of presentation: 

The financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenditures of the reporting 
entity.  The reporting entity is comprised of all programs funded by the Province of Ontario, The 
Corporation of the City of London, and The Corporation of the County of Middlesex.  It also includes 
other programs that the Board of Health may offer from time to time with special grants and/or 
donations from other sources.  

Inter-departmental transactions and balances have been eliminated. 

(b) Basis of accounting: 

Sources of financing and expenditures are reported on the accrual basis of accounting with the 
exception of donations, which are included in the statement of operations as received. 

The accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues as they become available and measurable; 
expenditures are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a result of receipt of services 
and the creation of a legal obligation to pay. 

 
The operations of the Middlesex-London Health Unit are funded by government transfers from the 
Province of Ontario, The Corporation of the City of London and The Corporation of the County of 
Middlesex.  Government transfers are recognized in the financial statements as revenue in the 
period in which events giving rise to the transfer occur, providing the transfers are authorized, any 
eligibility criteria have been met and reasonable estimates of the amounts can be made.  
Government transfers not received at year end are recorded as grants receivable due from the 
related funding organization in the statement of financial position.   
 
Funding amounts in excess of actual expenditures incurred during the year are either contributed to 
reserves or reserve funds, when permitted, or are repayable and are reflected as liabilities due from 
the related funding organization in the statement of financial position. 
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(c) Employee future benefits: 
 
(i) The Middlesex-London Health Unit provides certain employee benefits which will require funding in 

future periods.  These benefits include sick leave, life insurance, extended health and dental benefits 
for early retirees. 

 
The cost of sick leave, life insurance, extended health and dental benefits are actuarially determined 
using management’s best estimate of salary escalation, accumulated sick days at retirement, 
insurance and health care cost trends, long term inflation rates and discount rates. 

 
(ii) The cost of multi-employer defined benefit pension plan, namely the Ontario Municipal Employees 

Retirement System (OMERS) pensions, are the employer’s contributions due to the plan in the 
period.  As this is a multi-employer plan, no liability is recorded on the Middlesex-London Health 
Unit’s general ledger. 

  
(d) Non-financial assets: 

 
Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in the provision 
of services.  They have useful lives that extend beyond the current year and are not intended for sale in 
the ordinary course of operations. 
 
(i) Tangible capital assets 

 
Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes amounts that are directly attributed to 
acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset.  The cost, less residual value of the 
tangible capital assets, are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives as 
follows: 

 

Asset Useful Life - Years 

Leasehold Improvements 5 - 15 
Computer Systems 
Motor Vehicles 

4 
5 

Furniture & Equipment 7 

 

Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is available for productive use.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(d) Non-financial assets (continued): 
 

(ii) Contributions of tangible capital assets 
 
Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at their fair market value at the date of 
receipt and also are recorded as revenue. 
 

(iii) Leased tangible capital assets 
 
Leases which transfer substantially all of the benefits and risks incidental to ownership of property are 
accounted for as leased tangible capital assets.  All other leases are accounted for as operating 
leases and the related payment are charged to expense as incurred. 

(e) Use of estimates: 

The preparation of the Middlesex-London Health Unit's financial statements requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reporting amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure 
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the period.  Significant estimates include assumptions used in estimating 
provisions for accrued liabilities, and in performing actuarial valuations of employee future benefits. 
 
In addition, the Middlesex-London Health Unit’s implementation of the Public Sector Accounting 
Handbook PS3150 has required management to make estimates of the useful lives of tangible capital 
assets. 
 
Actual results could differ from these estimates. 
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2. Employee future benefits: 

The Middlesex-London Health Unit provides certain employee benefits which will require funding in future 
periods, as follows: 
 

(a) Vested sick leave liability: 

Under the sick leave benefit plan, unused sick leave can accumulate and employees may become entitled 
to a cash payment when they leave the Middlesex-London Health Unit’s employment.  This plan applies to 
employees hired prior to January 1, 1982. 

The liability for these accumulated days, to the extent that they have vested and could be taken in cash by 
an employee on termination, amounted to $106,859 (2014 - $156,401) at the end of the year. 

A reserve of $137,946 has been established to meet future commitments for this liability. 

 
(b) Post-retirement benefits liability: 

The Middlesex-London Health Unit pays certain life insurance benefits on behalf of the retired employees 
as well as extended health and dental benefits for early retirees to age sixty-five.  The Middlesex-London 
Health Unit recognizes these post-retirement costs in the period in which the employees render services.  
The most recent actuarial valuation was performed as at December 31, 2014. 

 

 2015 2014 
   
Accrued employee future benefit obligations 
Unamortized net actuarial gain/(loss) 

$  2,503,000 
(506,000)   

$  2,257,800 
(417,800)   

   
Employee future benefits liability as of December 31  $  1,997,000  $  1,840,000  

   
Retirement and other employee future benefit expenses included in the benefits in the statement of 
operations consist of the following: 
 

 2015 2014 
   
Current year benefit cost $    157,600    $    111,100    
Interest on accrued benefit obligation 88,300 67,100 
Amortization 35,200 300 
   
Total benefit cost $    281,100      $    178,500      

Benefits paid during the year were $124,100 (2014 - $137,700). 
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2. Employee future benefits (continued): 
 

(c) Post-retirement benefits liability (continued): 

The main actuarial assumptions employed for the valuation are as follows: 

(i) Discount rate: 

The obligation as at December 31, 2015, of the present value of future liabilities and the expense for 
the year ended December 31, 2015, are determined using a discount rate of 3.25% (2014 – 3.75%). 

(ii) Medical costs: 

Prescription drug costs are assumed to increase at the rate of 8% per year (2014 - 8%) declining to 
4% per year over 20 years.  Other Medical and Vision costs are assumed to increase at a rate of 4% 
per year, and 0% per year respectively.  

(iii) Dental costs: 

Dental costs are assumed to increase at the rate of 4% per year (2014 - 4%). 

3. Pension agreement: 

The Middlesex-London Health Unit contributes to the OMERS which is a multi-employer plan, on behalf of 312 
members.  The plan is a defined benefit plan which specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be 
received by the employees based on the length of service and rates of pay.   

During 2015, the plan required employers to contribute 9.0% of employee earnings up to the year's maximum 
pensionable earnings and 14.6% thereafter.  The Middlesex-London Health Unit contributed $1,992,186 (2014 
- $1,908,308) to the OMERS pension plan on behalf of its employees during the year ended December 31, 
2015. 
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4. Tangible Capital Assets: 
 

Cost 

Balance at 
December 31, 

2014 Additions Disposals 

Balance at 
December 31, 

2015 
     
Leasehold Improvements – 15 years $      2,643,847 $        29,025 $                    -      $      2,672,872 
Leasehold Improvements –   5 years 175,070 6,598 - 181,668 
Computer Systems 
Motor Vehicle 

1,520,047 
- 

384,427 
5,385 

 (269,747) 
- 

1,634,727 
5,385 

Furniture & Equipment 2,130,514 108,265 (247,420) 1,991,359 
Total $      6,469,478 $      533,700 $      (517,167) $      6,486,011 

 
 

Accumulated amortization 

Balance at 
December 31, 

2014 
Amortization 

expense Disposals 

Balance at 
December 31, 

2015 

Leasehold Improvements – 15 years $     2,008,063 $      162,574 $                   - $     2,170,637 
Leasehold Improvements –   5 years 153,815 18,121 - 171,936 
Computer Systems 
Motor Vehicle 

992,808 
- 

289,400 
673 

(269,747) 
- 

1,012,461 
673 

Furniture & Equipment 1,353,767 229,938 (247,420) 1,336,285 
Total $     4,508,453 $      700,706 $     (517,167) $     4,691,992 

 
 

 

Net book value 
December 31, 

2014   

Net book value 
December 31, 

2015 

Leasehold Improvements – 15 years $       635,784   $      502,235 
Leasehold Improvements –   5 years 21,255   9,732 
Computer Systems 
Motor Vehicle 

527,239 
- 

  622,266 
4,712 

Furniture & Equipment 776,747   655,074 
Total $    1,961,025   $    1,794,019 
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4. Tangible Capital Assets (continued): 
 

 
 
Cost 

Balance at 
December 31, 

2013 

 
 

Additions 

 
 

Disposals 

Balance at 
December 31, 

2014 
Leasehold Improvements – 15 years $      2,643,847 $                  - $                    -      $      2,643,847 
Leasehold Improvements –   5 years 172,879 2,191 - 175,070 
Computer Systems 1,542,561 266,971  (289,485) 1,520,047 
Furniture & Equipment 2,368,180 136,469 (374,135) 2,130,514 
Total $      6,727,467 $      405,631 $      (663,620) $      6,469,478 
 

 
 
Accumulated amortization 

Balance at 
December 31, 

2013 

 
Amortization 

expense 

 
 

Disposals 

Balance at 
December 31, 

2014 
Leasehold Improvements – 15 years $     1,690,171 $      317,892 $                   - $     2,008,063 
Leasehold Improvements –   5 years 143,735 10,080 - 153,815 
Computer Systems 969,371 312,922 (289,485) 992,808 
Furniture & Equipment 1,463,872 264,030 (374,135) 1,353,767 
Total $     4,267,149 $      904,924 $     (663,620) $     4,508,453 
 

 Net book value 
December 31, 

2013 

  Net book value 
December 31, 

2014 
Leasehold Improvements – 15 years $       953,676   $       635,784 
Leasehold Improvements –   5 years 29,144   21,255 
Computer Systems 573,190   527,239 
Furniture & Equipment 904,308   776,747 
Total $    2,460,318   $    1,961,025 

 

During the year, the Middlesex-London Health Unit deemed to have disposed of fully amortized assets with a cost 
basis of $517,167 (2014 - $663,620). 
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5. Commitments and Subsequent Events: 

The Middlesex-London Health Unit is committed under operating leases for office equipment and rental 
property. 
 
Future minimum payments to expiry are as follows: 
 

2016 $  887,624 
2017 719,986 
2018 719,986 
2019 684,586 
2020 
Thereafter 

649,186 
649,186 

 

Subsequent to the end of the year, the Middlesex-London Health Unit extended its main building lease for an 
additional five years beginning January 1, 2017.  This has been included in the commitments schedule above.  
Under the lease renewal, either party can terminate the lease by providing twelve months written notice.  

 

6. Contingencies: 
 

From time to time, the Middlesex-London Health Unit is subject to claims and other lawsuits that arise in the 
ordinary course of business, some of which may seek damages in substantial amounts.  These claims may be 
covered by the Middlesex-London Health Unit’s insurance.  Liability for these claims and lawsuits are recorded 
to the extent that the probability of a loss is likely and it is estimable. 

 

7. Accumulated Surplus: 
  

Accumulated surplus consists of individual fund surplus and reserves as follows: 
 

 2015 2014 
Surpluses:   

Invested in tangible capital assets $    1,794,019 $    1,961,025 
Unfunded:   

Sick leave benefits (106,859) (156,401) 
Post-employment benefits (1,997,000) (1,840,000) 

Total Surplus (309,840) (35,376) 
   
Reserves set aside by the Board:   

Accumulated sick leave 137,946 283,876 
Funding stabilization 
Employment Costs 
Technology & Infrastructure 

818,258 
176,077 
500,000 

818,258 
176,077 
250,000 

Environmental – septic tank 6,044 6,044 
Dental Treatment reserve 128,360 128,360 

Total reserves 1,766,685 1,662,615 
   
Accumulated surplus $   1,456,845 $   1,627,239 
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8. Other income:  

The following revenues are presented as other income in the statement of operations: 

 
2015 

Budget 
2015 
Actual 

2014 
Actual 

Collaborative project revenues $         17,466 $      288,697 $      422,868 
Food handler training  12,750 32,065 59,015 
Public Fit-testing 15,000 8,124 16,849 
Miscellaneous revenues 196,295 251,615 347,500 
OHIP Revenue 30,000 89,755 - 
Vaccine sales 367,925 356,787 293,611 
Workshop fees 3,000 13,192 7,915 

 $     642,436 $   1,040,235 $   1,147,758 
 

9. Other expenses:  

The following expenditures are presented as other expenses in the statement of operations: 

 
2015 

Budget 
2015 
Actual 

2014 
Actual 

Communications $       189,979   $       187,676   $       183,772   
Health promotion/advertising 341,010 373,047 526,810 
Miscellaneous expenses 292,814 387,005 691,559 
Postage and courier 68,125 56,799 61,233 
Printing 142,847 161,042 122,327 
Staff development 212,598 205,729 138,177 

 $    1,247,373 $    1,371,298 $    1,723,878 
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10. Budget data: 
 

The budget data presented in these financial statements is based upon the 2015 operating budgets approved 
by the Board of Health.  Amortization was not contemplated on development of the budget and, as such, has 
not been included.  The chart below reconciles the approved budget to the budget figures reported in these 
financial statements 

 

Revenues:  
Operating budget $   35,346,490 
  
Expenses:  
Operating budget 34,565,151 
Capital budget 531,339 
Total expenses    35,096,490 
  
Annual surplus, as budgeted $        250,000 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Chair and Members, Museum London 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Museum London, which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2015 and the statements of operations, change in 
net financial assets, and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Museum London as at December 31, 2015, and its results of operations and its cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

 

 
Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

March 30, 2016 

London, Canada 





MUSEUM LONDON
Statement of Operations

Year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

Budget 2015  2014 

Revenue:

Federal 188,337$                      187,505$                      188,375$                     

Provincial 210,954                        213,829                        247,046                       

Municipal:

1,614,000                     1,613,860                     1,550,125                    

1,544,000                     1,506,044                     439,866                       

Community:

    Donations 187,700                        268,271                        298,348                       

    Public programs 110,272                        98,089                          95,045                         

Ancillary services:

    Catering and rentals 190,000                        178,094                        164,079                       

     Fundraising events 84,100                          63,944                          67,552                         

Public program and 

   exhibition sponsorship 60,685                          88,829                          28,136                         

Donation of art and artifacts 387,000                        109,815                        459,833                       

Investment income 200,000                        390,345                        578,747                       

Other 373,700                        336,499                        425,434                       

Total revenue 5,150,748                     5,055,124                     4,542,586                    

Expenses

Operating:

    Operations 945,298                        922,807                        884,298                       

    General and administration 833,587                        792,282                        858,758                       

    Public programs 161,945                        328,198                        197,818                       

    Publicity 209,281                        171,557                        189,499                       

    Curatorial and collections management 558,084                       525,148                      606,010                      

    Amortization of tangible assets 430,000                        519,472                        427,826                       

  Ancillary services:

Catering and rentals 126,759                        100,757                        117,649                       

Fundraising events 30,500                          28,416                          38,292                         

  Public programs and exhibitions 296,585                        224,489                        257,116                       

  Donation of art and artifacts 387,000                        109,815                        459,833                       

  Purchase of art and artifacts 60,000                          103,726                        39,166                         

  Collection expense 25,700                          22,268                          22,891                         

  Investment expense 27,000                          34,323                          30,655                         

Total expenditures 4,091,739                     3,883,258                     4,129,811                    

Annual surplus 1,059,009                     1,171,866                     412,775                       

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 14,405,978                   14,405,978                   13,993,203                  

Accumulated surplus, end of year 15,464,987$                15,577,844$                14,405,978$               

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

    Operating

    Capital



MUSEUM LONDON
Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets

Year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

Budget  2015 2014

Annual surplus 1,059,009$             1,171,866$        412,775$               

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (1,544,000)              (1,506,044)         (439,866)                

Amortization of tangible capital assets 430,000                   519,472              427,826                  

(54,991)                    185,294              400,735                  

Change in prepaid expenses ‐                                 27,651                (28,937)                   

Change in net financial assets (54,991)                    212,945              371,798                  

Net financial assets, beginning of year 6,141,545               6,141,545          5,769,747              

Net financial assets, end of year 6,086,554$            6,354,490$       6,141,545$            

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



MUSEUM LONDON
Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31, 2015 with comparative information for 2014

2015  2014 

Cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities:

Annual surplus 1,171,866$               412,775$                 

Items not involving cash:

Amortization 519,472                    427,826                   

Change in employee benefits and other liabilities (18,484)                     47,549                     

Changes in non‐cash assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable (175,833)                   264,966                   

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 98,215                      (151,910)                  

Deferred revenue 30,818                      (199,171)                  

Prepaid expenses 27,651                      (28,937)                    

Net change in cash from operating activities 1,653,705                 773,098                   

Capital activities:

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (1,506,044)                (439,866)                  

Investing activities:

Investments (167,538)                   (263,033)                  

Increase (decrease) in cash  (19,877)                     70,199                     

Cash and equivalents, beginning of year 77,827                      7,628                        

Cash and equivalents, end of year 57,950$                   77,827$                   

Represented by:

Cash 57,950$                    77,827$                   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



MUSEUM LONDON
Notes to Financial Statements

Year ended December 31, 2015

1. Significant accounting policies:

The financial statements of Museum London, a registered charity and a local board of The City of
London (the "City") are prepared by management in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles for governments as recommended by the Public Sector
Accounting Board ("PSAB") of the Chartered Public Accountants Canada.

The accounts of Museum London are maintained in accordance with the principles of fund
accounting by which revenues, expenditures, assets and liabilities are allocated to a fund
according to the nature of each item.  Transfers between the funds are made as approved by the
Board.  

There are three types of funds:

(a) Operating funds are available for financing expenditures for the day to day operations of
Museum London;

(b) Tangible capital asset funds are available for financing expansion, replacement and major
repairs and maintenance of Museum London facilities; and

(c) Reserves and Restricted funds are designated for specific purposes and are either not
available for day to day operations or require special approval in accordance with Museum
London Board policy.

The statement of operations combines financial transactions of the three funds.  Note 8 provides
a summary of the financial activities of each fund.

(a) Basis of accounting:

Museum London follows the accrual method of accounting for revenues and expenses.
Revenues are normally recognized in the year in which they are earned and measurable.
Expenses are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a result of receipt of
goods or services and/or the creation of a legal obligation to pay.

(b) Government transfers:

Government transfer payments from the City of London are recognized in the financial
statements in the year in which the payment is authorized and the events giving rise to the
transfer occur, performance criteria are met, and a reasonable estimate of the amount can
be made. Funding that is stipulated to be used for specific purposes is only recognized as
revenue in the fiscal year that the related expenses are incurred or services performed. If
funding is received for which the related expense have not yet been incurred or services
performed, these amounts are recorded as a liability at year end.



MUSEUM LONDON
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015

1. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(c) Deferred revenue:

Deferred revenue represent grants, sponsorships and other designated funding which has
been received but for which the related exhibitions, programs or other services have yet to
be performed.  These amounts will be recognized as revenue in the fiscal year the services
are performed.

(d) Investment income:

Investment income is reported as revenue in the period earned.  Income earned on
restricted and unrestricted investment funds becomes part of the investment funds and are
not available for operating purposes.

(e) Cash equivalents:

Cash equivalents include short-term highly liquid investments redeemable on demand or
having a term to maturity of ninety days or less at acquisition. 

(f) Investments:

Investments are recorded at cost.  If the market value of investments becomes lower than
cost and this decline is considered to be other than temporary, the investments are written
down to market value.

(g) Employee future benefits:

The City provides certain employee benefits which will require funding in future periods.
These benefits include amounts for vacation for current employees.  These future liabilities
are recognized at current cost.  

(h) Pension contributions:

The costs of defined contribution pension plan benefits to the Ontario Municipal Employees
Retirement Fund (OMERS) are the employer’s contributions due to the plan in the period. 



MUSEUM LONDON
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015

1. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(i) Non-financial assets:

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in
the provision of services.  They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are
not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations.

(i) Tangible capital assets:

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes amounts that are directly
attributable to acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset.  The
cost of the tangible capital assets, excluding land, is amortized on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Asset Useful life

Building and building improvements:
Building structure and initial site-works 60 years
Building shell (cladding, roofing, windows) 20 years
Building services (heating, electrical, mechanical) 5-15 years
Site-work betterments and interior refurbishing 5-7 years

Furniture and equipment:
Heavy equipment 10 years
Furniture and small equipment 5 years

Annual amortization is charged in the year of acquisition and in the year of disposal.
Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is available for productive
use. 

(ii) Works of art and cultural and historic assets:

Works of art and material cultural and historic assets are not recorded as assets in
these financial statements. 

(j) Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the year.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.



MUSEUM LONDON
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015

1. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(k) Budget figures:

Budget figures have been provided for comparison purposes. Given differences between the
budgeting model and generally accepted accounting principles established by PSAB, certain
budgeted amounts have been reclassified to reflect the presentation adopted under PSAB.

2. Investments:

At December 31, 2015, investments at cost were comprised of the following:

2015 2014 

Canadian bond $ 3,505,066 $ 3,433,246
Canadian equity 1,508,423 1,465,839
US equity 556,285 462,304
International equity 945,434 986,281

$ 6,515,208 $ 6,347,670

At December 31, 2015 the approximate market value of the pooled fund investments amounted
to $6,855,417 (2014 - $6,689,050).

3. Employee future benefits:

Employee future benefits, reported on the statement of financial position, are comprised of the
following:

2015 2014

Vacation pay earned but not taken $ 90,354 $ 108,838

Under the provision of certain employee vacation plans, some vacation credits are earned as at
December 31, but are generally unavailable for use until a later date.  The approximate value of
these credits as at December 31, 2015 is $90,354 (2014 - $108,838).



MUSEUM LONDON
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015

4. Tangible capital assets:

Balance Balance 
December 31, December 31, 

2014 Additions Disposal Write-offs 2015

Cost:
Land $ 1,175,120 $ - $ - $ - $ 1,175,120
Building 12,341,010 1,459,153 - 860,830 12,939,333
Furniture and

equipment 99,572 46,891 - 4,167 142,296

$13,615,702 $ 1,506,044 $ - $ 864,997 $14,256,749

Accumulated amortization:
Building $ 5,462,429 $ 500,052 $ - $ 860,830 $ 5,101,651
Furniture and

equipment 12,428 19,420 - 4,167 27,681

$ 5,474,857 $ 519,472 $ - $ 864,997 $ 5,129,332

Net book value:
Land $ 1,175,120 $ 1,175,120
Building 6,878,581 7,837,682
Furniture and

equipment 87,144 114,615

$ 8,140,845 $ 9,127,417

5. Insurance:

Museum London has accumulated works of art with an insured value of $48,810,662 (2014 -
$48,810,662).  These works of art are not recorded as tangible capital assets in the financial
statements.



MUSEUM LONDON
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015

6. Accumulated surplus:

The accumulated surplus consists of the following:

2015 2014

Surplus:
Operating fund $ 17,212 $ (25,577)
Investment in tangible capital assets 9,127,417 8,140,845
Unfunded employee benefits (90,354) (108,838)

Total surplus 9,054,275 8,006,430

Reserve funds set aside for specific purposes by
Museum London:

Operating endowment 2,860,849 2,898,591

Restricted funds held by Museum London include the following:
Moore acquisitions fund 2,652,680 2,616,771
Moore collection management fund 282,879 281,954
Amelia Lucy Ronalds Little fund 158,304 155,806
Nancy Geddes Poole fund 97,919 93,019
Volunteer committee general fund 23,399 28,818
Volunteer committee acquisitions fund 276,745 221,313
Centre at the Forks 139,333 77,350
Cohen Innovations in Culture fund 25,543 25,542
Wolf fund 384 384
Satellite Gallery 5,534 -

3,662,720 3,500,957

$ 15,577,844 $ 14,405,978

The Amelia Lucy Ronalds Little Fund represents restricted funds to be used for the improvement,
redecoration, refurbishing, restoration and enhancement of Eldon House and the artifacts
contained therein. As the contract for the management of Eldon House was transferred by the
owner, the Corporation of The City of London, effective January 1, 2013, the Amelia Lucy
Ronalds Little Fund will be transferred from Museum London to the appropriate third party once
legal approvals are received.



MUSEUM LONDON
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015

7. Pension plan:

Museum London makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Fund
(“OMERS”) on behalf of twenty members of its staff.  The plan is a contributory defined benefit
plan which specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be received by the employees based
on length of service and rates of pay.

Contributions for employees with a normal retirement age of sixty-five were made at the rate of
9.0% for earnings up to the yearly maximum pensionable earnings of $53,600 and at a rate of
14.60% for earnings greater than the yearly maximum pensionable earnings. 

The amount contributed to OMERS for 2015 was $105,114 (2014 - $92,928) and is included as
an expense in the statement of operations. Employees' contributions to OMERS in 2015 was
$105,114 (2014 - $92,928).

8. Annual surplus:

The annual surplus in the statement of operations includes the net change of the balance of each
of the three funds: operating, investment in tangible capital asset, and reserve and restricted
funds along with the change in unfunded employee future benefits as follows:

2015 2014

Operating fund $ 42,789 $ (20,187)
Investment in tangible capital assets 986,572 12,040
Reserve and restricted funds 124,021 468,471
Change in unfunded employee benefits 18,484 (47,549)

Annual surplus $ 1,171,866 $ 412,775



MUSEUM LONDON
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015

8. Annual surplus (continued):

Statements of financial activities for the three funds follow:

(i) Operating Fund:

2015 2015 2014 
Budget Total Total 

Revenue:
Federal:

Canada Council for the Arts:
Operating $ 132,000 $ 132,000 $ 132,000
Acquisitions 30,000 28,650 11,700

Canadian Heritage 23,462 23,462 41,106
Other 2,875 3,393 3,569

Provincial:
Ontario Arts Council:

Operating grant 159,000 159,000 159,000
Other - - 3,668

Ministry of Tourism and Culture 51,954 51,954 51,954
Trillium - - 33,500
Other - 2,875 (1,076)

Municipal 1,614,000 1,613,860 1,550,125
Community:

Donations 187,700 127,894 187,806
Public programs 110,272 98,089 95,045

Ancillary services:
Catering and rentals 190,000 178,094 164,079
Fundraising events 84,100 63,944 67,552

Public program and
exhibition sponsorship 60,685 58,829 28,136

Investment income 500 952 386
Other 373,700 334,838 425,434

$ 3,020,248 $ 2,877,834 $ 2,953,984



MUSEUM LONDON
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015

8. Annual surplus (continued):

(i) Operating Fund (continued):

2015 2015 2014 
Budget Total Total 

 
Expenses:

Operating:
Operations $ 945,298 $ 922,807 $ 884,298
General and administration 833,587 792,282 855,550
Public programs 161,945 218,018 202,818
Publicity 209,281 171,557 189,499

Curatorial and collections management 558,084 525,148 606,010
Ancillary services:

Catering and rentals 126,759 100,757 117,649
Fundraising events 30,500 28,416 38,292
Exhibitions 296,585 224,489 252,116

Purchase of art and artifacts 60,000 103,726 39,166
Collection expense 25,700 22,268 22,891

3,247,739 3,109,468 3,208,289

Net expenditures (227,491) (231,634) (254,305)

Financing and transfers:
Transfer from reserve and

restricted funds 253,068 292,907 186,569
Employee benefits - (18,484) 47,549

Net financing and transfers 253,068 274,423 234,118

Change in fund balance 25,577 42,789 (20,187)

Surplus, beginning of year (25,577) (25,577) (5,390)

Surplus, end of year $ - $ 17,212 $ (25,577)



MUSEUM LONDON
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015

8. Annual surplus (continued):

(ii) Investment in tangible capital assets:

2015 2014

Revenue:
Municipal 1,506,044 $ 439,866

Amortization of tangible capital assets (519,472) (427,826)

Net revenue $ 986,572 $ 12,040

Change in fund balance $ 986,572 $ 12,040

Opening balance 8,140,845 8,128,805

Ending balance $ 9,127,417 $ 8,140,845

(iii) Reserve and Restricted Funds:

(a) Reserve Funds:

2015 2014

Transfers to reserves:
Net investment revenue $ 165,326 $ 246,731

Expenditure:
Transfer to operating fund 203,068 139,104

Change in reserve funds (37,742) 107,627

Opening balance 2,898,591 2,790,964

Closing balance $ 2,860,849 $ 2,898,591



MUSEUM LONDON
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015

8. Annual surplus (continued):

(iii) Reserve and Restricted Funds:

(b) Restricted Funds:

2015 2014

Transfer to restricted funds:
Net investment revenue $ 189,744 $ 300,975
Donations:

Learning centre 130,372 80,000
Innovations in culture - 25,542
Other 10,005 5,000

Partnership contributions 30,000 -
Miscellaneous 1,661 -

361,782 411,517

Expenditures:
Transfer to operating fund, acquisition of artwork 74,839 22,465
Transfer to operations, exhibitions 15,000 25,000
Eldon House furnishings and web-site 5,659 558
Learning Centre expenditures 68,389 2,650
Satellite Centre expenditures 36,132 -

200,019 50,673

Change in restricted funds 161,763 360,844

Opening balance 3,500,957 3,140,113

Closing balance $ 3,662,720 $ 3,500,957



MUSEUM LONDON
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015

9. Budget data:

Budget figures have been provided for comparison purposes.  Given differences between the
budgeting model and generally accepted accounting principles established by PSAB, certain
budgeted amounts have been reclassified to reflect the presentation adopted under PSAB. 

Budget amount 

Revenue:
Operating budget $ 3,020,248

Expense:
Operating budget 2,994,671

Annual operating surplus, as budgeted 25,577

Capital funding 1,544,000
Investment income 199,500
Donation of art and artifacts 387,000
Amortization of tangible assets (430,000)
Donation of art and artifacts (387,000)
Investment expense (27,000)
Transfers from reserve and restricted funds (253,068)

Annual surplus, revised $ 1,059,009
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
To the Chair and Members, Old East Village Business Improvement Area 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Old East Village Business Improvement 
Area, which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2015, the statements of 
operations and fund balances, change in net financial assets and cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Old East Village Business Improvement Area as at December 31, 2015, and its results of operations 
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted 
accounting principles. 

 
Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

May 18, 2016 

London, Canada 



OLD EAST VILLAGE BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT AREA
Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

2015 2014

Financial assets
 
Cash and short-term investments (note 2) $ 96,485 $ 113,215
Accounts receivable 1,997 5,967

98,482 119,182

Financial liabilities 
 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,473 16,612
Deferred revenue 33,866 36,771

36,339 53,383

Net financial assets 62,143 65,799

Non-financial assets

Tangible capital assets (note 4) 4,180 5,459
Prepaid expenses and deposits 7,488 11,879

11,668 17,338

Accumulated surplus (note 3) $ 73,811 $ 83,137

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



OLD EAST VILLAGE BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT AREA
Statement of Operations and Fund Balances

Year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

Budget 
2015 2015 2014

Revenue:
Requisition:

The City of London, Levy $ 14,781 $ 13,895 $ 13,908
Other:

The City of London 106,102 108,507 106,102
Miscellaneous 67,327 70,268 2,231

188,210 192,670 122,241

Expenditures:
      Administration 5,800 4,091 4,363
      Advertising, marketing and promotion 8,500 2,502 965
      Amortization - 1,279 1,613
      Beautification 5,000 1,792 2,525
      Community initiatives and appreciation 10,000 52 5,274
      Equipment and building maintenance 5,000 - 3,020
      Financial audit 1,500 1,213 1,300
      HST expense - 1,907 2,528
      Office rental 8,440 10,551 8,440
      Operating supplies and costs 4,282 1,615 2,126
      Payroll deductions - 8,309 6,707
      Printing and communications 7,500 1,032 2,408
      Purchased services 38,000 35,335 25,270
      Special projects 10,636 1,326 17,523
      Telephone and internet service 2,800 2,140 2,146
      Training, education and development 1,500 866 103
      Travel and transportation costs 3,000 777 260
      Wages and salaries 180,806 127,209 103,531

292,764 201,996 190,102

Annual deficit (104,554) (9,326) (67,861)

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 83,137 83,137 150,998

Accumulated surplus (deficit), end of year $ (21,417) $ 73,811 $ 83,137

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



OLD EAST VILLAGE BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT AREA
Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets

December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

2015 2014

Annual deficit $ (9,326) $ (67,861)
Acquisition of tangible capital assets - (2,091)
Amortization of tangible capital assets 1,279 1,613

(8,047) (68,339)

Acquisition of prepaid expenses (5,501) (6,908)
Use of prepaid expenses 9,892 30,646

4,391 23,738
(3,656) (44,601)

Net financial assets, beginning of year 65,799 110,400

Net financial assets, end of year $ 62,143 $ 65,799

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



OLD EAST VILLAGE BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT AREA
Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

2015 2014

Cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities:
Annual deficit $ (9,326) $ (67,861)
Item not involving cash:

Amortization of tangible capital assets 1,279 1,613
Changes in non-cash operating working capital:

Accounts receivable 3,970 2,651
Prepaid expenses and deposits 4,391 23,738
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (14,139) (28,012)
Deferred revenue (2,905) (18)

(16,730) (67,889)

Investing activities:
Addition to tangible capital assets - (2,091)

Decrease in cash and short-term investments (16,730) (69,980)

Cash and short-term investments, beginning of year 113,215 183,195

Cash and short-term investments, end of year $ 96,485 $ 113,215

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



OLD EAST VILLAGE BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT AREA
Notes to Financial Statements

Year ended December 31, 2015

1. Significant accounting policies:

The financial statements of the Old East Village Business Improvement Area are the
representation of management prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles as defined in the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada Public
Sector Accounting Handbook.

(a) Basis of accounting:

Sources of financing and expenditures are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.  The
accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues as they become available and measurable;
expenditures are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a result of receipt of
goods or services and the creation of a legal obligation to pay. 

(b) Tangible capital assets:

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes amounts that are directly
attributable to acquisition, development or betterment of the asset.  The cost, less residual
value, of the tangible capital assets are amortized on a declining balance basis over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Asset Rate

Furniture and fixtures 20%
Computer hardware 30-45%
Computer software 45%

(c) Government transfers:

Government transfer payments from the City of London are recognized in the financial
statements in the year in which the payment is authorized and the events giving rise to the
transfer occur, performance criteria are met, and a reasonable estimate of the amount can
be made. Funding that is stipulated to be used for specific purposes is only recognized as
revenue in the fiscal year that the related expenses are incurred or services performed. If
funding is received for which the related expenses have not yet been incurred or services
performed, these amounts are recorded as a liability at year end.

(d) Deferred revenue:

Contributions received for expenses of future periods are recorded as deferred revenue and
recognized as revenue in the fiscal period the expenses are incurred.



OLD EAST VILLAGE BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT AREA
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015

1. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(e) Donations in kind:

The Old East Village Business Improvement Area recognizes revenues and expenses for
services which are donated which can be reasonably valued and are services which
otherwise would have been purchased.

(f) Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the year.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.  

(g) Budget figures:

Budget figures have been provided for comparison purposes. Given differences between the
budgeting model and generally accepted accounting principles established by PSAB, certain
budgeted amounts have been reclassified to reflect the presentation adopted under PSAB.

2. Cash and short-term investments: 

2015 2014

Cash and short-term investments consist of:
Cash $ 90,446 $ 107,287
Guaranteed investment certificates 6,039 5,928

$ 96,485 $ 113,215



OLD EAST VILLAGE BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT AREA
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015

3. Accumulated surplus:

The balance of  accumulated surplus is comprised of the following:

2015 2014

Invested in tangible capital assets $ 4,180 $ 5,459

Reserves:
Contingencies 3,733 3,733
Mural maintenance 1,936 1,936

5,669 5,669

Operating fund 63,962 72,009

$ 73,811 $ 83,137

4. Tangible capital assets:

Balance at   Balance at 
December 31,   December 31, 

Cost 2014 Additions Disposals 2015 

Furniture and fixtures $ 18,697 $ - $ - $ 18,697
Computer hardware 11,018 - - 11,018
Computer software 3,609 - - 3,609

Total $ 33,324 $ - $ - $ 33,324

Balance at   Balance at 
December 31,  Amortization December 31, 

Accumulated amortization 2014  Disposals  expense 2015 

Furniture and fixtures $ 13,920 $ - $ 936 $ 14,856
Computer hardware 10,444 - 296 10,740
Computer software 3,501 - 47 3,548

Total $ 27,865 $ - $ 1,279 $ 29,144



OLD EAST VILLAGE BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT AREA
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2015

4. Tangible capital assets (continued):

 Net book value Net book value 
  December 31,     December 31,  

2014     2015 

Furniture and fixtures $ 4,777 $ 3,841
Computer hardware 574 278
Computer software 108 61

Total $ 5,459 $ 4,180



Financial Statements of

THE PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION
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December 31, 2015



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors of the Public Utility Commission of The City of London

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Public Utility Commission of The City of London,
which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2015, the statements of operations, change
in net financial assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free fron material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements The procedures selected depend on our judgment including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to fraud or error In making those risk
assessments we consider internal control relevant to the entity s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entitys internal control An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements

We believe that the audit evideice we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Public
Utility Commission of The City of London as at December 31, 2015, and its results of operations and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants

June XX, 2016

London, Canada



THE PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LONDON
Statement of Financial Position

As at December 31, 2015, with comparative figures for 2014

2015 2014

Financial Assets:

Cash and short term deposits $ 1,828,091 S 1,809,156
Due from City of London (Note 4) 240,960 279,536

2,069,051 2,088,691

Financial Liabilities:

Due to City of London (Note 4) 105,929 175,345
105,929 175,345

Net financial assets 1,963,122 1,913,346

Non-Financial Assets:

Tangible capital assets (Note 5) 3,519,772 3,707,544
3,519,772 3,707,544

Accumulated Surplus (Note 6) $ 5,482,894 $ 5,620,890

Contingent liability (Note 3)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement



THE PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LONDON
Statement of Operations

For the year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative figures for 2014

Budget 2015 2014

Revenue:

User charges S 280,000 $ 230,203 $ 281,435
Rents (Note 4) 100,000 100,000 100,000
Investment income 20,000 18,935 22,462

Total Revenue 400,000 349,138 403,897

Expenses:

General Government 515,274 487,134 529,822
515,274 487,134 529,822

Annual deficit (115,274) (137,996) (125,925)
Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 5,620,890 5,620,890 5,746,815
Accumulated surplus, end of year $ 5,505,616 $ 5,482,894 $ 5,620,890

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement



THE PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LONDON
Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets
For the year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative figures for 2014

Budget 2015 2014

Annual deficit $ (115,274) $ (137,996) S (125,925)

Amortization of tangible capital assets 187,774 187,772 187,774

Change in net financial assets 72500 49,776 61 ,849

Net financial assets, beginning of year 1,913,346 1,913,346 1,851,497

Netfinancial assets, end of year $ 1,985,846 $ 1,963,122 $ 1,913,346

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement



THE PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LONDON
Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative figures for 2014

2015 2014

Cash provided by (used in):

Operating Activities:

Annual deficit $ (137,996) $ (125,925)
Items not involving cash:

Amortization 187,772 187,774
Change in non-cash assets and liabilities:

Due from City of London 38,575 (13,203)
Due to City of London (69,416) (26,185)

Net change in cash from operating activities 18,935 22,461

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,809,156 1,786,695

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 1,828,091 $ 1,809,156

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement



THE PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LONDON
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative figures for 2014

7. Significant accounting policies:

The financial statements of the Commission are the representation of management
prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles as
defined in the CPA Canada Public Sector Accounting Handbook. Significant accounting
policies are as follows:

(a) Basis of accounting:

The Commission follows the accrual method of accounting for revenues and
expenses. Revenues are normally recognized in the year in which they are earned
and measurable. Expenses are recognized as they are incurred and measurable
as a result of receipt of goods or services and/or the creation of a legal obligation
to pay.

(b) Non-financial assets:

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held
for use in the provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the
current year and are not intended for sale in the ordinary course of business.

(I) Tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes amounts that
are directly attributable to acquisition, construction, development or
betterment of the asset. The costs, less residual value, of the tangible
capital assets, excluding land, are amortized on a straight line basis over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Asset Useful Life — Years

Land improvements 15

One half of the annual amortization is charged in the year of acquisition
and in the year of disposal. Assets under construction are not amortized
until the asset is available for productive use.

(ii) Contributions of tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at their fair
value at the date of receipt and also are recorded as revenue.

(c) Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
period. Significant estimates of historical costs and useful lives of tangible capital
assets were required in the implementation of Public Sector Accounting Handbook
PS31 50.

Actual results could differ from these estimates.



THE PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LONDON
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative figures for 2014

7. Significant accounting policies (continued);

(d) Change in Accounting Policy

The Commission adopted Public Sector Accounting Board Standard PS 3260
Liability for Contaminated Sites effective as of January 1, 2015. Under PS 3260,
contaminated sites are defined as the result of contamination being introduced in
air, soil, water or sediment of a chemical, organic, or radioactive material or live
organism that exceeds an environmental standard. This Standard relates to sites
that are not in productive use and sites in productive use where an unexpected
event resulted in contamination. The Commission adopted this standard on a
retroactive basis and there were no adjustments as a result of the adoption of this
standard.

2. Commission restructuring:

Pursuant to the Electricity Act, 1996 (Ontario), the various undertakings and activities of
The Hydro-Electric Commission of the City of London were segregated and a substantial
portion transferred on November 1, 2000 to separate companies incorporated under the
Business Corporations Act (Ontario) with The Corporation of the City of London as the
sole shareholder. The name of the Commission was changed to The Public Utility
Commission of the City of London effective November 1, 2000, and the Commission has
been at all material times and continues to be one and the same corporate and legal entity
with the status of a municipal service board under subsection 195(1) of the MunicipalAct.
2001. The composition of the Commission has previously been in accordance with section
22 of the London-Middlesex Act 1992, was re-established effective December 9, 2003
pursuant to subsection 195(9) of the Municipal Act, 2001. Members of the Commission
are such persons who have been appointed by the Municipal Council of the Corporation
of the City of London.

Certain property containing historic coal tar deposits was excluded from the transfer on
November 1, 2000 and has been retained since then by the Commission.

3. Environmental remediation:

The coal tar material is attributable to coal gasification works existing at this location
between approximately 1850 and 1930 and identified in a 1987 inventory of coal
gasification sites in Ontario by the provincial Ministry of the Environment (MOE).

The Commission is engaged in an ongoing environmental remediation program and
related risk management strategy that addresses the presence of historic coal tar in a
section of the bed and bank of the south branch of the Thames River and in two adjacent
parcels of Commission-owned land. In this context:

• A collection system was completed in November 2000 to intercept coal tar- impacted
ground water for treatment by an on-site facility which is situated on the smaller parcel.

• A hard-surfaced parking lot was constructed on the larger of the two parcels and is
being operated as a municipal parking lot.

• Coal tar removal and river bed rehabilitation has been satisfactorily completed and a
monitoring program which started in 2004 is in place.



THE PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LONDON
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative figures for 2014

3. Environmental remediation (continued):

Future costs for the remediation include operations of the coal tar treatment system, which
wifl catty an ongoing monthly cost for an indeterminate time.

4. Related party transactions:

(a) The Commission has an annual rental of land to London Hydro Inc. at $100,000
per annum.

(b) The Commission has contracted with The Corporation of the City of London for the
operation of the Commission’s public parking lot whereby the Commission
receives a percentage of net revenue.

As at December 31 the following amounts were receivable from (due to) related
parties:

2075 2014

Due to Corporation of the City of London $ (105,929) $ (175,345)
Due from Corporation of the City of London 2 279,536

Net receivable $ 135,031 $ 104,191

(c) A promissory note from London Hydro Inc. to the City of London for $70,000,000
was assigned to the Commission subject to several conditions. On November 28,
2014, the promissory note was extinguished through payment by London Hydro to
the City of London.

As part of the transaction, the City and the Commission entered into a Funding
Agreement. The agreement ensures that the $70 million will be held by the City
on terms consistent with the earlier pledge of undertaking/assignment of the
promissory note from the City to the Commission.

The agreement acknowledges that the Commission has retained ownership of and
responsibility for lands contaminated by prior owners with coal tar and that the full
$70 million payment received by the City from London Hydro under the promissory
note will be held by the City for the Commission for the following purposes:

(i) The investigation, remediation and restoration of the affected lands;
(ii) Any related legal proceedings, including proceedings before any court or

administrative tribunal; and
(iii) The Commission’s actual and reasonable administrative and incidental

costs related thereto.

The Funding Agreement provides that the City will maintain the principal amount
of the $70 million in a properly managed portfolio in compliance with the City’s
Investment Policy and the MunicipalAct 2007. The City will be entitled to use the
interest on the funds for its own purposes. The Fund Agreement provides the
mechanism where the Commission may request and the City will provide to it funds
for the rem ediation works.



THE PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LONDON
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative figures for 2014

5. Tangible capital assets:

6.

Balance at Balance at
December 31, December 31,

Cost 2014 Additions Disposals 2015
(note 2)

Land $ 2,921,000 $ - $ - $ 2,921,000
Land improvements 2,816,604 - - 2,876,604
Total $ 5,737,604 $ - $ - $ 5,737,604

Accumulated Balance at Balance at
Amortization December 31, Amortization December 37,

2014 Disposals expense 2015
(note 2)

Land $ - $ - $ - $ -

Land improvements 2,030060 - 187,772 2,217,832
Total $ 2030,060 $ - $ 187,772 $ 2,217,832

Net book value Net book value
December 31, December 31,

2014
-_____________ 2075

Land $ 2,921,000 $ 2,927,000
Land injprovements 786,544 598j72
Total $ 3,707,544 $ 3,519,772

Accumulated surplus:

2075 2014

Surplus:
Invested in tangible capital assets $ 3,57 9,772 $3,707,544

Total invested in tangible capital assets 3,519,772 3,707,544

Reserves set aside by Commission:
Contingency reserve 1,963,122 1,913,346
Total reserves 1,963,722 1,913,346

Total surplus $ 5,482,894 $ 5,620,890
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of Elgin Area Primary Water Supply System 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Elgin Area Primary Water Supply System, 

which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2015, the statements of operations,  

net debt and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant 

accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 

accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management 

determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 

our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that 

we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the 

risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 

risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of 

the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 

not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit 

also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 

statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Elgin 

Area Primary Water Supply System as at December 31, 2015 and its results of operations and its cash 

flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

June 2, 2016 

London, Canada 



ELGIN AREA PRIMARY WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM
Statement of Financial Position
December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

2015 2014

Financial assets
   Due from the Corporation of the City of London (note 3) $            - 8,561,448$     
   Trade and other receivables 3,145,306 2,791,241
Total financial assets 3,145,306 11,352,689

Financial liabilities
Due to the Corporation of the City of London (note 3) 306,222 -

   Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 5,884,521 3,862,062
   Deferred revenue (note 4) 2,665,401 4,787,273
   Accrued interest on long-term debt 115,084 138,160
   Long-term debt (note 5) 10,065,219 11,788,499

Other liability (note 6) 23,357 31,363
Total financial liabilities 19,059,804 20,607,357

Net debt (15,914,498) (9,254,668)

Non-financial assets
   Tangible capital assets (note 7) 68,556,515 55,991,884
   Prepaid expenses 63,585 55,052
Total non-financial assets 68,620,100 56,046,935

Accumulated surplus (note 8) 52,705,602$   46,792,267$  

See accompanying notes to financial statements



ELGIN AREA PRIMARY WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM
Statement of Operations
Year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

Budget 2015 2014

Revenues
   User charges 10,085,308$    10,065,919$    9,368,667$      
   Investment income 3,000             132,820           162,451         
   Transfer payments
        Provincial -                  2,121,872        1,752,764      
        Federal -                  2,121,719        1,886,011      
        Other municipalities -                  -                     -                    
   Other 2,000             49,231             110,494         
Total revenues 10,090,308      14,491,561      13,280,387      

Expenses
    Salaries, wages and benefits 516,902           518,127           511,418           
    Materials and supplies 4,354,556        4,710,557        4,372,998        
    Contracted services 90,000             234,674           336,276           
    Rents and financial expenses (note 10) 57,250             201,314           40,279             
    Interest on long-term debt (note 5) 431,520           408,444           475,184           
    Amortization of tangible capital assets (note 7) -                      2,340,994        2,491,164        
    Administrative charges 193,383           164,116           158,520           
Total expenses 5,643,611        8,578,226        8,385,839        

Annual surplus 4,446,697        5,913,335        4,894,548        

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year (note 8) 46,792,267      46,792,267      41,897,719      

Accumulated surplus, end of year (note 8) 51,238,964$   52,705,602$    46,792,267$   

See accompanying notes to financial statements



ELGIN AREA PRIMARY WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM
Statement of Net Debt
Year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

Budget 2015 2014

Annual surplus 4,446,697$      5,913,335$       4,894,548$      

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (161,769)         (14,905,626)      (11,402,236)    
Amortization of tangible capital assets -                      2,340,994         2,491,164        

4,284,928        (6,651,297)        (4,016,524)      

Change in prepaid expenses -                      (8,533)               (22,120)           

Change in net debt 4,284,928        (6,659,830)        (4,038,644)      

Net debt, beginning of year (9,254,668)      (9,254,668)        (5,216,024)      

Net debt, end of year (4,969,739)$   (15,914,498)$    (9,254,668)$   

See accompanying notes to financial statements



ELGIN AREA PRIMARY WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM
Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

2015 2014

Cash provided by:

Operating activities:
  Annual surplus 5,913,335$      4,894,548$      
Items not involving cash:
  Amortization of tangible capital assets 2,340,994        2,491,164        
  Amortization of debenture discount 15,320             22,587             
Changes in non-cash assets and liabilities:
  Due from (due to) the Corporation of the City of London 8,867,670        6,503,114        
  Prepaid expenses (8,533)             (22,120)           
  Trade and other receivables (354,065)         (2,188,142)      
  Note receivable -                     7,695               
  Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,022,459        2,449,023        
  Deferred revenue (2,121,872)      (1,053,096)      
  Accrued interest on long-term debt (23,076)           (20,932)           
Net change in cash from operating activities 16,652,232      13,083,841      

Capital activities:
  Purchase of tangible capital assets (14,905,626)    (11,402,236)    
Cash used in capital activities (14,905,626)    (11,402,236)    

Financing activities:
Long-term debt repayments (1,738,600)      (1,673,599)      
Increase in other liability (8,006)             (8,006)          

Cash provided by (used in) financing activities (1,746,606)      (1,681,605)      

Net change in cash flows -$                -$                

See accompanying notes to financial statements



ELGIN AREA PRIMARY WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM 
Notes to Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2015 
 

 
1. Nature of reporting entity 
 

The Ontario Water Resources Commission (the “Commission”) of the Province of Ontario 
constructed, owned and operated a water treatment plant on Lake Erie and pipeline to the City of 
St. Thomas and the Ford Talbotville Assembly Plant on or about 1967.  The Ministry of the 
Environment (the “Ministry”) was created in about 1973 and assumed all operations and activities 
of the Commission.  In or about 1991, operational related activities (water and wastewater 
systems) of the Ministry were transferred to the Ontario Clean Water Agency, a Crown 
corporation of the Province of Ontario.  In accordance with agreements with the associated 
municipalities, the Ministry extended pipelines to the present communities of Port, Burwell, Port 
Stanley, and Southwold, and in 1996 to the City of London and the Town of Aylmer. 
 
In accordance with the Municipal Water and Sewage Systems Transfer Act, 1997, the final 
Transfer Order for Elgin Area Primary Water Supply System (the “Entity”) was effective on 
November 29, 2000. 
 
Under the transfer order, the works, properties and all assets, liabilities, rights and obligations of 
the system were transferred jointly to The Corporation of the City of London, The Corporation of 
the Town of Aylmer, The Corporation of the Municipality of Bayham, The Corporation of the 
Municipality of Central Elgin, The Corporation of the Township of Malahide, The Corporation of 
the Township of Southwold and The Corporation of the City of St. Thomas.  The Corporation of 
the City of London (the “Corporation”) was named as the administering municipality. 
 
The transfer order established a joint board of management to govern the management of the 
water supply system.  The joint board of management is comprised of seven representatives 
appointed by the respective councils of participating municipalities.  The representation is broken 
down as follows: 
 

Municipality Representatives  Votes
    

 The Corporation of the City of London 3 3
  

 The Corporation of the City of St. Thomas 2 2
  

 The Corporations of the Township of Southwold and the   
Municipality of Central Elgin 

 
1

 
1

 
 The Corporations of the Municipality of Bayham, Township 
      of Malahide and Town of Aylmer 
 

 
1

 
1

 
2.  Significant accounting policies 
 

The financial statements of the Entity are prepared by management in accordance with Canadian 
generally accepted accounting principles as defined in the CPA Canada Public Sector Handbook 
- Accounting.  Significant accounting policies are as follows: 
 
(a) Accrual accounting 

 
Sources of financing and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ELGIN AREA PRIMARY WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
Year ended December 31, 2015 
 

 

 
2.  Significant accounting policies (continued) 

 
(b) Non-financial assets 
 

Non financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use 
in the provision of services.  They have useful lives extending beyond the current year 
and are not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations. 

 
i)   Tangible capital assets    
 
Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes amounts that are directly 
attributable to acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset.  The 
cost, less residual value, of the tangible capital assets, excluding land, are amortized on 
a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows: 

 
Asset  Useful Life - Years 

  
Buildings and building improvements  15 – 40
Vehicles  5 – 15
Machinery and equipment  7 – 20
Water infrastructure  10 – 60 

 
Annual amortization is charged in the year of acquisition and in the year of disposal using 
the half year rule.  Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is available 
for productive use. 

   
  ii)   Interest capitalization 
   

The interest costs associated with the acquisition or construction of a tangible capital 
asset are not capitalized. 

 
(c) Revenue recognition 

 
The Entity recognizes revenue when water is drawn by each customer, collection of the 
relevant receivable is probable, persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists and the 
sales price is fixed or determinable. 
 

(d) Government transfers 
  

Government transfer payments from the Corporation are recognized in the financial 
statements in the year in which the payment is authorized and the events giving rise to 
the transfer occur, performance criteria are met, and a reasonable estimate of the 
amount can be made.  Funding that is stipulated to be used for specific purposes is only 
recognized as revenue in the fiscal year that the related expenses are incurred or 
services performance.  If funding is received for which the related expenses have not yet 
been incurred or services performed, these amounts are recorded as a liability at year 
end. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ELGIN AREA PRIMARY WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
Year ended December 31, 2015 
 

 

 
2.  Significant accounting policies (continued) 

 
(e) Use of estimates 

 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets 
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the year.  Significant items subject to such estimates and 
assumptions include the valuation allowances for receivables and useful lives assigned to 
tangible capital assets. 
 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 

(f) Budget figures 
 

Budget figures have been provided for comparison purposes.  Given differences between 
the budgeting model and generally accepted accounting principles established by the 
Public Sector Accounting Board (“PSAB”), certain budgeted amounts have been 
reclassified to reflect the presentation adopted under PSAB. 
 

(g) Change in Accounting Policy 
  

The Entity adopted Public Sector Accounting Board Standard PS 3260 Liability for 
Contaminated Sites effective as of January 1, 2015.  Under PS 3260, contaminated sites 
are defined as the result of contamination being introduced in air, soil, water or sediment 
of a chemical, organic, or radioactive material or live organism that exceeds an 
environmental standard.  This Standard relates to sites that are not in productive use and 
sites in productive use where an unexpected event resulted in contamination.  The Entity 
adopted this standard on a retroactive basis and there were no adjustments as a result of 
the adoption of this standard. 

 
3. Due from (due to) the Corporation of the City of London 
 

As the Administering Municipality, the Corporation manages the daily operations of the Entity.  
The Corporation maintains a separate general ledger on behalf of the Entity.  All funds are paid 
and received through the Corporation’s bank account and held for use by the Entity or payable to 
the Corporation for expenses paid on behalf of the Entity. 
 

4. Deferred revenue 
 
 Deferred revenue is comprised of the following: 
    

 2015  2014 
   
Provincial HELP Funding $    2,665,401  $    4,787,273

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ELGIN AREA PRIMARY WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
Year ended December 31, 2015 
 

 

 
5. Long-term debt         
 

(a) Long-term debt is stated as follows: 
 
 2015  2014 
   
Long-term debt assumed by The Corporation of  

the City of London, as administering municipality, 
on behalf of the Elgin Area Primary Water Supply 
System, with semi-annual interest payments: 

   

 
(a) at rates ranging from 5.75% to 5.875%, 

maturing August 2018, 

 
 

$   2,532,000  

  
 

$   3,286,000  
 
(b) at rates ranging from 1.50% to 3.20%, 

maturing  September 2022. 

  
  

7,617,600  

  
 

8,602,200  
Total long-term debt $  10,149,600  $  11,888,200  
Less: Unamortized debenture discount (84,381)  (99,701)
Net long-term debt $  10,065,219   $  11,788,499  

 
 

(b) The long-term debt repayment schedule is as follows: 
 

   
2016   $    1,807,350
2017   1,877,550
2018   1,951,350
2019   1,086,900
2020   1,114,050
2021 and beyond   2,312,400
   

 
(c) Total interest charges for the year for long-term debt which are reported on the Statement 

of Operations are as follows: 
 
 2015  2014 
   
Interest $       393,124   $       452,596  
Amortization of debenture discount 15,320  22,588
 $       408,444   $       475,184  

 
6. Other liability        
 

The Entity has entered into a long-term contract for landowner compensation.  The liability as at 
December 31, 2015 is $23,357 (2014 - $31,363).  The total principal repayments over the next 
two years are as follows: 
 

   
2016   $          8,007
2017   15,350
   

 
 
 
 
 
 



ELGIN AREA PRIMARY WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
Year ended December 31, 2015 
 

 

 
7. Tangible capital assets 
  

 
 

Cost 

Balance at 
December 31, 

2014

 
 

Additions 

 
 

Disposals 

Balance at 
December 31, 

2015
 
Land 

 
$     1,251,559

 
$                   -

 
$                   -

 
$     1,251,559

Buildings and building improvements  12,417,998 125,363 92,958 12,450,403
Vehicles, machinery and equipment 20,822,472 1,047,723 1,519,353 20,350,842
Water infrastructure 25,053,844 168,381 - 25,222,225
Assets under construction 12,241,318 13,909,005 344,847 25,805,476
Total $   71,787,191 $   15,250,472 $     1,957,158 $   85,080,505

 
 
 

Accumulated Amortization 

Balance at 
December 31,  

2014

 
Amortization 

expense 

 
 

Disposals 

Balance at 
December 31, 

2015
 
Land 

 
$                   -

 
$                   -

 
$                   -

 
$                   -

Buildings and building improvements  4,412,523 419,662 92,958 4,739,227
Vehicles, machinery and equipment 9,448,020 1,427,365 1,519,353 9,356,032
Water infrastructure 1,934,764 493,967 - 2,428,731
Assets under construction - - - -
Total $   15,795,307 $     2,340,994 $     1,612,311 $   16,523,990

 
 
 

Net book 
value 

December 31, 
2014

  

Net book 
value 

December 31, 
2015

 
Land 

 
$     1,251,559

  
$     1,251,559

Buildings and building improvements  8,005,475 7,711,176
Vehicles, machinery and equipment 11,374,452 10,994,810
Water infrastructure 23,119,080 22,793,494
Assets under construction 12,241,318 25,805,476
Total $   55,991,884 $   68,556,515

 
(a) Assets under construction 

 
Assets under construction with a net book value of $25,805,476 (2014 - $12,241,318) 
have not been amortized.  Amortization of these assets will commence when the asset is 
available for productive use. 

 
 (b) Tangible capital assets disclosed at nominal values 
 

Where an estimate of fair value could not be made, the tangible capital asset was 
recognized at a nominal value.  Land is the only category where nominal values were 
assigned. 
 

(c) Write-down of tangible capital assets 
 
       There were no write-downs in tangible capital assets during the year (2014 - nil). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ELGIN AREA PRIMARY WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
Year ended December 31, 2015 
 

 

 
8.     Accumulated surplus 
 

Accumulated surplus consists of individual fund surplus and reserve funds as follows: 
 
     2015  2014 
                          
Surplus:   
     Invested in tangible capital assets $ 45,060,640  $ 39,220,926
     Total surplus 45,060,640  39,220,926
   
Reserve funds set aside for specific purpose by the 
Board: 

 
 

  

     Infrastructure renewal - water operations 7,644,962  7,571,341
     Total reserve funds 7,644,962  7,571,341
 $ 52,705,602  $ 46,792,267

 
9.     Financial instruments 

 
(a) The carrying values of due from the Corporation, trade accounts receivable and accounts 

payable and accrued liabilities approximate their fair values due to the relatively short 
periods to maturity of the instruments. 

 
The fair value of long-term debt approximates its carrying value as interest rates are 
similar to current market rates of interest available to the Entity. 

 
(b) Financial risks: 
 

The Entity is not exposed to any significant interest, foreign currency or credit risks 
arising from its financial instruments. 

 
10. Related Party Transactions 
 

Beginning in October 2013, the Entity earned interest income, through the Corporation, on the 
HELP funding received in advance, from the Province, for several capital projects. 
 
During the year, the Entity agreed to transfer this interest earned, back to the Corporation.  This 
transfer to the Corporation during 2015, represents interest earned from October 2013 to October 
2015.  The amount of $154,046 (2014 - nil) has been included in Rents and financial expenses on 
the Statement of Operations for the current year. 
 
The Corporation, in its capacity as the Administering Municipality, holds these funds and utilizes 
them to fund the costs of the corresponding projects.  During the year, in order to facilitate 
amendments to the HELP program and to ensure that all participants benefit equitably from the 
HELP funding, the Entity has agreed that interest income on the advanced provincial funding, for 
these specific approved projects, will be retained by the Corporation. In future years, no interest 
income will be recorded for these specific approved projects. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



ELGIN AREA PRIMARY WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
Year ended December 31, 2015 
 

 

 
11.     Budget data 
 

Budget data presented in these financial statements are based upon the 2015 operating budget 
approved by the joint board of management.  Adjustments to budgeted values were required to 
provide comparative budget values based on the full accrual basis of accounting.  The chart 
below reconciles the approved budget with the budget figures as presented in these financial 
statements. 
 

  Budget 
  
Revenues:  
    User Charges  $  10,085,308
    Municipal Revenue - Other  5,000
    Total Revenues  10,090,308
  
Expenses:  
    Personnel Costs  496,935
    Administrative Expenses  72,100
    Financial Expenses – Other   151,500
    Financial Expenses – Interest & Discount on Long-term Debt  431,520
    Financial Expenses – Debt Principal Repayments  1,723,280
    Financial Expenses – Transfers to Reserves and Reserve Funds  2,723,417
    Purchased Services  255,252
    Materials & Supplies  4,039,416
    Furniture & Equipment  25,038
    Other Expenses  193,383
   Recovered Expenses  (21,533)
    Total Expenses    10,090,308
  
Annual Surplus (Deficit) as per Budget  $                 -
  
PSAB Reporting Requirements:  
    Transfers to Reserves and Reserve Funds  $  2,723,417
    Debt Principal Repayments  1,723,280
Net PSAB Budget Surplus (Deficit) as per Financial Statements  $  4,446,697
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of Lake Huron Area Primary Water Supply System 
 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Lake Huron Area Primary Water Supply 
System, which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2015, the statements of 
operations, change in net financial assets (debt) and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, 
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Lake 

Huron Area Primary Water Supply System as at December 31, 2015 and its results of operations and its 

cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

 
Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

June 2, 2016 

London, Canada 



LAKE HURON AREA PRIMARY WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM
Statement of Financial Position
December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

2015 2014

Financial assets
   Due from the Corporation of the City of London (note 3) 15,063,968$    3,701,621$      
   Trade and other receivables 1,833,396        4,382,212        
Total financial assets 16,897,364      8,083,833        

Financial liabilities
   Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,677,410        5,658,801        
   Deferred revenue (note 4) 776,941           1,445,616        
   Accrued interest on long-term debt 59,290             23,091             
   Long-term debt (note 5) 11,094,378      2,781,622        
Total financial liabilities 14,608,019      9,909,130        

Net financial assets (debt) 2,289,345        (1,825,297)      

Non-financial assets
   Tangible capital assets (note 6) 162,440,770    163,099,648    
   Prepaid expenses 161,495           164,105           
Total non-financial assets 162,602,265    163,263,753    

Accumulated surplus (note 7) 164,891,610$  161,438,456$ 

Commitments (note 9)
Contingent liabilities (note 10)

See accompanying notes to financial statements



LAKE HURON AREA PRIMARY WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM
Statement of Operations
Year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

Budget 2015 2014

Revenues
   User charges 18,987,530$    18,869,892$    18,092,464$    
   Investment income 5,000             256,184           293,083         
   Transfer payments
        Provincial -                     668,675           3,232,100      
        Federal -                     684,333           8,598,940      
   Other -                     496,397           73,310           
Total revenues 18,992,530      20,975,481      30,289,897      

Expenses
    Salaries, wages and benefits 558,435           538,683           533,897           
    Materials and supplies 9,550,108        9,588,878        9,115,660        
    Contracted services 638,000           492,413           900,584           
    Rents and financial expenses (note 11) 59,250             216,813           44,968             
    Interest on long-term debt (note 5) 79,062             183,099           82,252             
    Amortization of tangible capital assets (note 6) -                      6,338,325        5,106,195        
    Administrative charges 193,383           164,116           158,520           
Total expenses 11,078,238      17,522,327      15,942,076      

Annual surplus 7,914,292        3,453,154        14,347,821      

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year (note 7) 161,438,456    161,438,456    147,090,635    

Accumulated surplus, end of year (note 7) 169,352,748$ 164,891,610$  161,438,456$ 

See accompanying notes to financial statements



LAKE HURON AREA PRIMARY WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM
Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets (Debt)
Year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

Budget 2015 2014

Annual surplus 7,914,292$      3,453,154$      14,347,821$    

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (14,374,925)    (5,679,447)      (14,607,480)    
Amortization of tangible capital assets -                      6,338,325        5,106,195        
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets -                      -                      530                  

(6,460,633)      4,112,032        4,847,066        

Change in prepaid expenses -                      2,610              (82,082)           

Change in net financial assets (6,460,633)      4,114,642        4,764,984        

Net debt, beginning of year (1,825,297)      (1,825,297)      (6,590,281)      

Net financial assets (debt), end of year (8,285,930)$   2,289,345$      (1,825,297)$   

See accompanying notes to financial statements



LAKE HURON AREA PRIMARY WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM
Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

2015 2014

Cash provided by:

Operating activities:
  Annual surplus 3,453,154$      14,347,821$    
Items not involving cash:
  Amortization of tangible captial assets 6,338,325        5,106,195        
  Amortization of debenture discount 5,094              2,257               
  Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets -                     530                  
Changes in non-cash assets and liabilities:
  Due from the Corporation of the City of London (11,362,347)    4,974,566        
  Prepaid expenses 2,610              (82,082)           
  Trade and other receivables 2,548,816        (3,222,950)      
  Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (2,981,391)      (2,992,339)      
  Deferred revenue (668,675)         (3,232,101)      
  Accrued interest on long-term debt 36,199             (1,327)             
Net change in cash from operating activities (2,628,215)      14,900,570      

Capital activities:
  Purchase of tangible capital assets (5,679,447)      (14,607,480)    
Cash used in capital activities (5,679,447)      (14,607,480)  

Financing activities:
  Proceeds from issuance of long term debt 8,608,262        -                      

Long-term debt repayments (300,600)         (293,090)         
Cash provided by (used in) financing activities 8,307,662        (293,090)       

Net change in cash flows -$                   -$                   

See accompanying notes to financial statements



LAKE HURON AREA PRIMARY WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM 
Notes to Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2015 
 

 
1.  Nature of reporting entity 
 

The final transfer order for Lake Huron Area Primary Water Supply System (the “Entity) was 
effective September 15, 2000, transferring assets along with any other real property to The 
Corporation of the City of London (the “Corporation”) in trust to act as the Administering Municipality 
on behalf of the participating municipalities. 
 
Under the transfer order, the works, properties and all assets, liabilities, rights and obligations of 
the system are conveyed, assigned and transferred to the Corporation as Trustee.  Each of the 
benefitting municipalities, for so long as the municipality is serviced by the works has an undivided 
beneficial ownership interest in the works as tenant in common with all other municipalities jointly.  
The proportion that each municipality’s interest bears to the total of all municipalities’ interests shall 
be in the same ratio that the quantity of water supplied from the works to the municipalities at any 
time and from time to time bears to the total quantity of water supplied to all municipalities at such 
time.  At present, the benefitting municipalities are The City of London, the Municipalities of 
Bluewater, South Huron, Lambton Shores, North Middlesex, Lucan-Biddulph, Middlesex Centre 
and Strathroy-Caradoc. 
 
The transfer order established a joint board of management to govern the management of the water 
supply system.  The joint board of management is comprised of eleven representatives of the 
municipalities appointed by the respective councils of participating municipalities.  The 
representation is broken down as follows: 
 
 

Municipality Representatives  Votes 
    
The City of London 4  16
Bluewater 1  1
South Huron 1  1
Lucan-Biddulph 1  1
Lambton Shores 1  1
North Middlesex 1  3
Middlesex Centre 1  1
Strathroy-Caradoc 1  3
   

 
2. Significant accounting policies 
 

The financial statements of the Entity are prepared by management, in accordance with Canadian 
generally accepted accounting principles as defined in the CPA Canada Public Sector Handbook 
– Accounting. Significant accounting policies are as follows. 
 
(a) Accrual accounting 

 
Sources of financing and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. 
 

(b) Non-financial assets 
 

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use 
in the provision of services.  They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and 
are not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 
 

(b) Non-financial assets (continued) 
 

i)   Tangible capital assets    
 
Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes amounts that are directly 
attributable to acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset.  The cost, 
less residual value, of the tangible capital assets, excluding land, are amortized on a 
straight line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows: 

 
Asset  Useful Life - Years 

  
Buildings and building improvements  15 – 40 
Vehicles  5 – 15 
Machinery and equipment  7 – 20 
Water infrastructure  10 – 60 
 

Annual amortization is charged in the year of acquisition and in the year of disposal using 
the half year rule.  Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is available 
for productive use. 

   
  ii)   Interest capitalization 
   

The interest costs associated with the acquisition or construction of a tangible capital asset 
are not capitalized. 

 
(c) Revenue recognition 

 
The Entity recognizes revenue when water is drawn by each customer, collection of the 
relevant receivable is probable, persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists and the 
sales price is fixed or determinable.  
 

(d) Government transfers 
 
Government transfer payments from the Corporation are recognized in the financial 
statements in the year in which the payment is authorized and the events giving rise to the 
transfer occur, performance criteria are met, and a reasonable estimate of the amount can 
be made.  Funding that is stipulated to be used for specific purposes is only recognized as 
revenue in the fiscal year that the related expenses are incurred or services performed.  If 
funding is received for which the related expenses have not yet been incurred or services 
performed, these amounts are recorded as a liability at year end. 

 
(e) Use of estimates 

 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the year.  Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions 
include the valuation allowances for receivables and useful lives assigned to tangible 
capital assets. 

 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 
 

(f) Budget figures 
  

Budget figures have been provided for comparison purposes.  Given differences between 
the budgeting model and generally accepted accounting principles established by the 
Public Sector Accounting Board (“PSAB”), certain budgeted amounts have been 
reclassified to reflect the presentation adopted under PSAB. 
 

(g) Change in Accounting Policy 
  

The Entity adopted Public Sector Accounting Board Standard PS 3260 Liability for 
Contaminated Sites effective as of January 1, 2015.  Under PS 3260, contaminated sites 
are defined as the result of contamination being introduced in air, soil, water or sediment 
of a chemical, organic, or radioactive material or live organism that exceeds an 
environmental standard.  This Standard relates to sites that are not in productive use and 
sites in productive use where an unexpected event resulted in contamination.  The Entity 
adopted this standard on a retroactive basis and there were no adjustments as a result of 
the adoption of this standard. 
 

3. Due from the Corporation of the City of London 
 

As the Administering Municipality, the Corporation manages the daily operations of the Entity.  The 
Corporation maintains a separate general ledger on behalf of the Entity.  All funds are paid and 
received through the Corporation’s bank account and are held for use by the Entity. 

 
4. Deferred revenue 
 
 Deferred revenue is comprised of the following:  
  

 2015  2014 
   
Provincial HELP Funding $       776,941  $    1,445,616

 
5. Long-term debt 
 

(a) Long-term debt is stated as follows: 
 

 2015  2014 
   
Long-term debt assumed by The Corporation of 

the City of London, as administering municipality, 
on behalf of the Lake Huron Area Primary Water 
Supply System, with semi-annual interest 
payments: 

  

(a) at rates ranging from 1.50% to 3.20%, 
maturing September 2022. 

 
$  1,269,600 

  
$  1,433,700

(b) at rates ranging from 1.35% to 3.80%, 
maturing September 2023. 

 
1,230,510 

  
1,367,010

(c) at rates ranging from 0.80% to 2.25%, 
maturing March 2025. 

 
8,665,000 

  
-

Total long-term debt 11,165,110  2,800,710
Less: Unamortized debenture discount (70,732)  (19,088)
Net long-term debt $  11,094,378  $  2,781,622
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5. Long-term debt (continued) 

 
(b) The long-term debt repayment schedule is as follows: 
 

    

2016   $    1,120,084
2017   1,139,741
2018   1,159,832
2019   1,180,168
2020   1,200,879
2021 and beyond   5,364,406
    

 
 

(c) Total charges for the year for long-term debt which are reported on the Statement of 
Operations are as follows: 

 
 2015  2014 
   
Interest $       178,005  $       79,995
Amortization of debenture discount 5,094  2,257
 $       183,099  $       82,252

 
6. Tangible capital assets 
 

 
 

Cost 

Balance at 
December 31, 

2014

 
 

Additions 

 
 

Disposals 

Balance at 
December 31, 

2015
 
Land 

 
$     1,843,513

 
$                  -

 
$                  -

 
$     1,843,513

Buildings and building improvements 41,452,085 7,375,007 48,694 48,778,398
Vehicles, machinery and equipment 34,299,566 7,740,480 487,802 41,552,244
Water infrastructure 117,136,941 243,967   - 117,380,908
Assets under construction 10,768,546 576,148 10,256,155 1,088,539
Total $ 205,500,651 $ 15,935,602  $ 10,792,652 $ 210,643,602

 
 
 

Accumulated Amortization 

Balance at 
December 31, 

2014

 
Amortization 

expense 

 
 

Disposals 

Balance at 
December 31, 

2015
 
Land 

 
$                    -

 
$                  -

 
$                  -

 
$                    -

Buildings and building improvements 8,982,331 1,512,079 48,694 10,445,716
Vehicles, machinery and equipment 12,986,096 2,626,419  487,802 15,124,713
Water infrastructure 20,432,576 2,199,827   - 22,632,403
Assets under construction - - - -
Total $   42,401,003 $   6,338,325 $      536,496 $   48,202,832

 

 
 

Net book value 
December 31, 

2014
  

Net book value 
December 31, 

2015
 
Land 

 
 $     1,843,513

 
 $     1,843,513

Buildings and building improvements 32,469,754 38,332,682
Vehicles, machinery and equipment 21,313,470 26,427,531
Water infrastructure 96,704,365 94,748,505
Assets under construction 10,768,546 1,088,539
Total $ 163,099,648 $ 162,440,770
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6. Tangible capital assets (continued) 
 

(a) Assets under construction 
 

Assets under construction with a net book value of $1,088,538 (2014 - $10,768,546) have 
not been amortized.  Amortization of these assets will commence when the asset is 
available for productive use.  

 
(b) Tangible capital assets disclosed at nominal values 

 
Where an estimate of fair value could not be made, the tangible capital asset was 
recognized at a nominal value.  Land is the only category where nominal values were 
assigned. 

 
(c) Write-down of tangible capital assets 

 
       There were no write-downs in tangible capital assets during the year (2014 – nil). 
 
7. Accumulated surplus 
 

Accumulated surplus consists of individual fund surplus and reserve funds as follows: 
 
     2015  2014 
                            
Surplus:    
     Invested in tangible capital assets $147,180,622  $146,646,676
     Total surplus 147,180,622  146,646,676
   
Reserve funds set aside for specific purpose by the 
Board: 

  

     Infrastructure renewal - water operations $  17,710,988  $  14,791,780
     Total reserve funds 17,710,988  14,791,780
 $164,891,610  $161,438,456

 
8. Financial instruments 

 
(a) The carrying values of due from the Corporation of the City of London, trade and other 

receivables and accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their fair values due 
to the relatively short periods to maturity of the instruments. 

 
The fair value of long-term debt approximates its carrying value as interest rates are similar 
to current market rates of interest available to the Entity. 

 
(b) Financial risks 
 

The Entity is not exposed to any significant interest, foreign currency or credit risks arising 
from its financial instruments. 
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9. Commitments 
 

Derivatives 
 

The Entity has the following derivative: 
 

 Contract with one block negotiated October 22, 2015, with a daily electricity purchase of 24 
megawatt hours. Covering the period of November 1, 2015 until October 31, 2018, remaining 
contract cost of $748,802. 

 
This derivative contract was purchased to price certainty for 40% of the Entity’s electricity needs 
over the term of the contract.  The value of the contract is not reflected as an asset or liability in 
these financial statements. 

 
10. Contingent liabilities 

 
There are certain claims pending against the Entity as at December 31, 2015.  The final outcome 
of these claims cannot be determined at this time, however management believes that settlement 
of these matters will not materially exceed amounts recorded in these financial statements. 
 

11. Related Party Transactions 
 

Beginning in October 2013, the Entity earned interest income, through the Corporation, on the 
HELP funding received in advance, from the Province, for several capital projects. 
 
During the year, the Entity agreed to transfer this interest earned, back to the Corporation.  This 
transfer to the Corporation during 2015, represents interest earned from October 2013 to October 
2015.  The amount of $179,345 (2014 - nil) has been included in Rents and financial expenses on 
the Statement of Operations for the current year. 
 
The Corporation, in its capacity as the Administering Municipality, holds these funds and utilizes 
them to fund the costs of the corresponding projects.  During the year, in order to facilitate 
amendments to the HELP program and to ensure that all participants benefit equitably from the 
HELP funding, the Entity has agreed that interest income on the advanced provincial funding, for 
these specific approved projects, will be retained by the Corporation.  In future years, no interest 
income will be recorded for these specific approved capital projects. 
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12.  Budget Data 
 

Budget data presented in these consolidated financial statements are based upon 2015 operating 
budget approved by the joint board of management.  Adjustments to budgeted values were required 
to provide comparative budget values based on the full accrual basis of accounting.  The chart 
below reconciles the approved budget with the budget figures as presented in these financial 
statements. 

 

  Budget 
Revenues 
   User charges  $    18,987,530
   Municipal Revenues - Other              5,000 
Total revenues      18,992,530 
 
Expenses 
   Personnel Costs 496,935
   Administrative Expenses 92,100
   Financial Expenses - Other 267,500
   Financial Expenses - Interest & Discount on LTD 79,062
   Financial Expenses - Debt Principal Repayments 298,343
   Financial Expenses - Transfers to Reserves and Reserve Funds 7,615,949
   Purchased Services 1,014,128
   Materials & Supplies 8,931,625
   Furniture & Equipment 25,038
   Other Expenses 193,383
   Recovered Expenses (21,533)
Total expenses 18,992,530
 
Net surplus (deficit) as per Budget $                     - 
 
PSAB Reporting Requirements: 
   Transfers to Reserves and Reserve Funds  $      7,615,949
   Debt principal repayments 298,343
Net PSAB Budget surplus (deficit) as per Financial Statements $      7,914,292

 



DECLARATION OF THE MUNJCIPAL TREASURER
Pursuant to the information required by the Province of Ontario under the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing Act, the following schedules are attached

10 CONSOL..

12 GRANTS,i

20 — TAXATION INFORMATION

22 MUNICIPAL AND SCHOOL BOARD TAXATION

24 PAYMENTS-IN-LIEU OF TAXATION

26 - TAXATION AND PAYMENTS-IN-LIEU SUMMARY

28 UPPER-TIER ENTITLEMENTS

40 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT t

42 ADD WONAL INFORMATION

51 SCHEDULE OP TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
53 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT’ ‘°T-
54 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

60 CONTINUITY OF RESERVES AND RESERVE FUNDS

61 DEVELOPMENT CHARGES RESERVE FUNDS

62 DEVELOPMENT CHARGES RATES (INCLUDING SPECIAL

70 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

72 CONTINUITY OF TAXES RECEIVABLE

74 LONG TERM LIABILITIES AND COMMIT

76 GOVERNMENT BUSINESS ENTERPRISES fGBE)

77 OTHER ENTITIES (DSSAB HEALTH UNIT. OTHER AND TOTAL AL

79 COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT PLANS

80 STATISTICAL INFORMATION

81 ANNUAL DEBT REPAYMENT LIMIT ,

__________

83 NOTES

For the purposes of this Financial I’nforma#on Return, the amounts disclosed on the attached schedules are in agreement with the books ann igges.
Thin Financial Information Return has been prepared in accordance with the Financial Information Return Instructions . ‘.-:“c-’

_____

Signature of Municipal Treasurer

0070 Ootntarding In-Year Critoal Errors

5075 Sdredids 54 Cashflow - Dsscl or tndrect Methnd Chosen

0077 Methcd used In aforae Prarpant Sopport to other kenkorn 51 Sdredule 40.

Municipal Dote Data Source
1 2

Msrmipat Data (0) (List)
0040 Househutas .‘i................ 172 261 UPAC
0041 Population I 361 310 Municipal
0042 Youth Pop ton — 2s 336 U I pal

preemadonrern - .1 ,..dc.aInHo*m . .- 1505mm tine

2015 FINANCIAL INFORMATION RETURN
Municipality: London C MSO Office: Western Ontario

Tier: Single-Tier Asmt Code: 3936
Area: Middlesex Co MAN Code: 59101

Schedu!e TItle

SubmItting: FIR Schedules Only

Version: 2015-VOl

QuestIons regarding the Information contaIned In the Schedules should be addressed to:

0020 Name Sharon Swunce

0022 Telephone 519-661-2500 00146

0624 Faa
. .. . - 519-661-5932

0020 Email (RequIred) ‘ -.
.....

0030 Websito address uf Municipality -: www.Iondon.ou

cost Municipel Auditor
- Ian Jeffreyn

0052 Municipal Audit Firm KPhIG ‘‘ ‘1

0099 Municipal Auditor’s Email (Required) IleffroyeIkpms.ca ‘E.......... _.._i
0050 M ni pelTea er hi rt H y.sed —— —

0083 MunIcipal TreasureYs Email (RequIred) .. mhavward4ondon.ca — -

0094 Date. - . .
. 13-jun-2016

Signature Date - .4

— - — --. - - -- -—

________

01.101

Method



Prorince of Ontario - Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Hoasirrg 13 082016 II 08

F1R2015: London C Schedule 10
Asmt Code: 3936 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS: REVENUE
MAH Code: 59101

-

December3l,2015

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS: REVENUE Own Purposes Rovonao -

Property Taxation
0259 Taxation• Own Purposes (SLC 26919904-72 2899 07) For UT (SLC 28 0299 12-280299 08) j__ - —

- 538,380,043

0499 Payments In Lieu of Taxation (SLC 269599 08) For UT (SLC 28 0299 08) —

9940 Subtotal 539 261 477

OSlO Eobrnated tan revenue

0620 Ontario Mxrdcipul Pannerohip Fund (OMPF)
0695 Other — r
DOse Other - I
0607 Other
0498 Other

0609 Subtotal 0

Condittonal Grants
0810 Ontario conditional grants (SLC 12991001)

-—

0815 Ontario Grunts forTangible Capital Asseto (SLC 12991005) 2,007,711
0820 Canada condilional grants (SLO 12991002) b1. [ 1,527,034
0625 Canada Grants for Tangible Capilul Assets (SLC 12 9910 06) teea4,eee
0830 Deterred revenue earned (Provincial Gas Tax) (SLC 60 104201 + SLC 60104501) 8,425454
0831 Oeferred revenue earned (Canada Gas Tax) (SLC 60104701) 10,725,021
sass .4Mt. Subtotal neo,4sTev7

tosa Revenue from other municipalhias for Tangible Capital Assets (SLC 12991007)

-

less Revenue from other munIcipalities (SLO 12991003) 7,4e3 41e

1259 Total User Fees and Service Charges (SLO 12991004) 224 279 275

Licences, parmits, rants, etc.
1410 Trailer revenue and pennils .4-Lrc 2’

Renfs conceusions and franchises 21 688 087
1431 Royalties

,

1432 Green Energy

1495 Other Other
n 211734

1499
- Subtotal - 25,858.255

Fines and penaltias
. . ‘ . -

1505 Provincial Offences Act (POA) Msnicpity iich administers P04 -“
_

5 442 525
1610 Otherfines

. ‘ - —.

- 2.004 520
1620 Penalties and interest an dsal,exn
tuna Other

-

lass - - Subtotal . 13,408,880

Other revenue

-

1805 lnveuftnenf income 3,270,152
1500 Interest earned an muerees and reserve funds 8,050,575
1811 Gainless on sale of land & capital assets 59223
1812 Deferred revenue earned (Development Charges) (SLC 60102501 + SLO 60102601) 33,490,425
1813 Deterred revenue earned (Recreational land (The Planning Act)) (SLO 601032 Of + SLC 60103501) 118,794
1814 Other Deferred revenue eamed

1838 Donations auauo
1831 Donated Tangible Capital Assets (SLC 53061001) 41,125.554
1840 Sale of pMbltations, equipment etc 482580
1850 Contributions from non-consoildaled enfllies

toes Other Revenuen from Government Business Enterprise (ie. Dividends. etc.) 1e7,874
1879 Gaming and Casino Revenues

.

,,
-

4497,ste
1808 Other ,

last Other

1892 Other I

1893 Ofher

1894 Other

tens Other 0mw
- i 107,215

1800 Other Othee -

—

t,034,tOl
1887 Other Othon

—
— 12,380,442

tare Other

1809 — -

- Subtotal 383,1St

tree Municipal Land Transfer Tax (City of Toronto Act, 2006)

1085 IncreaselDecreuse In Govemment Business Enterprise equity
—— - 7,654,121

ssin
— TOTAL Revenues I n., 1107718 8271
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F1R2015: Léndon C
. Schedule 10

AsmtCàde: 3936 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS: REVENUE
.MAK Code: 59101

. . for the year ended December31, 2015.

Continuity of Accumulated Surplusi(Deficft)

2010 PLUS Total Revenues (SLC 10991001)
— 1 le7 716 827

2020 LESS: Total Expenses )SLC 40991011).. ..

. •.., L.,__ 1,043,536,260
2630 PLUS

___________ -

2040 PLUS
—-

—

2045 PLUS: PSAB Adjustments

.

2099 Annual Sarpluufloefrcil) 144689,567

2060 Accumalaled sarplus!)deficit) at the beginning of year 3,se7,674 291
20t Phorperiodadjuotmentu 834
2042 Reslated accumulated oarplusf)detcit) at the beginning of year 3,587,575,125
9950 Accumulated uurplun/(deficit) at the end of year (SLC 10209901 ±SLC 10200201)

.

L_ -

Continuity of Government Busineun Eeterpdue Equity F - -

5610 Government Bauinesu Enterprise Equity, begisning ot year
- - 174355550

6020 PLUS Net Income fur Govemmeni Business Enterpnnn tsr year 8 429 793
6090 PLUS -

...

eusa Government Business Enterprise Equity, end of year 172,504,671

Total of line 8899 includes:
-.——-

—Provincial Gas Tax Funding

4Ol Provincial Gau Tax for Transit operating eupenneu
$

5315.509
4010 Provincial Gas Tax for Tranuit capital expenses :r.’i a,txu.ens
4020 Provincial Gan Tax

. 0,429,404

Total of line 0899 includes:

Canada Gau Tax Funding

4s25 General Government

Transportation Services:
4030 Roads- Paved r,.i ra,e57,232
4031 Roads-Unpaved 4
4032 Roadu - Badges and Colverts

..

.15,1J

4.uaa 342
4033 Roadways - Traffic Operations & Roadside

:
.. ..‘.

.
. :.

•r ..... . •. -.::: : . ‘. . ,‘.‘. —

I

Mlranuportalios

Enviroxmental Semjceu’ fr:-
.

4060 Wastewatercollecliorsconveyance
, ssu 493

4061 Wastewater trealment & disposal
. v

——
4.2tznev

4062 Urban storm sewer nystem r 2.829,511
40e3 Rural slurm sewer oyslern
4094 Water treatment
4565 Waler distdbufondranurnisxion

- — e2u000
4568 Solid waste caPection

-

4067 Solid waste disposal 244.744
4060 Waste dinemion
4068 Other

—

155047

4075 Recmahon Facilihea All Other F
4076 Cultural services

4090 Commercial and industnal
— 341756

4099 Canada Gas Tax

-

25:455,014

77,ee2
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9259 General government.

Pmtecbos servIces
Fife.
Poke
Good Security
Prisoner Transportation
Conservotan authority
Protective inspection and control
Bsitsing perntif and inspection services
Emergency measeres
Pmsindal Offenses Act (POA)
Other

Sobtetat
Transportation servIces

9611 Roads-Paved
061 2 Roads - Unpaved
061 3 Roads- Bridges and Coherts
06f 4 Roads - Traffic Operators & Roadside
0621 Winter Control - Encept oldewaks, Parking Lots
0622 Winter Control - Sidewalks, Parking Lots Only
0631 Transit- Coneertoool
0632 Transit - Osaided & speciat needs
0640 Parking
9950 Sseet lighting
9960 Airhanspraiaboo
0658 Other — - .

aeon Sobtetat
Environmental services

0011 Waslowater cstecko&cmonyance
0612 Wmtewatertreatment&disposal
0621 Urban storm sewer syetem
0822 Rural stove sewer system
0631 Water tivabnent
0632 Water dlsidbotio&Saosrnission
0648 Solid waste collection
9859 Solid waste disposal
0860 Waste diversion
0888 Other Other
case Sabtetal

Health servIces
Public heath oaadces

Arrrhutance services
Antotonce dispatch
Cemeteries
Other ,J

Sabtolal
SocIal and fanny servIces

General assistance
Athstarrce to aged persons
Chdd care
Other Other

SocIal HousIng
PohkHoesing

565- Hraialsg.
Reel Supplement Programs.
Other Other
Other Othy,

Subtotal

Recreation aed cahoral cervIces
Perks
Receotion programs
Reroeetioe facIlities- Golf Coome, Marina, Ski Hit
Recmaton facilities - An Other
Lthoaian
fohrseems
Coftrrcelservices
Other

Sobtotal
Plaesisg and development

Planrslrrg and zorssg
Comnrercial arid indostriat
Resident&danebpswrl
Agricathore and mfmeidation
Titodceloaealshoce.

. E
Other

Subtotal

Other [
9910 TOTAL

:- .4

—

9’

11 001

mr

11846

5706386

5150401

81 520

326 557
11.193940

153 285
I 798 925

574 215

677W —

752

2554.959 —

69139

769

3617

d7 840

396216

62760

30160004

453 402

3025 030

127044 35794265

336 292 35794265

539 785

2410463

3831 445

r61.oee,13a I

0

0

S

0

0

S

0

0

0

0

0
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Asmt Code: 3936 GRANTS, USER FEES AND SERVICE CHARGES
MAN Code: 59101 for the year ended December 31 2015:

.‘.‘

‘.- -w

0410

0420

0421

6422

0430

0440

0445

0400

0450

0450

ednn

Ontario Cmrditivnd CeradeConditrral
U’ ‘‘stthe Sew Fees end Serese Onrer’s Oerb-Tergibln Canada Scans -Tangible Other Mjnicpal.bns -

Grants Grants
er ‘° °

Cherges Capilal Assets , Capital Snoels Tangible Capital Assets

I . 2 3 4 5 6 7
9 . $ 5 5 L $ .7 $ . - $

917976 0 26150 1,678396 0 9667 0

4929,076 166

4 529,076 156

12695

12695

— 13671

24245444

26840741

26 840,741

28905413

6 5 9

6215402

2609200

1200000

7,632

0’ 5423034

— 0750200

1 309 989

270000

1 691 453

209 024

0

7229,405’

- 33975

146520

25008 5533

25060’ 1049415

329355 ‘ ‘ 1,102575

6544

I 678383

322 764

2,867,711

27399 3721010

1020

1030

1035

5040

1098

85%

1210

1220

1230

9290

1299

1410

1420

1436

1497

1406

14e9

1610

1620

1631

1634

1640

1645

4686

5688

16%

Ills

1820

r830

1940
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FJR2OI5: LöndonC Schedule2O
Asrnt Code: 3936 TAXATION IN FORMATION
MAH Code: 59101 for the year ended Decenther 31,2015

General Information

1. Optional Property Classes in Effect 2

YorN
0202 N New Multi-Residential N -

0200 G Parking Lot (Includes Cl, CR, CX. CY, CZ)
- N

-

0210 D Office Building N

0215 S Shopping Centre
- ri

0220 L Large Industrial N

0225 Other N

2. CappIng Parameters and Results

0320 M Multi-Residential

0330 C Commercial
0340 I Industrial

3. Graduated Taxation (Tax Bands)

0610 C Commercial
--

0011 C Parking Cot

0012 D Office Building

0013 S Shopping Centre

0620 I Industrial

0521 C Large Industrial

4. Phase-In Program in Effect (Most recent Phase-In only)

— —

--——----xrace---——- omeDecrease-
. TaxAdunlmert- NnlCtlmt denuakzedTaa

CVATasUmt
Valuelne -

Vat
Pruper0es Pmperffenthalgo Propsrtieothatgo

Retained
Incisesero Umil Protected

Pro lies Previousin at .VA lien Capped to from Classed Back

2 3 4 5 - 6 7 8 9 10 11
- $ 1 0 % % $ - $ - YorN . YorN YciN

650% .5,023 0 100% 50% 200 0 Y Y - V
905% - -138,795 0 100% 50% 250 0; V V Y
990% - -10.170 0 100% 50% 250 0 V Y Y

F I T- - hNdeB
ruradtaxkateo

NnmberstTax8ards CVANOJP4as1 - cVAsaurdasy

3 6 7
it $ S $ SYarN

N

N

N

N

0605 R Residential N

06l0 M Multi-Residential N

0815 N New Multi-Residential
- S

0020 C Commercial (Includes C, 0, S) N

0640 I lndastrial (Includes L) N

0650 F Fareriand N

0855 T Managed Forest N

0860 PPineline

5. Rebates for Eligible Charities 2 -

1010 Rebate Percentage for Elgible Charities (5CC 722099 on) - 400% -

6, Property Tan Due Dates for Current Year lsula9rnests

Tub, completed by SlngI&Lewer.tier Municipalities Only 2

1210 R Residential
1220 M Multi-Residential
230 F Fanniand. . .

1240 T Managed Forest
1250 C Commercial
1260 I Indautriul
1279 P Pipeine
1296 Other

_________

-

- N
—- F

Phase.InProgranr YessCunentffhaue- TerrnolCunent
i 0ncr’ to lei8alat Phase-In

2 - 3 4
‘torN Year #olYrs

INTERIM Biting Instalments
- - - FINAL Oiling lnstksenls

First Dan Dale Last Due Date lnaljftnenls Firsl Dire Date Last Due Dale

3 4 5 N 7
8 Y9YYS*,tD0 S’r,’YMMDD - C YaYIMMDD YYYI’UMDD

2 - 20150227 20150331
-- 3 - 20150630 20151030

2 20150227 2350331 3 25150030 20151030
2 - 25106227 20150331 3 20150633 20151u33

2 20150227 20150331 3 20150630 20151030
2 20150227 20150331 - 3 20150630 20151030
2 20150227 20150331 3 20150630 00151030
2 - 20150221 - 2a15033l - 3 - 26156630 20151030
2 20150227 20150331 3 20150630 20151030
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F1R2015: London C Schedule 42
Asmt Code: 3936 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
MAH Code: 59101 for the year ended December 31, 2015

Additional information contained in Schedule 40

Total of column I includes:

Salaries and wages

Employee benefits

Total Salaries, Wages and Employee benefits (Not including line 5050)

Salaries, Wages and Employee benefits capitalized on Schedule 51

Total Salaries, Wages and Employee benefits (including capitalized wages)

Total of column 3 includes:

5110 Amounts for tax write-offs reported in SLC 40025003 2491,948

Total of column 4 includes:

-

5210 Municipal Property Assessment Corporation (MPAC) 4631,929

Total of column 5 includes:

5610 Short term interest costs E —

— 48090

Total of column 6 includes:

5810 Grants to chantable and non profit organizabons 3260634
5820 Grants to universities and colleges

. 79,648

Contributions to UNCONSOLIDATED joint local boards

5840 Health unit

5850 District Social Services Administration Board fDSSAB)

5860 Consolidated Municipal Service Manager (CMSM)

5870 Homes for the aged

5880 Recreation boards
.

5890 Fire area boards . . . .

. ..
.

5895 Other

Other

Payments for long term commitments and liabilities financed from the consolidated
6010 statement of operations

5010

5020

5099

5050

5098

$
323,273.993

95.315,905

418589901

418,589,901

5896

5897

5898

Other Tourism London

Other Conservation Authority

Total of column 11 includes:

--

1.896,149

3 398,290
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F1R2015 London C Schedule 51
Asmt Code: 3936 SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
MAN Code 59101 for the year ended December 31, 2015

SEGMENTED BY ASSET CLASS

2015 Opening 2015 Closing
Net Book Value Net Book Value

(NBV) I (NBV]
1 11

General Capital Assets $ $
2005 Land 394,251988 405 173,867
2010 Land Improvements 75,483 761 72,061.163
2020 Buildings

- 319.952.131 324.219.668
2030 Machinery & Equipment

—. - 79,479,083 81,940,967
2040 Vehicles -. .

L_______
- 4514071 4,649.643

2007 Other
— —

_______—

0 0
..

2098 Other Other
- -;;. 12,826,693 11,966,715

2099 Total General Capital Assets ‘‘ - 886.507,727 - 900,012,023

2015 Opening 2Oi5Cloalng —.

Net Book Value Net Book Value‘ (NBVI INBVI
1 11

Infrastructure Assets
, $ $

2205 Land 0
2210 Land Improvements . - 0
2220 Buildings 196,762,296 190,790,760
2230 Machinery & Equipment . . . 80,422,838 73,670,143
2240 Vehicles

, . 41,920,830 43,687,733
2250 Linear Assets 2.035.969 268 2,107.821.320
2297 Other .:-“ o a
2298 Other 0
2299 Total Infrastructure Assets 2,355,075,232 - 2,415,969,956

9920 TotalTangibleCapftalAssets [ 3,241,582.959 3.315981979]

2405 Construction-in-progress l63.922,i 171,834,922

9921 Total Tangible Capital Assets and Construction-in-progress 3,405.505,420 3,487.816,901



Province of Ontario - Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing lsne2ole neil

F1R2&is: London C Schedule 51
Asmt Code: 3936 SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSET: CONSTRUCTION-IN-PROGRESS
MAIl Code: 59101 far the year ended December31, 2015

ANALYSIS BY FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION COST

2015 Opening Balance Expenditures in 2015 Less Assets Capitalized 2015 Clnsing Balance

Planning cod development
Planning and zoning
Coemneecial and indunhial
Ronidental deselopment
Agdcoftore and relorentoton
The d nAq&shoreilne as ntnece.
Other

Subtotal

0 3,570,222
B
0

1 2 3 4
S $ $ - S

0259 General government 2 225.110 1.953 690 . 12i.27 - 2.974.525
Pmtectne services

0410 Fire 15309 15,389 0
0420 Police 300 488 315.609 457.204 740,893
0421 CooriSecodly . . 0’ •, “ . o0422 Prisoner Transsonta5on

.. .0 . . 0
5430 Conservarinnauthorrty — 0 . 00440 Prntecbve inspecbon ood control 0 39 912 39,912
0445 Bulldingpenndtandinsoechonnenices 0 .
0450 Enmrgencp nmassren 0 0
0460 PrnoixiaOffencesActiPoAl 0 - . 0
0408 Other 0 00499 Sobtotat 015.871 355 521 6.2.5!3 788,805

Trannportabon services
0611 Roads- Posed 22.852.221 21.952 430 20.273.997 24 540,654
0612 Roadn-Usoased 0 -. . 00613 Roads- Bridges and Colserts 646 234 358.795 561.179 453,850
0614 Roadways -Traffic Operabsos 6 Roadside I 222 635 943 554 I 201 567 964 622
0921 Winter COOFO1 - Encest sidewalks, Parking Lots 0 0
0622 Winter Control - Sidewalks, Pa5isg Lots Ordy 0 . 0
0631 Transit- Conoenbooal 0 0
0632 Tronnit - Oisabled 8 special needs 0 , 00640 Parking 0 - 89.081 89.081
0650 Streellighing 566013 1.163 839 474671 1,255.181
8660 ffirfrasspsdabsn 0 80698 Other 0 60695 Sobtotal 25 297.103 24.517,699 22.511 414 27.363,380

Ennirnnmeetal services
0611 Wastewater coilectoritconsoyance 7.927.018 14 204.065 6,981.526 15,149.555
0012 Wastewaterfrvahnrent6disponal 15889322 3803286 6121260 13.571.320
0021 Urban storm sewer system 23,400 310 13.675 068 12 746 692 24,534.626
6822 Rural stone sewer system 0 6
0831 Waler treahireni 15 769 495 7 945 100 8 895 152 14,019,444
0032 Water dishibsbon/transndosioe 69.606,759 13077,661 15.233 141 66,051,169
0840 Solid waste cdtocboo 9 0
0050 Solidwastedisponal 71,276 62.722 0 133,908
0060 Waste dsern’en

, 0 0
0698 Other 0 0
9699 Sobtntal 132,070.181 52.967.762 40.977.001 , 135,060.142

Heath services .

1010 Pobik health sernkes 0 0
1020 Hnnprials 0 01030 Ambulance sereices 0 - 0
1035 Ambulance dispatch 0 01040 Cennetorre5 44-1-L’’’ ‘yr.’ 0 0.
1098 Other . 0, 01059 Sabtotal 0’

-.. 6
Social and family services

1210 General obuotauce 2 190 729 2.160 729 0
1220 Assinlaecetoaqedpeenonn

,

0 6
1230 Chlidcare . 0 0
1290 Other - 0 0lass Sobtntal 2.150726 -. — 2,190729 0

Social Hoaslsq
1410 Potsicrioosinq

-

1420 Non-Proilttooperefive Hooning V , .
- 0

1430 RestSupnlementProrwnn 0
1407 06nee 0
1498 Otirer 01499

Recreatios and coharat services
1610 Perks 476064 360.422 250.609 505.787
1620 Recreabon programs 0 . 0
1531 Rec.Foc -GeffCrn Marina, SkiHit

‘ 0 01634 Rec,Pac -AJI Other
. 244592 1.194,608 220615 - 1,218,785

1640 Libraries 0 0
1645 Msneumn 0 g
1650 Coltenaloervkon

‘ -‘1 ,,,•• 222014 319378 206 124 333.266
1690 Other 0 01699 Sebtotal - 042,670 - 1,874.608 679438 - 2.137,840

1810 0
1820 279791 3290431
1830 0
1840 0
1650
1898
1899

0

6

0Sobtotal

1910 Other I. u1!-

Z___._p
0 - 0

- - 3.290,431 - , — -— 3.570.222

3Z___1
-____

9910 Tetalcsesftuction.tp-Progreee 163,922,461 - - 84,069,711
-. --

-. 77,057,250 - - - 171,834.922
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F1R2015 London C Schedule 53
Asmt Code 3936 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS
MM Code 59101 (NET DEBT) AND TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSET ACQUISITION FINANCINGIDONATIONS

for the year ended December31 2015- - -,

.‘n-•

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS (NET DEBT)
--

r
1010 Annual Surplus/(Deficit) (SLC 10209901)

- 144400567

1020 Acquisibon of tangible capital assets 200067 492
I030 Amortization of tangible capital assets (SLC 519910 08) 140203804
1031 Contributed (Donated) tangible capital assets

—— -— 41,125,504
1032 Change In constructlon.in-progress

-

4,555,592
1040 (Gain)iLoss on sale of tangible capital assets

- 6162900
1050 Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets

1060 Write-dswnosltangiblecapilalasoela.
..

1070 Other

1071 Other
lens Subtotal .02,244,727

1210 Change in supplies inventories
- -- —- - -923,580

1220 Change in prepaidexpenses. . . .

.
64.55516

1230 Other

--

1296 Subtotal 5811

1415 (lncrease)Jdecreaoe in net financial assetslnet debt
- 68247775

1426 Net financial assets (net debt), beginning of year 125 206 457
9910 Net financial assets (net debt), end of year

- -
- 196 514 232

F.SOURCES OF FINANCING FOR TCA ACQUISITIONS! DONATIONS

Long Term Clabitities Incurred I $
0205 Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation (CMHC) . .

-

5210 Ontario Financing Authority

0211 Commercial Anea Improvement Program
-0220 Other Ontario housing programs 6:

9235 Serial debentures ‘ ‘ 39 162 637
0240 Sinking fund debentures
0245 Long term bank loans

,

0250 Long term reserve fund loans
0255 Lease purchase agreements (Tangible capital leases) 906 783
0260 Construction Financing Debentures
0265 Inlrastructure Ontario
0297 Other Long mm liatiSSes 260000
0298 Other
0299 Subtotal - 40,269420

Financing from Dedicated Revenue
—

0455 Municipal Property Tax by Levy 12.500
0406 Reserves and Reserve tundsfSLC 08101201 .SLC 60101202. SLC 08101203)

- 51043792
0410 Municipal User Fees & Service Chges
9415 Development Chargeo (SLC 61 0299 08) 33490425
5416 Recreation land (The Planning Act) (SLC 08103201) 110,794
0419 Donabonu
0420 Other
9446 Proceeds from the sate ot Tangible Capital Assets, etc
6847 Inneobnent income
0448 Prepald special changes
0495 Other
4496 Other

,

0497 Other
2698 Other

0503 Subtotal - 84,657,511
Government Transfers

9425 Capital Grants: Federal (SLC 12991006 -(SLC 10409901 -SLC 08104701) 1,055,273,
0430 Capital Grants: Provincial )SLC 12991005- (SLC 10401901 - SLC 60104505)

- 2,007,711
0435 Capital Grants: Other Municipa0lies (SLC 12995007)
0440 Canada Gas Tao (SLC 10409901)

- 25,455.014
0445 Provincial Gas Tax (SLC 10401901) 3,509,895
0502 Subtotal 32.527,893

Subtotal 117185494

0610 Contnbuted (Donated) tangible capital assets 41125 554

9920 Total Capital Financing
--

0910 Unexpended Capital Financing or (Unfinanced Cupital Oulay) 38057066
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F1R2015: London C Schedule 54
Asmt Code 3936 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW - INDIRECT METHOD
MAIl Code 59101 for the year ended December37 2015

Municipalities must choose either the direct or indirect method. If direct method is chosen, please use Schedule 54A.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW - INDIRECT METHOD

2015
Actual

Operating Transactions $

-

2010 Annual Surplus/(Deficft) (SLC 10 2099 01) 144680,507
2020 Non-cash items including amortization 155,133,271
2021 Contributed (Donated) tangible capital assets -41,125,554
2022 Change in non-cash assets and liabilities 6374,650
2030 Prepaid expenses 7,027,238
2040 Change in deferred revenue -287,569
2096 Other

-

2097 Other

2098 Other

2099 Cash provided by operating transactions - 271,802 603
Capital Transactions

0610 Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets 6,102.909
0620 Cnsh used to acquire tangible capital assets

‘ -114,345,222
0630 Change in construction-in-progress F -04,815,476
0698 Other

0699 Cash applied to capital transactions -193.057,789
Investing Transactions

- -

0810 Proceeds from portfolio investments

0820 Portfolio investments
. -

-.
‘_ -152,924,866

0898 Other Other , .
-

- 11,348 369
0899 Cash provided by! (applied to) investing transactions -141,576,497

Financing Transactions

1010 Proceeds frum long term debt issues L 39,115.493
1020 Principal long term debt repayment i. - - , . . i -51,850,617
1030 Temporary loans I

1031 Repayment of temporary loans

1096 Other Increase in long-term Iiabilihvs
‘, 195,472

1097 Other Repayments of long-leon iabthnns
‘...

1098 Other Repayments at capital lease obtgatons
1899 Cash applied to financing transactions , - -12,539,652]

1210 Increase in cash and cash equmalents L 75371 335
1220 Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

‘-
436 486,273

9920 Cash and cash equivalents end of year

_________

360 114 938

2015
Actual

Cash and cash equivalents represented by: $
1401 Cash 256.707,962
1402 Temporary borrowings

1403 Short term investments 103 407,876
1404 Other

9940 Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 360,114.938

Cash: $
1501 UnrestrIcted 116,928,536
1502 Restricted 241,186,402
1503 Unallocated

9950 Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

-

360,114,938
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F1R2015: London C Schedule 6O
Asmt Code 3936 CONTINUITY OF RESERVES AND RESERVE FUNDS
MAH Code 59101 forthe year ended December31 2O15v

Ob4gafory Res. Funds. - .

Deferred Rev Discretionary Res Frind Reserves

1 - 2 3
. $ 4,.__ S

0299 Balance, beginning of year 179532873 400588281 119,258.545

0310 Allocation of Surplus I -

lO9,846,392 6.863,397
0315 Allocation of Surplus : for operating

. , 101,043.776 4675,775
0320 Allocation of Surplus: forcapital

- ‘J 8M0Z616 2,187,622

0810

0820
0830

0841

0860

0861

0862

0864

0870
0895

0896
0807

0898
9940

Less: Utilizabon of reserve funds and reserves (transfers)
For acquisition of tangible capital asset
For current operations
Development Charges earned to tangible capilal asset acquisition (SLC 61 0299 08)
Development Charges earned to operations (SLC 61 0299 07) .

Recreational land (the Planning Act) earned to tangible capital asset acquisition . - ,

Recreational land (the Planning Act) earned to operations
Deferred revenue earned (Provincial Gas Tax) for Transit (Operations)

‘

Deferred revenue earned (Provincial Gas Tax) for Transit (Capital)
Deferred revenue earned (Canada Gas Tax)
Development Charges Act - Credits Provided (SLC 61 029910)
Inter - Reserve Fund / Reserves Transfer

Less: Utilization (deferred revenue recognized)

Balance, end oF year

Development Charges Act

____________________________________________

0610 Non-discounted services
— 32545789

0620 Discounted services
— 2496 668

____________

— ——

0636 Credits utilized (Development Charges Act) (SLC 61 0299 05) 0

___________

—

0699 Subtotal Development Charges Act
-

34,952,477]

Lot levies F
Subdivider conttbutioris

- -

Recreational land (the Planning Act)

-
______________

___________

Investment Income
- -

________________
____________

Gasoline Tax - Province
-

___________________

Building Code Act, 1992 (Section 1.9.1.1 (d))

___________________
_________

Gasoline Tax - Federal

_________
_______________

Suilding Canada Fund (BCF) :f -, - -

Inter - Reserve Fund! Reserves Transfer
-

Other
-

Other

__________

Other

Other

.

_______

TOTAL Revenues & Surplus

3 079,373

9 422,440
7,539.503

6.474,713

604,790

-,

__________________

--

54,347,918 , 117,385,895 7,468,195

1012

1015

1025
1026

1032

1035

1042

1045
1047

1055

1070

0910

2099

49,5965 1,446 943
1.530,311 16,445 518 1,447,963

33,490,425 —— ————-

-

110,794
-

- . -

53l6509L
3.109,895

-

- 1

--±- -

—

-1,420,000 1,420,000
54,390,770 — 64,622,360 - 4,314,906

-

- 179.496.021] 453,351,808 - 122,411,834
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Per Service Purpose:
5205 General government
5210 Protection services

Transportation services.
5215 Roadways
5216 WinterControl
5220 Transit
5221 Parking
5222 Street lighting
5223 Air transportation

Environmental services.
5225 Wastewater system
5230 Storm water system
5235 Waterworks system
5240 Solid waste collection
5245 Solid waste disposal
5246 Waste diversion
5250 Health services
5255 Social and family services
5260 Social housing

Recreation and cultural services
5265 Parks
5266 Recreation programs
5271 Recreation facilities - Golf Course, Marina, Ski Hill
5274 Recreation facilities - All Other
5275 Libraries
5276 Museums
5277 Cultural services
5280 Planning and development

. ..
.

5290 Other Other & Urupecified

5610

5620

5640

5650
5661

5690

5691

5692
5693

5695

5696

5697

5690
5699
9930

z1

—

—

‘t..

zi.

79 388.547

45.290 455

1,621,550

ol
20,470,802

24,732,667

23044,022

3,944,880

12601.588

12045328

3.062 720

2.960,712

3fl 918

91,282

1.629,369 216296

F1R2OI5: London C Schedule 60
Asmt’Code: 3936 CONTINUITY OF RESERVES AND RESERVE FUNDS
MAH Code: 59101 : forThe year ended December 3t 2015..

Obligatory Reu, Funds, Diacrebonory Res. Funds ReservesDeferred Rev.
Totals in fine 2099 are analysed as follows: 1 2 3

$ S $
5010 Working funds 14.294.627
5020 Contingencies

. - 156.441 93.775.895
Asset Replacement funds for Sewer & Water

5030 Sewer
5040 Water
5050 Replacement of equipment
5060 Sick leave
5070 Insurance
5080 Workplace Safety and Insurance Board (WSIB)
5090 Post-employment benefits
5091 Tax rate stabilization
5630 Lot levies
5660 Parking revenues
5670 Debenture repayment
5680 Exchange rate stabilization

500000

137,946

1611,566

241,316

9.126 503

134 404

223. 357

568 581

21,090,371

4,427,237

4,658 384

92,787,946

4,979 924

59.839.814

12 081, 951

938 210

10,941,048

15973,827

a

] 3,901,534

142,861,056 1.754,027

L_t_.__ 17,853 565 395,897

Obligatory Deferred Revenue:

Development Charges Act - Non-discounted services
Development Charges Act - Discounted services
Subdivider contributions
Recreational land (the Planning Act)
Building Code Act, 1992 (Section 1.9.1.1 (d))
Gasoline Tax - Province
Gasoline Tax - Federal
Canada Transit Funding (Bill C-48)
Building Canada Fund (BCF)

Other
Other

Other

Other
Other

TOTAL 179,490,021 453,351,808 122,411.834
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0410
0420
0430
0440
0650
0450
0499

9910
0620
0630
0640
0630
0699

0805
0810
0815
0826
0828
0829

9961
0802
0663
0864
0665
0869
0945

0830
0831
0834
9940
0850
0890
0098

9930

8010

r— 73776617- 9441 512

H---- 722299

255784
27 3 76

51900350

3779 119

6243444
1243170

L__
13249526

112933 696
41576344

L.__. 0

172 064 677

338 443 565

635075236

6435411

5435411

142 178

37424606
752 672

9224
12143791

43212469

TOTAL Financial Aoset [_ --

-- 1159560023]

--

F1R2015: LOndànC
- Schedule 70

Asmt Code: 3936 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
MAH Code: 59101 .

- . -
- fortheyearended December 31, 2015 -

Financial Assets

0299 Cash and cash equivalents -. — — 360114939

Accounts receivable
Canada

_________

Ontan0 . - . .

Upper-Sec

OSno municai vs . .
Scimotbomds .
Ofranre000a6les

Subtotal
Taxes receivable

Cunmel yeal’s eves a. . . -

__________

Preuous ye36s le, vs .f
Pirj year’s eves

‘.‘:

__________

Penailies and in!erect .

LESS hlowance Ice ncdlecithivs

Subtotal
Investments

Canada
Ontario
Munixpai .
Government bUSIPOSS entelpnses .......
Other Other - ________.

(4, Subtotal
3,

Debt Recoverable tram Others
- —

Muivcipaii5es )SLC 74063601)
SdiBoards)SLC74C€2001)
Rebromanl Funds )SLC 74696901)
Sinivng Fun4 (SLC 74 120801) . .
lndlsqduai3

.,

7 4,.
‘ Subtotal

Ottrerflnancbi assets

.

Landheidlorresaiv ..

Notes renervablo ——
Msri3ageScecewablv -

-

Subtotal
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F1R2015: Londàn C Schedule 7O
Asmt Code 3936 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
MAN Code 5910’j fortheyearended December31 2015

4 7 0. th.?SA**. .o .lneOSo K

Liabilibes
Temporary loans L $

2010 Operadngpurpooeo
.

TangibteC4dAsse1o.
—2020 Canada

..,.

2030 Ontario
. ...

2040 Other
-.

2099 Subtotal — ,

Accounts Payable
2210 Canada .

. - -- .P !9
2220 Ontario 11,09097
2230 Upper-tier
2240 Othemundopdites 3424303
2250 S&solboads

- 2r?804
2200 Intereotmndeht 279-1471
2270 Trade contopoythle

.
.

I 333 tO!
2000 Other 24261309
2299 Subtotal .3024 142

2301 Estimated Tao Udeildes (P03510)
.

Deterred revenue
2410 Obligatory reserve hindu (SLC 60 2099 01)

.

179 460021
2450 Olher 28330990
2499 Subtotal

. — -
09

Long term liabitdieo
2610 Oebuiuousd .

— 33gs73591
2620 Oehipayabiotoothero 22941405
2630 Lnmepurctoaon U9 Opl toLr_r 2109382

2660 LESS Oebl iooued on bethel ut Government Butineoo Entenprioe
.

2699 Subtotal 364 010 474

Solid Waste Management Facility Liabilities
-

2709 Sdideos1eao.ldoomneaoipostdosoro
- 5500

Post employment benefits
2910 ftocomul&ednicbhiuoe . ojeo rev
2920 Armuedoxaioepa’ . . 75506066
2930 Aonemdpeodvnopoythle

. .
.

2640 Aenroed Workplace Satoy and Insurance Board cidmoiWSiB)
. . .

,

50374165
2698 Other FrnlRetnernnetBance

,
- taeec000

2899 Subtotal post employment benefits L — 104,065 200

Liability ton contaminated thee
2010 Rrredarmconlootaretanirsedu1no

.

. . .

-

9940 TOTAL Liabilities L,........
9940 Net Financial Assets) Not Debt (Total Financtat Assets LESS Total Liab Idles) 196574232

Non-Financial Assets

6210 Tangible Crld Assets )SLC 51992111)
,,,,,.,,,.,.. ‘ o,oai ore 901

6250 lneantcdescl Supplies
. , .,, 3952925’

6260 Prepad Erpenoes . ...... . 23671733
6299 Total Nun-FinancIal Assets 3571747400

9970 Total Accumulated Sumlusi)DeEc’d) - 377,2 255592

Analysis of EheAccsmulated SurplusUDeficft)
-

- I
—

6410 EqsdyinlangdesCepitoAuoels 3510333t58
6420 ReomoesmrdReoerveFomdo)SLC60209902nSLC60209903) 5757tte42
6430 Gerendourplue))Oetdl)

‘ , . ,

6431 Uneepo,dndcepildfinandeg.....,.,..............,,....,...,,.,, . ‘ ‘ —

Locetboardu
‘

,

5030 Tranut operations
‘

-1450,547
5035 Watocpmutioes
5040 Wustowulmcperaberu ,

5041 5uSd wade ppmalioeu .

S045 Ufraner
5050 Cersebotos

-

SOSS Reoeaiier, owvnerily canOes and monre
5060 Bednesu improomrmet kea 90925.
5076 Oboe1 ,...0’-’’’’’.’’

5077 Other Cmmrcordeniaurkd — - I 3745271
9070 124’e
5079 Other ‘EheeeousenndLredenMcreum 1 .....LL ronèo,
5098 Total Local Boards L —

-

5064 EqedyinGonetrnnrmtBusineouflnterpdues )SLC 10600001) .......................... , ‘ - 172004971

6601 UnhandedEmployeeBmne9ie
...,...............,,...,.,,.,...

‘ ‘ ,
‘ 12401

6602 Unkaoded LandtO domino onslu
.. , , 33.562966

6603 Unhinded Remedaticn puilnet..
, :.: ., 064,849975

6610 Other
6620 Other ‘

-. :‘
‘ ,

6630 Other Other 47,93(747’
6640 Other -

Total Other - -- -B#840,429.

9971 Total Accumulated Surptue7DeBch) — 0412255 692
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F1R2015: London C Single/Lower-Tier ONLY Schedule 72
Asmt Code: 3936 CONTINUITY OF TAXES RECEIVABLE
MAH Code 59701 for the year ended December31 2015

Continuity of Taxes Receivable 9

$
0210 Taxes receivable, beginning of year 13347.282

0215 PLUS: Amounts added to tax bills for collection purposes only
L...... 1,431.327

0220 PLUS: Tax amounts levied in the year (SLC 269199 03)
- 670.248.166

0225 PLUS: Current Year Penalties and Interest
— - — — -- 5,3518i8

0240 LESS: Total cash collections (SLC 72069909) 661,810,689
0250 LESS: Tax adjustments before allowances fSLC 72 2899 09) 4,775,729
0260 LESS: Tax adjustments not applied to taxation (SLC 72499909)

. L__._..
0280 PLUS: Allowance for Uncollectible

- -10,249,526

0290 Taxes receivable, end of year 12,750,618

Cash Coltections
, 9

$
0610 Current years tax 648 340 734
0620 Previous years tax

- 7,452 182
0630 Penalties and interest 4,473.098
0640 Amounts added to tax bills for collection purposes only

- 1.544,675
0690 Other

0699 TOTAL Cash Collections 661.810,689

.4
‘F
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F1R2015: London C S Schedule 74
Asmt Code 3936 LONG TERM LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
MM Code: 59101 for the year ended December 31, 2015

1. Debt burden of the municipality

All outstanding debt issued by the municipality, predecessor municiputibes and consolidated eniftes $
0210 To Ontario and agencies

——

-- 93972 472
0220 To Canada and agencies 11823 204
0220 To Others 258214t02
0297 Other ‘1

0298 Other -

-

__________

e2sn Subtotal L._.23P!°f
0499 PLUS. All debt asuamed by the msnicipality froth nUtere

[,555 All debt anusmed by others

_______

0610 Ontario

0020 Schootboards
. . .

0620 Other Municipalities 6436411
0640 Government Business Enterprises...
0697 Other
0698 Other

.

9899 Subtotal - 6536 411
55 Debt retirement lsndu

9810 Sewar
0820 Water
0896 Other --

0897 Other
-

089e Other
0809

.
0”, Subtotal

LESS: Own sinking funds (Actual balaeceo) a

1010 Geeeral municipal
-. -

1020 Enterpdoes and others .

. .........

1056 Other
1097 Other

F1098 Other — ——,.—— .

1599 Subtotal

eats TOTAL Net Leeg Term Liabilities of the Municipality E
2. Debt burden of the manicipatity: Analysed by debt Instrument

1219 Sinking fund debentures F
t220 Installment (oerial) debentures 332 434 324
t220 Long term bank loans

, .

1240 Lease perchase agreements (Tangible capital leases) . . , 21W 3624
1296 Mortgages

t206 Construction Finoncing Debentures
1297 Other O’.fEX 6 C0 3 rose 15724 096
1298 Other Vitae Works

, 7256,403
9920 TOTAL Net Long Term Lrabrtrtree of the Maercrpalrty 357 974 067

..---

3. Debt burden of the municipality: Analysed by function

1405 General govemment
1410 Protecboeaereicen .:, ___, -

Transportation services ‘ :

1415 Roadways
1416 Winter Cantrol
1420 Transit
1421 Parking

1422 SonetLightng

1423 ‘ Air Transportaton

Enicronmentat services
. -

1425 Wastewateruyotem
1438 Stsrmwatarsystem
1435 Waterwoths system

.. ,

1440 Solid Waste collection
1445 Solid Waste disposal
1446 Wastedmemon to —
1438 Healthaemrceo 4 a’-L

1455 Sedalandfamityaericcee
-•

14W Sooiehnemrrg
- r ‘ r r,Y

Recreatoe and cultural services’
1465 Parks 4914766
1466 Recreation programs
1471 Recreation facilitao . Goff Course, Marina, Ski Hill
1474 Recreation facititiea -45 Other
1475 Libraries
1476 Moueums
1420 Catsral sernicm

-

t499 Planning and development
1490 Other long lens liabilities

-..

9930 TOTAL Net Long Term LlabrtWee of the Mualcipalrty

5’

10331075

2333’ 156

68,151703

23300292

SF364

69470020

30944696

16 90 016

it 134 732

45631738

11386899

1472S272J
?,099,41J

357,5749671
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F1R2015: London C Schedule 74
Asmt Code 3936 LONG TERM LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
MAH Code 59107 for the year ended December31 2015

4. Debt payable in foreign currencies (net of sinking fund holdings)

US Dollars: $
1610 Canadian dollar equivalent included in SLC 74991001
1620 Par value in US. Dollars’

—- _______

Other currency:

________

—

1630 Canadian dollar equivalent included in SLC 74 991001

___________

1640 Pat value in -- -— - -

-

________________

1650 Canadian dollar equivalent included in SLC 74 991001

_________________

1660 Par value in

5 Interest earned on sinking funds and on debt retirement funds dunng the year

1810 Own funds

6 Details of sinking fund balance

2010 Value of own sinking fund debentures issued and outstanding at year end
[_______________

Balance of own sinking funds at year end
-

-- -

2110 Total contributions to own sinking funds
2120 Total income earned from investments of sinking funds’ monies
2199 Subtotal — - 0

2210 Estimated total future contributions from this municipality required to meet obligations in tine 2010 above
2220 Estimated total future income earned from investments in lines 2199 and 2210 above

—- - - -

7. Long term commitments at year end

2410 Hospital support
— —

2420 University support

2430 Leases and other agreements
2440 Capital equipment, land acquisition
2496 Other

2497 Other

2498 Other

2499 TOTAL 0

I
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2610

2620

2630

2646

2698

2699

F1R2015: London C Schedule 74’
Asmt Code: 3936 LONG TERM LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
MAH Code: 59101 forthe year ended December31, 2015.

$ .- n.*r

IsValueinColumn2’T’ NunberotYearslCnnbngent Liabilihes . ValueEsbmated? Payable Over
8. Contingent liabilities 4 1 2 3

[ YorN YorN $ Years
Pending or threatened litigation —— —— — ——

Retroactive wage settlements [_ - — —

Guarantees of long term indebtedness in the name of the municipality but assumed by others.....
Outstanding loans guaranteed

Other
-

—

--

TOTAL
- 0

Principal - - Interest . Thtal
10. Debt Charges for the current year I 2 3

Recovered from the Consolidated Statement of Operations $ $
3012 General Tax Rates 44.069,051 9053 150
3014 Other

- —
3015 Tile Drainage/Shoreline Assistance

-

3020 Recovered from reserve funds
- 7,761.566 1,931379

Recovered from unconsolidated entities -

3030 Electricity .., - -

3040 Gas
-

3050 Tetephone

3097 Other
--

3098 Other
-

3099 TOTAL — 51,850,617
- 10,984,529

___________

Line 3099 Includes:
3110 Lump sum (balloon) repayments of long term debt .....z____ . -

__________________

3120 Provincial Grant funding for repayment of long term debt — ‘1
Analysis of Lease Purchase Agreements (TangIble Capital Leases) -

3140 Debt charges for Lease purchase agreements (Tangible capital leases) . . .
. [ 1,454.808 85,675 1,540,483

- Principal Interest
11. Longtermdebtrefinanced -..-. 1 2

_$ .. S
3410 Repayment of Provincial Special Assistance

- -

3420 Other long term debt refinanced .
. t [ . — - -
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F1R2015: London C Schedule 74
Asmt Code 3936 LONG TERM LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

MAH Code: 59101 for the year ended December 31, 2015 i

12. Future principal and Interest payments on EXISTING debt

RECOVERABLE FROM:

Lc,onsolidated Statement of Operations - Reserve Funds Unconsolidated Entities 1 — All Others
Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal nterest Principal Interest

I 2 . 3 4 5 6 7 j 8
$ i_ $ $ $ $ -. $ $ 1___ $

3210 Year2Dl6 47.330.699 8 360.091 3.970 990 - 802 214 4,662595 950,221
3220 Year2Ol7 44,964,467 7,165,343 4,068 384 709,509 4,724,190 833.821
3230 Year2Ol8 39.356.166 5960.731 4.174.456 602.546 4,058.013 708.903
3240 Year2OI9 37.038,687 4.862 043 4.294,147 481,518 4,130 057 609.714
3250 Year2O2O 35,223,479 3,801,937 4,424,921 346 618 - - 4,206920 501,990
3260 Years 2021 to 2025 84.826 468 6,467,585 5,749,187 386,903 . 12,609,891 953 395
3270 Years 2026 onwards 6,972,894 313 356 — . - 787,456 87,418
3280 lnt to be earned on sink, funds.

3299 TOTAL 295,712 860 36931,086 26682085 3,329,308 0 - 0 35.179,122 4,645,462

13. Other notes

Please list all Other Notes and forward supporting schedules as required by email to: FIR.mah()ontario.ca
3601

* Uce ALT ÷ ENTER Keys to Return to thn next line
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Number of Approved flTotal Value of all approved
Grants/Loans/Tax

Grants, Loans & Tax
Assistance Applications

Assistance

1 2
$

361790

3000

2210 Loans issued in current year (2015) 701 402 20
2220 Outstanding Loans as of 2015

._. . -

.

138.

Tax Assistance (per Municipal Act 365.1 ss2l)
2410 Cancellaton . . —

2420 Deferral

Long Term Commitments for Grants, Loans or Tax Assistance beyond 2015
2610 Year 2016

2620 Year. 2017

2630 Year: 2018

2640 Year: 2019

2650 Year 2020
2660 Years beyond 2020 %

F1R2015: London C Schedule 79
.Asmt Code: 3936 COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT PLANS
MAH Code 59101 for the year ended December31 2015

v.

Communfty Improvement Plans (Section 28 of the Planning Act)

Grants
2010 Environment Site AssessmentlRemediaton

2020 Development/Redevelopment of Land/Buildings

Loans

0 0

0 - 0

1.626. 500

1341.835

967817

685544

402,423

1017,997
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F1R2015 London C Schedule 80
AsmL Code 3936 STATISTICAL INFORMATION
MAHCode; 59101 forthoyearendedDeceinbdrsl2ols

.t-&v.

FOUS00Fuethf P50TThIFuO
Onason&Emyloyenu

I. Municipal woMoroe profile r 2 3
Employees of the Municipality L

_________

8 -

0260 Adminiotrabror 00 - 053

0210 Fire . 38300 030 000
0211 Uniform 33100
0212 ciol:ies 5200

0215 Police 81000 000 —- 1500
0216 Urofrom 51800
0217 Civiluv

.

5260 CcvdSecudty ,:j0.3.%.i44 I.;4-1 4 000 - coo coo
0261 Uotlmm 3

— — —

0202 Ciulice .44 & L_____ — —— — — —

0263 FssonorTrarspvdica 000 000 000
0204 rbm 1y
0205 Cicfioo s_ 5..

— — —— —

0220 Trvs.l -°
0225 Putiicwoeko ‘‘ : 22500 206 15000

0227 Avobulcece . — 000 000
0228 UMmm
0225 GooSes

0230 HeolA Soocces . .

5235 HcmeufurihoAgod . 11300 15050 200
0240 OfberS&dServres 33000 000 1300
5245 PookcesdReaeuboe 10600 — - 153000
0250 Uboaies - --

0255 52505159 4500 100
0200 Other 22000 100 1200
0288 Subtotal 201400 20800 173100

10 .-.-
-

0350 Prcporlioo of Moiso EmpI covered by ‘Colledbon Açeomnenln’ (%)
_*ol__ I — - -

Employees of Joint Local Boards ‘4c
0305 Adonnisbulce . - . - ..

0310 Foe
. ° .

- 000 000 — -- 000

:::::::::.z

0315 Poor F 000 030 —- 006
0316 Unibmm ‘ - - -

0317 Crokes ...

0360 CwfiSocmty — 050 000 050
0361 Uniform - .—— -- —

E .

- :.
.::

1 000 000 000

0328 Civilian --———. -. -
-.

0330 Heollh Services 31 25200

oooo I%6So
a H ‘v

j
0345 Forks and Recreufive -. - a

- - -

0350 Ubraies 17850

_____

0355 Ramneog 44
.

0360 41000 400 ,
-—a-- i&.c —,

0308 - Subtotrd 1330 - Dx

0398 TOTAL A31800 ioe&
‘
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FIR2OI 5: London C Schedule 80
Asmt Code: 3936 STATISTICAL INFORMATION
MAH Code: 59101 for the year ended December31, 2015

3. MunIcipal procurement this year

1010 Total construclim cotractu awarded
l024 Construcboi conhacts uwerded at $100000 er greater

4. BuIlding permit information

1210 Residentiot ploperttes .

1220 MLdti.Residentot ptopethes
1230 Jt other property dasoes . ...

1299

5. insured value of physical assets

Buildings
...

Machinery ucd equipment

Vetrides . .

Other Otho

Other
...,..

OwvMups67y D0no5oe
- Pr ,il

1 2 3 4
$ $ $

-- —.

NumbenolConFnotnT VatuoulConfrautu
2

9-. $
933 253 977332

34 192907803

lOumbm alBcOtue 1atdetu 910004144

L
2455

-.

1413

25400443

133 723 433

276402 631

404’ 711 631 9r4

04’ 365 388

27442254

43333975

525 806 735

Suhiatal 2C43

2. Selected Investments of own sinking funds us at Dec.30

0610 Ownuinkingbeds.

r4rO

1420
1430

1497

1438

0499

Subtotal

1

6. Total Dollar Lenses due to Structural Fires

1510 Losues due to ut’uclurd fires, averaged over 3570(2013-2005) 9751 714
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F1R2015 London C Schedule 80
Asmt Code 3936 STATISTICAL INFORMATION
MAH Code 59101 for the year ended December31 2015

.- 5.

7. Alternate service delivery arrangements

Municipal services which the municipality currenty provides through some form of alternate service delivery. (Top 10 by Operating Expenses)

S40 Line Statement of Operations:Municipal service S40 Functional Heading - Comments
Number Expenses

1 3 2 4 5

LIST $

1601 Land Ambulance Ambulance Services 1030 - 12392468

1602 Recycling Waste Diversion
- 0860 10468,610

-

1603 Animal Control Services Protective inspection and control 0440 - 272,426 — -

1604 Ontario Works Employment Services General Assistance - 1210 7,597,849

1605

1606

1 607

1608

1609

1610
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F1R2015: London C Schedule 80
Asmt Code 3936 STATISTICAL IN FORMATION
MAH Code 59101 for the year ended December31 2015

8. Consolidated Local boards includinq Joint local boards and all local entities set uo by the municiaiity

Ill PROPORTIONALLY CONSOLIDATED joint local boards

Name of Board or Entity Board Description Board code
Municipalitys Share of Municipahty’s Share of

Total ccntnbations Total Fee Revenuesconsolidated
1 3 2 4 5 6

LIST - $ $
0801 Lake Huron Water Supply System - Water Board - - 0802 - 84%

0802 Elgin Water Supply System Water Board — 0802 -

0803

0804

0805

0806

0807 -

0808

0809

0810 -

0811

0812

0813 - f

0814 -

0815 -*

0816 -

0817

---—

.. -

0818

0821 .

— -

0822

0823

0824 -

0825

0826
—— — ——

0827
-

0828

0829 I
0830

0831

0832

0833 --

0834 -- -

0835 - - .

- J - . - -

0836
--. —

0837
-

0838 -

-. I
0839

0840

0841

0842

0843

0844 .

0845 - -

0846 - -

0847

0848 - -

0849
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London Police Services Board Pokce Board

London Transit Commission -

Lcndon Public Library Board - Library Board

London & Middiesex Housing Corporation - Housing Authorty

Old East V:llage Business Improvement Area Business Improvement Area

London Downtown Business Association Business Improvement Area

Argyle Business lmrpovement Area Board of Management Business Improvement Area

London Convention Centre Corporat!on Other

Covent Garden Martket Corporation Other

Public Utility Commission of the City of London Other

Museum Lsndnn Museum

Proportion of Total
Municipality’s Share of Municipality’s Share of

Board Code Manic Contributions
Total Contributions Total Fee Revenues

Consolidated
2 4

0402 100%

0602 100%

1604 100%

1401 100%

1805 100%

1805 100%

1805 100%

9001 100%

9001 100%

9001 100%

1605 100%

1605 100%

1001 100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

• 100%

• 100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

I 100%

100%
100%

100%

100%

- 100%

100%

100%

100%

100%100%

100%

100%
-

100%

100%

100%

251 5-VOl

F1R2015: London C Schedule 80
Asmt Code: 3936 STATISTICAL INFORMATION
MAH Code 59101 for the year ended December31 2015

(II) FULLY CONSOLIDATED local boards and any local entities set up by the municIpality

Name of Board or Entity Board Description

1 3
LIST

Transit Commission

5 6
$$

t•--

Eldon House

Middlesex-London Health Unit

Museum

Health Board (Unit) Medical Centre

0851

0852

0853

0854

0855

0856

0857

0858

0859

0860

0861

0862

0863

0864

0865

0866

086?

0868

0869

0870

0871

0872

0873

0874

0875

0876

0877

0878
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Province of Ontario - Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing 1 3.06 2016 11:08
- - . . - -

FIR2OI 5 London C Schedule 81
Asmt Code 3936 ANNUAL DEBT REPAYMENT LIMIT
MAH Code 59101 based ontheinformahonreportedfortheyearended December31 2015

3I %

NOTE: THE ESTIMATED ANNUAL REPAYMENT LIMIT IS EFFECTIVE JANUARY 01, 2017

Please note that fees and revenues for Homes for the Aged are not reflected in this estimate.

—

DETERMINATION OF ANNUAL DEBT REPAYMENT LIMIT
-

Debt Charges for the Current Year $
0210 Principal (SLC 74309901) 51 ,850,617

0220 Interest (SLC 74309902) 10984.529

0299 Subtotal 62,835146

0510 Payments for Long Term Commibsents and Liabilibes financed from the consolidated statement of .
operations CSLC 42 6010 01)

—

9910 Total Debt Charges — 62,835,146

1010

Exduded Debt Charges

1020 ElechiCity - Interest (SLC 74303002) . — 0
1030 Gas - Principal (SLC 74 3040 01) 0
1040 Gas-lnterest(SLC74304002) 0

1050 Telephone.PnncipalfSLC743O500l) 0

1060 Telephone. Interest (SLC 74305002) i’ 0
1099 Subtotal —

________

0

1410 Debt Charges forTile Drainage/Shoreline Assistance (SLC 74301501 +SLC 74301502) 0

1411 Provincial Grant funding for repayment of long term debt (SLC 74312001 + SLC 74312002) 0

1412 Lump sum (balloon) repayments of long term debt (SLC 74311001 +SLC 74311002) 0

1420 Total Debt Charges to be Excluded 0

9920 Net Debt Charges 62,835,146

L
1610 Total Revenues Saleof Hydro Utilities Removed) (SLC 10091001) \ri’ I . 1187716827

Excluded Revenue Amounts

2010 Fees for Tile Drainage I Shoreline Assistance (SLC 12 1850 04) - —. 0

2210 Ontario Grants, including Grants for Tangible Capital Assets (SLC 10069901 + SLC 10081001 ÷ SLC1O 0815 01) -
223,092,9821

2220 Canada Grants, including Grants tsr Tangible Capital Assets (SLC 10082001 ÷SLC 10082501) L 18,212,600

2225 Deterred revenue eamed (Provincial Gas Tax) (SLC 10083001) - 8,426,404
2226 Deferred revenue earned (Canada Gas Tax) (SLC 100031 01) - 10,725,621
2230 Revenue from other municipalities, including Revenue for Tangible Capital Assets (SLC 10109901 ÷SLC 10109801) - 7,463,416
2240 Gain/Loss on sale of land & capital assets (5CC 101811 01)

592231
2250 Deferred revenue earned (Development Charges) (SLC 10181201) - 33,490,425
2251 Deferred revenue earned (Recreation Land (The Planning Act)) (SLC 10181301) 110,794

2253 Other Deferred revnnueeamed )SLC 10101401) 0

2252 Donated Tangible Capital Assets (SLC 53061001) [ -

—- 41,125,554
2254 Increase? Decrease in Government Business Enterprise equity (SLC 10190501) — __ 7,654,121

2299 Subtotal I 350,361,140

2410 Fees and Revenue focJoint Local Boards for Homes for the Aged L_.___. - -

2610 Net Revenues 837,355,687

2620 25% of Net Revenues 209,338922

9930 — ESTIMATED ANNUAL REPAYMENT Cf MF — 146 503 776
--

- ForltluutrationPurpoues Only -

— - -— -

Annual Interest Rate Term

I 7.oo% I 5 I years 600,69440J
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